
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JUNE 21, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 





 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 21, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Vince Messina – Woodside Bible Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year ................. 1 
(b) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 

months of March and April 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart 
will present a check in the amount of $1,062.00 to Kelsey Ruder, Community 
Representative for the American Cancer Society ................................................. 1 

(c) Presentation by City Assessor Nino Licari on the 2010 City of Troy 
Assessment Roll & Board of Review Report ........................................................ 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern 
Outdoor Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 East Big 
Beaver), Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District 2 

E-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, 
Northwest Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low Rise Office 
District to B-2 (Community Business) District 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

G-1 No Postponed Items 3 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 3 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 3 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 3 
(b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals ............................................ 3 

H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 
10-4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 4 

H-4 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 4 

H-5 Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee 5 

H-6 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative 
Service 5 

H-7 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic 
Preservation 5 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 6 

(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year ................. 6 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 6 



 

 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video 
Upgrades .............................................................................................................. 6 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and 
Repair Services .................................................................................................... 7 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 10-02 – 
Coolidge Highway Pavement Rehabilitation ......................................................... 7 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of 
Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing ..................................................................... 7 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Fitness Equipment ...................................................................... 8 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, 
Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts ................... 8 

I-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Mandell, 
President of The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc. 9 

I-6 Request for Ratification of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club 
License, 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 Approval Resolution 9 

I-7 Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special 
Investigations Unit 9 

I-8 City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al 10 

I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 10 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 10 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): 10 

(a) June 28, 2010 Study Session ............................................................................. 10 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 11 

K-1  Council Member Dane Slater Proposals 11 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 11 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 11 



 

 

M. REPORTS 11 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 11 

(a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 4, 2010 ..................... 11 
(b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 13, 2010 ..................................................... 11 
(c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 18, 2010 ................................................. 11 
(d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 18, 2010 ................................................. 11 
(e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 25, 2010 ............................... 11 
(f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 25, 2010 ............................... 11 
(g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 2, 2010 ....................................... 11 
(h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 3, 2010 ............................ 11 

M-2 Department Reports: 11 

(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– March 2010 ..................................................................................................... 11 

(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– April 2010 ........................................................................................................ 11 

(c) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– May 2010 ......................................................................................................... 11 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 11 

(a) Letter of Thanks to Acting Planning Director from Morgan Liu and Hongmei 
Zhao Regarding Service Received Pertaining to Site Condos and 
Subdivisions ....................................................................................................... 11 

(b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sterling Heights Police Chief 
Michael Reese Regarding Assistance Received from Troy Police Department 
Special Investigative Unit with Serial Home Invasion Suspects ......................... 11 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 11 

M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2010 11 

M-6  Communication from Troy Police Department Regarding Police Records Section 
Public Counter Reduction in Hours 11 

M-7  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding A & M Towing Contract 11 

M-8  Communication from Fire Chief William Nelson Regarding Firefighters Incentive 
Program and Budget Comparison 12 



 

 

N. STUDY ITEMS 12 

N-1  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and 
Grass 12 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 12 

O-1 Closed Session 12 

P. ADJOURNMENT 12 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 12 

Monday, July 12, 2010 ............................................................................................. 12 
1. Bostick Rochester Road Development LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road .................................................. 12 
2. AxleTech International LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 

1400 Rochester Road ........................................................................................ 12 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 13 

Monday, June 28, 2010 Special City Council ........................................................ 13 
Monday, July 12, 2010 Regular City Council ......................................................... 13 
Monday, July 26, 2010 Regular City Council ......................................................... 13 
Monday, August 9, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 13 
Monday, August 23, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 13 
Monday, September 13, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 13 
Monday, September 27, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 13 
Monday, October 4, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 13 
Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................. 13 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Vince Messina – Woodside Bible Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
(b) Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of _______________  
at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, June 21, 2010 and the Closed Session of 
Monday, June 21, 2010 due to____________. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
C-1 Presentations:  
(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year 
(b) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of 

March and April 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in 
the amount of $1,062.00 to Kelsey Ruder, Community Representative for the American 
Cancer Society  

(c) Presentation by City Assessor Nino Licari on the 2010 City of Troy Assessment Roll & 
Board of Review Report  

 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor 

Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 East Big Beaver), 
Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Special Use Approval and Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for the proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver, west of Rochester (645 E. Big Beaver), Section 22, within the O-M 
zoning district. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, 

Northwest Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low Rise Office 
District to B-2 (Community Business) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from O-1 to B-2, File Number Z-737, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Sketch of Parcels to be Rezoned; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from O-1 to B-2; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District 
Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                           

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or 
any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment 
portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related 
to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment 
may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on 
a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & Alt. 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/2010 
  
 Term Expires 04/30/2010 
  
 Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 10-

4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Contract No. 10-4040 which amends MDOT Contract 07-7734, both 
contracts being between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation, for 
the purpose of waiving the interest payments from October 1, 2009 until the project is 
converted by MDOT to regular Federal-Aid in fiscal year 2010 for the reconstruction of 
Stephenson Highway, from 14 Mile to I-75., Project No. 02.201.5; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-4 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 
2 as submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

H-5 Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Historic District Study Committee appointed in February 2004 has completed 
work on all pending requests to de-list properties; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DISSOLVES the Historic 
District Study Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 13 of the Troy City 
Code and MCL 399.214(1). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
H-6 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative 

Service 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to amend Chapter 3, 
Administrative Service, of the Troy City Code Section 1.141, Sections (5), (6), (7), (8), (9) and 
(10) as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-7 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic 

Preservation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to amend Chapter 13, 
Historic Preservation, Section 3 to eliminate 4800 Beach Road as an historic district, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and RECORDED with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds as required by state statute. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of June 7, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video Upgrades 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bid proposals for ITB-COT 10-20, 
audio and video upgrades for the City Council Chambers and WTRY Cable Control Room 
opened June 2, 2010, and will rebid under revised specifications. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair 
Services 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish two-year (2) 
requirements of pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two (2) one-year options to renew to the 
sole bidder, B & B Pool and Spas of Livonia, Michigan, at rates contained in the bid tabulation 
opened June 3, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with a contract expiration of June 30, 2012; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 10-02 – 

Coolidge Highway Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 10-02, Coolidge Hwy. 
Pavement Rehabilitation to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI 
48084 at an estimated total cost of $621,314.97; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of 

Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract for fire hose testing 
services during the 2010-2011 fiscal year from the low bidder, Waterway Michigan LLC of 
Caledonia, MI, through a MITN Cooperative Award hosted by the City of Rochester Hills at a 
unit price of $.21 per foot for an estimated total cost of $10,920.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Fitness Equipment 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install three 
(3) Precor 556i Experience ellipticals at the Troy Community Center to the lowest bidder 
meeting specifications, Direct Fitness LLC of Mundelein, IL at an estimated net total cost of 
$10,185.00 including trade-ins, at prices contained in the bid tabulation dated June 4, 2010, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item #2 - five 
(5) MatrixR3X Recumbent Bikes, Item #3 for two (2) MatrixH3x Hybrid Cycles, Item #4 for two 
(2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride Ellipticals and the balance of Item #5 for Trade-ins due to 
alternative units not meeting specifications or an all or none award stipulation; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light 

Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
WHEREAS, On July 23, 2007, three-year contracts to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and 
construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for three (3) additional years 
was awarded to the seventeen (17) lowest acceptable bidders meeting specifications: Kirk’s 
Automotive; Rowerdink Inc.; Terminal Supply; Coach and Motor Company; Motor City Truck Sales; 
Start All Enterprises; Lubrication Specialists & Company/Amsoil; Great Lakes Truck & Trailer; 
Elder Ford; Shults Equipment; Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet; Lacal Equipment; Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group; Old Dominion Brush; Electrical Terminal Service; John R Spring Service, Inc.; 
and Jack Doheny Supplies Inc. (Resolution #2007-07-222-E4d); 
 
WHEREAS, Alert Emergency Group and Rowerdink Incorporated have chosen not to extend 
their contracts and Motor City Truck Sales has ceased operations; and  
 
WHEREAS, The remaining fourteen (14) vendors have agreed to exercise the three-year option to 
renew the contracts under the same terms and conditions with discounted pricing;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to renew 
the contracts to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement 
parts under the price discount structure provided in the agenda packet and ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring May 31, 2013.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

I-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Mandell, 
President of The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from The Polish Century 
Club Orphans Fund, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
I-6 Request for Ratification of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club 

License, 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 Approval Resolution 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES City Council Resolution 2010-02-034-I-
6a, Approval of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} above all others” 
without contingencies; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES the approval of an 
agreement with The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848}, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special 

Investigations Unit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department Special Investigations Unit (SIU) has become a 
cooperative initiative comprised of officers from Troy, Bloomfield Township, and Auburn Hills; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, An Interlocal Agreement will outline the purpose, responsibilities, and liability of 
each of the participating agencies; 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special Investigations 
Unit; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Chief of Police 
to execute the Interlocal Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-8 City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al., Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 09-101399-CC, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated 
therein; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of Troy from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 and 
hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time):  
(a) June 28, 2010 Study Session 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

K-1  Council Member Dane Slater Proposals 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 4, 2010 
(b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 13, 2010 
(c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 18, 2010  
(d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 18, 2010 
(e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 25, 2010  
(f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 25, 2010 
(g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 2, 2010 
(h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 3, 2010 

M-2 Department Reports:  
(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – March 

2010 
(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – April 

2010 
(c) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – May 

2010 
 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) Letter of Thanks to Acting Planning Director from Morgan Liu and Hongmei Zhao 

Regarding Service Received Pertaining to Site Condos and Subdivisions 
(b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sterling Heights Police Chief Michael Reese 

Regarding Assistance Received from Troy Police Department Special Investigative Unit 
with Serial Home Invasion Suspects  

 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2010 
 
M-6  Communication from Troy Police Department Regarding Police Records Section 

Public Counter Reduction in Hours 
 
M-7  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding A & M Towing Contract  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

M-8  Communication from Fire Chief William Nelson Regarding Firefighters Incentive 
Program and Budget Comparison  

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and Grass 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268(h) (MCL 15.243(g)). 
 
Yes: 
No: 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, July 12, 2010 
1. Bostick Rochester Road Development LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road 
2. AxleTech International LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 

Rochester Road 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, June 28, 2010 ............................................................. Special City Council 
Monday, July 12, 2010 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 26, 2010 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 9, 2010 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 23, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 13, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 27, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 4, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 18, 2010 ....................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JUNE 21, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 





 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 21, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Vince Messina – Woodside Bible Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year ................. 1 
(b) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 

months of March and April 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart 
will present a check in the amount of $1,062.00 to Kelsey Ruder, Community 
Representative for the American Cancer Society ................................................. 1 

(c) Presentation by City Assessor Nino Licari on the 2010 City of Troy 
Assessment Roll & Board of Review Report ........................................................ 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern 
Outdoor Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 East Big 
Beaver), Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District 2 

E-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, 
Northwest Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low Rise Office 
District to B-2 (Community Business) District 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

G-1 No Postponed Items 3 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 3 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 3 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 3 
(b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals ............................................ 3 

H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 
10-4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 4 

H-4 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 4 

H-5 Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee 5 

H-6 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative 
Service 5 

H-7 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic 
Preservation 5 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 6 

(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year ................. 6 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 6 



 

 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video 
Upgrades .............................................................................................................. 6 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and 
Repair Services .................................................................................................... 7 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 10-02 – 
Coolidge Highway Pavement Rehabilitation ......................................................... 7 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of 
Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing ..................................................................... 7 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Fitness Equipment ...................................................................... 8 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, 
Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts ................... 8 

I-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Mandell, 
President of The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc. 9 

I-6 Request for Ratification of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club 
License, 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 Approval Resolution 9 

I-7 Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special 
Investigations Unit 9 

I-8 City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al 10 

I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 10 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 10 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): 10 

(a) June 28, 2010 Study Session ............................................................................. 10 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 11 

K-1  Council Member Dane Slater Proposals 11 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 11 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 11 



 

 

M. REPORTS 11 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 11 

(a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 4, 2010 ..................... 11 
(b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 13, 2010 ..................................................... 11 
(c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 18, 2010 ................................................. 11 
(d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 18, 2010 ................................................. 11 
(e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 25, 2010 ............................... 11 
(f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 25, 2010 ............................... 11 
(g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 2, 2010 ....................................... 11 
(h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 3, 2010 ............................ 11 

M-2 Department Reports: 11 

(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– March 2010 ..................................................................................................... 11 

(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– April 2010 ........................................................................................................ 11 

(c) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 
– May 2010 ......................................................................................................... 11 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 11 

(a) Letter of Thanks to Acting Planning Director from Morgan Liu and Hongmei 
Zhao Regarding Service Received Pertaining to Site Condos and 
Subdivisions ....................................................................................................... 11 

(b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sterling Heights Police Chief 
Michael Reese Regarding Assistance Received from Troy Police Department 
Special Investigative Unit with Serial Home Invasion Suspects ......................... 11 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 11 

M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2010 11 

M-6  Communication from Troy Police Department Regarding Police Records Section 
Public Counter Reduction in Hours 11 

M-7  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding A & M Towing Contract 11 

M-8  Communication from Fire Chief William Nelson Regarding Firefighters Incentive 
Program and Budget Comparison 12 



 

 

N. STUDY ITEMS 12 

N-1  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and 
Grass 12 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 12 

O-1 Closed Session 12 

P. ADJOURNMENT 12 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 12 

Monday, July 12, 2010 ............................................................................................. 12 
1. Bostick Rochester Road Development LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road .................................................. 12 
2. AxleTech International LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 

1400 Rochester Road ........................................................................................ 12 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 13 

Monday, June 28, 2010 Special City Council ........................................................ 13 
Monday, July 12, 2010 Regular City Council ......................................................... 13 
Monday, July 26, 2010 Regular City Council ......................................................... 13 
Monday, August 9, 2010 Regular City Council ...................................................... 13 
Monday, August 23, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 13 
Monday, September 13, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 13 
Monday, September 27, 2010 Regular City Council .............................................. 13 
Monday, October 4, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................... 13 
Monday, October 18, 2010 Regular City Council .................................................. 13 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Vince Messina – Woodside Bible Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
(b) Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of _______________  
at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, June 21, 2010 and the Closed Session of 
Monday, June 21, 2010 due to____________. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
C-1 Presentations:  
(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year 
(b) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of 

March and April 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in 
the amount of $1,062.00 to Kelsey Ruder, Community Representative for the American 
Cancer Society  

(c) Presentation by City Assessor Nino Licari on the 2010 City of Troy Assessment Roll & 
Board of Review Report  

 
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor 

Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 East Big Beaver), 
Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS Special Use Approval and Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval for the proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver, west of Rochester (645 E. Big Beaver), Section 22, within the O-M 
zoning district. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, 

Northwest Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low Rise Office 
District to B-2 (Community Business) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from O-1 to B-2, File Number Z-737, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Sketch of Parcels to be Rezoned; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from O-1 to B-2; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District 
Map. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                           

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or 
any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment 
portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related 
to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment 
may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on 
a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term - 1 Planning Commission Representative & Alt. 
 

 Term Expires 04/30/2010 
  
 Term Expires 04/30/2010 
  
 Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 10-

4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Michigan Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Contract No. 10-4040 which amends MDOT Contract 07-7734, both 
contracts being between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation, for 
the purpose of waiving the interest payments from October 1, 2009 until the project is 
converted by MDOT to regular Federal-Aid in fiscal year 2010 for the reconstruction of 
Stephenson Highway, from 14 Mile to I-75., Project No. 02.201.5; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-4 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 
2 as submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

H-5 Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Historic District Study Committee appointed in February 2004 has completed 
work on all pending requests to de-list properties; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DISSOLVES the Historic 
District Study Committee, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 13 of the Troy City 
Code and MCL 399.214(1). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  
H-6 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative 

Service 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to amend Chapter 3, 
Administrative Service, of the Troy City Code Section 1.141, Sections (5), (6), (7), (8), (9) and 
(10) as recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-7 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic 

Preservation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to amend Chapter 13, 
Historic Preservation, Section 3 to eliminate 4800 Beach Road as an historic district, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and RECORDED with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds as required by state statute. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of June 7, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
(a) Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video Upgrades 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bid proposals for ITB-COT 10-20, 
audio and video upgrades for the City Council Chambers and WTRY Cable Control Room 
opened June 2, 2010, and will rebid under revised specifications. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair 
Services 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish two-year (2) 
requirements of pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two (2) one-year options to renew to the 
sole bidder, B & B Pool and Spas of Livonia, Michigan, at rates contained in the bid tabulation 
opened June 3, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with a contract expiration of June 30, 2012; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 10-02 – 

Coolidge Highway Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 10-02, Coolidge Hwy. 
Pavement Rehabilitation to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI 
48084 at an estimated total cost of $621,314.97; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required, Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of 

Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract for fire hose testing 
services during the 2010-2011 fiscal year from the low bidder, Waterway Michigan LLC of 
Caledonia, MI, through a MITN Cooperative Award hosted by the City of Rochester Hills at a 
unit price of $.21 per foot for an estimated total cost of $10,920.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Fitness Equipment 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase and install three 
(3) Precor 556i Experience ellipticals at the Troy Community Center to the lowest bidder 
meeting specifications, Direct Fitness LLC of Mundelein, IL at an estimated net total cost of 
$10,185.00 including trade-ins, at prices contained in the bid tabulation dated June 4, 2010, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item #2 - five 
(5) MatrixR3X Recumbent Bikes, Item #3 for two (2) MatrixH3x Hybrid Cycles, Item #4 for two 
(2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride Ellipticals and the balance of Item #5 for Trade-ins due to 
alternative units not meeting specifications or an all or none award stipulation; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light 

Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
WHEREAS, On July 23, 2007, three-year contracts to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and 
construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for three (3) additional years 
was awarded to the seventeen (17) lowest acceptable bidders meeting specifications: Kirk’s 
Automotive; Rowerdink Inc.; Terminal Supply; Coach and Motor Company; Motor City Truck Sales; 
Start All Enterprises; Lubrication Specialists & Company/Amsoil; Great Lakes Truck & Trailer; 
Elder Ford; Shults Equipment; Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet; Lacal Equipment; Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group; Old Dominion Brush; Electrical Terminal Service; John R Spring Service, Inc.; 
and Jack Doheny Supplies Inc. (Resolution #2007-07-222-E4d); 
 
WHEREAS, Alert Emergency Group and Rowerdink Incorporated have chosen not to extend 
their contracts and Motor City Truck Sales has ceased operations; and  
 
WHEREAS, The remaining fourteen (14) vendors have agreed to exercise the three-year option to 
renew the contracts under the same terms and conditions with discounted pricing;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to renew 
the contracts to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement 
parts under the price discount structure provided in the agenda packet and ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring May 31, 2013.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

I-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Mandell, 
President of The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from The Polish Century 
Club Orphans Fund, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in 
the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
I-6 Request for Ratification of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club 

License, 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 Approval Resolution 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES City Council Resolution 2010-02-034-I-
6a, Approval of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848} above all others” 
without contingencies; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES the approval of an 
agreement with The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License located at 2360 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County {MLCC Request #520848}, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special 

Investigations Unit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department Special Investigations Unit (SIU) has become a 
cooperative initiative comprised of officers from Troy, Bloomfield Township, and Auburn Hills; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, An Interlocal Agreement will outline the purpose, responsibilities, and liability of 
each of the participating agencies; 
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached 
Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special Investigations 
Unit; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Chief of Police 
to execute the Interlocal Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-8 City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al., Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 09-101399-CC, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated 
therein; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of Troy from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 and 
hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time):  
(a) June 28, 2010 Study Session 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 

K-1  Council Member Dane Slater Proposals 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 4, 2010 
(b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 13, 2010 
(c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 18, 2010  
(d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 18, 2010 
(e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 25, 2010  
(f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 25, 2010 
(g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 2, 2010 
(h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 3, 2010 

M-2 Department Reports:  
(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – March 

2010 
(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – April 

2010 
(c) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – May 

2010 
 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) Letter of Thanks to Acting Planning Director from Morgan Liu and Hongmei Zhao 

Regarding Service Received Pertaining to Site Condos and Subdivisions 
(b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sterling Heights Police Chief Michael Reese 

Regarding Assistance Received from Troy Police Department Special Investigative Unit 
with Serial Home Invasion Suspects  

 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2010 
 
M-6  Communication from Troy Police Department Regarding Police Records Section 

Public Counter Reduction in Hours 
 
M-7  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding A & M Towing Contract  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

M-8  Communication from Fire Chief William Nelson Regarding Firefighters Incentive 
Program and Budget Comparison  

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and Grass 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268(h) (MCL 15.243(g)). 
 
Yes: 
No: 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, July 12, 2010 
1. Bostick Rochester Road Development LLC – Rescind Plant Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate – 1400 Rochester Road 
2. AxleTech International LLC – Plant Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate – 1400 

Rochester Road 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA June 21, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, June 28, 2010 ............................................................. Special City Council 
Monday, July 12, 2010 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 26, 2010 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 9, 2010 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 23, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 13, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 27, 2010 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 4, 2010 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 18, 2010 ....................................................... Regular City Council 

 



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR  
PETER HULLINGER 

2010 FIRE FIGHTER OF THE YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Peter Hullinger has been a volunteer Fire Fighter since joining Troy’s Fire Station 6 16 years ago on 
September 23, 1993; and 
 
WHEREAS, His selection as Fire Fighter of the Year is due to his many years of dedication to the Troy Fire 
Department, having served with honor and dignity in all of his roles at the station, Firefighter, Lieutenant, and 
Captain of Station 6; and 
 
WHEREAS, Throughout his career, Pete has worked to better the Troy Fire Department through training, fire 
grounds tactics and instruction.  He is always willing to work with members of Station 6 as well as the other five fire 
stations to improve skills, instruct the proper use of new equipment, and to instill teamwork; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pete has been instrumental in orchestrating live burns for the Station’s training by taking the lead in 
securing houses or businesses, moving in burnable materials, checking the buildings for hazards, instructing the 
personnel on a walkthrough of all exits and hazards and being responsible for the fire crews safety while they work 
inside these structures; and  
 
WHEREAS, Over the years Pete has been honored with a number of awards, including Station Member of the Year 
Award for Fire Station 6, Safe Driving Award, Merit Service Award, Life Saving Award and letters of commendation.  
He represents Station 6 on the Firefighters Incentive Committee and has been a Proctor for Firefighter II exams; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pete is a committed and knowledgeable volunteer fire officer, he also is employed as a Fire Staff 
Technician assigned to the Fire Operations Division.  In this role, he was instrumental in the application and 
administration of a federal grant received by the Department for replacement of personal protective equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Through Lieutenant Hullinger’s leadership, commitment, hard work and countless hours of service, 
the Troy Fire Department has become even more efficient in its delivery of quality fire protection to the community; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does hereby join with the citizens 
of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Lieutenant Pete Hullinger on the occasion of being chosen 2010 
Fire Fighter of the Year by the Troy Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Pete for his achievement, leadership and dedicated 
service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 21st day of June 2010. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01a



 

 
 
June 21, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:   John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT:   2010 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report    
 
 
Background: 
 

This year, the 2010 Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report is on the Assessing 
Web page and available by clicking on the link below: 

 
http://www.troymi.gov/Assessing/2010AssessmentRollSummary.pdf 

 
This is necessitated by the increased size of the report, caused by the dramatic increase in 
the number of appeals heard at the Board.  The report runs 428 pages (214 pages, back to 
back). 

 
Of particular import to Council are the first seven (7) pages of the Assessor’s summary 
memorandum, and the three (3) following pages of statistics that summarize the 2010 
Assessment Roll. 
 
The minutes of the Board of Review follow those pages. 

 
 

 
NL/nl  H:\BoR\2010 Report\Rep Comm 06.21.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  &&  
CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  
 

http://www.troymi.gov/Assessing/2010AssessmentRollSummary.pdf�
pallottaba
Text Box
C-01c



 

 

 
 
DATE: June 9, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big 

Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, North side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 E. 
Big Beaver), Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-rise) District 

 
Background 
 
The applicant Marico, Inc. proposes to add a 588 square foot outdoor seating area next to the 
existing Big Beaver Tavern restaurant on Big Beaver Road.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the project.   
 
Section 25.30.03 requires that outdoor seating areas are approved by City Council.  A public hearing 
is scheduled for this item on June 21, 2010.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this 
item on May 11, 2010 and recommended approval of the outdoor seating area. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The outdoor seating area meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements.  Furthermore, it is consistent 
with the Big Beaver Corridor Study which calls for outdoor seating along Big Beaver Road.  City 
Management recommends approval of the Special Use application. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from the May 11, 2010 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 
4. Public comment 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 379 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 379 Big Beaver Tavern  Sec 22\CC Public Hearing 06 21 10.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-01



BIG BEAVER TAVERN, 645 E. BIG BEAVER

4/8/2010

Legend

1: 699

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

580116 116Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



BIG BEAVER TAVERN, 645 E. BIG BEAVER

4/8/2010

Legend

1: 1,351

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1130225 225Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



 
 

 

 Date:  May 6, 2010 

 

 

Special Use Review 

For 

City of Troy, Michigan 

 

 

 

 
Applicant: Mark Larco, Marico, Inc. 

 

Project Name: Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating 

 

Plan Date: April 6, 2010 

 

Location: 645 East Big Beaver Road 

 

Zoning: O-M, Office Mid-Rise District  

 

Action Requested: Special Use Approval 

 

Required Information: Deficiencies noted 

 

 

PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
We are in receipt of a special use submittal for the creation of an outdoor café for Big Beaver 

Tavern.  The area would be constructed in a currently open, grassy area between the main 

restaurant and the adjacent, attached, office building.  It would be surrounded by landscaping and 

fencing, would have direct access to the main restaurant, and would seat 20 additional diners.  

 

Location of Subject Property: 

The property is located on the north side of Big Beaver, at 645 East Big Beaver Road. 

 

Size of Subject Property: 

The subject site is 61,223 square feet. 



Big Beaver Tavern May 6, 2010 

2 

Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 

The applicant proposes to use the area for outdoor seating. 

 

Current Use of Subject Property: 

The subject property is currently a restaurant with no outdoor seating.   

 

Current Zoning: 

The property is currently zoned O-M, Office Mid-Rise District. Restaurants are permitted in O-M 

as a use subject to special conditions, provided they are structurally attached to an office 

building.  Outdoor dining is permitted as a special use, approved by City Council, in the O-M 

District, for an initial period not to exceed two years with successive approvals for a similar 

maximum period. In those instances where a permanent structural enclosure is provided for the 

outside seating area, approval may be granted for the total term of operation of the applicant. The 

applicant proposes to construct a permanent fenced enclosure with landscaping, an awning, and a 

concrete pad; consequently, we believe the applicant is eligible to apply for a permit that could be 

granted for the total term of operation of the applicant.  Outdoor seating areas are regulated in the 

O-M District in Section 25.30.03. 

 

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels and Current Land Use:  

North: R-1-E, Single Family Residential, Residential 

East: O-M, Office Mid-Rise District; Office  

South: RM-1, Multi-Family Residential, and O-1, Office District; Residential and office 

West: O-M, Office Mid-Rise District; Office 
 

BUILDING LOCATION AND SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The existing restaurant is situated on a separate parcel, but is part of a larger, attached four-

building project.  The Restaurant faces Big Beaver and provides parking on three sides.  The 

proposed outdoor café is located in an existing courtyard area immediately adjacent the building, 

on its west side. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None   
 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 

This project is located behind the front yard setback and does not encroach into any required 

yard. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

PARKING 
 

Approved in 1984, the overall four-building project was required to provide parking for all of its 

separate facilities.  The attached restaurant, calculated differently than the office component 

required parkimg for 165 diners and employees.  This requirement equals 16.5 for the employees 



Big Beaver Tavern May 6, 2010 

3 

and 82.5 for the diners.  The total number of required spaces, 99, was well under the 113 spaces 

provided specifically for the restaurant.  With the added 20 outdoor seats, the requirements 

change to 18.5 for employees and 92.5 for diners.  The new required total number of spaces, 

therefore, is 111, 2 spaces under the 113 provided. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None.   

 

LANDSCAPING 
 

The existing site, approved by the Planning Commission on December 11, 1984, is 168,323 

square feet in area.  The Big Beaver Tavern parcel is a separate parcel, but given that the building 

is structurally attached to the adjacent three buildings, and was approved as a single, multi-

building development, we consider landscaping for the overall site as part of this analysis. Given 

the 168,323 square foot lot, 16,833 square feet of landscaped open space was required at the time 

of approval, and 17,576 were provided.  The site’s conditions have not changed since that time.  

The surplus, therefore, is 743 square feet of landscaped area.  The proposed outdoor seating area 

would reduce this area, but only by 588 square feet.  Therefore, the site remains compliant with 

the minimum open space requirement, and in fact retains a 155 square foot surplus. 

 

Two large existing trees will be removed to make way for the proposed outdoor café, but will be 

replaced by a row of tall shrubs or small screening trees to assist the proposed wood fence in 

screening the outdoor café from adjacent buildings.  The exact landscaping material is not 

identified on the plans, although the plan meets minimum submittal requirements for an outdoor 

café application in the O-M District.  We suggest the applicant come prepared to the Planning 

Commission meeting to discuss the proposed materials. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

This project enhances an existing successful business in the City.  The development of an 

outdoor café increases the activity on Big Beaver and complements the vision established in the 

Big Beaver Corridor Study and Master Plan. The site contains sufficient parking and landscaped 

area. The project meets minimum ordinance requirements for screening and design. Therefore, 

we recommend the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council that the proposed 

outdoor café be approved for the total term of operation of the Big Beaver Tavern. 

 

 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 11, 2010 
  
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor 
Seating, North side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 E. Big Beaver), 
Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-rise) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the 
proposed application.  He addressed the accessory use, building location and 
site arrangement.  He also addressed the O-M zoning district with respect to the 
Special Use request, noting that the Planning Commission is a recommending 
body to the City Council.  Mr. Branigan further addressed the parking and 
landscaping, specifically with respect to the plans originally submitted in 1984. 
 
Mr. Branigan recommended that the Planning Commission forward a favorable 
recommendation to the City Council for the proposed outdoor café for the total 
term of the Big Beaver Tavern operation.  He said the project complements the 
vision of the City’s Big Beaver Corridor Study and Master Plan.   
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Landscape plans from original 1984 application. 
 Side yard setback requirements. 
 Resolution format; relate special use to existing operation. 

 
Chris Ciceri of Dorchen/Martin Associates, 29895 Greenfield Road, Southfield, 
was present to represent the petitioner and property owner, Mark Larco.  Mr. 
Ciceri displayed photographs of the proposed landscaping.  He indicated the two 
large trees designated for removal are 20-foot high evergreen trees. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Greg Carnago of 667 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was present.  Mr. Carnago asked to 
go on record in opposition of the proposed Special Use application.  Mr. Carnago 
expressed concerns with the existing parking and litter at the location.  He also 
addressed the operation of a “casino” at the Big Beaver Tavern. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mark Larco of 645 E. Big Beaver Road, Troy, petitioner and property owner, was 
present.  Mr. Larco addressed parking on site. 
 
Mr. Branigan addressed the computation of parking spaces with respect to legal 
property boundaries.  He said the existing parking meets the minimum 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  He indicated there is no control on how 
parking spaces are used and parking calculations cannot be based on parking 
habits of people. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 11, 2010 
  
 
 

When asked by Chair Hutson if there has been discussion with the petitioner on 
concerns he expressed, Mr. Carnago indicated in the affirmative, to no avail. 
 
Mr. Strat addressed potential future outdoor expansion in relation to the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Mr. Branigan expounded on side yard setback requirements with respect to the 
definition of “lot” in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked the petitioner to address the “casino” function at the Big Beaver 
Tavern.   
 
Mr. Larco explained that the tavern offers “charity poker” seven days a week, 
from 7 p.m. to 2 a.m.  He addressed the licensing of this type of function through 
the State of Michigan.  Mr. Larco said the lower level (former banquet room 
facility) is used for the “charity poker”.  He noted that the proposed patio would 
not be used to hold “charity poker” functions. 
 
Discussion followed on the following in relation to “charity poker” use: 
 Computation of parking in relation to lower level use. 
 Cross access easement. 
 Shared parking agreement. 

 
Mr. Savidant said staff would look into the “charity poker” use at the facility.  He 
noted that the Special Use application in front of the Planning Commission this 
evening is a separate issue, and the “charity poker” use has no relevance on the 
Special Use approval process. 
 
Mr. Vleck briefly addressed the existing parking arrangement and suggested the 
placement of signs by individual office building tenants. 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-030 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, located on the north side of Big 
Beaver, west of Rochester (645 E. Big Beaver), Section 22, within the O-M 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. Approval shall be granted for the total term of operation of the applicant’s 

restaurant, as per Section 25.30.03 A 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



From: JKMBuild@aol.com
To: Planning
Subject: File SU-379 Big Beaver Tavern
Date: Monday, April 26, 2010 12:43:42 PM

We are in favor of allowing outdoor seating.
 
88-99-00-030-718
88-20-27-201-050
 
 
Regards,
Joyce MacLeish
(248) 524-3244 Office
(248) 524-2345 Fax
(248) 310-0908 Cell

www.macbuilding.com
650 E . Big Beaver
Cornerstone Village #F
Troy, MI 48083-1432

mailto:JKMBuild@aol.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov


From: Brent Savidant on behalf of Planning
To: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: FW: File #SU-379 Big Beaver Tavern
Date: Monday, June 07, 2010 3:16:52 PM

 
 

From: JKMBuild@aol.com [mailto:JKMBuild@aol.com] 
Sent: Monday, June 07, 2010 3:03 PM
To: Planning
Subject: File #SU-379 Big Beaver Tavern
 
We feel outdoor seating would be a very nice addition to this restaurant and any
other restaurants in Troy which would be able to accommodate outdoor dining.
 
Regards,
Joyce MacLeish
(248) 524-3244 Office
(248) 524-2345 Fax
(248) 310-0908 Cell

www.macbuilding.com
650 E . Big Beaver
Cornerstone Village #F
Troy, MI 48083-1432

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SAVIDANTB
mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=PLN
mailto:CzarneckiK@troymi.gov


From: steven.smith@summitgroupadvisors.com
To: Planning
Subject: Big Beaver Tavern
Date: Friday, June 11, 2010 8:47:35 AM

Re: Planning File # SU-379 Big Beaver Tavern
Parcel No: 88-20-22-477-068
Location North side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester, Section 22
Property address: 645 E. Big Beaver
 
 
Gentlemen,
 
As a building owner, business owner and adjoining neighbor of the Big Beaver Tavern,
their request to allow outdoor seating within the O-M district has my full support.
 
I recommend you approve the Special Use Request Big Beaver Tavern recently filed.
 
Yours truly,
 
Steven H. Smith
 
Steven H. Smith
President
Summit Group Holdings, LLC
575 East Big Beaver Road
Suite 330
Troy, Michigan 48083, USA

248 689 1300-Direct
800 878 6611               
 
248 689 1700-Fax

steven.smith@summitgroupadvisors.com
www.summitgroupadvisors.com

The information contained in this e-mail message is privileged and/or confidential and is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named

above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you

are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this

communication in error, please immediately notify us by telephone (800) 878-6611, and destroy the original message. Thank you.

 

mailto:steven.smith@summitgroupadvisors.com
mailto:planning@troymi.gov
mailto:steven.smith@summitgroupadvisors.com
http://www.summitgroupadvisors.com/








1 

 

 
 
DATE: June 9, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 737) – Troy Sports 

Center Properties, Northwest corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low 
Rise Office) District to B-2 (Community Business) District 

 
 
Background: 
 
A public hearing is scheduled for the June 21, 2010 City Council meeting.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the request to rezone the parcel to the B-2 (Community Business) zoning 
district at their May 11, 2010 Regular meeting (minutes attached). 
 
The subject parcel is zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office).  A Chase branch bank and vacant office sit on the 
western portion of the subject property; a parking lot sits on the eastern portion of the property.  The 
applicant proposes to improve marketability of the vacant portion of the building by rezoning to B-2 
(Community Business) and expanding the range of potential permitted uses.  Banks are also 
permitted in the B-2 zoning district. 
 
The Master Plan designates this area as being within the Big Beaver Road classification, which calls 
for a mix of commercial, office and residential along the Big Beaver Corridor.  Rezoning the parcel to 
B-2 expands the range of potential uses on the subject property.   
 
The required front yard setback in O-1 is 30 feet.  The existing building is located approximately 60 
feet from the Big Beaver Road right-of-way.  Rezoning the parcel to B-2 would change the status of 
the existing building to a legal non-conforming building, due to the 75-foot front yard setback 
requirement of the B-2 district.   
 
City Council has the authority to create non-conformities through the rezoning process.  The applicant 
understands this issue and has no objection to this issue. 
 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



2 

 

City Management Recommendation: 
 
The proposed B-2 (Community Business) zoning district is consistent with the Master Plan and 
compatible with abutting zoning districts and uses.  City Management recommends approval of the 
rezoning request to B-2 (Community Business). 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps 
2. Report prepared for Planning Commission by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from the May 11, 2010 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 737 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-737  Troy Sports Center Properties  Sec 23\CC Public Hearing 06 21 10.docx 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the __________ amendment to the 
Zoning District Map of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 05.20.00 of Chapter 39 is hereby amended to permit the zoning map of said code to 
be, and the same is hereby amended to delineate the subject parcel as B-2 (Community 
Business), as described in the attached Sketch of Parcels to be Rezoned. 
 
The subject property is located on the northwest corner of John R and Big Beaver, in 
section 23, within the O-1 (Low Rise Office) Zoning District, being approximately 2.27 
acres in size. 
 
Section 3.  Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the 
extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any work, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
 
 



2 
 

Section 6.  Effective Date  
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan, on Monday, the 21st day of June, 2010. 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
PUBLISHED: __________ 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-737  Troy Sports Center Properties  Sec 23\Z 737 Published Map Amendment.doc 



~ SOUTH '1/4 COR. SKETCH OF PARCELS~21 SECTION 23
2", T.2N., R.IIE. I TO BE REZONED 

I NOOC19(OQ"E 
162.00' 

P.837) 

I 

I 

f-

s~ (25' WD) (VAC, L.1006.:?, 

--
BRONX AVE. (50' WO) 

(VAC. L.16601, P.159) 
----

'102\00' =1~~='6i;;:;2."'OO:'::"':::""Mc;;;A'""RUT-IN-1 AVE.(50~D)-., 
(VAC. L.16601, P.159)L 
-1----

I (0 
to 

. (Q 

I ul Q Io C§10 lw u:I c~
.-:;[ 5 

~i:E ,«
1m il:: u..a 

<:I~ 
en 

I c~ ~ 
, 

if 

SCALE: 1"~ 100' JOB No: 2010-089 

10]) 

i 
n 

50 20C 
GRAPHIC SCALEJ( SOUTHEAST COR. 111 = 100) 

~ SECTION 23 
T.2N .• R.IIE. 

PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING 
ASSOCIATES 

2430 Rochesler Cl. Suile 100TROY SPORTS CENTER 
'['roy, MI '10083- IB72 

TROY, MI., 4·80B3 
1819 81G 8EAVER ROAD 

DATE: 4-26-10 (248) 600-9090DWG, No: 1 of 2
._._-<--".-,- ..__._-."........ -. "-~'-"""-""'''''''''-'~ • " .....~
...."'N""";'-......__ • ,. _.--_,__~,~""'......~ ....'"'~. __..,_"_~.""""._" 

\' \~'\!l!!'tI::r j(PIOOi:l!j Tint' Ilppl"ia t'!JII!~)' IjitJ:tJl j!i~\III!rI\,,'t:Y.·bEF!j\HHB;}ilH!!;\flV! ,II (!I)\! Uh/l'I,!;L/' '111 '~ H hI 
1 



DESCRIPTION OF PARCELS 

Legal Description: 
("ox Parcel 88-20-23-476-015 per City of Tcoy ...ssessing Dept.) 

Town 2 North, Range ~<, East, Section 23 LASIER GA.RDENS SUB Lots 1. 2 & :1 Except Eos, 7 
feet token for John R Rood. ALSO Nortl' 96 Feet of Lot 4 Except East 7 Feet Token for Johr. R 
Road, Al.SO North 95 Filet or L()\ 7, ALSO Lots 8 to 3;, Inolusive Excopt 50\111'1 .19 Fo,,1 of 
LoL" 11i, 1£), '1.11 ,lI ',HI Tnl.at\ 1<11' tlltl H~,')v'!I', M!.l(J I ol~ :rl 1:(, ~·O Im:I",lv,,; 1111.:0 <III "t VI!",IIIId 
Ivhllll!fJ~I~,"\ Ah\!lIr( lhll!iH, ~1},'I:lIjIVIHI A~ W(III'o~'d A~,tjlldrH{ qdk.l:;~)Mt til 'j!~I(Hi H'tltll'1d. ~·:ql~1 '~I 1~"'1~ 
"I VCI!II!!'" ~i'IIIIII,III'''1 IWe 'l:il'j()"II. Iii I. Ill. 1.1, 111,111 axllnH I'Jlst 2.1 I.!!!l ,.11 Vrl< ,d,·,1 IJIIIII:"lIol' 
IIv,·,. rllll.\0,.111( In i "II (I"Ch,,\ ~\');'UI ml II, 1I:.no ~II''''I'I W"mt 1!~. (II V""'.II."" fIll',I" IIvt1 

lid l<i'JOII i \,.! 1.0\ :11.1, IIU,\) \!x';ep. [\!lIIl '( r'lOt ur V(lO<lllld '11<.11101"0 AVtl, 1Il.r:IO Iltllt Ill! Lol 'I, 1".lI'l 

of Lot 7 & parl 01 Vacated MonhaHan ~.va dascr'bed as l3aglnnlng ct poll1\ distant NOO'lS'OO"E 

102 feal & 589'".8'00"W 329.14 feat from Southeast Section Corner, thonce SBg'4·a'"O"w 2.86 
feet, thorce NOO'15 'OO"E 330 feet, thence NB9'48'40"E 272 feet, lhence SOO'15'00"W 4·.30 foal. 
tnonce NS9°4·5'QO"W 211.18 109t, thence 552'13'38"W 73.56 feet, thence SOO"15'00"W 282.~5 
r"ol, to 138glonln9. 

Legal Description: 
(Tox Porcel 8B-20-23-176-011 per City of Troy Assessing Dept.) 

TOWIl 2 North, Range 11 East, Section 23 LAS!ER GARDENS SUB Lots 35 & 36 Except South 49 
feet ta~en for Big [Jeaver Road, ALSO vacoted Bellingham street. adjacent to s~me, ALSO Wast 
~ /2 of vccated Branx Ave adjacent to same 

Legal Description: 
~Ar8Q \0 be Rezoned) 

All of Tax Parcel 88-20-23-476-011 together with port of Tax Parcel B8-2.0-?'3-~:IG-01r.; 
Doing more partiCUlarly described as: Town 2 Nortn, Range 11 East, Section 23. Lots 36, 3~j, 2G 
and 25, ~xcept South 49 leet of sold Lots tcken for Big Beaver Road, ALSO Vacated 
Bellingham street adjacent to said Lot 36, ALSO Vacated Bro~x Ave. adjacent to sold Lob 35 
and 26, LAStER GIIRDENS SUBDIVISiON, as recorded in Llber 34, Page 10, 001,10110 County 
Records, 

~~ ..... ' .. ;I'"f,''~)''' ,~l"
''iI: It' '~." •• ,,~. ~,; .~'(i' 
"'qll O"l:8SI0~,I'\,'1;\"

IIIIIIIIIIIII\\\\\~ 

-
TS CENTER SCALE: 111=:1 100' 

EAVEI~ ROAD PATE, 4·-26-10 
,\" 4·BOB3 

JOB \Xo: 2010-0BG 

DWO. No, Z of :I. 
. , '" '""'''''"''.",w''" 

PHOFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERI~JG 

ASSOCIATES 

2/:·~lO HOOIlO:!(.UI' CL gull
I'm lllil" ll'roy! Ml 4Ull1l3-lil 

(240) 609-lllll)ll 

__ <_~ ~~W<1<"~" "' 

http:HOOIlO:!(.UI


1735 E. Big Beaver and O-1 Portion to East

4/20/2010

Legend

1: 1,357

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1130226 226Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



1735 E. Big Beaver and O-1 Portion to East

4/20/2010

Legend

1: 1,357

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1130226 226Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David Scurto, Associate    Brian Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, 

Associate 

 

 Date: May 6, 2010 
 

 

 Rezoning Analysis 

For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 

 

 

Applicant: Dennis Bostick 

  

Project Name: Troy Sports Center Properties Rezoning 

 

Location: North side of Big Beaver Road, near the northwest corner of John 

R. Road and Big Beaver Road 

 

Current Zoning: O-1, Office Building District 

 

Action Requested: To rezone Tax Parcels #88-20-23-476-011 and 015 to B-2, 

Community Business District 

 

Required Information: As noted in review. 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

The purpose of this analysis is to assist the City in determining the appropriateness of rezoning a 

pair of out lot parcels, owned by Dennis Bostick, as part of the Troy Sports Center facility.  The 

site is located on the north side of Big Beaver Road, near the northwest corner of John R. Road 

and Big Beaver Road.  The two parcels are zoned O1, Office Building District, and the applicant 

seeks a rezoning to B-2, Community Business District. 

 

The O-1 District is designed to accommodate office uses, office sales uses, and certain basic 

personal services.  The O-1 District would permit conventional office, medical office, banks, 

public buildings, and medical sales buildings by right.  Subject to conditions, uses permitted in 

O-1 include pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, book 

stores, art galleries, or restaurants; provided that these uses are within the building housing the 

principal uses which they support.  Also, technical training centers and data processing or 

computer centers, including sales support, service and maintenance of electronic data processing 

equipment, would be permitted with conditions.  Subject to special use approval, a wide variety 

of uses would be allowed in the O-1 District, including mortuary establishments, private service 



Troy Sports Center Properties Rezoning   May 6, 2010 

 2 

clubs, fraternal organizations or lodge halls, utility substations, mechanical or laboratory research 

facilities, and childcare centers. 

 

The proposed B-2 District would permit a list of uses that may be more in keeping with the 

remainder of the Troy Sports Center property.  These uses include any retail business or service 

establishment permitted in B-1 Districts, any retail business whose principal activity is the sale 

of merchandise in an enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 

General Business District.  It also permits any service establishment of a showroom or workshop 

nature, of an electrician, decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an 

establishment doing radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and 

similar service establishments that require a retail adjunct, business establishments which 

perform services on the premises, such as but not limited to: banks, credit unions, savings and 

loan associations, loan companies, insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices.  

 

The B-2 District also permits private clubs, fraternal organization, lodge halls, restaurants, or 

other places serving food or beverage, except those having the character of a drive-in or open 

front store, theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when conducted 

completely within enclosed buildings, and business schools and colleges or private schools 

operated for profit, not including nursery schools.  More intense uses are also permitted in the B-

2 District subject to special conditions and subject to special land use review. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

SITE DESCRIPTION AND SURROUNDING USES 
 

The site is currently occupied by a parking area serving the larger Sports Center project, and an 

existing office building.  The Sports Center development includes a series of smaller restaurant 

and retail spaces, a Kroger Store, and the Sports Center itself, as well as the office building noted 

above. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

NATURAL RESOURCES 

 

The site is previously developed and is essentially devoid of natural features, with the exception 

of some existing landscaping materials. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 
 

ZONING/LAND USE/MASTER PLAN  
 

The zoning, land use and Master Plan designations for the surrounding parcels are shown in 

Table 1 below: 

 



Troy Sports Center Properties Rezoning   May 6, 2010 

 3 

Table 1 

Zoning, Land Use and Master Plan Designations 
 

 North South East West 

Zoning B-2 
R-C (across Big 

Beaver) 
B-2 O-1 

Land Use 

Sports Center, 

retail, 

restaurants 

Office 

Sports Center, 

retail, 

restaurants 

Office 

Master Plan 
Big Beaver 

Road District 

Smart Zone 

District 

Big Beaver 

Road District 

Big Beaver 

Road District 

 

The subject site lies in the Big Beaver Road future land use category. The intent of the Big 

Beaver Road future land use category is described on page 101 of the Master Plan as follows: 

 

The Big Beaver Road corridor is responsible for the first impression many people have 

throughout Michigan when they think of the City of Troy. The high-rise buildings, Somerset 

Collection, and its immediate proximity to I-75 are frequently the main elements visitors 

remember about the Corridor and the City. In order to remain competitive and continue to be a 

leader in economic development in Southeast Michigan, Troy must plan for this Corridor to 

evolve in light of a changing economy.  

 

This page also states: 

 

The uses and character of this future land use category are driven by the recommendations of the 

Big Beaver Corridor Study and subsequent efforts of the Planning Commission to create new 

zoning techniques to implement those recommendations. 

 

The B-2 category is far more suited, due to its wide variety of permitted uses, to fulfill the goals 

of the Big Beaver Road future land use category.  The existing office category is far more limited 

in application, and cannot fully accommodate the variety of potential uses that would most 

complement the Big Beaver Corridor.  Also, the surrounding commercial properties are already 

zoned B-2, and this would simply “fill in” the existing district there.  The O-1 category is clearly 

unmarketable at this time, and the Master Plan calls for the Big Beaver Corridor to “evolve in 

light of the changing economy.” Therefore, we support the applicant’s request. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

TRAFFIC IMPACT AND SITE ACCESS 
 

The proposed rezoning could increase the potential for additional traffic, although the site is part 

of a larger retail and restaurant development already.  No additional access drives or major site 

circulation changes are anticipated as a result of this rezoning.  The existing office building and 

parking area produce a similar, but likely smaller number of overall trips than additional retail 

development would create. While no formal traffic impact information has been provided, the 



Troy Sports Center Properties Rezoning   May 6, 2010 

 4 

redevelopment would create additional vehicle trips, but no so many as to be disruptive to the 

existing, intense retail development. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None. 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The proposed B-2 District has potential to support the goals and policies of the Master Plan.  It is 

the more logical category when compared with the existing O-1 District, when considering the 

surrounding categories and uses, and the policies contained within the Big Beaver Corridor 

Study. Therefore, we support the applicant’s request and recommend that the Planning 

Commission recommend to the City Council that the proposed rezoning be approved. 

   

   

 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  MAY 11, 2010 
   
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 737) – Proposed 
Sports Center Properties, Northwest corner of John R and Big Beaver, 1735 E. Big 
Beaver (approx 1.227 acres) and that portion of the abutting property to the east that is 
presently zoned O-1 (approx 1.1 acres), Section 23, From O-1 (Office Building) to B-2 
(Community Business) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report on the proposed 
rezoning.  He addressed the requested B-2 zoning district with respect to the Master 
Plan and Big Beaver Corridor Study.  Mr. Branigan expressed support of the applicant’s 
request and recommends that the Planning Commission forward a favorable 
recommendation to the City Council to approve the proposed rezoning application. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated that the proposed B-2 zoning district could potentially create a legal 
non-conforming building as a result of the Zoning Ordinance requirement for front and 
rear yard setbacks.  He noted the City Council has the authority to approve a legal non-
conforming building, should that be the case in this instance. 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the petitioner that the short-term result of a rezoning approval 
could be the creation of a non-conforming building.  He noted the long-term result is the 
potential reduction of the 75-foot front yard setback requirement in the re-write of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The petitioner, Dennis Bostick of 1819 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bostick 
indicated he would like to go forward with the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Strat addressed the site location in relation to the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-031 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of John R and Big 
Beaver Road, within Section 23, being approximately 2.327 acres in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



UNCIL RT 
~· .."w~ ___,~£~_" 

June 14, 2010 

TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: John M. Lamerato, Asst. City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Mark Miller, Acting Asst City Ma_n~~~Economic Oevelopment Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engine~ 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Approval of Amendment to rvlOOT Contract 07-7734 by 
MOOT Contract No.1 0-4040 
Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to 1-75 
Project No. 02.201.5 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that City Council approve MOOT Contract No.1 0-4040 which amends MOOT 
Contract 07-7734 with the Michigan Oepartment of Transportation (MOOT) for the purpose of waiving 
the interest payments from October 1, 2009 until the project is converted to regular Federal-Aid in 
fiscal year 2010 for the reconstruction of Stephenson Highway, from 14 Mile to 1-75. Furthermore, 
staff recommends that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the agreements. 

Background: 

By Resolution #2008-01-019, City Council approved MOOT Contract No. 07-7734 for the purpose of 
assisting the city in financing the reconstruction of Stephenson Highway, from 14 Mile to 1-75 with the 
use of a short-term loan from MOOT. This short turn loan was provided under the Local Jobs Today 
program in March of 2006 which provided grants and loans to local agencies to take advantage of 
available federal transportation funding before these federal funds would normally be available. 

Staff applied for and received approval to use Local Jobs Today funding for the Stephenson 
Highway, 14 Mile to 1-75 reconstruction project in 2008 to buifd the project as an advance construct 
project two (2) years ahead of when the federal funds were to be available. 

By using this approach, the city saved approximately $577,000 in traditional local match. The city's 
share of the project was approximately $141 ,000 where it would normally have been approximately 
$718,000. In addition, maintenance costs were reduced significantly on this section of Stephenson 
Highway since the road was rehabilitated in 2008 rather than waiting until the federal funds became 
available in 2010. 

Under the Local Jobs Today program, MOOT used State Transportation Fund (STF) monies to pay 
the city's local match (up to the project cap amount) and then issued a loan to the city to allow MOOT 
to pay for the construction costs. MOOT converts the available federal funds when they become 

campbellld
Text Box
H-03



available to reimburse themselves for the loan portion. There is no payback on the local match (Le. 
grant portion) of the program. 

In our case, the federal funds were to be converted by MOOT in FY 2010, which began on October 1, 
2009. Oue to budget discussions at the federal level, the highway bill has not been approved as of 
this date and is still currently operating under a continuing resolution where highway funds are 
approved at FY 2009 levels. It is unknown when a new highway bill will be approved. 

This Amendatory Contract recognizes that this situation is not the fault of the local agency or MOOT. 
The only significant change between MOOT Contract No. 07-7734 and the Amendatory Contract No. 
10-4040 is the addition of the following language: "Due to limitations on the distribution of Federal 
Funds for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2009, the DEPARTMENT shall waive the interest from 
. October 1, 2009 until the PROJECT is converted to regular Federal-aid in fiscal year 2010". 

Financial Considerations: 

The city has made two (2) loan payments, one in FY 2008 and the second and final interest payment 
in FY 2009. By executing this agreement, there will be no further interest payments on the loan. 

Legal Considerations: 

MOOT Contract No.1 0-4040 amends MDOT Contract 07-7734 to include language to waive the 
interest that would otherwise be due in FY 2010 since federal funds are not readily available at this 
time for MOOT to convert. 

Policy Considerations: 

Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 
venues (Goal II). 

Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing 
and interconnected world (Goal III). 

Prepared by: Biil Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
G:IGontractsICo'ltr8cts 2008\08-3 Stephenson, 14 Mile to 1751CorrespondencelTo CC fe MDOT Amendatory AgraemenCLJT Loan.aoex 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
JENNIFER M. GRANHOLM DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION KIRK T. STEUDLE 

GOVERNOR DIR~CTOR 
LANSING 

May 26,2010 

Ms. Toni Bartholomew 

Clerk 

City of Troy 

500 W. Beaver Road, 

Troy, MI 48084-5285 


Dear Ms. Bartholomew: 

MDOT Contract No.: 10-4040 

Control Section: STU 63459 

Job Number: 102287 


Enclosed is the original and one copy of above described contract between your organization 
and the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). Please take time to read and 
understand this contract. If this contract meets with your approval, please complete the 
following checklist: 

PLEASE DO NOT DATE THE CONTRACTS. MDOT will date the contracts when they 
are executed. A contract is not executed unless it has been signed by both parties. 

Secure the necessary signatures on all contracts. 

Include a certified resolution. The resolution should specifically name the officials who are 
authorized to sign the contracts. 

Return all copies of the contracts to my attention of the Department's Design Division, 
Local Agency Programs, 2nd floor for MDOT execution. 

In order to ensure that the work and payment for this project is not delayed, the agreement 
needs to be returned within 35 days from the date of this letter. 

A copy of the executed contract will be forwarded to you. If you have any questions, please feel 
to contact me at (517) 335-2264. 

Contract Processing Specialist 
Design Divisioin - Local Agency Progams 

Enclosure 

MURRAY D. VAN WAGONER BUILDING· P.O. BOX 30050' LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 
www.michigan.gov· (517) 373-2090 

LH-LAN-O (01/03) 

http:www.michigan.gov


CAB 
AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 07-7734 Control Section STU 63459 

Job Number 102287 
Project STP 0863(018) 
Federal Item No. RR 6189 
CFDANo. 20.205 (Highway 

Research Planning & 
Construction) 

Contract No. 10-4040 

THIS AMENDATORY CONTRACT is made and entered into this date of 
by and between the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT"; and the CITY OF 
TROY, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "RECIPIENT"; for the 
purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of the parties in agreeing to this Amendment to 
CONTRACT #07-7734. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the parties to the Amendment have heretofore, by a Contract dated Febmary 
6, 2008, hereinafter referred to as "CONTR.A.CT 07-7734 provided for the construction and 
financing of that which is hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT" and is described as follows: 

Hot mix asphalt resurfacing work along Stephenson Highway from 14 Mile Road 
northerly to Highway I -75; including pavement removal, earth excavation, subbase, 
aggregate base, concrete base, concrete curb and gutter, storm sewer, and drainage 
improvement work; and all together with necessary related work. 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the RECIPIE:::-IT having appropriate authority 
desire to amend CONTRACT 07-7734 to provide for a waiver of the interest for a period of the 
loan; and. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties hereto that: 

1. Section 3 of CONTRACT 07-7734 is revised to read as follows: 

Section 3 PROJECT FU~1)ING, BILLLNGS, k~1) PAYMENTS 

The DEPARTMENT will loan the RECIPIENT $3,318,400. The RECIPIENT will pay 
interest at the rate of 4 percent annually. The loan funds will be used only for the 
PROJECT. The DEPARTMENT will retain the loan funds and make payments to 

2/4/87 amend.for 5110110 1 

http:CONTR.A.CT


PROJECT contractors and subcontractors on the RECIPIENT's behalf. The RECIPIENT 
directs the DEPARTMENT to convert federal advanced construction funds as soon as 
they become available. The assessment of interest will begin when the DEPARTMENT 
expends loan funds on the RECIPIENT's behalf. Due to limitations on the distribution of 
Federal Funds for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2009, the DEPARTMENT shall 
waive the interest from October 1, 2009 until the PROJECT is converted to regular 
Federal-aid in fiscal year 2010. It is understood that loan funds provided under this 
CONTRACT will not be sufficient to pay all PROJECT costs. 

The loan under this CONTRACT is subject to the RECIPIENT's repayment in the 
following manner: federal aid reimbursement applicable to the PROJECT will be used to 
pay principal on the loan, and the DEPARTMENT will invoice the RECIPIENT annually 
for the actual amount of interest. The invoiced amounts will be due and payable within 
thiliy days. Final payment of all principal and interest on the loan must be made on or 
before September 30, 2010. 

If the RECIPIEl'-I'T fails to make any of its required payments when they are due, the 
DEPARTMENT will immediately notify the RECIPIENT of such default and of the 
amount thereof, and if such default is not corrected by payment within ten (10) days, the 
DEPARTMENT is then authorized and directed to withhold from the first of such monies 
thereafter allocated by law to the RECIPIENT from the Michigan Transportation Fund, 
but only after sufficient money has been returned to the county road commission, city, or 
village to provide for the payment of contractual obligations incurred or to be incuned 
and principal and interest on notes or bonds issued or to be issued under 1941 P A 205, 
1943 PA 143,1952 PA 175, or Section 18c or 18d of 1951 PA 51, sufficient monies to 
remove the default and to credit the RECIPIENT with payment thereof and to notify the 
RECIPIENT in writing of such fact. 

The RECIPIENT agrees that the costs reported to the -DEPARTMENT for this 
CONTRl\CT will represent only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance 
with this CONTRA.CT. The RECIPIENT also certifies that it has read the CONTRACT 
terms and has made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this 
CONTRACT that apply to the reporting of costs incurred under the tenns of this 
CONTRA.CT. 

2. Except as amended by the provisions herein, all of the provisions, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties contained in CONTRA.CT 07-7734 shall remain in full force and effect. 

3. The RECIPIENT waives any and all claims it has or may have against the 
DEPARTMENT which arise out of the need to amend CONTRACT 07-7734. 

2/4/87 amend. for 5110/::'0 2 

http:CONTRA.CT
http:CONTRA.CT
http:CONTRA.CT


4. This Amendatory contract shall become binding on the parties hereto and of full 
force and effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials for the parties hereto; 
upon the adoption of the necessary resolution approving said contract and authorizing the 
signatures thereto of the respective officials of the RECIPIENT, a certified copy of which 
resolution shall be attached to this contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed the 
day and year first above written. 

CITY OF TROY 	 ~ICHIGAN DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORT A TrON 

Title: 	 Department Director MDOT,, 

Title: 

2/4/87 amend.for 5110/10 	 3 



 

 
 
June 17, 2010 
 
 
 
TO:     The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:   2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
 
 
In June of every year, after May financials are complete, we review all budgetary centers in the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to determine whether a budget amendment is necessary 
based on eleven months of actual expenditures and estimating June expenditures. 
 
Several of the budget amendments are a result of the recognition of grants and private contributions. 
The Refuse Fund amendment is to ensure the funds budgeted for contractual services are sufficient 
based on actual and estimated expenditures. 
 
General Fund 
 

• Fire Operations ($51,000) – Federal grant for fire equipment purchases 
 

• Museum ($20,000) – Kresge Foundation grant for professional services 
 

Refuse Fund 
  

• Contractors Service ($100,000) – Reflect the estimated cost of refuse collection, disposal and 
recycling charges 

 
City Management recommends Council approval of the 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2. 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA\2010\06.21.10 – 2009-10 Budget Amendment No. 2 

AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-04



2009-2010 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 2

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

GENERAL FUND

REVENUE
FEDERAL - GRANTS 12,100$              51,000$         63,100$            
PRIVATE CONT. - MUSEUM 20,000                20,000           40,000              
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 71,000$         

EXPENDITURES
FIRE OPERATIONS 936,330$            51,000$         987,330$          
MUSEUM 526,670              20,000           546,670            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 71,000$         

REFUSE FUND

REVENUE
FUND BALANCE 190,642$            100,000$       90,642$            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 100,000$       

EXPENDITURES
CONTRACTORS SERVICE 3,891,000$         100,000$       3,991,000$       
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 100,000$       



  
  

TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 15, 2010 
SUBJECT: Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee.  

 
 
   

Chapter 13 of the Troy City Ordinances allows for the creation of local historic 
districts within the community.  Under the law, once a property has been designated as a 
local historic district, there are applicable regulations that are designed to preserve these 
significant historic resources in the community.  Troy’s ordinance was amended on 
November 17, 2003 to mirror changes in state law.  At that time, the amended ordinance 
provided for the creation of an ad hoc Historic District Study Committee (HDSC), which 
was charged with the responsibility of shepherding the de-listing requests.  The HDSC 
Committee was appointed in February 2004, based on a de-listing request.  Since that 
time, the HDSC has continued its work on all pending de-listing requests.  Since the 
committee is ad hoc, it was anticipated that the committee would handle only the initial 
pending matter.  However, the existing HDSC has also graciously accepted responsibility 
for additional de-listing requests which were submitted before the conclusion of the 
HDSC’s pending matters.  The last pending de-listing request is now complete, and the 
HDSC has submitted its recommendation for City Council action.       

 
Section 14 (A) of Chapter 13 provides that the “study committee shall be an ad 

hoc committee established to consider the establishment , modification or elimination of 
historic districts in specified areas as determined by City Council and then be dissolved.”   
 
  At its May 18, 2010 meeting, the Historic District Commission recognized that the 
HDSC work was complete, and therefore recommended dissolution (attached). In the 
future, if and when additional de-listing requests are filed, then a new ad hoc HDSC would 
need to be appointed.  Members serving on the current HDSC y Committee are eligible for 
appointment to any future Study Committee(s).   
 
  Please let us know if you should have any questions. 

campbellld
Text Box
H-05









  
  

TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 15, 2010 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 3 of the Troy City Code  

 
 

 
 

The employee re-structuring process requires amendments to Section 1.141 of Chapter 3 of 
the Code of the City of Troy, which identifies those employees authorized to enforce specific 
ordinance provisions.  In order for the City’s designated employees to issue appearance tickets, 
municipal civil infraction violation notices or misdemeanor violation notices, the employees must be 
explicitly empowered.   The attached proposed amendment was prepared with the assistance of the 
involved department heads, and it reflects the changes that are required to date.  It is possible that 
additional amendments will be required in the future.   
 

If you should have any questions and or concerns, please let us know. 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-06



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 – 
Administrative Service, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 3, Sections 1.141(5), 1.141 (6), 1.141(7), 1.141(8), 1.141(9), and 
1.141(10) are amended as follows: 

 
1.141(5) A City of Troy Water Division Inspector shall have the authority to issue 

and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction 
notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of 
any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility  

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 
Chapter 33: Streets 

 
 

1.141(6) A The City of Troy Building Official or his/her designee Building 
Department Inspector , shall have authority to issue and serve upon a 
person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of 
any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code.  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 
 
Chapter 13: Historic Preservation 

             
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 

 

Formatted: Font color: Red



Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 
 

Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 
 

Chapter 39: Zoning  
 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 61: Temporary Merchant Business 
 
Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 

 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 

 
Chapter 71: Auto Wash 

 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 
 
Chapter 76: Adult Use Businesses Licenses 
 
Chapter 77: Smoking Lounges 

 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
  
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  

 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  
 
Chapter 83: Fences  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 93:  Fire Prevention (provisions related to building codes)  
 



Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades  
 
 

1.141(7) A City of Troy Fire Department Staff Lieutenant, Division Assistant 
Chief, Fire Staff Technician, or Chief shall have authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction 
notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of 
any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming  
 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls  
                    (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places  
                    (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses  
                    (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners  
                    (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations  
                    (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
                    (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 82-A. Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement         

(provisions related to fire safety)  
 

Chapter 82-B. Dangerous Buildings  
                       (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 84: Garbage, Rubbish, and Refuse Transfer Station 

(provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances (provisions related to fire safety)  
 
Chapter 93:  Fire Prevention 
 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades  
   (provisions related to fire safety)  
 



Chapter 103:  Alarm Ordinance 
 
Chapter 106: Traffic (provisions related to fire safety) 
 

1.141(8)  A City of Troy Engineering InspectorSpecialist. , Inspection Supervisor, 
Engineering Technician, Civil Engineer, Land Surveyor or Environmental 
Specialist shall have authority to issue and serve upon a person an 
Appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, and/or a 
Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to 
believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code: 

 
Chapter 17: Rubbish Fill Operation 
 
Chapter 34: Sidewalks 
 
Chapter 42: Flood Plain Management 
 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
 
Chapter 80: Soil Removal and Fill 
 
Chapter 86: Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control  

 
 1.141(9) A City of Troy Foreman Field Supervisor of Parks Maintenance 

Division, Superintendent of Public Grounds, or Director of Parks and 
Recreation shall have authority to issue and service serve upon a person 
an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, and/or 
a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to 
believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code:  
 

Chapter 29: Cemetery 
 

Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to landscaping) 
 

Chapter 41: Subdivision Control (provisions related to landscaping) 
 

1.141(10) The Zoning Administrator, or his/her designee, a Housing and Zoning 
Inspector, and the Inspection Supervisor shall have authority to issue and 
serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction 
notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of 
any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code.  

 
 



Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 
 
  Chapter 34: Sidewalks and Driveway Approaches 

 
Chapter 39: Zoning  
 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 
 
Chapter 61: Temporary Merchant Business 
 
Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 

 
Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 
 
Chapter 76: Adult Use Businesses Licenses 

 
Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 
  
Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  
 
Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  

 
Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  
 
Chapter 83: Fences  
 
Chapter 85: Signs  
 
Chapter 88: Nuisances  
 
Chapter 93:  Fire Prevention  
 
Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades  
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending and all rights and liabilities existing acquired or incurred at 
the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 



affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after adoption or publication, 
whichever occurs later. 
 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



  
  

TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 14, 2010 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation  

 
 
   

The City of Troy has designated several historic districts under Chapter 13 of the 
Troy City Code, which is authorized by the state Local Historic Districts Act (MCL 399.201 
et. seq.).  Through the designation, the City is able to limit construction, alteration, repair, 
moving, or demolition on these historically significant properties.   
 
  Once a historic district has been established, a property owner can request 
elimination by submitting a request to an appointed Historic District Study Committee 
(HDSC) for review and recommendation.  Upon receipt of such request, the HDSC is 
required to prepare a preliminary report and hold a public hearing on the matter.  The 
HDSC also forwards a copy of its final report to the State Historic Preservation Office, the 
Planning Commission and the Historic District Commission (HDC) for review.  Since any 
addition, change or modification of the designated historic districts requires an amendment 
to Chapter 13, the final report of the HDSC must then be submitted to the Troy City 
Council for its review and action.  If Chapter 13 is amended, the City needs to record it 
with the Oakland County Register of Deeds.   
 
  Glen Michaels has requested the elimination of his home at 4800 Beach Road 
from the designated historic districts.  The HDSC, after public hearing, recommends 
granting his requested relief.  According to the HDSC final report (copy attached), the 
current structure is not historically significant, due to the change in physical characteristics.  
The house is not representative of any particular era or style, due to the number of 
renovations over the years with a multiplicity of architectural styles.  This finding is 
supported by the opinion of Donna Voronovich, an architect and Professor of Architectural 
History and Theory at Lawrence Technological University.  A copy of her assessment is 
included in the final report of the HDSC.     
 
  The HDSC minutes from the March 30, 2010 public hearing on de-listing, as well 
as the April 27, 2010 Planning Commission minutes and the May 18, 2010 Historic District 
Commission (HDC) minutes are attached.  The HDSC, Planning Commission, and the 
HDC all recommend granting Mr. Michaels’ requested relief.   
 
  The attached proposed amendment to Chapter 13 would amend Chapter 13 to 
eliminate 4800 Beach Road as a designated historic district. 
 
  Please let us know if you have any questions. 

pallottaba
Text Box
H-07























































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Mark Nowark of First Baptist Church of Troy gave the Invocation. The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 7, 2010, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini (Absent) 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak  
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Beltramini  
 
Resolution #2010-06-118 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by  Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Beltramini at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, June 7, 2010 and the Closed Session 
of Monday, June 7, 2010 due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater    
No:  Schilling, Kerwin  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED  

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
C-1 Presentations:  
a) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Joseph Morgan 

recognizing him as the 2009 Police Officer of the Year. 
b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Renee Jelley 

recognizing her as the 2009 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee of the Year. 
c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Lt. David 

Livingston recognizing him as the 2009 Police Command Officer of the Year. 
  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Tim Burns 

County Commissioner District 19 
Provided an update about various Oakland County activities; 
discussed Troy Community Coalition; and provided 
information regarding the upcoming Flag Day event to be held 
at the Troy Museum. 

Susan Stevanski - SEMCOG Provided a brief presentation in regard to Agenda Item I-8 
Rochester Road Access Management Plan – Project 
Overview and Memo of Understanding. 

Janice Daniels Discussed various topics and alternatives in regard to 
addressing City of Troy’s budget issues. 

Richard Peters Discussed various topics. 
Melissa Cummings Discussed letter she received from the City of Troy in regard 

to the city’s weed mowing policy. 
James Savage Discussed the privatization of the Building Department and 

other various topics related to the City of Troy’s budget.  
 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
Resolution #2010-06-119 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City Council, 
Rule #6 Order of Business. 

 

Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling   
No:  None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Vote on Resolution to Change Order of Business 
Resolution #2010-06-120 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby MOVES FORWARD agenda item G-2 Building 
Department Services BEFORE agenda item G-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value 
Award: Golf Course Operations. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming   
No:  None  
Absent: Beltramini  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

MOTION CARRIED  
 
G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-2 Building Department Services 
 
Pending Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the H-4 Building Department Services – 
Safe Built Michigan, Inc. Contract PENDING the crafting of language by the City Attorney and 
signed by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. representatives regarding the 80/20 prorated inspections 
provision; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the attached three-year 
contract to provide Building Department Services to the best value proposal submitted by Safe 
Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City 
Council determines to be in the public interest, to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to renew 
for two (2) additional years provided Safe Built Michigan, Inc. has met all the contract terms and 
conditions in accordance with the Professional Service Agreement dated May 17, 2010, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of proper proposal, contract documents and all other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Pending Resolution for Building Department Services by 
Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-06-121 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Pending Resolution for Building 
Department Services by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year 
contract to provide complete Building Department Services submitted by 
Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, as a result of a best value 
process, and which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public 
interest, to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years, provided Safe Built Michigan, Inc. has met all the 
contract terms and conditions in accordance with the Professional Service 
Agreement dated June 7, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the 
submission of proper proposal, contract documents and all other specified 
requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents on 
behalf of the City of Troy.  

 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
Absent:  Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution for Building Department Services as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-06-122 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract to provide complete 
Building Department Services submitted by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, as a result 
of a best value process, and which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest, 
to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to renew for two (2) additional years, provided Safe Built 
Michigan, Inc. has met all the contract terms and conditions in accordance with the Professional 
Service Agreement dated June 7, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of proper 
proposal, contract documents and all other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:54 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:08 PM. 
 
G-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Award: Golf Course Operations 
 
Resolution #2010-06-123 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and AWARDS the attached City of Troy 
Golf Courses Management Agreement for a four-year term to manage Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course by Billy Casper Golf, LLC of Vienna, VA, as a result of a best 
value process, and which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest and shall 
automatically renew for one successive four-year period provided Billy Casper Golf has met all 
the contract terms and conditions in accordance with the Management Agreement dated June 7, 
2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of proper 
proposal, contract documents and all other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the Management Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
Yes: Slater, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No: Schilling, Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
H-3 Appointment of SOCRRA Representative and Alternate 
 
Resolution #2010-06-124 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES Timothy L. Richnak as the SOCRRA 
Representative and Mark F. Miller as the Alternate SOCRRA Representative with terms expiring 
on June 30, 2011. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
H-4 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 
Resolution #2010-06-125 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Slater  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20 of the 
Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates), a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
H-5 City of Troy Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters 
 
Resolution #2010-06-126 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the continuation of City of Troy 
Incentive Plan for Volunteer Firefighters under the terms and conditions that were in effect the 
previous year, January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009, based on the Letter of 
Understanding signed April 7, 2010 by City Management and the Volunteer Firefighters. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-6 Bid Waiver: Taser Equipment – Police Department 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Slater  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Taser Distributing is the sole source provider in Michigan of the X26 
Tasers and accessories; and 
 
WHEREAS, The M26 model Tasers are no longer supported by the manufacturer, credit is being 
offered for the exchange of M26’s with the purchase of new X26 models;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 
best interest to WAIVE formal bidding procedures and CONFIRMS the purchase of X26 Tasers 
and training cartridges from Michigan Taser Distributing as detailed in Appendix 1, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated total cost of 
$17,650.00; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an on-going contract 
for tasers, training cartridges, and accessories from the sole source provider, Michigan Taser 
Distributing of South Lyon, MI, not to exceed $20,000.00 per year. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution H-6 Bid Waiver: Taser Equipment – Police 
Department 
 
Resolution #2010-06-127 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution by STRIKING “an ongoing” and 
INSERTING “a three (3) year”. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution H-6 Bid Waiver: Taser Equipment – Police 
Department as Amended 
 
Resolution #2010-06-128 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Slater  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Taser Distributing is the sole source provider in Michigan of the X26 
Tasers and accessories; and 
 
WHEREAS, The M26 model Tasers are no longer supported by the manufacturer, credit is being 
offered for the exchange of M26’s with the purchase of new X26 models;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the City’s 
best interest to WAIVE formal bidding procedures and CONFIRMS the purchase of X26 Tasers 
and training cartridges from Michigan Taser Distributing as detailed in Appendix 1, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated total cost of 
$17,650.00; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three (3) year 
contract for tasers, training cartridges, and accessories from the sole source provider, Michigan 
Taser Distributing of South Lyon, MI, not to exceed $20,000.00 per year. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

H-7 Chapter 85 – Signs – Proposed Revisions Allowing Road Closure Construction 
Signs and Proposed Revisions Authorizing the Zoning Administrator to Administer 
and Enforce the Sign Ordinance and Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – 
Proposed Revisions Establishing a Fee for Road Construction Closure Signs 

 
a) Resolution to Amend Chapter 85 – Signs 

 
Resolution #2010-06-129 
Moved by Slater   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 85 - Signs, as prepared by City 
Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
b) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required 
 
Resolution #2010-06-130 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required, 
as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-06-131 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of May 17, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations:  
 
a) Joseph Morgan – 2009 Police Officer of the Year  
b) Renee Jelley - 2009 Non-Sworn Police Department Employee of the Year  
c) Lt. David Livingston – 2009 Police Command Officer of the Year 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Tree Maintenance 

Services  
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract for Tree and Stump 
maintenance services with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low bidder, J.H. 
Hart Urban Forestry of Sterling Heights, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
on April 29, 2010, which includes the Schedule of Values, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring July 1, 2013; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
I-5 Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-5 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request for funding in the amount of 
entire municipal and community credits transferred from SMART for Troy Medi-Go Plus for fiscal 
year 2010/2011, and the funding agreement between the City of Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus 
covering July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
I-6 Acceptance of a Watermain Easement – Our Credit Union, a State Chartered Credit 

Union – Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104 
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water main, 
for a consideration amount of One Dollar ($1.00), from Our Credit Union, a State Chartered 
Credit Union, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-226-104; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-7 Easement Over Access Drive at the Madison Heights Transfer Station 
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-7 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is a standing member of the Southeastern Oakland County 
Resource Recovery Authority (“SOCRRA”);  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy, by its standing on the SOCRRA Board, is obligated to carry out the 
business of SOCRRA, including actions to preserve and safeguard SOCRRA assets;  
 
WHEREAS, SOCRRA has real property and valuable assets, including requisite licenses and 
State approval to operate at 29470 John R, Madison Heights, MI (“Asset”); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Asset is central to the long term planning of SOCRRA and the ongoing solid 
waste management goals and objectives of the City of Troy;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, by review and adoption of this 
Resolution, ACKNOWLEDGES the attempts by Oakland County to secure an Easement over 
the sole access drive to the Asset and the City of Troy OPPOSES such an Easement unless and 
until terms of an Easement satisfactory to SOCRRA are agreed to in full by the County of 
Oakland; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, as a member of SOCRRA, BELIEVES it 
essential and fundamental to SOCRRA and the City of Troy that access to the Asset be 
preserved and maintained to accommodate the needs of SOCRRA, now and into the future, and 
that said access not be infringed upon in any way to the detriment of SOCRRA and the City of 
Troy; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That any access rights granted to any other entity by Easement or 
otherwise, be SUBJECT to unilateral termination rights in favor of SOCRRA should the use 
change or alter and be CONSISTENT with the terms and conditions put forth by SOCRRA in a 
prior easement between SOCRRA and the City of Madison Heights. 
 
I-8 Rochester Road Access Management Plan – Project Overview and Memo of 

Understanding 
 
Resolution #2010-06-131-I-8 
 
WHEREAS, The governing body of the City of Troy, with offices located at 500 W. Big Beaver 
Road, Troy, MI, recognizes the need for coordinated planning along the Rochester Road 
Corridor;  
 
WHEREAS, The governing body of the City of Troy recognizes the need to prepare and 
implement coordinated land use and access management standards along the Rochester Road 
Corridor in the interest of all parties; and 
 
WHEREAS, The governing body of the City of Troy has reviewed the Memorandum of 
Understanding;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the governing body of the City of Troy hereby ADOPTS 
the Memorandum of Understanding as a policy document and INSTRUCTS City staff and 
affected Commissions of the City of Troy to implement the provisions thereof; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the governing body of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES 
the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the Memorandum of Understanding. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Bostick Rochester Road Development, LLC and AxleTech International, LLC, at 1400 

Rochester 
b) Rezoning Application (File Number Z 737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, Northwest 

Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23-O-1 (Low Rise Office) District to B-2 
(Community Business) District 

c) Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor 
Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 E. Big Beaver), Section 22, 
Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-rise) District  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): No Memorandums Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
K-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   Council Comments Advanced: 
 
City Council members and City Management discussed various budgetary cutbacks impacting 
the public including the City’s mowing policy and the issue of having transferred the mowing 
responsibility to homeowners due to budget constraints. 
 
Council Member Kerwin suggested that City Council select a facilitator to oversee the vision and 
goals portion of the upcoming City Council Study Session scheduled for Monday, June 28, 2010. 
 
In response to Council Member Fleming’s request, City Manager, John Szerlag updated City 
Council on the status of the postponed resolution to the State of Michigan’s librarian regarding 
Troy’s eligibility for grants while operating under 55 hours. Mr. Szerlag indicated that the state 
librarian recommended that the city receive the money first and then request reduced hours. 
 
Council Member Fleming proposed that over the next year that they determine what it will cost 
per hour to keep the library open and then approach the state’s librarian once they have 
prepared a realistic low cost budget with reduced hours.  
 
Council Member Slater commended staff for their hard work on gathering and providing the large 
amount of information necessary for City Council to make some very difficult decisions this 
evening. 
 
Council Member McGinnis appreciated having agenda items M-6 Organizational Structure: 
Museum and Nature Center and M-7 Communication from City Manager to Community Center 
Pass Holders included as informational items on tonight’s agenda for both City Council and the 
public. This is the type of information Council Member McGinnis is looking for in terms of keeping 
everyone updated and informed. Furthermore, Council Member McGinnis believes City Council 
needs to receive frequent updates on the rolling budget. 
 
Mr. Szerlag indicated his goal is to provide quarterly updates to City Council. 
 
Council Member Fleming discussed the feasibility and various options for holding a Troy Daze 
event at no cost to the City of Troy. There was an informal general consensus of City Council 
members present supporting a private entity event to be held on private property. 
 
Council Member Howrylak supports a private entity holding their event at a Troy park as long as 
the City has no financial responsibility for it and the entity can meet the appropriate insurance 
requirements.  
 
Additionally, Council Member Howrylak believes they need to develop a policy and process about 
whether or not private organizations will have the ability to take over what were formerly non-
essential city functions. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Library Advisory Board/Final – March 11, 2010 
b) Historic District Commission/Final – March 16, 2010 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – April 14, 2010 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – April 20, 2010 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – April 20, 2010 
f) Historic District Commission/Final – April 20, 2010 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – May 5, 2010 
h) Planning Commission/Draft – May 11, 2010 
i) Planning Commission/Final – May 11, 2010 
j) Library Advisory Board/Draft – May 13, 2010 

Noted and Filed 

M-2 Department Reports:  
a) Kocenda v. Troy et. al. 
b) Building Permits Issued May 2010 

Noted and Filed 
 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
a) Letter of Appreciation from Carol Maljak to Troy Parks and Recreation Commending 

SHARP Volunteer Karin Stahl 
b) Letter of Appreciation from Dominick Tringali Architects Commending the Assistance of 

the City of Troy Building Department and Fire Department with Renovation Project at Life 
Christian Church 

c) Letter of Thanks for Contribution Received from the Casual For a Cause Employee 
Program to Alternatives For Girls 

Noted and Filed 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Notice of Hearing for the Electric and Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy 

Company - Case No. U-16302 
b) Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company - Case No. U-

15768 
c) Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company - Case No. U-

16263 
d) Miscellaneous Resolution #10109 - Declaring May 2010 – Mental Health Month in 

Oakland County 
e) Miscellaneous Resolution #10087 – Support of Legislation Addressing Statutory Mandates 

Noted and Filed 
 

M-6  Organizational Structure: Museum and Nature Center 
Noted and Filed 

 
M-7  Communication from City Manager to Community Center Pass Holders 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Draft June 7, 2010 
 

- 14 - 

M-8  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and Grass 
Noted and Filed 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  No Study Items Submitted 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2010-06-132 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. (Pro Car Wash East). 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming   
No: None  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting RECESSED at 11:21 PM. 

The meeting RECONVENED at 11:25 PM. 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:35 PM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION TO HONOR  
PETER HULLINGER 

2010 FIRE FIGHTER OF THE YEAR 
 
WHEREAS, Peter Hullinger has been a volunteer Fire Fighter since joining Troy’s Fire Station 6 16 years ago on 
September 23, 1993; and 
 
WHEREAS, His selection as Fire Fighter of the Year is due to his many years of dedication to the Troy Fire 
Department, having served with honor and dignity in all of his roles at the station, Firefighter, Lieutenant, and 
Captain of Station 6; and 
 
WHEREAS, Throughout his career, Pete has worked to better the Troy Fire Department through training, fire 
grounds tactics and instruction.  He is always willing to work with members of Station 6 as well as the other five fire 
stations to improve skills, instruct the proper use of new equipment, and to instill teamwork; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pete has been instrumental in orchestrating live burns for the Station’s training by taking the lead in 
securing houses or businesses, moving in burnable materials, checking the buildings for hazards, instructing the 
personnel on a walkthrough of all exits and hazards and being responsible for the fire crews safety while they work 
inside these structures; and  
 
WHEREAS, Over the years Pete has been honored with a number of awards, including Station Member of the Year 
Award for Fire Station 6, Safe Driving Award, Merit Service Award, Life Saving Award and letters of commendation.  
He represents Station 6 on the Firefighters Incentive Committee and has been a Proctor for Firefighter II exams; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pete is a committed and knowledgeable volunteer fire officer, he also is employed as a Fire Staff 
Technician assigned to the Fire Operations Division.  In this role, he was instrumental in the application and 
administration of a federal grant received by the Department for replacement of personal protective equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Through Lieutenant Hullinger’s leadership, commitment, hard work and countless hours of service, 
the Troy Fire Department has become even more efficient in its delivery of quality fire protection to the community; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy, does hereby join with the citizens 
of Troy, to express sincere congratulations to Lieutenant Pete Hullinger on the occasion of being chosen 2010 
Fire Fighter of the Year by the Troy Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council commends Pete for his achievement, leadership and dedicated 
service to the citizens of Troy. 
 
Presented this 21st day of June 2010. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-03a



 
 
June 7, 2010  
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director    
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video Upgrades 
 
Background 
 
 On Wednesday, June 2, 2010, bids were received to provide and install Audio & Video Upgrades for the 

City Council Chambers and the WTRY Cable Control Room.  
 Fifty-three (53) vendors were notified via the MITN system.  Three vendors responded but one vendor was 

disqualified for not meeting specifications for failing to provide the proper bid surety.  Additionally, four (4) 
statements of no bids were received.   

 The WTRY Control Room and the Council Chambers has outdated equipment in place that needs to be 
upgraded.     

 After a review of the bid proposals, it was determined the project came in over the amount budgeted.  The 
specifications will be revised to keep the bids in line with budgeted amounts.    
 

Financial Consideration 
 
 Revenues generated from the PEG (Public, Education, Government) funds cover the cost of capital 

equipment for WTRY, our government access cable channel. 
 

Legal Consideration 
 
 ITB-COT 10-20, to furnish Audio & Video Upgrades for the City Council Chambers and WTRY Cable 

Control Room was competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code.   
 
Recommendation 
 
 City management recommends rejecting all bids and re-bidding the contract under revised specifications to 

provide audio & video upgrades for the City Council Chambers and WTRY Cable Control Room.   
 
 
 
 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 11 - Rejection Audio-Video Upgrades 06.10.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-20
Opening Date -- 6-2-10 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of  1
Date Prepared --  6-2-10 AUDIO & VIDEO UPGRADES

jh Recommend Rejection 
VENDOR NAME: Midwest ProVideo 

Visual Works Systems, Inc.
Check # 9229205565 023778
Check $ $1,000.00 $1,000.00

PROPOSAL -- FURNISH ALL EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL, AND LABOR TO PROVIDE AND INSTALL 
              AUDIO AND VIDEO UPGRADES IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AND CABLE ROOM AT CITY HALL
FURNISH AND INSTALL:
Audio and Video Upgrades in the Council
Chambers and Cable Room in accordance
with the specifications

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 40,614.00$            40,625.00$        

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Y or N Yes Yes

PRE-BID MEETING: Y or N Yes No
(Non-Mandatory)

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N Yes No
Date May 27, 2010 Blank

COMPLETION DATE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

But Offers:
Minimum of

EXPERIENCE: # of Years 18+ 15 years

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Payment due Net 30
Upon Completion

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:       Y or N Yes Yes
*Does not include labor

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y or N Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes Yes

NO BID: Heartland Video Systems, Inc. 
TeL Systems
Troxell Communications
Roscor Corporation

DMS: Advanced Lighting & Sound  - unsigned Company check - not a cashiers / certified check or money order 
         as specified.

ATTEST:
Cindy Stewart ___________________________
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO,CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 10-20 Video - Audio Upgrades

AS SPECIFIED



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
June 15, 2010  
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager    
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair 

Services 
 
Background 
 On June 3, 2010, bid proposals were received to provide two (2) years of maintenance and repair services 

for the City of Troy outdoor and indoor pools (excluding pumps), with two, one year renewal options.   
 Eighty-eight (88) vendors were notified via the MITN system.  B & B Pools & Spas of Livonia was the sole 

bidder.     
 Services covered include emergency and regular maintenance and repairs needed at the Troy Family 

Aquatic Center and Community Center Pools, excluding pumps, which is covered on another bid. Since 
2004 B & B Pools & Spas has provided the City’s pool maintenance and repair services. They continue to 
be both reliable and trustworthy. 

 B & B Pools and Spas have the expertise to ensure general and emergency repairs are done to keep the 
facility in good working order.  

 Building operations also assists with the general maintenance and repair on these pools. 
 These services will ensure that equipment is up to date which will provide the safest environment for 

community use.  
 These services ensure that the cost of repairs and maintenance are minimal and that they are made in a 

timely fashion to ensure limited closure to the public.  
 These services will allow the City to continue to repair and update equipment as needed to retain 

investment and attract additional customers.  
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the pool maintenance and repairs is available in the Parks and Recreation operational budget 

under the Troy Family Aquatic Center operating accounts (787.7802.070 and 787.7802.150), and the 
Community Center operating accounts (755.7802.070 and 755.7802.150). 

 The hourly cost for these repair services have remained the same since the last time this contract was bid 
in 2007.     

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 10-18 to provide two (2) years of maintenance and repair services for the City of Troy outdoor 

and indoor pools (excluding pumps) with two, one year renewal options was competitively bid as required 
by City Charter and Code.  

 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in furnishing the services as 
specified.   

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04b



Page 2 of 2 
 

June 15, 2010  
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  
 City Management recommends awarding a contract to furnish two-year requirements of pool maintenance 

and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Community Center 
with two (2) one-year options to renew to the sole bidder, B & B & Spas of Livonia, MI, at rates contained in 
the bid tabulation opened June 3, 2010, to expire June 30, 2012.   

 
 
G:\Purchasing\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Pool Maintenance ITB-COT 10-18 06.10.doc  

 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-18
Opening Date -- 6/3/10 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1 
Date Prepared -- 6/3/10 POOL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH Two Year REQUIREMENTS OF POOL MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS FOR BOTH INDOOR

AND OUTDOOR POOLS AT THE TROY FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER & COMMUNITY CENTER

WITH Two-One Year RENEWAL OPTIONS

EST

QTY ITEM     DESCRIPTION

60 hrs 1 Repair Service 
Regular Time - Hour per Man 75.00$                 
(2 man crew)

40 hrs 2 Emergency Repairs
Regular Time - Hour per Man 75.00$                 
Overtime: - Hour per Man N/A
Holiday Time - Hour per Man N/A
(2 man crew)

3 Travel Time
Complete Repair Call N/A

4 Repair Parts
Discount % Blank
Parts Price List $ at Trade Cost
Dated Blank
A Markup/Markdown  Trade Cost 

SITE INSPECTION: Yes  or No
Date May-2010

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Hrs of Operation 8 AM to 5 PM
Contact Number Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet
Signed   Y or N Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30

WARRANTY: Blank

DELIVERY DATE (S) Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Yes

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES SOLE BIDDER

Ann Blizzard

Brain Goul ___________________________

Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB

Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director
G: /ITB-COT 10-18 Pool Maint & Repairs Prepared by LB

B & B Pools & Spas

Yes



eTION 


June 14, 2010 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer¥ 

SUB,JECT: 	 Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder 
Contract 10-02 - Cooltdge Hwy. Pavement Rehabilitation 

Recommendation: 

• 	 It is recommended that City Council award a contract for the Cooltdge Hwy. Pavement Rehabilitation to 
Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI48084 for their low total bid amount of 
$621,314.97. In addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if needed, not to 
exceed 25% of the original project cost due to unknown jOint conditions exposed after the milling operation 
and prior to placement of the asphalt overlay. . 

Background: 

• 	 Bids were received and publicly read on June 9, 2010 The low bid of $621,314.97 as submitted by Ajax 
Paving Industries, Inc., can be seen in the attached tabulation of bids. 

• 	 The Engineer's estimate at the time of bidding was $650,431.00. The low bid is therefore $29,098.03 or 
4,47% below the Engineer's estimate. 

• 	 Work will include milling the asphalt surface, base repairs, curb & gutter repairs, new sidewalk ramps and 
asphalt overlay. This work is scheduled to start in July and be complete by September 2010. 

• 	 A portion of the work is located in Birmingham. The cost of this work is $16,488.00 which the City 
Engineer for the City of Birmingham as indicated is acceptable. Birmingham will be invoiced once the work 
is completed. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 Funds for this work are included in the 2010/11 Major Road Fund, account number 
401,447,4 79.7989.101015. The budgeted amount includes funds for construction, inspection and 
contingencies. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 Work was competitively bid and publicly opened with three (3) bidders responding. 
• 	 Award is contingent upon submission of proper proposal and bid documents, including insurance 

certificates, bonds and aJl specified requirements. 

Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Troy adds valve to properties through maintenance or upgrades of the infrastructure and quality of life 
services. 

Prepared by: G. Scott Finlay. PE 
G:\Contracts\Contracts· 2010\10·2· Coolidge Road Pavement Rehabilitation\Corespondence\Bid Award.doc 

http:16,488.00
http:29,098.03
http:650,431.00
http:621,314.97
http:621,314.97
campbellld
Text Box
I-04c



Bid Tabulation Summary 


Contract 10: 10-02 
Contract Year: 2010 
Location: Maple to Golfview 

Description: Coolidge Hwy Pavement Rehabilitation 

Project Number: 
Estimate Number: 
Project Type: 
Location: 

10.101.5 
1 
Road Rehabilitation 
Maple to Golfview 

Project Engineer: 
Date Created: 
Fed/State #: 
Fed Item: 
Control Section: 

Scott Finlay 
5/6/2010 

Description: Coolidge Hwy Pavement Rehabilitation 

Rank Vendor Total Bid % Over Low % Over Est. 

o ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE $650,431.00 4.68% 0% 
"-------- --- - --- - - -

1 (00588) Ajax Paving Industries, Inc. $621,314.97 0% -4.47% 
. .......... --------- ......... ..- - -

2 (01411) Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. $652,941.77 5.09% 0.38% 

3 (05184) Cadillac Asphalt. LLC. $663,976.70 6.86% 2.08% 

Contract #10-02 Page 1 of 1 

MERLBids 4.3.4 6/9/2010 3:56:57 PM 

http:663,976.70
http:652,941.77
http:621,314.97
http:650,431.00


 

 
 
June 14, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative-  

City of Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing  
 
Background 
 In 2009, the City of Rochester Hills obtained bids for fire hose testing via the Michigan Intergovernmental 

Trade Network (MITN) website of which the City of Troy is part. 
 The City of Rochester Hills accepted the low bid received from Waterway Michigan LLC for a one-year 

contract with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods for unloading, testing and reloading 
fire hose. 

 Rochester Hills exercised its first option to renew with Waterway for 2010.  Waterway has agreed to hold 
their 2009 prices for 2010 due to the current municipal finance situation. 

 Fire hose is required to be tested annually by National Fire Protection Association standards. 
 This hose testing project is for the 2010-2011 fiscal year. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are budgeted for this service in the 2010-2011 fiscal year under Fire Halls, Contractual Services- 

General Account #344.7802.070.  
 Due to the MITN program, the total purchase is estimated at $10,920.00.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 Cooperative purchasing minimizes costs and increases the efficiency and effectiveness of City 

government.  
 
Recommendation 
 City management and the Fire department request authorization to contract for fire hose testing services 

from the low bidder, Waterway Michigan, LLC, of Caledonia, MI, as a result of a MITN Cooperative award 
hosted by Rochester Hills for the unloading, testing and reloading of approximately 52,000 feet of fire hose 
for an estimated total cost of $10,920.00. 

 
 
G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 - FireHoseTesting RHills 06.10.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04d



-----------

Waterway Michigan LLC. 

3509 108u1 St. 


Caledonia, Michigan, 49316 

800-991-6297 Ext 200 


HOSE TESTING CONTRACT 


DATE: 06/07110 
FROM: Waterway Michigan, LLC. TO: Troy Fire Dept 

3509 108th St. 500 West Big Beaver 
Caledonia, Michigan, 49316 Troy, Michigan, 48084 

Attn: Assistant Chief Keith Lenderman 
• Phone: 248-524-3419 

TOTAL FOOTAGE Description PER FT. 
52,000 Hose Testing $.21 

Ground Ladder 
Testing 

TAXLD. TAX 
SERVICE TEST INCLUDES: 

EXT. 
$10,920.00 

TOTAL:$i 0,920.00..__. 

Test all hose to NFPA 1962 standards 
UnpackiRe-pack all hose beds & racks 
Check all couplings/lubricate/as needed 
Check and replace all gaskets as needed 
Stenciled numbering system 
Stencil station # or initials/upon request for additional fee 
Complete computer repOIi 
WATERWAY WILL PROVIDE ALL LABOR. 

Waterway, Inc. will inspect and service test all hose in accordance with the standards of the NFPA as set 
forth in the section titles "Care, Use and Maintenance of Fire Hose, Connections and Nozzles." It is 
expressly understood and agreed that Waterway, Inc. shall not be deemed or held liable, obligated or 
accountable upon or under any guarantees or warranties, express or implied, statutory, by operation of law, 
or otherwise, relative to the use of any tested fire hose, connections or nozzles after the date of inspection. 
Furthermore, Waterway, Inc. wiII not be held liable, obligated or accountable for any hose lengths that fail 

• during testing under specifi~~d~c~o_n_di_ti_o_ns_a_n_d---,p,---r_es_s_ur_e_s_._________~_______---" 

The customer will be responsible for the water supply and any costs associated with the testing. 
A computer test record will be supplied upon payment for services. 

** ***************24/7 COMPUTER RECORD ACCESS******************* 

*** PAYMENT DUE WITHIN 30 DAYS OF TEST COMPLETION *** 


*** Sign and return one copy of this estimate. *** 


SIGNATURE ___________ DATE: 

i 



--------------------- -----------

SEALED BIDS FOR FIRE HOSE TESTING 


BID TABULATION 

NAME 
ADDRESS 

i4-AII hose testing! will be 
--------~i 10/3112669----- -------------'--------,-----































Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
June 14, 2010 
 

TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting  
 Specifications - Fitness Equipment 
 
Background 
 On June 4, 2010, bids were received and opened for ITB-COT10-21 to provide physical fitness equipment 

for the Troy Community Center less Trade-Ins.  
 This equipment will replace equipment that is past its warranty period. 
 32 vendors were notified via the MITN system with five bids received; as well as one late bid submittal. 
 Of the bids submitted, there was only one item on the bid that met specifications. The two companies that 

submitted bids were Direct Fitness Solutions LLC which submitted three proposals and Fitness Things Inc 
which submitted two options. 

 The bids were examined and compared to the bid specifications for the Matrix #E5xc Total Body Ellipticals, 
Matrix #R3X Recumbent Bike, Matrix #H3x Hybrid Cycle, and the Octane #4700 Smart Stride Ellipticals. 

 Of the three proposals from Direct Fitness Solutions, LLC and two options received from Fitness Things, 
many of the alternatives did not meet the requested specifications. 
 

o Item #1 Three (3) Matrix #E5xc Total Body Ellipticals: Proposal C from Direct  Fitness Solutions, 
LLC for the Precor 534i Experience was the lowest bid for this item but did not meet specifications 
due to the fact that it is not self powered. Proposal A from Direct Fitness Solutions LLC for the 
Precor 556i Experience was the second lowest bid and meets our specifications.  
 

o Item #2 Five (5) Matrix #R3X Recumbent Bikes: None of the proposals or options submitted met 
our specifications.  Proposal C from Direct Fitness Solutions, LLC for the Tag Fitness 9GR 
Recumbent Bike was the lowest bid for this item but did not meet specifications due to the unit not 
having a step through design or commercial level watt range. Proposals A & B from Direct Fitness 
Solutions, LLC for the Precor 842i or 846i Experience were the next lowest bids and do not meet 
specifications due to the lack of a step through design. Option #1 from Fitness Things Inc for the 
Cybex 750R could not be considered for award because of their all or none award stipulation.  In 
addition, Option #2 from Fitness Things does not meet the commercial level wattage specifications. 

 

o Item #3 Two (2) Matrix #H3x Hybrid Cycle: None of the proposals or options submitted met our 
specifications due to the other alternative units lacking a 45 degree angle for riding, which is 
beneficial for seniors and those requiring therapy.  

 

o Item #4 Two (2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride Elliptical: None of the proposals or options submitted 
met our specifications due to the other alternative units lacking the electronically adjustable/ 
customizable stride length feature, which is specialty equipment beneficial to seniors and those 
requiring therapy.  

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04e



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

 

June 14, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications - Fitness Equipment 
 
 
Financial Considerations 
 The department has funds budgeted in the Parks and Recreation Community Center General Operating 

Supplies account # 101.751.31.755.7740.010 
 

Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT10-21 to provide twelve (12) pieces of cardiovascular equipment less trade-ins for the Troy 

Community Center was competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code. 
 Vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in providing the specified 

cardiovascular equipment. 
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding a contract to purchase and install three (3) Precor 556i 

Experience for the Troy Community Center to the lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications, Direct 
Fitness LLC of Mundelein, IL for an estimated net total cost of $10,185.00 including trade-ins, at prices 
contained in the bid tabulation dated June 4, 2010. 

 In addition, City management recommends rejection of bids for Item #2 - five (5) MatrixR3X Recumbent 
Bikes, Item #3 for two (2) MatrixH3x Hybrid Cycles, Item #4 for two (2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride 
Ellipticals and the balance of Item #5 for Trade-ins due to alternative units not meeting specifications or an 
all or none award stipulation. 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-21
Opening Date -- 6/4/10 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/4/10 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

jh/sl (All or None Award)
VENDOR NAME: Direct Fitness Direct Fitness Direct Fitness Fitness Things

Solutions, LLC Solutions, LLC Solutions, LLC Inc
Proposal A (1) Proposal B (2) Proposal C (3) Option #1

PROPOSAL: VARIOUS PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT FOR TROY COMMUNITY CENTER LESS TRADE-INS
DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM #1 DMS

Three (3) Matrix #E5xc Total Body 3,895.00$           3,995.00$              3,395.00$              5,000.00$              
Ellipticals or approved alternate

Ouoting on: 556i Experience 546i Experience 534i Experience Cybex Arc Trainer
Manufactured by: Precor Precor Precor Cybex
Model Number: 556i 546i 534i 750 A

ITEM #2
Five (5) Matrix #R3X Recumbent Bike 2,295.00$          1,895.00$             1,595.00$              2,280.00$             

or approved alternate

Ouoting on: 846i Experience 842i Experience 9GR Recumbent Bike Cybex 750 R
Manufactured by: Precor Precor Tag Fitness Cybex
Model Number: 846i R 842i R 9GR 750 R

ITEM #3
Two (2) Matrix #H3x Hybrid Cycle 1,950.00$          1,695.00$             1,450.00$              2,690.00$             

or approved alternate

Ouoting on: 846i Experience 842i Experience 9GU Upright Bike Sci Fit ISO 1000
Manufactured by: Precor Precor Tag Fitness Sci Fit
Model Number: 846i U 842i U 9GU ISO 1000 R

ITEM #4
Two (2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride 3,895.00$          3,995.00$             3,395.00$              4,150.00$             

Elliptical or approved alternate

Ouoting on: 556i Experience 546i Experience 532i Experience True CS 800L2W
Manufactured by: Precor Precor Precor Blank
Model Number: 556i 546i 532i Blank

EST. Sub- Total Cost: 34,850.00$        32,840.00$           27,850.00$            40,080.00$           

ITEM #5
PURCHASE OF CITY'S (18) TRADE-INS

Six (6) Life Fitness - Recumbent Bikes (200.00)$             (200.00)$                (200.00)$                (100.00)$                

Three (3) Life Fitness Version 3 Upright Bikes (200.00)$             (200.00)$                (200.00)$                (100.00)$                

Two (2) Life Fitness Version 4 Upright Bikes (200.00)$             (200.00)$                (200.00)$                (100.00)$                

Two (2) Life Fitness HR Elliptical (300.00)$             (300.00)$                (300.00)$                (250.00)$                

Two (2) Precor EFX-554i Elliptical (500.00)$             (500.00)$                (500.00)$                (300.00)$                

Two (2) Precor EFX-546i Elliptical (500.00)$             (500.00)$                (500.00)$                (300.00)$                

One (1) Stair Master 4600 (200.00)$             (200.00)$                (200.00)$                -$                       
*  See Addendum B *  See Addendum B *  See Addendum B

Total to Deduct: (5,000.00)$          (5,000.00)$             (5,000.00)$             (2,800.00)$             

ESTIMATED NET TOTAL COST: 29,850.00$      27,840.00$         22,850.00$         37,280.00$         

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes

DMS

DMS

DMS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-21
Opening Date -- 6/4/10 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/4/10 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

(All or None Award)
VENDOR NAME: Direct Fitness Direct Fitness Direct Fitness Fitness Things

Solutions, LLC Solutions, LLC Solutions, LLC Inc
Proposal A (1) Proposal B (2) Proposal C (3) Option #1

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE Yes or No Addendum A Addendum A Addendum A Option #1
Attached

DELIVERY SCHEDULE: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Can Meet

SERVICE FACILITY: Location: Manchester, MI Manchester, MI Manchester, MI Plymouth, MI

Miles 80 miles 80 miles 80 miles 41.4 miles

Response 24 - 48 Hrs 24 - 48 Hrs 24 - 48 Hrs 24 - 48 Hrs

CONTACT INFORMATION: Names Jack Summers Jack Summers Jack Summers Kristen Tassielli
Mark Kwiatkowski Mark Kwiatkowski Mark Kwiatkowski Rachelle Lohrer

24Hr Phone 734-478-6633 734-478-6633 734-478-6633 734-891-0015
Hrs of Oper 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 10 AM to 7 PM

WARRANTY:  (3) Years Minimum Yes or No Yes or No Yes or No Yes or No
All Wear Items Yes Yes Yes Yes
All Parts & Labor Yes Yes Yes Yes
Free 2nd Day Parts Yes Yes Yes Yes
Free Service call Yes Yes Yes Yes

Document Marked No Extra Charge No Extra Charge No Extra Charge N/A

NO SUBCONTRACTORS: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Complies

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Blank Blank Blank Net 30

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS: See Addendum Blank Blank N/A
"B & C"

Attached To Bid

ALL OR NONE AWARD Yes or No *Yes Yes Yes Yes

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes

* Addendum B - City has the right to Mix and Match
ATTEST: these three proposals and will only accept trade-ins

John Hug in proportion to items purchased.

Diane Fisher _______________________

Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein, CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 10-21 Physical Fitness Equipment

AS SPECIFIED



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-21
Opening Date -- 6/4/10 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/4/10 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

jh/sl (All or None Award)
VENDOR NAME: Fitness Things

Inc
Option #2

PROPOSAL: VARIOUS PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT FOR TROY COMMUNITY CENTER LESS TRADE-INS
DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

ITEM #1
Three (3) Matrix #E5xc Total Body Ellipticals 4,150.00$              

or approved alternate

Ouoting on: True CS800 L2W
Manufactured by: TRUE
Model Number: CS800L2W

ITEM #2
Five (5) Matrix #R3X Recumbent Bike 2,000.00$             

or approved alternate

Ouoting on: True RCS800R2W
Manufactured by: TRUE
Model Number: RCS800R2W

ITEM #3
Two (2) Matrix #H3x Hybrid Cycle 2,690.00$             

or approved alternate

Ouoting on: 846i Experience 842i Experience
Manufactured by: Sci Fit

DMS

DMS

Manufactured by: Sci Fit
Model Number: ISO 1000 R

ITEM #4
Two (2) Octane #4700 Smart Stride Elliptical 4,150.00$             

or approved alternate

Ouoting on: True CS800L2W
Manufactured by: TRUE
Model Number: CS800L2W

EST. Sub- Total Cost: 36,130.00$           

ITEM #5
PURCHASE OF CITY'S (18) TRADE-INS

Six (6) Life Fitness - Recumbent Bikes (100.00)$                

Three (3) Life Fitness Version 3 Upright Bikes (100.00)$                

Two (2) Life Fitness Version 4 Upright Bikes (100.00)$                

Two (2) Life Fitness HR Elliptical (250.00)$                

Two (2) Precor EFX-554i Elliptical (300.00)$                

Two (2) Precor EFX-546i Elliptical (300.00)$                

One (1) Stair Master 4600 -$                       

Total to Deduct: (2,800.00)$             

ESTIMATED NET TOTAL COST: 33,330.00$         

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Yes or No Yes

DMS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-21
Opening Date -- 6/4/10 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 6/4/10 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

(All or None Award)

VENDOR NAME: Fitness Things

Inc
Option #2

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE Yes or No Option #2
Attached

DELIVERY SCHEDULE: Yes or No Yes
Can Meet

SERVICE FACILITY: Location: Plymouth, MI

Miles 41.4 miles
Response 24 - 48 Hrs

CONTACT INFORMATION: Names Kristen Tassielli
Rachelle Lohrer

24 Hr Phone 734-891-0015
Hrs of Oper 10 AM to 7 PM

WARRANTY:  (3) Years Minimum Yes or No
All Wear Items Yes
All Parts & Labor Yes
Free 2nd Day Parts Yes
Free Service call Yes

Document Marked N/A

NO SUBCONTRACTORS: Yes or No Yes
Complies

INSURANCE: Can meet XX
Cannot meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS: N/A

ALL OR NONE AWARD Yes or No Yes

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No Yes

HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER

AS SPECIFIED



Page 1 of 5 

 

 
June 10, 2010 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

   
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Automobile, Light 

Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Background 
 On July 23, 2007, Troy City Council approved contracts to provide three-year (3) requirements of 

automobile, light truck, farm and construction equipment replacement parts with an option to 
renew for three (3) additional years to the seventeen (17) lowest bidders meeting specifications 
under bid ITB-COT 07-14 Proposals A and B.  CC Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4d.  

 A primary and secondary vendor was chosen for certain product lines in order to provide the City 
with optimal replacement parts coverage.  

 Two of the vendor’s, Alert Emergency Equipment Group and Rowerdink Incorporated, chose not 
to extend their contracts.  In addition, Motor City Truck Sales has gone out of business. 

 These three vendors were the primary and secondary supplier of a number of different product 
lines.  The majority of these product lines (with the exception of six) will now be obtained from five 
of the remaining vendors that were already either the primary or secondary suppliers for these 
products.  The remaining six product lines (Go Rhino, Caterpillar, Cummins, Detroit Diesel, 
Sterling Heavy Duty, and Allison Transmissions) are, on average, low usage items and will be 
rebid in the future.     

 The City’s Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance contacted the remaining fourteen (14) vendors to 
negotiate additional discounts.  Several of the vendors agreed and these discounts are noted 
below.   

 The Fleet Division utilizes replacement parts on a daily basis to assure efficient, proper and 
proactive vehicle\equipment service, repair and maintenance.  

 These replacement parts are used in equipment dedicated to public safety to ensure the health 
and welfare of citizens and businesses, and also reduce the liability for the City.  

 The product lines listed below are used daily to service, repair and maintain over five hundred 
(500) pieces of City owned equipment; as well as in-service work for other municipalities.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are budgeted and available in the Fleet Equipment/Operation and Maintenance operating 

account #5507774110.  
 Contracts for automotive replacement parts are based on discount structures.  Troy receives the 

deepest discounts allowed from aftermarket suppliers and warehouse distributors. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04f



Page 2 of 5 

 
June 10, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment  
  Replacement Parts 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-14, to furnish three-year requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and 

construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for an additional three years 
was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of 
interest in supplying replacement parts for the City.    

 
Recommendation 
 City Management and the Fleet Division recommend exercising the option to renew the contracts 

for three (3) additional years for automotive, light truck, farm and construction equipment 
replacement parts with the vendors listed below under the same terms, conditions and discounted 
pricing as noted below, expiring May 31, 2013.  

 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Primary  Jobber (less) 10% As bid 
Wausau Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% As bid 
Western Plow Parts   Primary Jobber (less) 5% As bid 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% Jobber less 15% 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Secondary Jobber (less) 10% Jobber less 15% 
Seals – National Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% Jobber less 15% 
Filters - Price protection  Primary Jobber (less) 50% Jobber less 55% 
Weatherhead (hydraulic)  Secondary Jobber (less) 10% Jobber less 15% 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Soundoff Signal  Primary  40% off Catalog  As bid 
Truck Lite Secondary  30% off Catalog  As bid 
Wires & Terminals  Secondary  30% off Catalog  As bid 
GE Bulbs  Primary  30% off Catalog  As bid 
Weatherhead (hydraulic) Primary  20% off Catalog  As bid 

 



Page 3 of 5 

June 10, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment  
  Replacement Parts 
 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Batteries  Primary  Cost Plus 10% Cost Plus 5% 
 
GMC Medium Duty Truck 

 
Primary  

31% to 50% off List 
Price 

 
As bid 

 
Wiper Blades – Anco 

 
Primary 

50% to 68% off 
Catalog  

60% to 78% off 
Catalog 

Chevrolet/GM   Secondary 50% off List Price  60% off List Price 
Filters   Secondary Cost Plus 10% As bid 
GE Bulbs  Secondary  Cost Plus 10% As bid 

 
 

Start All Enterprises, Detroit, Michigan 
 

 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Batteries  Secondary 10% off Catalog  As bid 
 
Lubrication Specialists & Company / Amsoil, Superior, Wisconsin 

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Synthetic Oil  Primary  10% off Catalog  As bid 
 
Great Lakes Truck & Trailer, Westland, Michigan 

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Heavy Duty Brake Parts Primary  Jobber (less) 5% Jobber less 10%  
Seals – National  Secondary  Jobber (less)10% As bid 
Wiper Blades – Anco  Secondary Jobber (less) 5% Jobber less 14% 

 
 

 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 

June 10, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment   
   Replacement Parts 

 
Elder Ford, Troy, Michigan 

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Ford Primary  34% off List Price  35% off List Price 
 

Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Bosch Rexroth Primary  Vendor Price Sheet As bid 
 
Kennametal Blades 

 
Primary  

Manufacturer List 
Price 

 
As bid 

 
Root Plow Parts 

 
Primary 

Manufacturer List 
Price 

 
As bid 

 
Swenson Spreader 

 
Primary  

Manufacturer List 
Price 

 
As bid 

 
Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet, Green Bay, Wisconsin 

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Dodge Primary  25% off List Price As bid 
GMC Medium Duty Truck  Secondary  30% off List Price As bid 

 
Lacal Equipment Inc., Jackson Center, Ohio  

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

 
Tymco Sweeper 

 
Primary  

29% off Tymco 
Price Sheet 

 
As bid 

 
Old Dominion Brush, Richmond, Virginia  

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Tymco Sweeper Secondary  20% off Price Sheet As bid 



Page 5 of 5 

June 10, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment 

  Replacement Parts 
 
Electrical Terminal Service, Royal Oak, Michigan  

 
 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Wires & Terminals  Primary  Jobber less 25% Jobber less 30% 
 

John R Spring Service Inc., Troy, Michigan   
 

 
 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Springs  Primary  Cost Plus 15% As bid 
 

Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., Northville, Michigan   
 

 
Product Line 

Primary/ 
Secondary 

Vendor 

 
Previous 
Discount 

 
Negotiated 
Discount 

Vactor  Primary  10% off List Price  As bid 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPL   G:/Bid Award renewal option 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Auto Parts 06-10.doc 
 



t" ....Jan 28 10 11:30a 

500 W. Bi:9 B&Wttr 
...TodAfTY'Dj'I Mt 41)084 

(248) 524,3300 .Ci~~·
rmTroy 

January 28, 2010 

AnN: Michael/Corey ellis 
Amsoil Inc. 
925 Tower Ave 
Superior WI 54880 

Dear Mike/Corey: 

On. May 10, 2.007, the City of Troy entered into contract 112070010808 with Amsoil Inc. to provide three
years requirements of automobile, light truck. farm and construc:tkm equipment replacement parts. This 
contract contained an option m renew for three additional years LJf'lder the same terms and conditions as 
the original contract. 

Please fax this I£!tter back bV February 5, 2010 indicating if AmsCJiI Inc. wishes to renew thiS oontract untl 
May 31, 2013. Our fax number is (248) 680-7281. A request by aty staff to determine the successful 
bidder's interest in renewing the contract in no WiI'f obligates lhe my. The option cannot be exercIsed 
wittlout Troy City Council approval and a blanket purchase order ISSUed. . 

rr you have arty questions, please call me at (2o'fa) 680-7268. 

CHECKONIE: 


( ,/Amsoillnc. is interested in renewing the contract under the same

'.., JrI! a~)".,ons. 

X ulJ( btzex.... 

Thank you, 
samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP 
Fleet Maintenance 
City of Troy 



____________________ _ 

Feb 03 10 lO:05a Citl::f 0ftrOI:§ 2-400807281 p. 1 

~O() W. B~ IJu.I.H.v. 

rt"tip ME 4$081
(2411) S24--331JO 


January 28, 2010 

ATTN: Chad 5uzinski 
Start-All Enterprises . 

24731 W 8 Mile Rd 

Detroit MI 48219 

. DearChad: 

On May 10, 2007.. the CIty of Troy entered into COI'\tract '2070010708 with 9,.art-AII Enterprises to 
provide three-years requirements of autnrnoblle, light truck, farm and const:n.K:tfan equipment 
replatement parts. This contract contained an option to renew for 1ttree additional yetvs under the same 

, ~rms and conditIOns as the original rnrrtrGd:. 

Please fax this letter back by February 5, 2010 indlcatfng jf Start-AfI,Enterprlses wishes to renew this 
C'OI1tnK:t until May 31, 2013. OUr fax number is (248) 680-7281. A request by City staff l'D de'termh'te the 
5~Ut bidder's interest In renewing the contract in no way obIigalEs t.he City. The option cannot be 
exercised without TrOV City CounCil approval and a blanket purchase order issued. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (2.q&) 680-7288. 

De~: 

Thank youl 

Samuel P. Lameram, CPFP 
Fleet MaintBnanoo 
Cltv of Troy 



, p. ~12+86807281.Jan i::a lU Ul:"t&p Git.~ u't I"'D~ 

500 W. "&Lg uav~r 
TY0t1, Mf .... gOrl-+ 41 Ci9'gr(~4g) 5:2:+-.3300 ,. • Trov 

II 

January 28, 2010 

Gary MapeS 
Jack DOheny S!.!pp~es Llle. 
7n Doheny Court 
Northville MI 48167 

Dear Frank: 

On May 6, 2008, the City of Troy enten:d IntD contract #2070091MOB with lack Doheny Supptles Inc. to 
provide three-yeiJr5 requirements of autcmobllef light tJ'Utk, farm and oonstrudion equipment 
replacement parts. ThIs contract contained an option to renew for three addltional years under the same 
terms end conditions as the onginal contract 

Please fif( this letter back by February 5, 2010 indicating If Jack Doheny Supplies Inc. wishes to renew 
this mntract until May 31, 2013. Our faX number" is (248) 680-7281. A request by CIty staff to determine 
the suc::cessftlI bidder's interest In renewtng the c:ontrac;t in no way obligates the City. The option cannot 
be exerdsed ,WIthout Troy City Counal approvaf and a blanket purchase order ISsued. 

Ifyou haY{;! ¥IV qu5ions, pleilse cal me at (248) 680-7288. 

CHECK ONE: 

( yo) Jack Doheny SUpoiles Inc. 'I In~~n r~,"~ ~~o:;t! ~mct 'Jrtder ~~ same 
yv tems and conditions. 

~.~-
( ) lack Doheny Supplies Inc. " not loteresq;d in renewing the contract.. 

x • 
Signed: AuthorIzed COntpany Reprcsal'lbiti". 

~:--------------------
Thank VOUf 
Samuel P. Lamerato, CPfP 
Fleet Maintenance 
City ofTroy 



VVL/ \IV. ""ali t-IJ t-IJJU 1.).,)0 r. \II 

; ,'::''':·'':'::-:r~·. ~:.':: ~:.:\; '.: > .\. '. ," ':
...../_. 

' .... 

.', 
~"~ ,,':" ·i ..', , ': .'. 

"-:~:": .~!~~~~: :-... . ",' .... ': ',.' 
.. :~ . ':," I "' ~ • 

..... 

.... ". '> 
,.' .. , 

......, 
::' I ... -!'; .. . :"> . 

'.;; .' 
.': . ": 

~.: ,~' .,.:.:: ··:·,:.,:.O~.~iYji~,&.~f(~) '. .'. 
·i, .. · "5118 Glen AJdeOlpTiVe"":";:' . ;;. : ,;.:

.' ·~:·:::;t#~,?·.;:,:,:< ',:'" .... '..#_~ 
.. <Qn.~:11l;...2007i., -:~~ r¢Q'~~,._ ....._ ._.. ~\. 

: -~th"" ',~. .... 't$;.. . ~., ." ·'·..·d.'aUtiilriobil··:'JJ9At-tr;tict· ta··· ,- . 
. '~" ' ....:.~;~., ,,',':- ,~' .... ; .. f,¢d-ain ~dn'te;re~~iOr.
~~.......... ~ .... , ..... 

.. ,.' ,~:. ~~·~i~,~;I/(.: .. ~!~:~~<.... ::;;;:: ': ',<: .... :::<·>;<~.~;>~;L~;.:~~r 
:.,.~e.~:~.~;~~:~~-;~~.2~1:~,1~~.ff.0l9::~~~ 
.·ttJls .qJntr~ u~. ~'l~~~;~~~: :9Ur ~ ~uri1bet:1S (248) ~ne~:;.: :~. ~ .r .~ 
·the sUcc.eSsfuI~bidc::Iei:'s·:-9Ilei'est;:"rn, .. '\. .. .' :the .ntJad"in ~fK.i' '·okl;n...,;",;;.: the ~:;' .. ,.. J,.. ...~ .,c;o ' .. WiJ'f ,~~ "., ........ . 

" ...:.... 

: . .... 

; ". 
:. ' 

;_;i." ..~ .:' 

;:: .. ' 

, , 

:;." 

'. 

,., ,:be·~'~~!''ff·~~~~9~'~~?'p'p'~.I·~ .~. ~~~~.~~~t::~1~~e!f·... 
.If~ have.ariy:4i~i1$'::P.r_t:BU;ine at (lqS-) ~n88.· ':. " ",; ;'".: ::-..~~>:< ~ "''1':' : .. ~~:;: ;'" '.... ~.... ". 

: .. ' . ." ',' .".: ;:"::1 :.;:...: ' .. ~~. :;~ ~. '. ~ . ,:.~'... ' ' , , , , . ..... ..' ~ , , . >: :'w' • :', '''~"~''~'':';:•• :•• ,•...! ' ,. ,;:: :. 

: '. • ""::;: ~:. ~.'." • , ' ••:',:: '::,!, ,. ::L~':'>" .' 

'.. ,~r::j~~(~)Ia~;n·~~~~/fL .•... . . .'. .. . . .... ..., ""._~:lbF v.. - '. 

'~;, :.iiiiitJ','!!)'::.:: .... ...,,;:f '.. ......... •.c",c, ,,'- 'r' , ..... 


'. ~! .. ;' '~r~~~' ...... '~:: ... ;~:.Ef"i·<:.'f.rli~\W;~~\~~:' .":", 
" •.1 

:.. ". 

·Data:· . 
"": ........ -, --'. 

T."· 

.': 
. '.'. 

.. . ' 

.,': . 

1: . 

' .... .., 

, .... " 

..~ '.... 

. t·. '. ;, 
~' : 

.' " 

'.1· 



Jan 28 10 11:~3a Cit.l!I OF' T,...o~ 24889(17281 p. I 

SOO W. Il~ BM.4I'U 

TYD)'J M./ 48084 
 ... TOdAy 
(2+8) 524·331J0 

Troy
Ci~~ 

Ja~uarv 28, 2010 

A TIN: < AI Murphy 
Elder Ford 
mJohnR' 
Troy MI 48083 

Dear AI: 

On May 10, 2007, the ory of Troy entered Into contract #2.070011308 with Elder Ford to provfde three
years requirements of automobiled light truck, farm and ccnstruc.1ion equipment replacement parts. This 
contract c:antalned an option to renew for three additional years under the Sl!JfTIe terms and condltiOfls as 
the original contract. 

Please f. tt'lls letter back by February 5, 2010 indicating If Bder Ford wishes tD renew this contract until 
May 31, 2013. Our rax number Is (248) 680-1281. A request by aty staff to determine the suc:cessfuA 
bidder's JntIerest In renewing the contract In no way obligates the Clty. The optiOn cannot be exercised 
without Troy Oty Coundl approval and a bCanket purthase order issued. 

II'yoo have any questiOns, pleese call me at (248) 680-7288. 

CHECK ONE: 

(~Elder ford is ~ In renawlng the contract under the same 
/l~ and conditions. 

x~f:,~ 

x~____~____~____~____~~ 
Sig"'; .AutbGr1zed CDmpany Re,l'\H4iIfIItative 

Date: t ' ~~ -\ 0 

Thank you, 
Sc!Imuef P. Lamerato, CPFP 
Reet Maintenance 
City ofTroV 

"' 




sou w. 8'5 Be.t:wer 
... TO~TY'~ MI48()84 41 Ci~q/(2.48) SZ1-33U() 

!!Ttoy 

January 2.8, 2010 

AnN: AI Benish 
Kirk's Automotive Inc. 
9330 Roselawn 
Detroit MI 48204 

Dear AI: 

0., Me)' 10, 200?', the City of Troy entered Irno eontr'act #zo7000990B with Kirf(s Auton'IotM! Inc. to 
provide three-years requirements 01 automobile, light tru~ farm and constructfon equipment 
replacement parts. This eontrad: oor'lmined an option to renew for three additional years under thp 9~rne 
tenns and conditiom; as the original o:mtract 

Please fax this letter back by February 5, 2010 indicatil"l9 if Kirk'&" Automotive Inc:. wi:Jl1cs to renew this 
contral;t umH j'<iay .U, ;:013. Our tax runber is (248) 680-nSl. A request by Oty staff to determine the 
successful bidder's interest in renewing the rontract in no way obl"rgat:es the City. The option cannot be 
e;(erdsed witt'lout Troy City COuncil opproval and i;I blanket ,rurchase order f5.S1Jf!(f. 

If you rn.we any questions, please call me at (248) 680-7288. 

CHECK ONE; 

iRterested in renewing HIe cont:ract under the sam'il! 

( ) Kirk"s: Automotive Inc. ;$ not Interested In renewing the ~ 

X.~~~~~~~_____________ 
Signed: AlJthori~ed Company Representative 
Oa~: ____________________~ 

Thenk you, 

Samuel P. Lamerato, CPF? 

Fleet Maintenance 
t:lty Of Troy 



p.l J.!!Jn :eEl 10 11:208 Cit.~ Of" Tro::l 2486807281 

$00 W. 8~ 8f!.I/WU 
TY()f.; MI 4-8084 ... T()~ 
(2<1-8) S2"'~33r;Q 41 Ci~~' 

2 III Troy 

January 28, 2010 

ATTN: MIke Farmer 
Coach and Motor Company 
33460 Lipke 
Olnton Township Ml 48035 

Dear Mike: 

On May 10,2007, the City of Troy entered into contract #2070010408 with COiSch and Motor Company 
to provide three-years reQuirements of automobile, light truck, farm and construction equipment 
repiac::ement parts. This contract contained an option ttl renew for three additional years under the same 
terms and conditions as the original contract. 

Please fax thiS letter back. by February 5, 2010 Indicating If Coach and Motor Company wishes to renew 
this contract until MlIY ll t 2013. 01,,1( fax number 1$ (248) 6SO-nst. A request by CIty staff to determine 
the successful bidder's interest: in renewing the contract in no way obligates the Oty. The option rnnnot 
be exercised wIthout Troy CIty Counen approval and a blanket purchase order Issued. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (248) 680-7288. 

CHECK ONE: 

(~) Coach and Motor Company Is Interested In renewfng the conb"act under tfte sarne 
t tJ11S and condi ons. 

( ) Coach and Motor Company Is not Interested In renewing the contract. 

x~~______~~______~__________ 
Signed: Authari", Company R.ep....,nt'ative 

Da~: ____________.........._______ 


Thankvou, 

Samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP 

Relit Maintenance 
aty of Troy 



500 jr/, !fl.!} Yu:tveY' 

'.. TOd#.y11'0;; .rAE «-B08"1
(:i: z,Lif ..5,;(.'f-:'.:!!)~ 
===-=~=--. ~~~~~==~==~==~~s=~~# 

A;;'>;. JCi! DE:;;)rincat 
-;-em IInal Supply Compa.I'Y 
... seo T!:un!..l'CrO~ra 
T;'oy Ml 4808~ 

I 
I 

;)/. :r.::,y :0, 2007, ;:ne CIty of Troy f:r:ter~ into COf'1tra::1. liIZUiOO.l.Ol0B w)m Terminal Supply Company to 

p OV'OE- mree-yea:,s I"equlrf!>menrs or autOmODile, ilgr.l tru!;", rC'Jr:'l1 and caf'!!:Str""ct1cn c:q....pme~lt 
;'"(:U;C3ceml.;llt pi;r...::.. in.;) Cui1i:iQCt ~ontalneo a;1 otlticn to ~ent:V\I ro~ three bdd~tlOl'\al years \,.lna2r tne same 
,::':;~.:: ~!':.! condltrol"\S 21:;- Ul!; OnglOai conr:-act. I 
F:c35C: fax. t!1:$ ~~ei l:>Q<;;..'-I. by F~t:>n"ary 5, 2010 ,tlOlcatmg If Termlr.ai SuPPly Company w.>lu= to lenew 
~:':! t~~.t:aa u:Jtil May 31, 2013. OLir fax numcer is (248) 6tiu-/:tBL A i~quest Dy City starr to ddC:fr!lilli:: 

~ :~ ",_ccesst"" oid-::1e~'=. :r.{e~est; In renewins the contract ,n no way O[}II!J..~ec; rr:e City. The opti::r: ca::r;Ot 
;:'C ':::;':e:::;sed w::r.::..:~ ::~y ety Cuvocd approllal ana a Qlcnket ;:>iJ~C~a5e qroE!!r ISS:.JE-d. 

, 'Iv.... ;".vc any QI..t.:!5tlvf'lS. please caU rr.e at (2l.fB) 650··7288. f 
I 
i 
I 
I 

:erminal Supply Camp nv is intecested in renewill9 the ~Qntract under the same 

, 
I. 
, 

) Tenninal Supply- Company is not interastep in r@nl!Wing f:he contrac::t. 
I 

.J 

~'--------
S'9Ilea: Authorizeci Company Aepntsentative i 

I 
I0 ... h';: ~. 1-1_0____ 
I 
! 

• ':: "': ':<. v·"l,;. 
:",J:-;;...;21 p. w,:':':el'llto, CPf? 
.-:;:·.··r !Vil'...fICf"ni'tnc= 
(lty of Trey 

: 
~ 

I 
1~-TEl1MrA" 

http:Termlr.ai


Jan 29 10 

soo w. Big Be£lvet" 
TI'~.!:?, /lA1 

(:2.-i-e) S:2../f-3300 

01;24p Cit.~ Of Tro~ 2496807281 10.1 

./friOg,.lf 

10 


and Tire Center 


January 28, 2. 

Ron Bostick 
lohn R Spring 
1782 East 
Troy MI480B 

On May 10, 
Center to 
replacement 
tenns and 

7, the aty ofTroy entered into wntract #2010012108 with John R Spring and Tire 
ide three-years requirements of automobile, light truck. farm and construction eqlipme t 
rts. This amtract contained an option to renew for three additional years under tile sa e 
'tloM as the orlgtnal contract. 

fetter back by February 5, 2010 indicating if John R Spring and TIre Center wishes to 
ct until May 31, 2013. Our fax oomber is (:218) 600-7281. A request by City staff to 

successful bidder's interest in renewing the contract in 00 way obligates the City •. The 
be exerdsed without Troy City Coundl approval and a blanket purchase order issued. 

If you have a y questions, please call me at (218) 6B()-7288. 

renew this 00 

John R Spring and Twa Ceotel' is interested In renewing the amtnlct under the .sa 
--illllmlRi::....arid conditions. 

Date: ____+-________________ 

Thallk your 
Samuel P. La rato. CPFP 
Fleet Mainten nee 
City of Troy 



C!48aa07281 p. 1 
Jan eo 10 01;i~6p Civl:! Of Tro~ 

.6'"00 W.l!\.L~ l3.t&lvey Tl1e cLtt1 of Tow.orYoY-I... 
TY0!j; MI ""gol?...,. 
(:(.... 8') 5:l-f.-3.300 

January 28, 2010 

Frank Rowfand 
Electrical Tenninal Service 
tl238 Edgetand 
Royal Oak MI 48013 

Dear Frank: 

On Mav 10, 2007, the City of Troy enterecJ Into contract #2070012008 with EJec:t:riCa1 Tenninaf Service to 
provide three-years requirements of automobile, light truck, farm and CDnstnJd1011 equipment 
replacement parts, This contratt ~ned an option to renew for itlree additionai years under the same 
terms and conditions as the original contract. 

Please faX [nis letter bade by February 5', 2010 Indieatlr19 If EIectriC:af Termiflal Service wishes to renew 
this contrac;t unUl May 31,2013. Our fax number is (248) 680-1281. A request bv City staff ttl determine 
the succ:essfuI bidder's irlterest In renewing the contract: in no way obligates the Oly. The option cannot 
be exercised without Troy City Council approval ~nd a blanker; purchase onfer issued. 

If you have any questions, please can me at (248) 680·7288. 

( ) Bedric:aI Termin., Servkle i5 not iDb:::n!sted in renewIng Ihe contract. 

X 
Si:-'g-n-ed"';:--:A-uth~ar-:i;--z-ed":""::'Com--pany--Re-presre--nta-tl-ve-

Date:' \ IL'\ / \('l
I 

Thank you, 

Samuel P. lamerato, CPR' 

FJeet Malntl!nance 

Citv of Troy 


E 




I M\At- U.L I U.&. 

Jan 29 10 11:4Ea Cit.~ Of Tl"o~ 	 249680'7291 p. 1 

sao w. fi'!J btuWe¥' 
... Tbrb.yTrOfo Ml4BOB4 

(218) 521·3300 4Ci~~' 
II Troy 

J~nllary 2.8, 2010 

ATTN: 	 Mark Hoard 
Shults Equipment Inc. 
1532 S State Rd 
Ithaca MI 488...7 

Oear Mark; 

On May 10, 2007, the City of Troy entered IntI> contract #2070011409 with Shults Equipment Inc. to 
provide three-years requirements of automobile, light truck, farm and consl:rud:ion equipment 
replacement parts. This contract contafned an option to renew for three addltionai years under the same 
terms and conditions as the original contract. 

Please fax this letter back by February 5, 2010 indicating if Shults Equipment Inc. wishes to renew this 
contract: until MaV 31, 2013. Our fax number Is (24B) 680-7281. A request by CIty staff to determine the 
successful bidder's Interest in renewing the contract in no way obligates the City. The option cannot be 
exercised without Troy City Council approval and a blanket purchase order issued. 

If you have any qUe$tiOns, please call me at (248) 680-]288. 

CHEgONE: 

(~) 	 Shults Equipment Inc. is interested in renewing the contract under the same 
terms and conditions. 

Signed: Authorized Company Representative 

( ) 	 Shults Equipment Inc. Is not: interested in renewing the contract. 

Date: ______________________ 

Thank you, 
Samuel P. Ulmerato, CPFP 
Fleet Maintenance 
City of Troy 



p.;:! 

10 11:388 Cit::1 Of Tl""o~ 2486807281 11'.128 

WI. 8'1 8&tUJU 
... TlIliAyMI4IJO''''' Ci:tYifS24~33()O 

Troy 

January 28, 2010 

ATTN: MatthewAtcheson 
Great Lakes Truck. &. Trailer 
5912 executive Drive East 
Westland MI 48185 

Oear Matt: 

On May 10, 2007, the City of Troy en~red Into conb"ad: #2070011008 with Great Lakes Truck & Trailer 
to provide three-years requirements of automobile, light truck, farm IlInd construction equipment 
replacement parts. This contract contained an option to renew for three additional years under the same 
terms and conditions as the original contract. 

Please fal< this letter back by February 5,2010 indicating if Great Lakes Truck (\ Trailer wishes to rene'\l\l 
this contract until May 31,2013. Our fax number is (248) 680-7281. A request: by aty staff to determine 
the successful bidder's fnterest in renewing the contract In no way obligates the City. The option cannot 
be exercised without Troy aty Council approval and a blanket purchase order issued. 

If you have any Questions, please call me at (248) 680-7288. 

T-Lakea Trude • Trailer Islnt;ensbld In ronewlng the contr.oct under the ...me 

~~ 
Signed: Authorized Compmy Representative 

( ) fareat lakes Truck .. Trailer is not int.erested In renewing the contrad:. 
x,~__~____________________________ 
Signed: AuthGlI"iad Company Representative 

Date:~_____________________ 

Thank you, 
So1muel P. lamerato. CPfP 
Fleet Maintenance 
City of Troy 



t"AI.:II::. tJ L /til 
l.lANUt"<UU IJUIJl.l1::. 

"::jL~qt:l"::jq'::1t:l';! pt\!3E 01/01 
tlL/~i{Ltl!~ tltl;LL GANDR\..JD 1X.liJGE

9204694969el/29/201B 13: 3.7 _ ...... "" "f 'r'O~ 'a46SSfl'ica, 1"" .T. 

stJ() W. fl~ 8~ 


TI'~ JAr "I80H'" 

(tf!!) S2.4r-3300 


IT _:s= -; !, iiP""E = 2;; ::: ,"l! :;;"l!ll il ;g;z 

January 28, 2010 

ATTN: Chris Siaek 
Gandrud Dodge 
919 Auto Plaza Dr 
Green Bay WI 54302 

Dear Cl'trfs: 

On Mi3y 10, 2IJfJ7, the Crty f:1I'troy entered {flto contmct 12010011508 with Gandf1Jd Oodg~ to provide 
thr...yeors requirements of al.ltol'l'tOblle, light truck, fal'1"ll ~nd COf'tftl"\Jd:ion equrpmel1t replaC!@l'I'Ient parts. 
This contract contained an option to f'fO!MW for three addrtlonai years under tilE! same t2rms and 
condltlens as the orIgin=tl.controd. . 

PI$a$~ (-ax this letter beck by Febnsrv 5, 2010 indialting if GClndrud Dodge wrmes to renew this contrac::t 
until May 31, 2013. OUr rax number is (248) 680-72.81. A ~uest: by City staff to determine the 
suet::/lssrul bfdder's interest In renewing the contract in 00 way obligates the Oly. The aptian CMtnot be 
exetci$l!ld wItTiOut noy City CtlI.mCll apptOVal and ill blanket purd1* order issued. 

IF you t12lVe ~ny questtons, ptease ClJII me at' (248) 'S80-nee. 

ihankyou, 
samuel P. i.amerato. O'FP 
\=\aet MQlntenance 
Cltyof~ 

.. ; 

http:680-72.81
http:IJUIJl.l1


J""n 28 10 01:0~p Cit.\::! Of' Tro~ 	 248B807281 p. l 

500 w:. 8'18~ 
MI1D091 ... TOdAy 
524,3300 Ci~o/

Troy 

January :za, 2010 

ATTN: 	 Roger Detrick 
Lacal Equipment Inc. 
901 West Pike St 
Jackson Center OM 45334 

Dear Roger: 

On May 10, 2007, the City of Troy entered into contract: #2010011608 with Lacal Equipment Inc. to 
provide three-years requirements of automobile, light truck, farm and constrvctlon equIpment 
replacement parts. This contrad: contained an option to renew for three additional year.; under the same 
terrmii and conditions as the oriqinar contract, 

PleasQ fax this letter back: by February 5, 2010 indicating if Lacal Equipment Inc. wishes to renew this 
contract until May 31, 2013. Our fax number 15 (248) 680-7281. A request by aty staff to determine the 
successful bidder's interest In renewing the contract in no way obligates the Oty. The option cannot be 
exercised without Troy City Council approval and a blanket purd'lase order Issued. 

If you have any questions, please cal! me at (248) Gao-nBB. 

~Jj~KQNE: 

(vJ 	 lacal Equipment Inc. is interested in renewing the contract under the same 
terms and c;ondltions. 

; Abthorized Company Representative 

x ____ ..,..~~~~____~----~~-
Signed: Authorized Company Representative 

Date: ______________________ 

ThMk you, 
Samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP 
Fleet Maintenance 
City of Troy 



..Jnll-I.-::J-I.-U1V\' ,,& 1 IV~-IV UUII n 	 \' '1"1' "It I Ul.6 I LUU, I. UV I (UU I 

Rx Date/Time JAN-21-101011HU) 13:07 2486801281 	 II, 001 

p. 1Jan eB 10 01107p Ci~~ Of TrQ~ 	 2488807211 

SOO W. B'1IJUJIU' 
Ml4IJ084 ... T~ 
Sl.f..!J!J(J() 

Jalnuwy 28, 2010 

ATTN: Oonmd P. Knechtel 
Alert EmerQencv Equipment Group 
PO Bo.K 470 
Portland MI 48!:J7S 

Dear Donald; 

On May 10,2001, the Ct"j ofTro; entered Into contract #2070011708 with A!ert e~er.c; Equipment 
Group to provide three-Yallrs ~qulrements of lIummobile, light tI'Udc, t'IIIrm and construct'lon equipment 
replacement parts. This contract rontafned an option 00 renew for three additiOn_' veers under the same 
tErms Ind tOndltfOns liS the orlglNlI oontract. 

Please fax thIs letter beCk bV February 5, 20U) Indicating If Alert Emergency equipment GroLiP wfshes to 
renew this contl1ltt until May 31, 2013. Our fa number Is (218) 680-7281. A request by Oly staff to 
determine the 5ua:essfu1 bfdda"s I~ In renewi'lg the mntrad: In no Willy obligates the City. The' 
option cannot be exerd5ed without Troy CAtv COuncil apprwal and iI blanket purc:hMf! order Issued. 

If you haw any qUesti0l15, plene call me It (248) 680-7288. 

CHECICONgi 

( ) 	 Alert Emergencv EqulplnMt Graup 1111 Interelted in nlM'Wlna the contrad under the 
Ame terms .nd conditlonlll. 

No without a pricing inerease 

Datil: 0] 29 J 0 

Thlrlk you, 
Samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP 
Fleet MaIntenance 
CIty of Troy 

.. 




1,,_VIJt-"lJH'f" 11"'_ V_,l£..l vr ...... 

____ """",,,,"_J.r 16164597+63 p.2 

.s 'Jf) W- tti:1 ~ 
; M.l4l101J4 _T~ 
( S2tf.J3b11 

_$_... _ ;t;;.~~~__~~~~GM~~~~~~~~__ 

IITTW: loftn V'IOjd~ 
~nk..l"," 
1'1866 Hubbl.Itd 
UvOFlia ,..1 48150 

On Mtly 10, ZOO?, Ute ~ d Trw ~ into cowaa #2010010008 with RowmJInk" Inc. ID proylde 
~f.'l8IS ~lJln!mtlllt'G of ~.lIght~ fllnnand ~1Jdjon~t~I: perts. 
This contr;flCt ariarMd./in ~ \tI ~ fcIf tm'ee add1t'fonil1 ~ UI"Idef tI:'Ie SiIII'/'Ie torfIS end' 
C'01ldltlom illS tilt onolftill ocmtract. 

Please fa tt'fi:l; 1c:'\Tm' bIiIIc:K by Fdm.IIIJJ,' s.. 2010 ~ if -""'d11af4 Int. ~ liD renew ~IN ClDfItmcl 
until May :U, lOl3. Our r. fWIIIIIbet b (~48) 68(J-718:t. A. ~r by o,.sr.un 'CD ~ne ltie 
~ biddet"S mrel1!St in Mne'Wl'ng ~ (lI)IIIrjJ(t 1ft I'IC wall obl~"" CIly_ The opOon QlfIIl'ICt be 
~ wiUlout TI'U'Y Qy Council ~nil btankit ~ f:IfdI:r 1sS1Jfi!d. 

1f you he1;eiJIn'V <l~ pfaSe cal me .. (241.1) G81).nee. 

( ) Q.!!EQ( _1= 

~__.•in._..,In ,.allllllfl1tp thIeall'lb'lllld Md__Rme 

tIIiiIIrmIIanfll ~Ofti. 

~ __"'~~n"" 
~. \-'1-8-(0 

Ttlltnk you, 

Samuet P. Le«t~ C;PFf:I 

Al!et~~ 


0Ir ti'Troy 

24 =,.... .:::z:::::::t 

http:o,.sr.un


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final July 23, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a one-year 
membership renewal for fiscal year 2007 – 2008 with Macomb Community College for 
continued participation in the Criminal Justice Training Center Consortium at an estimated 
annual fee of $21,280.00, and approval is hereby GRANTED to use all other training services 
provided through the Consortium membership on a reduced cost basis.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Troy Daze Tents                    
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish and erect tents for 
the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidders meeting specifications, Dial Tent & Awning Co., 
Inc. of Saginaw, MI, and Ace Canvas & Tent of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of 
$11,176.00 and $5,340.00 respectfully, at unit prices contained in the price quote submitted 
July 2, 2007 and bid tabulation opened April 16, 2007, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-6 

Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay                    
 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-6, Northfield Parkway 
Mill and Overlay to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI  48084, at 
an estimated total cost of $557,674.26; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting  

Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment 
Replacement Parts                    

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to purchase three year (3) 
requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts 
with an option to renew for three (3) additional years to the lowest bidders meeting 
specifications under Proposal A as follows, at prices and discounts contained in the bid 
tabulation opened May 10, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting, with a contract expiration of May 31, 2010: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final July 23, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Primary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wausau Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Western Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 
Seals – National Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Rowerdink Incorporated, Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Primary 69% off List Price 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Primary 69% off List Price 
Chevrolet/GM  Primary 50% to 67% off List Price 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Secondary 69% off List Price 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Soundoff Signal  Primary  40% off Catalog  
Truck Lite Secondary  30% off Catalog  
Wires & Terminals  Secondary  30% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Batteries  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
GMC Medium Duty Truck Primary  31% to 50% off List Price 
Wiper Blades – Anco Primary 50% to 68% off Catalog  
Chevrolet/GM  Secondary 50% off List Price  

 
Motor City Truck Sales, Livonia, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Caterpillar Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Cummins  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Detroit Diesel  Primary  Cost Plus 15%  
Seals – National  Primary  Cost Plus 25% 
Sterling Heavy Duty  Primary  Wholesale 
Transmissions – Allison  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Truck Lite  Primary  Wholesale 
Ford Secondary Cost Plus 25% 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Secondary Cost Plus 25% 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final July 23, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Start All Enterprises, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Batteries  Secondary 10% off Catalog  

 
Lubrication Specialists & Company / Amsoil, Superior, Wisconsin 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Synthetic Oil  Primary  10% off Catalog  

 
Great Lakes Truck & Trailer, Westland, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Primary  Jobber (less) 5% 
Seals – National  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wiper Blades – Anco  Secondary Jobber (less) 5% 

 
Elder Ford, Troy, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Ford Primary  34% off List Price  

 
Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Bosch Rexroth Primary  Vendor Price Sheet 
Kennametal Blades Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet, Green Bay, Wisconsin 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Dodge Primary  25% off List Price 
GMC Med. Duty Truck  Secondary  30% off List Price 

 
Lacal Equipment Inc., Jackson Center, Ohio  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Tymco Sweeper Primary  29% off Tymco Price Sheet 

 
Alert Emergency Equipment Group, Portland, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Go Rhino  Primary  15% off List Price 
Soundoff Signal  Secondary  20% off List Price  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final July 23, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

Old Dominion Brush, Richmond, Virginia  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Tymco Sweeper Secondary  20% off Price Sheet 

 
Electrical Terminal Service, Royal Oak, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Wires & Terminals  Primary  Jobber (less) 25% 

 
John R Spring Service Inc., Troy, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Springs  Primary  Cost Plus 15% 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts for the 
following product lines to the lowest bidders meeting specifications under Proposal B as 
follows, at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened May 10, 2007, to 
commence May 7, 2008 and expire May 31, 2010: 
 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Filters    Primary Jobber (less) 50% 
Weatherhead  Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
GE Bulbs  Primary  30% off Catalog  
Weatherhead  Primary  20% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Filters   Secondary Cost Plus 10% 
GE Bulbs  Secondary  Cost Plus 10% 

 
Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Root Plow Parts Primary Manufacturer List Price 
Swenson Spreader Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final July 23, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., Northville, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Vactor  Primary  10% off List Price  

E-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #34 and #35 – Sidwell #88-20-02-
427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023 – Joseph N. Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice 
Haddad  

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Joseph N. Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice Haddad, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023, and the City of Troy, for 
the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard in the amount of $19,700.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Approval of Purchase Agreements and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permits, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #39 and #40 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-074 
and #88-20-02-279-071 – Michael J. and Arlene Healy  

 
Resolution #2007-07-222-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreements to Purchase Realty 
for Public Purposes between Michael J. and Arlene Healy, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amounts of 
$19,500.00 and $19,600.00, respectively, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete these purchases according 
to the agreements; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permits in the amounts of $300.00 each from Michael J. and Arlene 
Healy, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071; and 
 



Page 1 of 6 

 

 
July 18, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

   
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award  – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications- 

Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Background 
 On May 10, 2007, bids were received and opened for IBT-COT 07-14 to provide three-year 

requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts with 
an option to renew for three additional years for the City’s Fleet Division.  

 One Hundred Seventy-Three (173) vendors were notified via the MITN system with twenty (20) 
bidders responding, including one vendor who did not meet bid specifications for not submitting 
their pricing on the City of Troy bid proposal pages as specified.  In addition, one statement of no 
bid was received. 

  The bid document stated that in order to be considered for an award, a category group must be 
completed in full.  Several vendors did not meet this specification for the following product lines. 

 
VENDOR PRODUCT LINE 
  Alert Emergency Equipment Group   Back Rack System  
  Rowerdink Incorporated   GMC Medium Duty Truck Parts 
   Napa Filters 
  Motor City Truck Sales   Napa Filters 
   Synthetic Oil 
  John R Spring Service Inc   Western Plow Parts 
  Amsoil/Lubrication Specialist & Co   Chevrolet/GMC Parts 
 

 In addition, Kirks Automotive bid a brake chamber that did not meet specifications for the heavy-
duty brake parts product line.   

 A primary and secondary vendor was chosen for certain product lines in order to provide the City 
with optimal replacement parts coverage.   

 No bids were received for the following product lines:  Badger parts, Case parts, E.J. Ward parts, 
Federal Signal parts, Galion parts, JCB parts, John Deere parts, Monroe plow parts and New 
Holland parts. The product lines listed above will be re-bid at a later date. 

 The product lines listed below are used daily to service, repair and maintain over five hundred 
(500) pieces of City owned equipment.  

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 6 

July 18, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Financial Considerations 
 The department has funds budgeted in the Fleet Equipment/Operation and Maintenance account 

#550.7781.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-14, to furnish three-year requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and 

construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for an additional three years 
was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of 
interest in supplying replacement parts for the City.    

 
Policy Considerations 
 The Fleet Division on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive vehicle\equipment service, 

repair and maintenance uses the replacement parts. (Goal V) 
 The purchase of these replacement parts would assure the health and welfare of citizens and 

businesses and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding automobile, light truck, farm, and construction 

equipment replacement parts to the following low bidders meeting specifications under Proposal 
A, at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened May 10, 2007.  

 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Primary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wausau Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Western Plow Parts   Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 
Seals – National Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Rowerdink Incorporated, Grand Rapids, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Brakes:  A/C Delco  Primary 69% off List Price 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Primary 69% off List Price 
Chevrolet/GM  Primary 50% to 67% off List Price 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Secondary 69% off List Price 

 
 
July 18, 2007 



Page 3 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 

Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Soundoff Signal  Primary  40% off Catalog  
Truck Lite Secondary  30% off Catalog  
Wires & Terminals  Secondary  30% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Batteries  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
GMC Medium Duty Truck Primary  31% to 50% off List Price 
Wiper Blades – Anco Primary 50% to 68% off Catalog  
Chevrolet/GM   Secondary 50% off List Price  

 
Motor City Truck Sales, Livonia, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Caterpillar Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Cummins  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Detroit Diesel  Primary  Cost Plus 15%  
Seals – National  Primary  Cost Plus 25% 
Sterling Heavy Duty  Primary  Wholesale 
Transmissions – Allison  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Truck Lite  Primary  Wholesale 
Ford Secondary Cost Plus 25% 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Secondary Cost Plus 25% 

 
Start All Enterprises, Detroit, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Batteries  Secondary 10% off Catalog  
 
Lubrication Specialists & Company / Amsoil, Superior, Wisconsin 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Synthetic Oil  Primary  10% off Catalog  
July 18, 2007 



Page 4 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Great Lakes Truck & Trailer, Westland, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Heavy Duty Brake Parts Primary  Jobber (less) 5% 
Seals – National  Secondary  Jobber (less)10% 
Wiper Blades – Anco  Secondary Jobber (less) 5% 

 
Elder Ford, Troy, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Ford Primary  34% off List Price  
 

Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Bosch Rexroth Primary  Vendor Price Sheet 
Kennametal Blades Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet, Green Bay, Wisconsin 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Dodge Primary  25% off List Price 
GMC Medium Duty Truck  Secondary  30% off List Price 

 
Lacal Equipment Inc., Jackson Center, Ohio  

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Tymco Sweeper Primary  29% off Tymco Price Sheet 
 

Alert Emergency Equipment Group, Portland, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Go Rhino  Primary  15% off List Price 
Soundoff Signal  Secondary  20% off List Price  

 
 
 
July 18, 2007 



Page 5 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 

 
Old Dominion Brush, Richmond, Virginia  

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Tymco Sweeper Secondary  20% off Price Sheet 
 

Electrical Terminal Service, Royal Oak, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Wires & Terminals  Primary  Jobber (less) 25% 
 

John R Spring Service Inc., Troy, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Springs  Primary  Cost Plus 15% 
 
Options - continued   
 In addition, City management recommends awarding automobile, light truck, farm, and 

construction equipment replacement parts to the following low bidders meeting specifications 
under Proposal B, at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation for the following product 
lines to commence May 7, 2008, when the current contracts expire.      

 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Filters     Primary Jobber (less) 50% 
Weatherhead    Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 

 
 

Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

GE Bulbs  Primary  30% off Catalog  
Weatherhead  Primary  20% off Catalog  

 
 
 
 
 
July 18, 2007 



Page 6 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Filters   Secondary Cost Plus 10% 
GE Bulbs  Secondary  Cost Plus 10% 

 
 

Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Root Plow Parts Primary Manufacturer List Price 
Swenson Spreader Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
 

Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., Northville, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Vactor  Primary  10% off List Price  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPL   G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Auto Parts 07-07.doc 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet Pad #MKD459FM 101.16$     60.70$       40% Brake #17D1058C GM19111860 $93.40 51.37$       45% Front Rotor #145326 $199.38 119.63$       40%

Pad #473 103.36$     62.02$       40% Brake #17D1040AC GM19137362 $78.42 43.13$       45% Rear Rotor #145353 $78.78 47.27$         40%
Shoe #452 211.60$     126.96$     40% Brake #17D931C GM89050848 $74.00 40.70$       45%
Hardware #H5987 28.36$       17.02$       40% Brake #17D932C GM89050849 $74.00 40.70$       45%

$266.69 $175.90 $166.90

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

John R Spring
Service, Inc. Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKES: A/C Delco BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Elder Ford

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

/Amsoil Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Rowerdink Inc 
Pad #MKD459FM Delco 1704 79.65$       24.69$       69% Brake #17D1058C 100.08$     31.02$       69% Front Rotor #145326 Motorcraft B 121.08$     37.53$         69%
Pad #473 Delco 1747 65.79$       20.39$       69% Brake #17D1040AC 84.00$       26.04$       69% Rear Rotor #145353 Motorcraft B 102.93$     31.91$         69%
Shoe #452 Delco 1745 154.71$     47.96$       69% Brake #17D931C 90.63$       28.10$       69%
Hardware #H5987 Motorcraft 37.69$       11.68$       69% Brake #17D932C 88.65$       27.48$       69% Motorcraft

List
A/C Delco 5/1/07 A/C Delco Dtd: 4/1/07
Motorcraft 4/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07

$104.73 $112.64 $69.44

Shults Equipment 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Old Dominion Broom 

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Interstate Batteries 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Terminal Supply Co. 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Electrical Terminal
Service Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco BRAKE ROTORS: Bendix



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Start All Enterprises 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Kirks Automotive Inc
Pad #MKD459FM 7260M 19.39$       17.45$       10% Brake #17D1058C Napa TS7965 29.12$       26.21$       10% Front Rotor #145326 Napa 880110 59.57$       53.61$         10%
Pad #473 473 Napa 19.12$       17.21$       10% Brake #17D1040AC Napa TS7835M 21.84$       19.66$       10% Rear Rotor #145353 Napa 880129 50.64$       45.58$         10%
Shoe #452 452 Napa 34.43$       30.99$       10% Brake #17D931C Napa AE7834M 60.20$       54.18$       10%
Hardware #H5987 83366 7.00$         6.30$         10% Brake #17D932C Napa AE7835M 58.89$       53.00$       10% Jobber-10%

Jobber-10% Jobber-10% Napa UP&TS
Napa UP&TS Napa UP&TS Dtd: 5/1/07
Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07

$71.95 $153.05 $99.19

Coach & Motor Co
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C 93.40$       46.70$       50% Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC 78.42$       39.21$       50% Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C 74.00$       37.00$       50%
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C 74.00$       37.00$       50%

GM Price 
Guide

Apr-07

$0.00 $159.91 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Lacal Inc. 

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Motor City Trucks 
Pad #MKD459FM $43.96 Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326 $55.30

Pad #473 $25.01 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353 $62.27

Shoe #452 $94.19 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$163.16 $0.00 $117.57

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer Pad #MKD459FM Wagner $41.04 blank Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Wagner $105.78 blank Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C

Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$146.82 $0.00 $0.00

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor ATTEST: NO BIDS: 
Secondary Vendor Debra Painter D & D Auto Parts, Inc

Kathy Foster
Sam Lamerato DMS:  
Julie Hamilton Sterling Heights Dodge (Did not submit proposal using the bid proposal page) 

Susan Leirstein, 
G:\ITB-COT 07-14 Auto Parts Purchasing Director

PR
O

PO
SA

L 
A

BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40 $828.00 $828.00 10%
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30 $1,229.00 $1,229.00 10%
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140 $1,746.00 $1,746.00 10%

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55 $1,056.00 $1,056.00 10%

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same Dtd: 5/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $4,859.00

Battery #65-875 AC Delco AC 85.48$       47.87$       44% Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 AC Delco AC 66.95$       37.49$       44% Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 AC Delco AC 108.81$     60.93$       44% Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140
Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

AC Delco
List
Dtd: 4/1/07

$146.29 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg  8 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 v65-6 $70.95 $54.63 Blank Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 V75-7 $54.95 $42.31 Blank Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 V31P-7G $80.95 $62.33 Blank Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140
Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

Power Volt
V3
Dtd: 5/7/07

$159.27 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140
Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 9 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 65-75 $52.67 $47.40 10% Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 75-65 $43.34 $39.01 10% Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 31A-100 $61.87 $55.68 10% Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55
Power source
CEN Auto Marine
Dtd: 5/6/07

$142.09 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Napa 7565 66.95$       60.26$       10% Seals #370003A Napa 47691 35.03$     31.53$       10% Oil SAE 15W40 75510 952.60$      857.34$        10%
Battery #75-690 Napa 7575 58.95$       53.06$       10% Seals #4739 Napa 19784 1.75$       1.58$         10% Oil 5W30 75520 952.60$      857.34$        10%
Battery #31A-1000 Napa 7238 72.95$       65.66$       10% Seals # 370014A Napa 31266 20.34$     18.31$       10% Gear Lube 75W140 982 3,289.00$   2,960.10$     10%

Seals #413470 Napa 21352 7.25$       6.53$         10% Auto Trans Fluid ATF55 360 1,053.80$   948.42$        10%
Jobber-10% Jobber-10% Jobber-10%
Napa Bat Napa NOS Napa NOS VO
Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07

$178.97 $57.93 $5,623.20

Battery #65-875 65-60 45.73$       10% Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 ACD75-60 33.68$       10% Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 ACD31TS 53.32$       10% Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55
C-Plus 10%

$132.73 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg  10 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Motorcraft $67.58 Seals #370003A $36.55 $22.71 Oil SAE 15W40 Rotella DMS DMS DMS

Battery #75-690 Motorcraft $56.00 Seals #4739 $1.98 $1.29 Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Motorcraft $69.50 Seals # 370014A $22.90 $14.85 Gear Lube 75W140 DMS DMS DMS

Seals #413470 $8.25 $5.41 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55 Motorcraft DMS DMS DMS

C-Plus 25%

$193.08 $44.26 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A $30.12 Blank Oil SAE 15W40

Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 $1.62 Blank Oil 5W30

Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A $18.89 Blank Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 $6.80 Blank Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

Jobber 
less 10%

$0.00 $57.43 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 11 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509 DMS DMS DMS
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 12 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 Wix 57740X $72.55 $72.55 Blank GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same

$0.00 $72.55 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 13 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 14 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Napa 60205 8.49$          7.64$         10% Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Napa 60022 8.01$          7.21$         10% Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22 Napa 60225 13.52$        12.17$       10%
Blades #30-18 Napa 60185 6.58$          5.92$         10%

Jobber-10%
OL Napa WIP

Dtd: 5/1/07

$32.94 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 18.76$        8.16$         43% Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 14.70$        5.36$         36% Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22 18.76$        8.16$         43%
Blades #30-18 12.64$        5.46$         43%

minus 50-68% 
AN103 
April of 2005

$27.14 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 15 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22

Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 $14.19 $8.87 Trans Filter #29540494 $100.00 $60.15 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 $9.74 $6.50 Filter suction #29544785 $46.30 $33.41 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22 $14.16 $8.87

Blades #30-18 $10.32 $6.44 C-plus 10%

C-plus 25%

$30.68 $93.56 $0.00

Blades #30-20 $7.94 Blank Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509

Blades #31-22 $6.22 Blank Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002

Blades #30-22 $7.94 Blank
Blades #30-18 $5.35 Blank

Jobber 
less 5%

$27.45 $0.00 $0.00

BACK RACK SYSTEMWIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 16 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BADGER BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 17 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness 82.00$     82.00$       0% Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly 10.00$     10.00$       0% Brake chamber #MG3534051

2006 price
vendor 
sheet

$0.00 $92.00 $0.00

BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTSBADGER



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 18 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BADGER BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 19 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624 DMS DMS DMS DMs
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051 DMS DMS DMS DMS

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BADGER BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 20 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624

Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624 Bendix $338.62 $204.25
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051 MGM $188.31 $84.75

C-plus 25%

$0.00 $0.00 $289.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624 PRB Cor-$75.00 $78.40 Blank
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051 MG3534051 $95.73 Blank

Jobber
less 5%

$0.00 $0.00 $174.13

BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTSBADGER



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 21 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 $39.58 25.73$          35%
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335 $530.12 344.58$        35%

$0.00 $0.00 $370.31

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CASE CATERPILLAR CHEVROLET/GM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 22 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 40.48$       20.24$          50%
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335 Crosses to Fuel S 595.33$     196.46$        67%

MU153
AC Delco
List
Dtd: 4/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $216.70

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CHEVROLET/GMCASE CATERPILLAR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 23 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CASE CATERPILLAR CHEVROLET/GM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 24 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 39.58$       19.79$          50%
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335 530.12$     265.06$        50%

$0.00 $0.00 $284.85

CATERPILLAR CHEVROLET/GMCASE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 25 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 $197.85 $147.64 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 $135.66 $84.85 Water pump #25314335

c-plus 10%

$0.00 $232.49 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576

Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CHEVROLET/GMCASE CATERPILLAR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 26 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC $100.00 75.00$       25%
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210 $113.00 84.75$       25%

$0.00 $0.00 $159.75

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL DODGE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 27 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL DODGE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 28 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DETROIT DIESEL DODGECUMMINS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 29 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DODGECUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 30 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 5080560 $34.77 $24.83 Neutral safety switch $54.30 $40.70 Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 $141.03 $92.17 Gasket #8922786 $161.47 $114.61 EPC solenoid #4617210

C-plus 10% C-Plus 15%

$117.00 $155.31 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC

Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL DODGE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 31 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 32 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose $132.58 $87.50 34%
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub $149.45 $98.64 34%

Sheet 
Attached

Dtd: 5/9/07

$0.00 $0.00 $186.14

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 33 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FORDE.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 34 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 35 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose $130.12 $97.59
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub $149.45 $111.68

C-plus 25%

$0.00 $0.00 $209.27

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose

GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 36 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor $234.74 164.32$     30% Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 $429.21 300.45$     30% Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $464.77 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper $180.00 $180.00 15%
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper $184.70 $184.70 15%

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same Dtd: 5/8/07

$0.00 $0.00 $364.70

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GALION PARTS GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 37 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor DMS DMS DMS Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINOGALION PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 38 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GALION PARTS GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 39 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor 234.74$     117.37$     50% Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 429.21$     296.15$     31% Wrap around pushbumper

GM Price
Guide
April of 2007

$0.00 $413.52 $0.00

GALION PARTS GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 40 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper

Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINOGALION PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 41 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER KENNAMETAL BLADES



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 42 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard 44.00$       
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 253.46$     

Manuf. List
Price

$0.00 $0.00 $297.46

KENNAMETAL BLADESJCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 43 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER KENNAMETAL BLADES



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 44 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard V45 $229.50 $137.70 40%

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 78551WPTSB-P $434.40 $260.64 40%

7/8"x 5"x5' carbide insert

Stated

Dtd: 5/8/07

$0.00 $0.00 $398.34

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

KENNAMETAL BLADESJCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 45 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard

Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

KENNAMETAL BLADESJCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 46 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar $3,267.00 $2,613.60 20%
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light $489.00 $391.20 20%

Dtd: 5/8/07

$0.00 $0.00 $3,004.80

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNAL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 47 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNAL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 48 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar 2,767.00$      1,660.20$     40%
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light 592.00$         355.20$        40%

Catalog
Dtd: 5/7/07

$0.00 $0.00 $2,015.40

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNALMONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 49 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNAL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 50 of 80 

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar

Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNALMONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 51 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 52 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 53 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub $95.00 $76.00 20% Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve $105.00 $84.00 20% Cylinder pin

OBD Tymco
Dtd: 1/2/07

$0.00 $160.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WAUSAU PLOW PARTSSTERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 54 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder 374.20$     355.49$     5%
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin 40.65$       38.62$       5%

Jobber - 5%
Wausau 
Dtd: 1/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $394.11

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 55 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub $94.02 $66.75 29% Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve $81.74 $58.04 29% Cylinder pin

Lacal /  
Tymco Catalog

April of 2007

$0.00 $124.79 $0.00

Temperature guage $46.80 $32.16 Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler $1,336.83 $977.31 Water Valve Cylinder pin

Wholesale 

$1,009.47 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder

Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 56 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand DMS DMS DMS Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front 43-698 C-Plus 15%
Plow shoe DMS DMS DMS 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear 50-301 C-Plus 15%

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge (Triangle Dist Net)
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam Hendrickson C-Plus 15%

      Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: May '06

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

WESTERN PLOW PARTS WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 57 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR WESTERN PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 58 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge B-239-10 0.18$         0.13$         30% Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector STC-B 0.57$         0.40$         30% Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge 14-7N-100 4.01$         2.81$         30%
Duplex primary wire 14-3D-100 0.68$         0.47$         30% Hendrickson Walking Beam

Catalog       Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: 5/7/07

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $3.81

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge BN-R10 0.046$       Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector BS-B 0.180$       Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge TC-7P 0.750$       
Duplex primary wire 14-3D-C 0.312$       Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: 5/9/07
Jobber Radiators (new & recored)
less 25%

$0.00 $1.29

WESTERN PLOW PARTS WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 59 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam
      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand 12.90$     12.26$       5% Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge 721309 0.23$         0.22$         5% Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 29.77$     28.28$       5% 16-14 gauge butt-type connector 727616 2.10$         2.00$         5% Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge 735654 5.62$         5.34$         5%
Jobber - 5% Duplex primary wire 738453 0.90$         0.86$         5% Hendrickson Walking Beam
Napa PPW       Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: 5/1/07 Jobber - 5%

Napa BEL Radiators (new & recored)
Dtd: 5/1/07

$40.54 $8.41

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR WESTERN PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 60 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front

Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge

Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR WESTERN PLOW PARTS WIRES & TERMINALS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 61 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

GE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE NAPA



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 62 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134 Amsoil EAA $23.05 $23.05 10%

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302 Amsoil EAA $23.05 $23.05 10%

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042 Amsoil EAO $10.45 $10.45 10%

Filter #1085 Amsoil EAO $10.45 $10.45 10%

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096 Catalog Price and Net Price Listed asDtd: 5/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $67.00

AC Delco Dtd:

Motorcraft Dtd

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Filter #1085 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #3595 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #4071 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #1-8096 DMS DMS DMS DMS

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

NAPAGE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 63 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 6.71$            4.70$            30% Lights #TL-102 33.66$            23.56$          30% Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 1156L 0.31$            0.22$            30% Lights #TL-60204 7.06$              4.94$            30% Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 1157L 0.24$            0.17$            30% Lights #TL620W 18.56$            12.99$          30% Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 H-6054 5.50$            3.85$            30% Lights #TL15200R 2.41$              1.69$            30% Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Catalog Catalog Filter #3595
Dtd: 5/7/07 Dtd: 5/7/07 Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$8.93 $43.18 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 6.71$            Blank Lights #TL-102 29.75$          Blank Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 CEC 0.24$            Blank Lights #TL-60204 6.25$            Blank Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 CEC 0.18$            Blank Lights #TL620W ADV/LTZ-620W 5.70$            Blank Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 6.30$            Blank Lights #TL15200R ADV/LTZ-1500R 5.25$            Blank Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Dtd: 5/9/07 Dtd: 5/9/07 Filter #3595

Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$13.43 $46.95 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

GE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE NAPA



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 64 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042
Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

5/1/2007 Dtd: 5/1/07
Jobber- 50%; Napa FIL

Bulb # 7400 14.81$          13.33$          10% Lights #TL-102 29.70$            26.73$          10% Filter #6134 7.72$       3.86$         50%
Bulb #1156 0.65$            0.59$            10% Lights #TL-60204 5.92$              5.33$            10% Filter #2843 12.71$     6.36$         50%
Bulb #1157 0.34$            0.31$            10% Lights #TL620W 20.91$            18.82$          10% Filter #6302 9.98$       4.99$         50%
Bulb #H6054 8.85$            7.97$            10% Lights #TL15200R 3.33$              3.00$            10% Filter #1042 5.88$       2.94$         50%

Filter #1085 5.34$       2.67$         50%
Jobber - 10% Jobber-10% Filter #3595 9.76$       4.88$         50%
Napa LMP NAPA LIT Filter #4071 11.54$     5.77$         50%
Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07 Filter #1-8096 30.57$     15.29$       50%

$22.19 $53.87 $46.75
C plus 10%

AC Delco Media 5/07
Bulb # 7400 GWL7400 5.83$            Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134 A29C 9.90$       3.82$         
Bulb #1156 GWL1156 0.39$            Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843 Wix 42843 10.17$       
Bulb #1157 GWL1157 0.21$            Lights #TL620W Filter #6302 A1208C 9.55$       4.94$         
Bulb #H6054 GWLH6054 6.42$            Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042 PF46F 4.19$       2.80$         

Filter #1085 PF13F 5.00$       2.78$         
C plus 10% Filter #3595 GF832 12.84$     6.25$         

Filter #4071 WF111 6.84$         
Filter #1-8096 TF304 39.50$     13.32$       

$12.85 $0.00 $50.92   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

NAPAGE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 65 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 $10.98 $6.86 Lights #TL-102 $29.34 $18.35 Filter #6134 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Bulb #1156 $0.60 $0.39 Lights #TL-60204 $6.67 $5.05 Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 $0.41 $0.26 Lights #TL620W $20.69 $12.95 Filter #6302 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Bulb #H6054 $10.08 $6.50 Lights #TL15200R $3.71 $1.32 Filter #1042 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Wholesale Filter #1085 DMS DMS DMS DMS

C-plus 25% Filter #3595 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Filter #4071 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Filter #1-8096

$14.01 $37.67 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 $9.52 Blank Lights #TL-102 $31.54 Blank Filter #6134

Bulb #1156 $0.62 Blank Lights #TL-60204 $5.32 Blank Filter #2843

Bulb #1157 $0.34 Blank Lights #TL620W $17.39 Blank Filter #6302

Bulb #H6054 $9.64 Blank Lights #TL15200R $1.70 Blank Filter #1042

Filter #1085

Filter #3595

Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096

$20.12 $55.95 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
PR

O
PO

SA
L 

B

GE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE NAPA



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 66 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing 30.77$          27.69$          10%
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder 272.50$        245.25$        10%

Vactor Dlr
Price List
Dtd: 1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $272.94

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 67 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

d: 5/1/07

d 4/1/07

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever 5.50$          5.50$           0% Auger insert 19.00$        19.00$         0% Bearing

Caster inner barrel 62.50$        62.50$         0% Bearing 39.00$        39.00$         0% Air Cylinder

Roots Part Swenson
PriceList PriceList

2/9/2007 4/16/2007

$68.00 $58.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 68 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SWENSON SPREADER VACTORROOT PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 69 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 70 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing

Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 71 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting Yes 48hours 24hours Blank Net 10 Min 12 mnth; 12,000 miles
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Blank Blank Blank $20.00 Net 30 Days 1 yr parts & labor - non led;
Hydraulic Fitting 5 yr parts on led products
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting Yes Blank Blank Blank Net 30 Blank
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting Page 2 Hours Blank $0.00 30 days 1 year

Hydrualic Hose Not

Incld

in Bid

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 72 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting

Hydrualic Hose Yes 1-2 Hours 1 Hour $0.00 Net 30 12 months or 12,000 miles

$0.00

Blank 1-24 hours 1-24 hours $.15 per Net 30 All / based on Analysis 

Hydraulic Fitting pound or 

Hydrualic Hose less

$0.00

Yes 1 Hour 1 Hour Blank Net 30 Blank 

Hydraulic Fitting

Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting Yes See See See Net 10 1 year 

Hydrualic Hose Exceptions Exceptions Exceptions

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 73 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting Yes 48-72 Hrs 24 hours $25.00 Net 30 Materials & workmanship 

Hydrualic Hose Standard FOB

Shipping Richmond

VA for 

Next Day

Availability

$0.00

Yes 2 Hours Immediate $0.00 Net 30 Blank 

Hydraulic Fitting Invoice

Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting W-16U-116 7.35$             5.88$            20% Yes As requested As requested $0 Net 30 Days Is available 

Hydrualic Hose W-H24516 8.81$             7.05$            20%

Catalog
Dtd: 5/7/07

$12.93

Hydraulic Fitting No 24 Hours 12 Hours $0.00 Net 30 1 Year 
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 74 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting No 1,008 hours aft 672 hours $10,000.00 Net 30 Days None 

Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Yes 72 hours 24 hours $0.00 Net 30 Blank

Hydraulic Fitting

Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting 160116 12.99$           11.69$          10% Yes 24 Hours As required $25.00 Net 30 90 Days 
Hydrualic Hose 7.82$             7.04$            10%

Jobber -10%
Napa WH
Dtd: 5/1/07

$18.73

Hydraulic Fitting Yes 1 Hour 1 Hour $0.00 Net 10 Min 12 mnths; 12,000 miles
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 75 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting Not blank blank $25.00 Net 30 Days Same as OEM 

Hydrualic Hose Included

In Bid

$0.00

Not 3-5 hours 3-5 hours $0.00 blank 1 yr parts

Hydraulic Fitting Marked

Hydrualic Hose Need 

To 

Check

$0.00

No Same Day 0 $25.00 Net 30 Days Based on MFG Warranty

Hydraulic Fitting

Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 76 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 77 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Parts shipped commericially.  Will have freight chrgs prepaid and added Yes

Stock will ship same day as ordered depending on order

No freight for parts in area and usually shipped 7-10 days ARO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 78 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 79 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Prices firm for 60 days Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes



Opening Date -- 5/10/07

Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14

Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 80 of 80

Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

N/A Yes

Blank Yes

Bid prices are only for one year - May 31, 2008 Yes

Note:  Will not supply printed or electronic price sheets

Note:  Credit returns only within 7 days after purchase

Note:  Will supply new catalogs but not racks 



 
 

June 9, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael 

Mandell, President – The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc. 
  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Michael Mandell, President of The Polish Century Club 

Orphans Fund, Inc. seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose 
of obtaining a charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City 
Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
  City Council can approve. 
 

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-05





































































 



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
I-06











i:\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2010 agendas\cc report siu 051010.doc 

 

 

 
 
 May 10, 2010                     
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Keith A. Frye, Captain  
 
SUBJECT: Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department 

Special Investigations Unit 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Troy Police Department Special Investigations Unit (SIU) is a plainclothes investigative unit that 
has been operating with much success for many years.  It has evolved and become a cooperative 
concept with the addition of officers from Bloomfield Township and Auburn Hills.  In an effort to 
address potential liability concerns and outline the operational objectives of the unit, an Interlocal 
Agreement has been proposed. 
 
The attached Agreement will outline the purpose, responsibilities, and liability of each of the 
participating agencies.   
 
A resolution by the City Council exercising approval of the Agreement between the City of Troy, the 
City of Auburn Hills, and the Township of Bloomfield is required. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
There is no anticipated negative financial impact on the city.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality: __________________________  ___________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  Date 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 

 

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
I-07



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS UNIT 

            

 

    THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT entered into by and between the City of 

Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084 (“Troy”), the City of Auburn 

Hills, _______________________, Auburn Hills, Michigan  48___ (“Auburn Hills”) 

and the Charter Township of Bloomfield, ________________, Bloomfield, 

Michigan 48_____(“Bloomfield”) all located in the County of Oakland, State of 

Michigan, collectively referred to as the “Parties”,  or “Party” shall govern 

participation in the Troy Special Investigations Unit (hereafter “SIU”). 

RECITALS 

 Article VII, Section 28 of the Michigan Constitution of 1963 provides, in 

part, that two or more counties, townships, cities, villages, or districts, or any 

combination thereof, may, among other things, enter into contractual 

undertakings or agreements with one another for the joint administration of any 

of the functions or powers which each would have the power to perform 

separately; and, 

 The Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, being MCLA 124. 501, et. seq. 

provides that public agencies may exercise jointly  any power, privilege, or 

authority that each agency may exercise separately; and, 

  The Parties  have decided that it is in the best interests of such 

local governmental unit to participate in the Troy Police Department Special 

Investigations Unit, to exercise such additional powers, functions, duties, and 

responsibilities granted to the SIU and imposed upon it by this Agreement; and, 

 The Parties endeavor to realize and benefit from each other’s Police 

Department’s  accumulated expertise and recognize substantial savings in time, 

effort, and expenses to each individual governmental unit  by participating in  SIU; 

and, 



2 

 

 There is evidence that the nature of some criminal occurrences and the 

skill of some criminal perpetrators make apprehension through overt police 

tactics difficult, and such persons conducting illegal activities have a detrimental 

effect on the general welfare of the citizens of the Parties, 

 Therefore, in consideration of the foregoing, the Parties agree to this 

Interlocal Agreement as set forth below. 

AGREEMENT 

     Based upon the foregoing statements, the Parties agree to the following terms, 

conditions, representations, considerations and acknowledgements and mutually 

agree as follows: 

 1.  Auburn Hills and Bloomfield shall assign at least one (1) experienced officer 
to SIU. Auburn Hills and Bloomfield shall determine in their sole discretion how long 
each officer shall be assigned to SIU but at least one (1) officer shall always be 
assigned to participate in SIU. 

2.  Officers assigned to SIU shall be under the direct supervision of the 

Troy Police Department (“TPD”) SIU supervisor and shall adhere to both TPD’s 

policies and procedures and each Parties’ own policies and procedures while 

engaging in SIU activities.  TPD may request replacement of any officer who fails 

to adhere to the TPD policies and procedures.  If Auburn Hills or Bloomfield fail to 

replace the officer at TPD’s request that Party may be terminated from this 

Agreement. 

3.   The SIU will perform the activities and duties described below: 

a. Target and investigate those criminals who, by the nature of their 
criminal activity or their manner of operation, are able to avoid 
apprehension.  

 
b. Gather and provide intelligence information on individuals suspected of 

criminal involvement and/or locations believed to be the sites of criminal 

activity.   

c. Conduct covert or undercover investigations  and engage in other 

traditional methods of investigation that will result in effective 

prosecution before the courts of the United States and/or the State of 

Michigan.  



3 

 

             4.     TPD will support the activities of SIU officers by providing available 
office space, office supplies, investigative electronic equipment, access to SIU 
facilities and staff, and other support items.  

5.   No Party will be  charged any  costs for the administration or 
implementation of this Agreement.  

6.     No Party is obligated under this Agreement to use SIU resources 

exclusively and is expressly allowed to seek other similar venues on an as needed 

basis without violating this Agreement. 

7.   This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by all of the 

Parties.  Any Party may terminate its participation under this Agreement by giving 

thirty (30) days written notice to the Parties. TPD may terminate this Agreement 

if it is no longer in the best interest of Troy to continue the same or for any other 

reason. 

8.  Parties agree that at all times and for all purposes under the terms of 

this Agreement, there is no employer-employee relationship between the Parties. 

No liability, right or benefit associated with any employer-employee relationship 

shall be implied by the terms of this Agreement or services, activities or duties 

performed under this Agreement. Each Party shall be responsible for all benefits 

for its officers, including, but not limited to, wages, salaries, disability payments 

and/or benefits, pension benefits, worker’s compensation claims and/or benefits, 

including derivative benefits, dependent benefits or other benefits relating to 

disability and worker’s compensation, and claims for damages to or destruction of 

its own equipment or its officer’s clothing, and claims for its own officer’s medical 

expenses 

9.   Each Party agrees to be liable for, defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, 

and hold harmless the other Party, its officers, elected and appointed officials, 

employees and others working for that Party from any third party claims, 

demands, suits or loss of any nature, including, but not limited to, bodily injury or 

death and/or property damage, which arises out of or is an any way connected 

with any activities or duties performed under this Agreement.  This duty to 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall include all costs of litigation or defense 

of claims including attorney fees, costs and expert fees. 

10.   The Parties agree that all indemnification and hold harmless 

promises, waivers of liability, representations, insurance coverage obligations, 



4 

 

liabilities, and/or any other related obligations provided for in this Agreement 

with regard to any acts, occurrences, events, transactions, or claims, either 

occurring or having their basis in any events or transactions that occurred before 

the termination of this Agreement, shall survive termination.  

11.   Within ten (10) days from the execution of this Agreement, each 

Party shall provide a Certificate of Insurance, acceptable to the other Party, 

demonstrating that general liability coverage is available for any and all claims for 

personal injury or property damage which are or might be caused by activities or 

duties performed under this Agreement by any Party. Each Party agrees to keep 

said insurance coverage in full force and effect for the term of this Agreement.  

Each Party shall submit to the other Party, prior to the expiration of any insurance 

coverage, the new Certificate(s) of Insurance acceptable to the other Party.  Any 

Certificate of Insurance shall name the other Parties as additional insureds and 

contain the following cancellation notice: 

“Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before 
the expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will mail 30 days 
written certificate holder.” 

Any Party may request a copy of said insurance certificate at any time 

During this Agreement, failure to produce a certificate of insurance within twenty 
(20) days of a request by a Party may allow the requesting Party to terminate this 
Agreement. 

A lapse in the insurance coverage required under the Agreement shall be 
considered a material breach of this Agreement and the Agreement shall become 
null and void automatically as to the lapsing Party at any time such a lapse in 
coverage exists. 

12.   This Agreement sets forth the entire Agreement between the Parties. The  

language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair 

meaning and not constructed strictly for or against any Party.  The Parties 

acknowledge that they have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary 

to authorize and complete this Agreement. 

 

13.   This Agreement shall be in full force and effect and is legally binding 
upon each Party at such time as it is signed and certified by all Parties .   

 
14.   This Agreement may be amended from time to time in writing and 

approved by resolution of the appropriate governing body of the Parties.  The 



5 

 

effective date of any amendment shall be the date as of which the last of the 
necessary Parties has approved the amendment. 

 

15.   This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall bind the 
Parties executing the Agreement and said governing body of the Party  adopting a 
resolution giving its approval to this Agreement until terminated as provided in 
this Agreement.  . 

 

16.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this 

Agreement invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall be deemed severed 

from this Agreement. The remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

 

17.   This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Michigan 

and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of 

the State of Michigan.  Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, any 

action brought to enforce, interpret or decide any claim arising under this 

Agreement shall be brought in the 6th Judicial Circuit Court, Oakland County, 

Michigan where jurisdiction and venue are proper. 

 

18.     The Recitals shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement. 

 

19.    The Parties agree that they shall promptly deliver to the other Parties 

written notice and copies of any claims, complaints, charges, or any other 

accusations or allegations of negligence or other wrongdoing, whether civil or 

criminal in nature that the other Parties become aware of and which involves the 

performance of activities or duties under this Agreement.  Unless otherwise 

provided by law and/or Michigan Court Rule, the Parties agree to cooperate with 

one another in any investigation conducted by the other Party or Parties of any 

acts or performances of any activities under this Agreement. 

 

20.    Any written notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall 

be considered delivered to a Party as of the date that such notice is deposited, 

with sufficient postage, with the U.S. Postal Services.  All notices under this 

Agreement are to be sent to the Chief of Police of each of the Parties. 

 



6 

 

21.   This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts each of 
which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed this 

_________ day of _____________ 2010. 

 

 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

 

By:      

Its:       

 

By:___________________________  

Its:___________________________   

   

TOWNSHIP OF BLOOMFIELD 

 

By:       

Its:       

 

By:___________________________  

Its:___________________________ 

   

 

 CITY OF TROY 

 

By:      

Its:      

 

By:____________________________ 

Its:____________________________ 

 

 

   

        



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm , City Attorney  

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 15, 2010 
SUBJECT: City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc., et al.  

 
 

 

For the Rochester Road Improvement Project, the City needed to acquire right of 
way and a public utility easement from property located at 3688 Rochester Road, which is 
owned by RCU Independence and Sentry, Inc. The property is used as a gasoline station 
and a car wash facility.   A condemnation lawsuit was initiated, since we were unable to 
agree with the property owners for a voluntary sale.  The only remaining issue is the amount 
of just compensation to be paid for the property.  The case was recently submitted to 
facilitation.  Subsequently, we were able to negotiate a proposed consent judgment, which 
would finalize this case for the amount of the facilitation award, plus statutory costs and fees.   

We recommend approval of the proposed consent judgment.  80% of the amount of 
just compensation will be paid with federal funds, and the City is responsible for paying 20%, 
under the Rochester Road Improvement Project contract.  Please let us know if you have 
any questions about this matter.   

campbellld
Text Box
I-08



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 

 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
municipal corporation,  
 
   Plaintiff, 
 

v       Case No. 09-101399-CC 
        Hon. Leo Bowman  
RCU INDEPENDENCE, INC., a  
Michigan Corporation; SENTRY, INC.,  
a Michigan Corporation; and   
CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY,  
n/k/a CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY,  
 
   Defendants. 
________________________________/ 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office   
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908)    
Allan T. Motzny (P37580)    
Attorneys for Plaintiff    
500 W. Big Beaver Road    
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
 
Alan T. Ackerman (P10025)  
Darius W. Dynkowski (P52382) 
Attorney for RCU INDEPENDENCE 
And SENTRY, INC.  
100 W. Long Lake Rd.  
Suite 210 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304-2774 
(248) 537-1155 
_______________________________/ 
 

CONSENT JUDGMENT 
 

At a session of said Court held  
In the Courthouse in the  

City of Pontiac, Oakland County, MI 
on:______________________ 

 
PRESENT:  HONORABLE LEO BOWMAN   

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE 
 
   



 2 

 This matter is before the Court upon Stipulation of the City of Troy (“Plaintiff”) 

and Defendants RCU Independence, Inc., and Sentry, Inc. (“Defendants”).  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Title to the property described in the Declaration of Taking entered by 

this Court on June 8, 2009 has vested in Plaintiff by virtue of filing the Complaint 

and Declaration of Taking, depositing the estimated just compensation and 

recording a copy of a Declaration of Taking with the Register of Deeds of Oakland 

County. 

2. Total and Final Just Compensation for the taking in this matter is 

determined to be $1,320,000.  Plaintiff is entitled to a credit in the amount of 

$985,000 for estimated just compensation which was previously paid in this matter, 

leaving a payment due in the amount of $335,000 for additional just compensation.  

In addition to Just Compensation, Plaintiff shall pay to Defendants $13,509.88                     

in statutory interest on the additional just compensation due pursuant to the 

Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et seq.   

3. As set forth in paragraph 2, Plaintiff shall make a payment to 

Defendants in the amount of $348,509.88 for additional just compensation and 

interest.  This amount shall be paid in a check payable to  Sentry, Inc.                                 

4. Pursuant to the Uniform Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 

et seq., Plaintiff shall also pay to Defendants the amount of $ 402,900                          

for statutory reimbursement of attorney fees, plus 1/3 of the interest payable on the 

total additional just compensation paid to Defendants, which sum is $14,045.65, for 

a total attorney fee reimbursement of $416,945.65. This amount shall be paid in a 

check payable to Ackerman, Ackerman & Dynkowski.                                                               



 3 

5. Plaintiff shall also pay to Defendants the amount of $ 37,187.54                                 

for statutory reimbursement of expert fees and costs pursuant to the Uniform 

Condemnation Procedures Act, MCL 213.51 et seq.  This amount should be paid in 

a check payable to Sentry, Inc.                                                 .     

6. Plaintiff shall serve as co-applicant with Defendant’s contractor for a 

variance from the sign ordinance location requirements to allow the sign to be 

moved to the north end of the property.  Pursuant to MCL 213.54, if the variance is 

granted, the property shall be considered by Plaintiff to be in conformity with the 

sign ordinance requirements for all future uses with respect to the nonconformity for 

which the variance was granted.  If the variance is not granted, the Defendant may 

seek further relief from the Court. 

 7. Subject to the enforcement of the terms herein, this Consent 

Judgment constitutes a final disposition and closes the case. 

      ___________________________ 
      Hon. Leo Bowman, Circuit Judge 
 
Stipulated to and Approved as to  
Form and Content: 
 
 
_________________________                    
Allan T. Motzny (P37580)       
City of Troy Attorney’s Office                        
Attorney for Plaintiff CITY OF TROY                                   
500 W. Big Beaver Road                             
Troy, MI 48084                                             
(248) 524-3320                                             
                             
____________________________  
Alan T. Ackerman (P10025)      
Darius Dynkowski (P 52382)  
Ackerman, Ackerman & Dynkowski 
Attorney for Defendants 
RCU INDEPENDENCE, INC., SENTRY, INC.  



 4 

100 w. Long Lake Road, Suite 210 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304-2774 
(248) 537-1155 
 
 
 



1 
 

 

 
 
June 16, 2010  
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010 - 2011 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The City and the Boys and Girls Club have had an agreement for many years whereby the City 

provides partial funding for a mental health worker/counselor and the Boys and Girls Club 
provides counseling services to Club members.   

 The agreement states the City will pay the Boys and Girls Club $38,000 for services performed 
under the agreement.   

 The funding amount allocated in 2009 – 2010 is $76,323.   
 Since the funding allocation from the City has been reduced, it is the intent of the Boys and Girls 

Club to offer the services of the mental health worker/counselor through the end of 2010 only.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds for this expense are available in the Parks and Recreation Administration account 

101.752.7802.105. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Legal considerations have been addressed through the agreement.   
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Services such as those offered as part of this agreement enhance the livability and safety of the 

community.   
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-09



2 
 

 
May 18, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011 
 
 
Options: 
 
 City management is requesting approval of the agreement and authorization to make payments to 

the Boys and Girls Club per terms of the agreement.   
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:      _    
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 



 1

AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., 
Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter referred to as the CITY), and the Boys and 
Girls Club of Troy, a private, nonprofit organization, having a mailing address of 
3670 John R, Troy, Michigan 48083 (hereinafter referred to as BOYS & GIRLS 
CLUB). 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to help provide for a problem-solving service 
to youth and parents through individual, group, and family counseling to enable 
those served to cope with problems adversely affecting the ability of the youth to 
make optimal use of their world, i.e. social adjustment, work adjustment; and to 
provide free, on-site services for youth, especially those who cannot afford 
private services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide to the youth residents of the CITY 
an opportunity to participate in the Community Service Program, i.e. the Juvenile 
Court ordered supervision of youth residents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB is to 
provide opportunities for mental and physical growth and development of boys 
and girls. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of 
the people of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual 
covenants hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
BOYS & GIRLS CLUB RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 
A.  General Project Summary.    A general description of the community services 

to be provided by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB is as follows: 
 

1. Mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB of Troy shall be 
available to members of the club who are having difficulty in their 
personal and social adjustments through December 2010.  This person 
will work with youths, parents, schools and other community 
organizations, consistent with their professional training and licensing, 
in helping the youth grow towards a more satisfactory adjustment.  The 
worker will act as a liaison for the youth, agencies and family.   

 
2. BOYS & GIRLS CLUB will provide services through the end of 2010 at 

which time the services will discontinue unless other funding sources 
become available.   

 
B.  Program Description.  A detailed description of each program offered will be 

provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB, 
and will be available for inspection on request. 

 



 2

C.  Location of Facilities.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall provide the actual 
services described herein in facilities located at 3670 John R., Troy, MI 
48083. 

 
D.  Mental Health Worker Responsibilities.  Through 2010 the BOYS & GIRLS 

CLUB shall provide a mental health worker, whose responsibilities shall 
include counseling, and providing guidance to youths, families and groups; 
acting as a liaison with the schools, courts, and community agencies and the 
members involved; serving as a consultant; conducting in-service training for 
staff and volunteers, collaborates with community resources to improve 
special services and implement new programs designed to further the social 
and emotional needs of the youth; and any other duties necessary to carry 
out his/her responsibilities.   

 
E.  Records.  For each person receiving individual, family, or group counseling, 

the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall maintain individual case records that 
document service delivery.  Records of attendance must be maintained for all 
persons served.  Applicable laws regarding confidentiality will be adhered to 
regarding all records.  Records will be kept in accordance with the standard of 
the profession and law.  

 
F.  Service Documentation.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to maintain 

program records, program statistical records, and to produce upon request 
program narrative and statistical data. 

 
G.  Fiscal Requirement.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall install and maintain an 

accounting system to identify and support all expenditures billed under this 
agreement.  The accounting system must record all income and expenses for 
the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB’s total program of which services are provided 
under this agreement.  The accounting system, as a minimum, shall consist of 
a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, and 
general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 
and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 
The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual 

budget for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve month period covered 
by this agreement.  These budgets shall show the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded and claimed to other 
funding sources. 

 
  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall submit to the CITY a copy of their annual 

certified audit for any fiscal year which falls within the twelve month period 
covered by this agreement. 

 
The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to retain at its cost all books, records, 

or other documents relevant to this agreement for six years after final  



 3

payment; Federal or State auditors and any persons duly authorized by the 
CITY shall have full access to and the right to examine any of said materials 
during said period.  If an audit is initiated prior to the expiration of the six year 
period, and extends past that period, all documents must be maintained until 
the audit is completed.  The CITY will provide any findings and 
recommendations of audits, if any, to the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB.  The CITY 
will adjust future payments or final payments if the findings of an audit 
indicate over or under payment in the period prior to the audit.  If no further 
payments are due and owing against any sums paid under this agreement, 
the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to refund all amounts which may be due to 
the CITY.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees that as a condition of any sale 
or transfer of ownership of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB, the new purchasers 
must agree to maintain the above-described books, records, or other 
documents for any unexpired portion of the six year period after final payment 
under this agreement, or the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB must otherwise maintain 
said records as the CITY may direct.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees that 
if it ceases business operations, the records will be maintained as the CITY 
may direct.  

 
H.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 

will review with the CITY staff the programs funded by this agreement to 
determine if there are appropriate educational guidance and counseling 
activities which may be utilized by the CITY in its programs.  Any joint effort 
must be mutually agreed upon by both parties. 

 
  In addition, the City shall receive a copy of the annual summary of the 

activities undertaken by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB for its evaluation regarding 
the effectiveness of educational and counseling programs. 

 
I.  Insurance Coverage.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB will provide and maintain 

public liability insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 General Liability and 
$1,000,000 Professional Liability as required by the CITY, to cover all claims 
which may arise out of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB’s operations under the 
terms of this agreement.  Unemployment compensation, worker’s 
compensation insurance shall be maintained in accordance with applicable 
Federal and State law and regulations.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to 
provide the CITY with a certificate of insurance enumerating the above 
coverage.  Cost of specific insurance such as malpractice will be a 
reimbursable expense.   

 
J.  Confidentiality.  The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants for 

services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the 
performance of this agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly 
connected with the administration of the programs implemented by this 
agreement and must be consistent with all statutory requirements. 



 4

 
K.  Subcontracts.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB may not assign this agreement or 

enter into any subcontracts to this agreement with additional parties without 
obtaining prior written approval of the CITY, as a condition of granting such 
approval, shall require that such assignees or subcontractors shall be subject 
to all conditions and provisions of this agreement.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
shall be responsible for the performance of all assignees or subcontractors. 

 
L.  Liability.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 

the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 
losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, 
including attorney fees and legal expenses, which may arise from or be 
caused directly or indirectly by any act or omission of BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 
or their officers, directors, employees, agents, or volunteers.   

 
M.  Close out.  When this agreement is concluded or terminated, the BOYS & 

GIRLS CLUB shall provide the CITY, within sixty days after the conclusion of 
termination, with all financial, performance and other reports required as a 
condition of the agreement.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall immediately 
refund to the CITY any payments or funds advanced to the BOYS & GIRLS 
CLUB in excess of allowable reimbursable expenditures.  The final payment 
by the CITY or refund by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB may be subject to an 
audit. 

 
N.  Continuing Responsibilities.  Termination, conclusion, or cancellation of this 

agreement shall not be construed so as to terminate the on-going 
responsibilities of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB contained in paragraphs E 
(Records), G (Fiscal Requirement), I (Insurance Coverage), J 
(Confidentiality), L (Liability), and M (Close out), included in this agreement.  

 
O.  Publication- Approval and Copyright.  The CITY shall have copyright, 

property, and publication rights in all written or visual material or other work 
products developed in connection with this agreement.  The BOYS & GIRLS 
CLUB shall not publish or distribute any of the results of the services provided 
nor any other printed or visual material funded by this agreement without prior 
written permission of the CITY. 

 
P.  Grievance System.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall maintain a system of 

hearings under which applicants or recipients who are citizens of the CITY or 
an individual acting on behalf of an applicant or recipient may appeal denial, 
reduction or termination of a service, or the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB’s failure to 
act upon a request for service with reasonable promptness.  The BOYS & 
GIRLS CLUB shall advise recipients of this right on such forms and in such  
manner as has been customary, or as the CITY may direct. 

 
 
 
 
 



 5

CITY OF TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB an amount 
not to exceed $38,000.00 for services performed under this agreement.  
Payments are to be made in  two installments of $19,000.00  each during the 
months of July and October 2010. 
 
 Obligations incurred by the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB prior to or after the 
period covered by this agreement shall be excluded. 
 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 
A.  Cancellation of Agreement.  If the CITY determines that the BOYS & GIRLS 

CLUB fails to comply with the conditions of this agreement, or to fulfill its 
responsibilities as indicated in the agreement, or the CITY determines that the 
methods and techniques being utilized in accomplishing the goals of this 
agreement are not acceptable or compatible with the CITY’s policies, then the 
CITY reserves the right to cancel this agreement by giving sixty days written 
notice to the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB.   

 
  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB may terminate this agreement upon sixty days 

written notice to the CITY at any time prior to the completion of the agreement 
period if the CITY fails to comply with the conditions of this agreement.   

 
If there is a cancellation or termination, the CITY shall prorate the 

payments to cover all appropriate expenditures made prior to the date of 
termination.  If at cancellation or termination, it is determined by the CITY that 
the CITY is entitled to reimbursement for any payments for which services 
were not rendered, the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall refund those payments 
within 30 days after the CITY notifies the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB of the 
overpayment.   

 
B.  Disputes.  An aggrieved party shall notify the other party in writing of its intent 

to pursue a claim against the other party for breach of any term of this 
agreement.  No suit may be commenced for breach of this agreement prior to 
the expiration of ninety days from the date of such notification.  Within this 
ninety day period, the parties, at the request of the CITY, must meet with the 
CITY for the purpose of attempting to resolve the dispute. 

 
C.  Agreement Inclusiveness/Amendment.  This agreement contains all the terms 

and conditions agreed upon by the parties.  All items incorporated by 
reference are to be attached.  No other understanding, oral or otherwise, 
regarding the subject matter of this agreement shall be deemed to exist or to  



 6

bind any of the parties hereto.  The BOYS & GIRLS CLUB agrees to amend 
the agreement when there is a substantial change in the law or in the financial 
position of the CITY, and if the CITY reasonably determines that an 
amendment is necessary.  This shall be done only upon written request by 
the CITY and only after the proposed amendments are received by the BOYS 
& GIRLS CLUB.  If the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB refuses to sign such  
amendment within fifteen days after receipt, this agreement shall immediately 
terminate.  This agreement may otherwise be amended only with the written 
consent of all parties to the agreement. 

 
D.  Employees of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB.  Representatives and employees 

and volunteers of the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB shall not be deemed to be 
employees or agents of the CITY for any purpose because of their 
participation in this program. 

 
E.  Independent Contractors.  In the performance of their respective duties and 

obligations under this agreement, each party is an independent contractor, 
and neither is the agent, employee, or servant of the other, and each is 
responsible for its own conduct.  This agreement is not a joint venture for the 
profit of either party. 

 
F.  Compliance with Laws.  Each party shall be separately responsible for 

compliance with all Federal, State and City laws.  Any violation of the law 
results in a material breach of the agreement.   

 
G.  Terms of Agreement.  This agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 

2010 and shall terminate on June 30, 2011 unless terminated under the 
provisions set forth in this agreement.  There will be no payments to nor 
services expected after December 31, 2010 but no renewal will be considered 
until June 30, 2011.   

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the BOYS & GIRLS CLUB have 
caused this agreement to be executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 
 
_______________________________ BY:  __________________________ 
       Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
_______________________________ BY:  __________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7

 
 
WITNESSES      BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TROY 
 
______________________________ BY:  __________________________ 
       Steve Toth, Executive Director 
 
______________________________ BY:  ___________________________ 

Cynthia Stewart, Board President 



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   

DATE: June 15, 2010 
SUBJECT: June 28, 2010 Study Session   

 
 
    
At the May 17, 2010 City Council meeting, the following resolution was unanimously 

approved:    
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special City Council 
Meeting for Monday, June 28, 2010, at 7:30 PM, in the Council Board Room of Troy City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, for the purpose of DISCUSSING Council Goals 
and Objectives, Code of Conduct, Council Rules of Procedure and Boards and 
Committees. 
 
There appeared to be consensus at the June 7, 2010 City Council meeting to arrange for 

a non-paid facilitator for at least part of the Special meeting.  City Management is attempting to 
find a facilitator for the Council Goals and Objectives portion of the meeting, which will be the 
first agenda item.  The agenda background information will include the current Council Goals 
and Objectives, as well as any additional information provided in advance by City Council 
members.   

 
If a facilitator cannot be secured for June 28, 2010, Council may wish to consider its 

Rules and Procedure.  A copy of the current Rules will be provided as agenda background 
information, as well as any additional information provided in advance by City Council members.  
Due to the complexity and number of the Special Meeting agenda items, it is unknown if there 
will be time to allow for full discussion on the remaining agenda items.  However, these items will 
be placed on the agenda, with the hope that Council can provide direction at the June 28, 2010 
Special Meeting.  It is anticipated that these items will be placed on future agendas, where there 
will be an opportunity for City Administration to further discuss and incorporate Council’s 
consensus into proposed action item(s).  Council may wish to schedule additional Special 
meetings at its June 21, 2010 Regular meeting to avoid time delays. It is hoped that there will be 
at least two weeks between Special meetings to allow for the integration of Council’s consensus 
into the documentation.  Please let us know your availability to facilitate the scheduling of 
additional Special meetings.  

 
The agenda background information for the Board and Committees item will include the 

previously submitted summary of the Boards and Committees, which identifies the formation 
authority, as well as information on the purpose, function, and staff time spent on these boards.  
The Code of Conduct agenda item will also include previously submitted documentation, 
including but not limited to some samples.  Additionally, the agenda background material will 
include any additional information provided by individual Council members.   

   

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



To:  Mayor, City Council, and City Administration 

From:  Dane Slater, Councilmember 

Subject: Proposals 

Date:  June 15, 2010 

 

I am offering three proposals for Council review that will hopefully lead to direction for 
City Administration, if there is a consensus on any or all three of my proposals.  To start, 
I will provide a synopsis of my thoughts and outline some of the ideas that have led me 
to make the requests now before you.   

During these past months, I have listened to citizens, my colleagues on Council, City 
Administration and many others in the community, discussing Troy’s financial status.  I 
have heard and witnessed information being shared that leads to citizens receiving 
conflicting opinions and at times, a confusing message, about Troy’s financial situation 
and solutions that are being considered.  Often times, members of this Council are 
responsible for sending mixed messages to the residents.  Conflicting messages on the 
basic financial facts and a lack of support for the process Council previously asked City 
Management to follow in order to streamline has continued a sense of distrust between 
staff, citizens and elected officials. It is time to lead and time to come together and try to 
alleviate this mistrust.  I am convinced that we cannot move forward until the trust issue 
is resolved, both internally and externally.  Also, we cannot build that trust until the 
residents believe that this Council has done its due diligence by not only directing that 
the City of Troy is streamlined through employee wage and benefit parity, consolidation, 
regionalization and privatization but that we have done our best to provide information 
to our citizens about the process.    

Both in the community and on Council, It is time to stop pitting one person against 
another and placing blame.  A City Council is responsible for giving direction to the City 
Administration.  It is unfair to criticize them for Council’s direction, past and present.  We 
cannot stand by and hope the problems go away with temporary “band-aid” solutions.  
Our solutions need to be realistic, with a focus on the long term.  Asking for unrealistic 
wage and benefit concessions isn’t helpful, it only adds to the confusion and animosity.    
A better way to view the employee wage and benefit issue is to seek out empirical data 
to assess that these numbers are comparable to surrounding communities.  Practically 
speaking, would any Troy resident that values their services want our employees paid 
20% to 30% less than comparable communities?  That isn’t how you attract and keep 
good employees, it just doesn’t make sense.  When the City Manager and Council have 
been fully apprised of all potential to streamline a department, then we may find that the 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



only solution left is to cut staff.  Once staff is cut in certain areas, then those areas shall 
be eliminated from the organizational chart, providing the streamlining that all Council 
members have asked for in some form or another.   

I feel that an independent review of all City Departments is necessary, not just those 
that have been previously assigned a private consultant to review.  The Zucker Report, 
as it was created for the Building and Planning Departments, is an excellent document 
and should be used as a model for other Department reviews and recommendations. 
An executive summary is necessary when each department review is complete. There 
is a need for transparency and a need to educate the public with the general plan. 

I have included brief summaries of three proposals that I would like Council to discuss 
and provide direction on.  I believe that consideration of these proposals is necessary to 
move forward in the most efficient and unified manner, ensuring fairness through a 
process that is new to all parties involved.    

PROPOSAL 1:  Authorize use of grant money to the Police Department and the Law 
Department for independent review.  These grants will fund a review, recommendation 
and implementation report by an established organization specializing in this process, 
i.e. IACP.  Consideration for independent review should be given to every department 
not currently assigned for review or consulting from a neutral third party.  This review 
and implementation process will build trust internally and externally. 

PROPOSAL 2:  Authorize team building training for City Council.  It is time for this 
Council to make an effort to communicate and listen.  Independent specialized training 
in the area of team building is necessary and available to foster a better work 
environment for city leadership.   

PROPOSAL 3:  Direct City Administration to prepare an executive summary report 
outlining the review process for all City Departments.  This report should include a 
simple view of the entire organization, by chart or Department, with goals for consulting, 
review, evaluation and implementation. Also, it should include charts depicting where 
we were, where we are now and where we foresee the plans going forward.  I would like 
to see wage and benefit comparison charts with surrounding communities. The report 
should be published on the City web site and discussions should take place as to the 
most effective way to communicate with citizens about the streamlining process and 
other important events/information affecting our community.    

 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                               Feb. 4, 2010 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Feb. 4, 2010 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair David Ogg called the meeting to order at 1 
P.M. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member     
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Absent: None 
 
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
David Ogg reported that Dorothy Pietron has resigned her position on the Advisory Committee.  
Carla informed the committee of City Council’s direction to refrain from placing non-statutory or 
Charter mandated board and committee nominations on City Council agendas until they have 
had an opportunity to discuss purpose, function and impact on staff for all boards and 
committees - unless the board or committee cannot meet quorum with the current members.  
Therefore, there will be no appointments to the three open positions until their discussion is 
completed. 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2010-02-001 
Moved by Berar 
Seconded by Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Feb. 4, 2010 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 6  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed school district news. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                               Feb. 4, 2010 

2 

Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that here was one unsigned suggestion that pensions 
should be frozen for non-represented employees to reduce City costs. 
 
Golf Course:  Carla reported that three proposals were reviewed last week and the 
information has been passed on to City Council for review.  The contract would be for eight 
years, and greens fees a contractor would charge have not been discussed as of yet.  
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  JoAnn reported that a public hearing will be held on Thursday, February 18 at 7 
p.m. at the Community Center to get public input about names for the new park at Maple and 
Milverton.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 32 people are signed up for a new fitness class called 
Fitness Fusion.  We are offering three senior fitness classes in the after work time slot rather 
than during the day, and it seems to be a popular time.  The evening Zumba Gold class is also 
well attended.  Tax aide is gearing up to start this Friday and all the appointments are taken for 
the first two weeks.  The computer lab steering committee has been nominated for the MRPA 
Community Service award which they will receive in March.  The volunteers have stepped up 
and taken over many additional responsibilities to help with the budget situation.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they were worried that Beaumont might cut their funding to 
Medi-Go, but they did not cut funding this year. 
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report. 
 
Member Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Ogg, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL                                                          May 13, 2010 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, May 13, 2010, in the Conference 
Room of the Troy Public Library. Chair Lynne Gregory called the meeting to order at 7:10 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL  
PRESENT:   Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cathleen Russ, Director, Troy Public Library 
 
Resolution #LB-2010-05-01 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That Paul Lee, Student Representative, be excused from the meeting.  
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

 
Resolution #LB-2010-05-02 
Moved by Duggan  
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, March 11, 
2010, be approved as written.  
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2010-05-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, May 13, 2010, meeting be approved as written.  
 
Yes: 4—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Gauri inquired about an article in the paper that he read, in which he stated 
that Mayor Schilling said that the TPL could become a reference library. Russ is not aware of this possibility, as 
there is no provision in the 2011-2012/2012-2013 budget for library operations. The Library Advisory Board 
members discussed possible alternatives for library funding. Russ encouraged them to attend the Friends of 
the Library’s annual general meeting on May 26, where that will be the primary topic of discussion. Keynote 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01b



 2 

speaker Lance Werner was formerly the Library Law Specialist for Library of Michigan before becoming 
director of the Capital Area District Library in Lansing, and he will be able to answer many of their questions.  
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—None 
 
OLD BUSINESS—None 

NEW BUSINESS 
A.  3rd Quarter Statistics and Revenue Report—the LAB members reviewed the report.   
B. Revised Closing Dates 

 
Resolution #LB-2010-05-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Public Library’s 2010 Calendar of Closed Dates be updated to include being 
closed on Monday, October 11, for Columbus Day, and Thursday, November 11, for Veteran’s Day.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 

 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
C. Board Officer Elections 

 
Resolution #LB-2010-05-05 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2009-10 Library Board officers retain their offices for the next year   
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Director’s Report—was received and filed.  
B. Suburban Library Cooperative Report—None 
C. Friends of the Troy Public Library Report—None  
D. Gifts—   Ruth Kerwath, Troy  $7 

   Ralf Crookston, Troy $25       
  

E. Informational Items: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
F. Visitors Comments for March and April—were discussed 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2010-05-06 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 5—Gauri, Gregory, Duggan, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


 3 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, June 10, 2010, at 7 pm.  
 

 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Lynne Gregory, Chairman 
 
 

 
Cathleen Russ, Recording Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Clark at 7:30 p.m. on 
May 18, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
Edward Kempen 
Matthew Kovacs 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
David J. Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – April 20, 2010 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-015 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To approve the April 20, 2010 Regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. RENEWALS 
 
A. RENEWAL REQUEST, BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TROY, 3670 JOHN R – For 

relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east and north 
property lines between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Evans announced the petitioner requests a postponement to the June 15, 2010 
meeting. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01c



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

2 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-05-016 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To postpone the item to the June 15, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
B. RENEWAL REQUEST, EVANSWOOD CHURCH OF GOD, 2601 E. SQUARE 

LAKE – For relief of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street parking and 
deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street parking on the north side of 
the property. 
 
and 

 
C. RENEWAL REQUEST, BETHESDA ROMANIAN CHURCH, 2075 E. LONG LAKE 

– For relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east side of 
off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Evans announced the petitioner for Agenda item #3B, Evanswood Church of 
God, could not be present for tonight’s meeting and requested to postpone the item 
to the June meeting. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-017 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, To grant the renewal requests for both Agenda items #3B and #3C as 
follows: 
 
Grant Evanswood Church of God, 2601 E. Square Lake, a three (3) year renewal for 
relief to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street 
parking and deletion of the 4’-6” wall required along off-street parking on the north 
side of the property. 
 Conditions remain the same as they did when the Board last heard the item. 
 No complaints or objections are filed with regard to the request.  

 
Grant Bethesda Romanian Church, 2075 E. Long Lake, a three (3) year renewal for 
relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east side of off-
street parking. 
 Conditions remain the same as they did when the Board last heard the item. 
 No complaints or objections are filed with regard to the request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

3 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion on the protocol in granting a renewal of a variance when the 
petitioner is not present, and in this case, the petitioner’s request to postpone. 
 
Mr. Motzny advised that the Board could grant or deny the request for 
postponement, or the Board could take action to either approve or deny the request. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MOHAMMAD AND UZMA ALI, VACANT PROPERTY 

BETWEEN 2100 AND 2020 CHARNWOOD – In order to construct a new 29.9 foot 
tall home, a variance from Zoning Ordinance Section 31.30.00 (U) that limits the 
building height to 27 feet without an approved fire suppression system and fire 
retardant materials for roof framing and sheathing. 
 
Mr. Evans provided a brief report on the variance request.  The item was postponed 
from the April 20, 2010 meeting to allow a representative of the Fire Department to 
be present to answer questions.  Mr. Evans noted the Fire Department has provided 
a more recent review and recommendation. 
 
David Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal, was present.  Assistant Fire Chief 
Roberts referred to his memorandum dated May 7, 2010 to Patrick Dyke, the project 
architect.  He offered to verify the information provided in the memorandum and 
answer questions of the Board. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Troy home(s) installed with fire suppression sprinkler system(s). 
 Safety factor of draft stoppage in 1,200 sq. ft. home compared to 2,000 sq. ft. 

home. 
 Fire protection as relates to noncombustible roof trusses, fire retardant treated 

materials for roof sheathing and soffits. 
 Basis of Zoning Ordinance requirement to provide fire suppression system. 
 Fire Department recommendations in second review; each recommendation 

equal in importance. 
 Installation of sprinkler systems with new construction; aesthetically pleasing with 

hidden piping and sprinkler heads. 
 Home fire escape plan and fire extinguisher use in relation to Zoning Ordinance 

enforceability.  
 Practical difficulty of variance request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

4 
 

 Architectural and roof design in terms of fire safety. 
 Safety of neighboring homes, occupants, and firefighters. 

 
Assistant Fire Chief Roberts said a fire suppression system is the most reliable 
means of containing a fire and keeping it small, protecting occupants in the 
structure.  He indicated that the petitioner is going in the right direction by providing 
alternative fire safety precautions, but Assistant Fire Chief Roberts supports the 
Zoning Ordinance requirement to install a fire suppression system in a home of this 
size and height.  Assistant Fire Chief Roberts met with the project architect and 
consulted with the Fire Chief.  He said the recommendations in the Fire Department 
review is to accommodate the owner and project architect and offer precautions in 
addition to the proposed draft stoppage that the Fire Department believes would 
help make the structure reasonably safe from fire.  Assistant Fire Chief Roberts 
addressed the difficulty in putting out a fire in a home of this size and height using 
the standard firefighting tactics. 
 
Patrick Dyke, Project Architect of 46065 Royal Drive, Chesterfield Twp, was present 
to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Dyke addressed the concessions proposed by the 
petitioner; draft stoppage, lot area coverage less than 50% of the allowable, 54 foot 
side yard setbacks, near proximity to the Fire Station, smoke detectors with alarm 
system and fire escape plan.  Mr. Dyke questioned the Zoning Ordinance 
requirements in relation to churches. 
 
Mr. Dyke addressed the similarity in the code of ethics of a professional architect 
and firefighter.  He said, in his opinion, the recommendations of the Fire Department 
would be far more of an overkill versus bringing the roof down to 27 feet and 
complying with the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Dyke said it is his opinion that the 
requested 29.9 feet, which is at the very tip of a peak and is a very small percentage 
of the roof, and all the concessions is equivalent to the required 27 feet without any 
concessions.  Mr. Dyke said a fire would be easier to contain in the open layout of 
the proposed house, than it would be in a smaller home with smaller hallways and 
bedrooms.  Mr. Dyke asked the Board to honor the original variance approval in 
2007. 
 
Mr. Dyke addressed the practical difficulty.  He said the existing Zoning Ordinance 
language provides very little adjustment to the construction of houses on larger lots.  
He said as many design principles were reduced as possible to keep the height of 
the house low without compromising the integrity of the home design.  Mr. Dyke 
compared the proposed home to a 1,228 square foot colonial on a 40 x 120 lot in 
Royal Oak with similar depth and height proportions, and Zoning Ordinance 
requirements of other communities.  He said the City’s existing height restriction 
results in a home that is one-third the size.  Mr. Dyke said the integrity of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance is not consistent. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Lambert asked Mr. Dyke to specify which recommendations of the Fire 
Department he would be willing to comply.  Mr. Dyke’s responses follow each Fire 
Department recommendation and are indicated in italics and underlined. 
 
 Use noncombustible roof trusses and fire retardant treated materials for roof 

sheathing and soffits.  NO 
 Protect any exposed trusses and/or lightweight engineered wood and I-beams 

used in a load-bearing assembly with an approved thermal barrier.  NO 
 Off-set attic eave/cornice vents from second floor windows.  NO 
 Any installation of equipment resulting in the penetration of rated fire separation 

assemblies, e.g., draft stopping, must be sealed by an approved means.  YES 
 Increase driveway width and thickness to accommodate fire apparatus weight, 

height, and turning radii.  Site plan subject to fire department approval.  NO 
 Schedule a hydrant flow test of one or more hydrants with the Troy Water 

Department and Troy Fire Department prior to construction to determine 
available water.  Questioned if test is required of all new construction, cost and at 
whose expense 

 Install and maintain a monitored fire alarm system with smoke detectors 
throughout.  Fire alarm must be registered with the City of Troy annually.  YES 

 Install and maintain readily accessible fire extinguishers throughout.  Occupants 
to receive adequate training on extinguisher use.  YES 

 Develop and practice a home fire escape plan defining two ways out of each 
room.  Plan to be practiced regularly by all occupants.  YES 

 
Assistant Fire Chief Roberts addressed the recommendation to schedule a hydrant 
flow test.  He said it is typical to conduct hydrant flow tests on commercial buildings, 
but not residential.  Assistant Fire Chief Roberts recommended a hydrant flow test 
should the petitioner not be required to install a fire suppression system.  He noted 
that if the house was constructed to meet existing Zoning Ordinance requirements, 
in other words, met the required roof height restrictions, a hydrant flow test would not 
be scheduled because the matter would not have come to their attention.  Assistant 
Fire Chief Roberts said the person responsible for paying the cost of the test is the 
person who needs the information to construct the home; i.e., architect, owner, or 
general contractor. 
 
Mr. Lambert brought to the petitioner’s attention that the response time for the City’s 
volunteer fire staff might not be as quick as a full-time staffed station. 
 
Mr. Dyke said the proposed draft stoppage is more than satisfactory.  He addressed 
the first three recommendations and said they are costly and, in his opinion, 
unnecessary.  Mr. Dyke addressed the footprint and depth of a home in terms of roof 
height. 
 
The petitioner, Mohammad Ali of 3597 Sleepy Fox Drive, Rochester Hills, informed 
the Board that the economy’s decline in 2007 was the reason why he did not 
construct the home then.  He expressed his fondness to become a Troy resident.  
Dr. Ali researched other communities and was told there would be no problem 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

6 
 

constructing a home of the same layout in cities such as Rochester Hills, Bloomfield 
Hills and Birmingham.  Dr. Ali addressed the original application and approval, and 
questioned the City’s concerns now when the application has not changed.  He also 
addressed the requirement to conduct a hydrant flow test.  Dr. Ali said his profession 
is to save lives and he would not subject his family or anyone else to any harm.  Dr. 
Ali said he would consider complying with the Fire Department recommendation to 
protect exposed trusses. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-018 
Motion by Kovacs 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a single family 
residence with a building height of 29’9” on the vacant property between 2100 and 
2020 Charnwood.   
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
 The variance request is minimal. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
 The variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Additional requirements for the petitioner to be granted this variance are: 
 To provide minimum side yard setbacks of 54 feet. 
 To provide roof draft stopping at a 1,200 square foot maximum. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Kovacs addressed his position that it would be unnecessarily burdensome for 
the petitioner to install a fire suppression system.  He said the petitioner could build 
the house at a 27-foot roof height and provide none of the fire protection he is 
proposing for the additional roof height because the Zoning Ordinance requires 
none.  Mr. Kovacs believes the petitioner is proposing a better and safer home than 
a home constructed at a roof height that meets Zoning Ordinance requirements.  Mr. 
Kovacs addressed the risks that everyone takes on a daily basis, and he thinks the 
risks the petitioner is taking are extremely minimal and his personal business.  Mr. 
Kovacs stated his house has no fire suppression system and he has three young 
children.  Mr. Kovacs said the proposed home is beautiful and a beautiful example of 
the American dream, and he supports the petitioner.  He expressed concern in 
setting a precedent should the Board reverse its original decision of 2007. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

7 
 

Mr. Courtney expressed support for the motion and said the Board should not 
reverse its original decision.  He said the petitioner would not be before the Board 
today if he had taken out a permit back in 2007 and did nothing but turn a shovel 
every six months.   
 
Mr. Bartnik expressed support for the motion.  Mr. Bartnik said he has taken into 
consideration all the comments and communications provided by the Assistant Fire 
Chief, architect, homeowner and Board members.  He addressed what he feels is a 
practical difficulty with respect to the distances between the adjacent properties and 
the relatively small proportion of the roof that is outside of the minimal height level. 
 
Mr. Edmunds said he could not in good conscience vote to grant the variance.  He 
said the applicant has not claimed financial difficulty and he sees no practical 
difficulty with the property. 
 
Mr. Lambert said he would reluctantly vote no on the proposed motion.  He said 
good arguments were made on both sides, but he would prefer to see more 
concessions offered by the petitioner as a compromise.  Mr. Lambert expressed 
concerns with the potential risk to the volunteer fire department. 
 
Chair Clark said he would reluctantly vote no on the proposed motion also.  He 
thanked Assistant Fire Chief Roberts for his presence at tonight’s meeting.  Chair 
Clark addressed the various professions involved in this case and pertinent 
information and input provided by each profession.  Chair Clark believes there is no 
practical difficulty with the property because the homeowner could lower the roof.  
He took into account the potential risk to firefighters and Troy residents.  Chair Clark 
stated City Council is the appropriate body to implement changes to the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Chair Clark further addressed the matter with respect to the difference in fire safety 
regulations for a church and residence, noting that people do not live in a church 
structure. 
 
Chair Clark noted there are no objections or communications on file for this item. 
 
Mr. Dyke said he has not recently estimated the cost of a fire suppression system 
because financial impact is not a consideration for a variance request. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs 
No: Clark, Edmunds, Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

8 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, HAITHAM SITTO, VACANT PROPERTY ADJACENT TO 
AND WEST OF 835 E LONG LAKE – In order to construct a new single family 
home, a 2.3 foot height variance to the 25 foot height limit. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He visually displayed the substantial portion of 
the roof for which the petitioner is requesting a height variance.  Mr. Evans said the 
Zoning Ordinance does not require fire draft stoppage in the R-1C (One-Family 
Residential) zoning district. 
 
Chair Clark noted one communication is on file in opposition of the proposed 
variance request.  
 
Mr. Courtney addressed the written communication that expresses concern in 
destroying wetlands. 
 
Mr. Evans said he would search the specific property on the environmental/wetlands 
map. 
 
Neither the petitioner, nor a representative, was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Paul Rizza of 800 Creston, Troy, was present.  Mr. Rizza expressed opposition to 
the proposed variance request.  Mr. Rizza addressed concerns that new 
construction would destroy the wetlands environment and result in poorer drainage 
of the existing properties.  He also does not want a three story house overlooking his 
back yard.  Mr. Rizza said his neighbor, June Watts of 766 Creston, shares the 
same concerns but was not able to attend tonight’s meeting. 
 
It was explained to Mr. Rizza that the proposed variance request relates only to the 
height of the roof of the house.  He was informed that drainage and environmental 
concerns should be directed to the Engineering and Building departments, and that 
the BZA has no authority to stop construction of a house. 
 
The location of Mr. Rizza’s home was visually displayed on the screen in relation to 
the proposed new home construction. 
 
Chris Bolzan was present to represent his father-in-law who lives at 790 Creston, 
Troy.  Mr. Bolzan said his father-in-law’s house sits directly behind and one lot over 
from the proposed new home construction.  Mr. Bolzan voiced opposition to the 
proposed variance request to increase the height of the roof.  He indicated that the 
back of the proposed house would face the front of his father-in-law’s home. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

9 
 

Mr. Courtney suggested postponing the item so that the petitioner has an 
opportunity to appear before the Board at the June meeting.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-019 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, To postpone the item to the June 15, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that the subject property is not located within wetlands or a 
flood hazard area.  He encouraged those concerned to address any flooding and 
drainage issues with the Building and Engineering departments. 
 
After a brief discussion, it was determined that the item would not require publication 
of a legal Public Hearing notice nor mailing notification to the public because the 
item was adjourned to a date certain. 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, RONALD KACHMAN, 291 ELMWOOD – In order to 

renovate the exterior of the building and add design features, a 2.75 foot variance to 
the required 50 foot front yard setback. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location, 
zoning of adjacent properties and proposed building improvements.   
 
The petitioner, Ronald Kachman of 291 Elmwood, was present.  Mr. Kachman said 
now that the interior improvements are complete, they would like to go forward with 
exterior improvements.  He addressed the proposed exterior design layout.  Mr. 
Kachman feels the improvements would enhance the site, and said the proposed 
front yard setback would not be out of line with adjacent properties. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

10 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-05-020 
Motion by Lambert 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To approve the variance request. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within 

the zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect of properties in the 

immediate vicinity or zoning district. 
 That the variance relates only to the property described in the application for 

variance.   
 
Special Findings: 

 The petitioner would have to conform to an unnecessarily burdensome rule. 
 That the variance is not excessive. 
 That the practical difficulties result from the small size of the property and its 

location in an older part of Troy. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Clark noted there are no communications on file.   
 
Mr. Bartnik commended the petitioner for an aesthetically pleasing and well-
designed proposal.  He indicated his support for the variance request.   
 
Chair Clark commended the petitioner as well.  He said it is encouraging to see a 
business doing well in this economy. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
D. VARIANCE REQUEST, MARTHA WALDRON, 3688 ROCHESTER ROAD – In 

order to construct a new car wash/retail store and relocate gasoline pumps, 
vacuums, etc., a variance from the requirement that 10 percent of the net site area 
be landscaped.  Applicant proposes to provide 4 percent net site area landscaping. 
 
Mr. Evans provided a brief report on the variance request.  Mr. Evans noted the 
Zoning Ordinance requires the landscaping to be in the front and side yards.  He 
reported the Planning Commission considered the Special Use and Preliminary Site 
Plan application at their April 13, 2010 Regular meeting, at which time no action was 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

11 
 

taken so the petitioner could come before the BZA for relief of the required 
landscaping. 
 
Discussion followed on the following: 
 Percentage of existing landscaping. 
 Property condemnation by the City of Troy. 
 Practical difficulty of site as relates to ingress/egress, stacking, maneuverability. 

 
Robert Waldron of 3688 Rochester Road, Troy, was present to represent Martha 
Waldron and the business, Pro Car Wash.  Mr. Waldron said the site has been 
through two condemnations for road widening.  He indicated the recent taking 
constituted over 6,000 square feet from the property frontage.  Mr. Waldron 
addressed the viability of a car wash/service station with respect to providing enough 
property for stacking of cars, gasoline pumps, driveway ingress/egress and 
maneuverability of gasoline tank trucks.  He said the site layout has been arranged 
to accommodate as much landscaping as possible.  He shared the good news that 
the center of Rochester Road would be landscaped, which might offset their facility’s 
lack of landscaping.  Mr. Waldron said they propose to add a fountain area with 
shrubs and a flagpole in the front. 
 
Mr. Edmunds reported that the Planning Commission favorably reviewed the 
preliminary site plan application.  Mr. Edmunds commended Mr. Waldron for the 
business sense he exemplified with the recent renovation of the Pro Car Wash 
located on the west side of Rochester Road, and for his spearheading a campaign to 
keep business flowing during the City’s condemnation process. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Clark noted there are no communications on file for this item. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-021 
Motion by Kovacs 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance request. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 

 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

12 
 

Special Findings: 

 The service station/car wash facility is an allowable use on the site, and the site 
is extremely long and extremely thin which makes it unnecessarily burdensome 
for the petitioner to meet the required landscaping requirement. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRUCE REESE, 2496 WEXFORD – In order to add a 

sunroom to the rear of the house, a 5 foot variance to the required 40 foot rear yard 
setback. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of surrounding properties.  He addressed the architectural illustration 
provided by the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the brick wall on the east side of the property is required 
because of the nature of the apartment building.   
 
Mr. Evans responded in the affirmative, and said he presumes the wall is on the 
apartment building property.   
 
Mr. Kovacs expressed concern that the building addition could turn into an enclosed 
bedroom in the future. 
 
Mr. Motzny said the Board could put conditions on the variance as relates to the 
structure itself as long as there is a reasonable basis for the condition. 
 
The petitioner, Bruce Reese of 1458 E. Hayes, Hazel Park, was present.  Mr. Reese 
is the general contractor hired by the owners to build the proposed addition.  Mr. 
Reese said the site does not have enough area to construct the size of addition that 
the owners desire.  He indicated the owners would like to use the room to share 
each other’s company, to have some plants and watch some television.  He 
confirmed the sunroom materials, sliding door, windows and exhaust fan as depicted 
in the application materials would be similar, if not identical, to what will be 
constructed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

13 
 

Chair Clark noted three communications are on file in favor of the petitioner’s 
request for a variance.  He also noted the mortgage survey was provided to Board 
members, prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Owner’s intent/usage of proposed sunroom. 
 Restrictions as relates to no permanent structure in the future; i.e., condition 

variance on plan presented to Board and on record. 
 Location of sunroom as relates to residential homes and apartment complex. 
 Sunroom design; i.e., all season use, top of the line design. 
 Proposed material and design; all glass, entry door, windows and exhaust fan. 

 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-022 
Motion by Lambert 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance request.  
 
Preliminary Findings: 

 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 
 The variance relates only to the property described in the application for 

variance. 
 
Special Findings: 

 That conforming is unnecessarily burdensome. 
 That the variance is not excessive. 
 That the practical difficulties are the size of the property in relationship with the 

adjoining apartment complex. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said the request before the Board this evening meets all requirements 
and he supports it.  He addressed the visual difference between the proposed 
addition before the Board for approval this evening and the addition above the 
garage on the home down the street to the north and at the end of the block. 
 
Mr. Kempen expressed the appropriateness in granting the variance request with 
respect to the infringement on the apartment complex.  He said it is a good example 
on how to improve a neighborhood and make a home more enjoyable for the 
residents.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

14 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair Clark asked for nominations from the floor for Chair. 
 
Mr. Kempen nominated David Lambert for Chair.  Mr. Kovacs supported the 
nomination. 
 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Michael Bartnik for Chair.  Mr. Lambert supported the 
nomination. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Clark declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed. 
 
Chair Clark said it was an honor to serve the Board as Chair.  He said it was an 
interesting and enlightening experience.  He thanked the City staff and Board 
members, and specifically thanked Mr. Kovacs for his assistance. 
 
Roll Call Vote for the position of Chair 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Courtney Lambert 
Edmunds Bartnik 
Kempen Lambert 
Kovacs Bartnik 
Lambert Lambert 
Bartnik Bartnik 
Clark Lambert 

 
Mr. Lambert was announced as Chair. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

15 
 

Chair Clark asked for nominations from the floor for Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Bartnik nominated Edward Kempen for Vice Chair.  Mr. Lambert supported the 
nomination. 
 
Mr. Courtney nominated Michael Bartnik for Vice Chair.  Mr. Edmunds supported the 
nomination. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Clark declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 
 
Vice Chair Bartnik said it was an honor to serve the Board as Vice Chair and 
thanked everyone for the experience. 
 
Roll Call Vote on the position of Vice Chair 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Edmunds Bartnik 
Kempen Kempen 
Kovacs Bartnik 
Lambert Kempen 
Bartnik Bartnik 
Clark Kempen 
Courtney Bartnik 

 
Mr. Bartnik was announced as Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Lambert thanked everyone for the vote of confidence.   
 
There was a brief discussion on: 
 Preparation of agenda packets. 
 Prepared statement to address audience at the beginning of meetings. 

 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:52 p.m.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

16 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Glenn Clark, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
G:\Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes\Draft\05-18-10 BZA Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

1 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Clark at 7:30 p.m. on 
May 18, 2010, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Donald L. Edmunds 
Edward Kempen 
Matthew Kovacs 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
David J. Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – April 20, 2010 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-015 
Motion by Bartnik 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To approve the April 20, 2010 Regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. RENEWALS 
 
A. RENEWAL REQUEST, BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF TROY, 3670 JOHN R – For 

relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east and north 
property lines between the parking lot and the adjacent residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Evans announced the petitioner requests a postponement to the June 15, 2010 
meeting. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01d



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

2 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-05-016 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To postpone the item to the June 15, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
B. RENEWAL REQUEST, EVANSWOOD CHURCH OF GOD, 2601 E. SQUARE 

LAKE – For relief of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street parking and 
deletion of the 4’-6” high wall required along off-street parking on the north side of 
the property. 
 
and 

 
C. RENEWAL REQUEST, BETHESDA ROMANIAN CHURCH, 2075 E. LONG LAKE 

– For relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east side of 
off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Evans announced the petitioner for Agenda item #3B, Evanswood Church of 
God, could not be present for tonight’s meeting and requested to postpone the item 
to the June meeting. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-017 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, To grant the renewal requests for both Agenda items #3B and #3C as 
follows: 
 
Grant Evanswood Church of God, 2601 E. Square Lake, a three (3) year renewal for 
relief to provide a berm in place of the 4’-6” high wall on the west side of off-street 
parking and deletion of the 4’-6” wall required along off-street parking on the north 
side of the property. 
 Conditions remain the same as they did when the Board last heard the item. 
 No complaints or objections are filed with regard to the request.  

 
Grant Bethesda Romanian Church, 2075 E. Long Lake, a three (3) year renewal for 
relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the east side of off-
street parking. 
 Conditions remain the same as they did when the Board last heard the item. 
 No complaints or objections are filed with regard to the request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

3 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
There was discussion on the protocol in granting a renewal of a variance when the 
petitioner is not present, and in this case, the petitioner’s request to postpone. 
 
Mr. Motzny advised that the Board could grant or deny the request for 
postponement, or the Board could take action to either approve or deny the request. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MOHAMMAD AND UZMA ALI, VACANT PROPERTY 

BETWEEN 2100 AND 2020 CHARNWOOD – In order to construct a new 29.9 foot 
tall home, a variance from Zoning Ordinance Section 31.30.00 (U) that limits the 
building height to 27 feet without an approved fire suppression system and fire 
retardant materials for roof framing and sheathing. 
 
Mr. Evans provided a brief report on the variance request.  The item was postponed 
from the April 20, 2010 meeting to allow a representative of the Fire Department to 
be present to answer questions.  Mr. Evans noted the Fire Department has provided 
a more recent review and recommendation. 
 
David Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief/Fire Marshal, was present.  Assistant Fire Chief 
Roberts referred to his memorandum dated May 7, 2010 to Patrick Dyke, the project 
architect.  He offered to verify the information provided in the memorandum and 
answer questions of the Board. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Troy home(s) installed with fire suppression sprinkler system(s). 
 Safety factor of draft stoppage in 1,200 sq. ft. home compared to 2,000 sq. ft. 

home. 
 Fire protection as relates to noncombustible roof trusses, fire retardant treated 

materials for roof sheathing and soffits. 
 Basis of Zoning Ordinance requirement to provide fire suppression system. 
 Fire Department recommendations in second review; each recommendation 

equal in importance. 
 Installation of sprinkler systems with new construction; aesthetically pleasing with 

hidden piping and sprinkler heads. 
 Home fire escape plan and fire extinguisher use in relation to Zoning Ordinance 

enforceability.  
 Practical difficulty of variance request. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

4 
 

 Architectural and roof design in terms of fire safety. 
 Safety of neighboring homes, occupants, and firefighters. 

 
Assistant Fire Chief Roberts said a fire suppression system is the most reliable 
means of containing a fire and keeping it small, protecting occupants in the 
structure.  He indicated that the petitioner is going in the right direction by providing 
alternative fire safety precautions, but Assistant Fire Chief Roberts supports the 
Zoning Ordinance requirement to install a fire suppression system in a home of this 
size and height.  Assistant Fire Chief Roberts met with the project architect and 
consulted with the Fire Chief.  He said the recommendations in the Fire Department 
review is to accommodate the owner and project architect and offer precautions in 
addition to the proposed draft stoppage that the Fire Department believes would 
help make the structure reasonably safe from fire.  Assistant Fire Chief Roberts 
addressed the difficulty in putting out a fire in a home of this size and height using 
the standard firefighting tactics. 
 
Patrick Dyke, Project Architect of 46065 Royal Drive, Chesterfield Twp, was present 
to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Dyke addressed the concessions proposed by the 
petitioner; draft stoppage, lot area coverage less than 50% of the allowable, 54 foot 
side yard setbacks, near proximity to the Fire Station, smoke detectors with alarm 
system and fire escape plan.  Mr. Dyke questioned the Zoning Ordinance 
requirements in relation to churches. 
 
Mr. Dyke addressed the similarity in the code of ethics of a professional architect 
and firefighter.  He said, in his opinion, the recommendations of the Fire Department 
would be far more of an overkill versus bringing the roof down to 27 feet and 
complying with the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Dyke said it is his opinion that the 
requested 29.9 feet, which is at the very tip of a peak and is a very small percentage 
of the roof, and all the concessions is equivalent to the required 27 feet without any 
concessions.  Mr. Dyke said a fire would be easier to contain in the open layout of 
the proposed house, than it would be in a smaller home with smaller hallways and 
bedrooms.  Mr. Dyke asked the Board to honor the original variance approval in 
2007. 
 
Mr. Dyke addressed the practical difficulty.  He said the existing Zoning Ordinance 
language provides very little adjustment to the construction of houses on larger lots.  
He said as many design principles were reduced as possible to keep the height of 
the house low without compromising the integrity of the home design.  Mr. Dyke 
compared the proposed home to a 1,228 square foot colonial on a 40 x 120 lot in 
Royal Oak with similar depth and height proportions, and Zoning Ordinance 
requirements of other communities.  He said the City’s existing height restriction 
results in a home that is one-third the size.  Mr. Dyke said the integrity of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance is not consistent. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Lambert asked Mr. Dyke to specify which recommendations of the Fire 
Department he would be willing to comply.  Mr. Dyke’s responses follow each Fire 
Department recommendation and are indicated in italics and underlined. 
 
 Use noncombustible roof trusses and fire retardant treated materials for roof 

sheathing and soffits.  NO 
 Protect any exposed trusses and/or lightweight engineered wood and I-beams 

used in a load-bearing assembly with an approved thermal barrier.  NO 
 Off-set attic eave/cornice vents from second floor windows.  NO 
 Any installation of equipment resulting in the penetration of rated fire separation 

assemblies, e.g., draft stopping, must be sealed by an approved means.  YES 
 Increase driveway width and thickness to accommodate fire apparatus weight, 

height, and turning radii.  Site plan subject to fire department approval.  NO 
 Schedule a hydrant flow test of one or more hydrants with the Troy Water 

Department and Troy Fire Department prior to construction to determine 
available water.  Questioned if test is required of all new construction, cost and at 
whose expense 

 Install and maintain a monitored fire alarm system with smoke detectors 
throughout.  Fire alarm must be registered with the City of Troy annually.  YES 

 Install and maintain readily accessible fire extinguishers throughout.  Occupants 
to receive adequate training on extinguisher use.  YES 

 Develop and practice a home fire escape plan defining two ways out of each 
room.  Plan to be practiced regularly by all occupants.  YES 

 
Assistant Fire Chief Roberts addressed the recommendation to schedule a hydrant 
flow test.  He said it is typical to conduct hydrant flow tests on commercial buildings, 
but not residential.  Assistant Fire Chief Roberts recommended a hydrant flow test 
should the petitioner not be required to install a fire suppression system.  He noted 
that if the house was constructed to meet existing Zoning Ordinance requirements, 
in other words, met the required roof height restrictions, a hydrant flow test would not 
be scheduled because the matter would not have come to their attention.  Assistant 
Fire Chief Roberts said the person responsible for paying the cost of the test is the 
person who needs the information to construct the home; i.e., architect, owner, or 
general contractor. 
 
Mr. Lambert brought to the petitioner’s attention that the response time for the City’s 
volunteer fire staff might not be as quick as a full-time staffed station. 
 
Mr. Dyke said the proposed draft stoppage is more than satisfactory.  He addressed 
the first three recommendations and said they are costly and, in his opinion, 
unnecessary.  Mr. Dyke addressed the footprint and depth of a home in terms of roof 
height. 
 
The petitioner, Mohammad Ali of 3597 Sleepy Fox Drive, Rochester Hills, informed 
the Board that the economy’s decline in 2007 was the reason why he did not 
construct the home then.  He expressed his fondness to become a Troy resident.  
Dr. Ali researched other communities and was told there would be no problem 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

6 
 

constructing a home of the same layout in cities such as Rochester Hills, Bloomfield 
Hills and Birmingham.  Dr. Ali addressed the original application and approval, and 
questioned the City’s concerns now when the application has not changed.  He also 
addressed the requirement to conduct a hydrant flow test.  Dr. Ali said his profession 
is to save lives and he would not subject his family or anyone else to any harm.  Dr. 
Ali said he would consider complying with the Fire Department recommendation to 
protect exposed trusses. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-018 
Motion by Kovacs 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a single family 
residence with a building height of 29’9” on the vacant property between 2100 and 
2020 Charnwood.   
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 The variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
 The variance request is minimal. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
 The variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
 Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Additional requirements for the petitioner to be granted this variance are: 
 To provide minimum side yard setbacks of 54 feet. 
 To provide roof draft stopping at a 1,200 square foot maximum. 

 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Kovacs addressed his position that it would be unnecessarily burdensome for 
the petitioner to install a fire suppression system.  He said the petitioner could build 
the house at a 27-foot roof height and provide none of the fire protection he is 
proposing for the additional roof height because the Zoning Ordinance requires 
none.  Mr. Kovacs believes the petitioner is proposing a better and safer home than 
a home constructed at a roof height that meets Zoning Ordinance requirements.  Mr. 
Kovacs addressed the risks that everyone takes on a daily basis, and he thinks the 
risks the petitioner is taking are extremely minimal and his personal business.  Mr. 
Kovacs stated his house has no fire suppression system and he has three young 
children.  Mr. Kovacs said the proposed home is beautiful and a beautiful example of 
the American dream, and he supports the petitioner.  He expressed concern in 
setting a precedent should the Board reverse its original decision of 2007. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

7 
 

Mr. Courtney expressed support for the motion and said the Board should not 
reverse its original decision.  He said the petitioner would not be before the Board 
today if he had taken out a permit back in 2007 and did nothing but turn a shovel 
every six months.   
 
Mr. Bartnik expressed support for the motion.  Mr. Bartnik said he has taken into 
consideration all the comments and communications provided by the Assistant Fire 
Chief, architect, homeowner and Board members.  He addressed what he feels is a 
practical difficulty with respect to the distances between the adjacent properties and 
the relatively small proportion of the roof that is outside of the minimal height level. 
 
Mr. Edmunds said he could not in good conscience vote to grant the variance.  He 
said the applicant has not claimed financial difficulty and he sees no practical 
difficulty with the property. 
 
Mr. Lambert said he would reluctantly vote no on the proposed motion.  He said 
good arguments were made on both sides, but he would prefer to see more 
concessions offered by the petitioner as a compromise.  Mr. Lambert expressed 
concerns with the potential risk to the volunteer fire department. 
 
Chair Clark said he would reluctantly vote no on the proposed motion also.  He 
thanked Assistant Fire Chief Roberts for his presence at tonight’s meeting.  Chair 
Clark addressed the various professions involved in this case and pertinent 
information and input provided by each profession.  Chair Clark believes there is no 
practical difficulty with the property because the homeowner could lower the roof.  
He took into account the potential risk to firefighters and Troy residents.  Chair Clark 
stated City Council is the appropriate body to implement changes to the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Chair Clark further addressed the matter with respect to the difference in fire safety 
regulations for a church and residence, noting that people do not live in a church 
structure. 
 
Chair Clark noted there are no objections or communications on file for this item. 
 
Mr. Dyke said he has not recently estimated the cost of a fire suppression system 
because financial impact is not a consideration for a variance request. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs 
No: Clark, Edmunds, Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

8 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, HAITHAM SITTO, VACANT PROPERTY ADJACENT TO 
AND WEST OF 835 E LONG LAKE – In order to construct a new single family 
home, a 2.3 foot height variance to the 25 foot height limit. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of adjacent properties.  He visually displayed the substantial portion of 
the roof for which the petitioner is requesting a height variance.  Mr. Evans said the 
Zoning Ordinance does not require fire draft stoppage in the R-1C (One-Family 
Residential) zoning district. 
 
Chair Clark noted one communication is on file in opposition of the proposed 
variance request.  
 
Mr. Courtney addressed the written communication that expresses concern in 
destroying wetlands. 
 
Mr. Evans said he would search the specific property on the environmental/wetlands 
map. 
 
Neither the petitioner, nor a representative, was present.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Paul Rizza of 800 Creston, Troy, was present.  Mr. Rizza expressed opposition to 
the proposed variance request.  Mr. Rizza addressed concerns that new 
construction would destroy the wetlands environment and result in poorer drainage 
of the existing properties.  He also does not want a three story house overlooking his 
back yard.  Mr. Rizza said his neighbor, June Watts of 766 Creston, shares the 
same concerns but was not able to attend tonight’s meeting. 
 
It was explained to Mr. Rizza that the proposed variance request relates only to the 
height of the roof of the house.  He was informed that drainage and environmental 
concerns should be directed to the Engineering and Building departments, and that 
the BZA has no authority to stop construction of a house. 
 
The location of Mr. Rizza’s home was visually displayed on the screen in relation to 
the proposed new home construction. 
 
Chris Bolzan was present to represent his father-in-law who lives at 790 Creston, 
Troy.  Mr. Bolzan said his father-in-law’s house sits directly behind and one lot over 
from the proposed new home construction.  Mr. Bolzan voiced opposition to the 
proposed variance request to increase the height of the roof.  He indicated that the 
back of the proposed house would face the front of his father-in-law’s home. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

9 
 

Mr. Courtney suggested postponing the item so that the petitioner has an 
opportunity to appear before the Board at the June meeting.   
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-019 
Motion by Courtney 
Support by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, To postpone the item to the June 15, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Evans confirmed that the subject property is not located within wetlands or a 
flood hazard area.  He encouraged those concerned to address any flooding and 
drainage issues with the Building and Engineering departments. 
 
After a brief discussion, it was determined that the item would not require publication 
of a legal Public Hearing notice nor mailing notification to the public because the 
item was adjourned to a date certain. 

 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, RONALD KACHMAN, 291 ELMWOOD – In order to 

renovate the exterior of the building and add design features, a 2.75 foot variance to 
the required 50 foot front yard setback. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location, 
zoning of adjacent properties and proposed building improvements.   
 
The petitioner, Ronald Kachman of 291 Elmwood, was present.  Mr. Kachman said 
now that the interior improvements are complete, they would like to go forward with 
exterior improvements.  He addressed the proposed exterior design layout.  Mr. 
Kachman feels the improvements would enhance the site, and said the proposed 
front yard setback would not be out of line with adjacent properties. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

10 
 

Resolution # BZA 2010-05-020 
Motion by Lambert 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To approve the variance request. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 
 That the variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
 That the variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within 

the zoning district. 
 That the variance does not cause an adverse effect of properties in the 

immediate vicinity or zoning district. 
 That the variance relates only to the property described in the application for 

variance.   
 
Special Findings: 

 The petitioner would have to conform to an unnecessarily burdensome rule. 
 That the variance is not excessive. 
 That the practical difficulties result from the small size of the property and its 

location in an older part of Troy. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Chair Clark noted there are no communications on file.   
 
Mr. Bartnik commended the petitioner for an aesthetically pleasing and well-
designed proposal.  He indicated his support for the variance request.   
 
Chair Clark commended the petitioner as well.  He said it is encouraging to see a 
business doing well in this economy. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
D. VARIANCE REQUEST, MARTHA WALDRON, 3688 ROCHESTER ROAD – In 

order to construct a new car wash/retail store and relocate gasoline pumps, 
vacuums, etc., a variance from the requirement that 10 percent of the net site area 
be landscaped.  Applicant proposes to provide 4 percent net site area landscaping. 
 
Mr. Evans provided a brief report on the variance request.  Mr. Evans noted the 
Zoning Ordinance requires the landscaping to be in the front and side yards.  He 
reported the Planning Commission considered the Special Use and Preliminary Site 
Plan application at their April 13, 2010 Regular meeting, at which time no action was 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

11 
 

taken so the petitioner could come before the BZA for relief of the required 
landscaping. 
 
Discussion followed on the following: 
 Percentage of existing landscaping. 
 Property condemnation by the City of Troy. 
 Practical difficulty of site as relates to ingress/egress, stacking, maneuverability. 

 
Robert Waldron of 3688 Rochester Road, Troy, was present to represent Martha 
Waldron and the business, Pro Car Wash.  Mr. Waldron said the site has been 
through two condemnations for road widening.  He indicated the recent taking 
constituted over 6,000 square feet from the property frontage.  Mr. Waldron 
addressed the viability of a car wash/service station with respect to providing enough 
property for stacking of cars, gasoline pumps, driveway ingress/egress and 
maneuverability of gasoline tank trucks.  He said the site layout has been arranged 
to accommodate as much landscaping as possible.  He shared the good news that 
the center of Rochester Road would be landscaped, which might offset their facility’s 
lack of landscaping.  Mr. Waldron said they propose to add a fountain area with 
shrubs and a flagpole in the front. 
 
Mr. Edmunds reported that the Planning Commission favorably reviewed the 
preliminary site plan application.  Mr. Edmunds commended Mr. Waldron for the 
business sense he exemplified with the recent renovation of the Pro Car Wash 
located on the west side of Rochester Road, and for his spearheading a campaign to 
keep business flowing during the City’s condemnation process. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Clark noted there are no communications on file for this item. 
 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-021 
Motion by Kovacs 
Support by Edmunds 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance request. 
 
Preliminary Findings: 

 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

12 
 

Special Findings: 

 The service station/car wash facility is an allowable use on the site, and the site 
is extremely long and extremely thin which makes it unnecessarily burdensome 
for the petitioner to meet the required landscaping requirement. 

 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRUCE REESE, 2496 WEXFORD – In order to add a 

sunroom to the rear of the house, a 5 foot variance to the required 40 foot rear yard 
setback. 
 
Mr. Evans gave a brief report on the proposed variance with respect to its location 
and zoning of surrounding properties.  He addressed the architectural illustration 
provided by the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the brick wall on the east side of the property is required 
because of the nature of the apartment building.   
 
Mr. Evans responded in the affirmative, and said he presumes the wall is on the 
apartment building property.   
 
Mr. Kovacs expressed concern that the building addition could turn into an enclosed 
bedroom in the future. 
 
Mr. Motzny said the Board could put conditions on the variance as relates to the 
structure itself as long as there is a reasonable basis for the condition. 
 
The petitioner, Bruce Reese of 1458 E. Hayes, Hazel Park, was present.  Mr. Reese 
is the general contractor hired by the owners to build the proposed addition.  Mr. 
Reese said the site does not have enough area to construct the size of addition that 
the owners desire.  He indicated the owners would like to use the room to share 
each other’s company, to have some plants and watch some television.  He 
confirmed the sunroom materials, sliding door, windows and exhaust fan as depicted 
in the application materials would be similar, if not identical, to what will be 
constructed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

13 
 

Chair Clark noted three communications are on file in favor of the petitioner’s 
request for a variance.  He also noted the mortgage survey was provided to Board 
members, prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Owner’s intent/usage of proposed sunroom. 
 Restrictions as relates to no permanent structure in the future; i.e., condition 

variance on plan presented to Board and on record. 
 Location of sunroom as relates to residential homes and apartment complex. 
 Sunroom design; i.e., all season use, top of the line design. 
 Proposed material and design; all glass, entry door, windows and exhaust fan. 

 
Resolution # BZA 2010-05-022 
Motion by Lambert 
Support by Courtney 
 
MOVED, To grant the variance request.  
 
Preliminary Findings: 

 The variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use within a 

zoning district. 
 The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 
 The variance relates only to the property described in the application for 

variance. 
 
Special Findings: 

 That conforming is unnecessarily burdensome. 
 That the variance is not excessive. 
 That the practical difficulties are the size of the property in relationship with the 

adjoining apartment complex. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said the request before the Board this evening meets all requirements 
and he supports it.  He addressed the visual difference between the proposed 
addition before the Board for approval this evening and the addition above the 
garage on the home down the street to the north and at the end of the block. 
 
Mr. Kempen expressed the appropriateness in granting the variance request with 
respect to the infringement on the apartment complex.  He said it is a good example 
on how to improve a neighborhood and make a home more enjoyable for the 
residents.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

14 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair Clark asked for nominations from the floor for Chair. 
 
Mr. Kempen nominated David Lambert for Chair.  Mr. Kovacs supported the 
nomination. 
 
Mr. Edmunds nominated Michael Bartnik for Chair.  Mr. Lambert supported the 
nomination. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Clark declared the nominations for the 
position of Chair closed. 
 
Chair Clark said it was an honor to serve the Board as Chair.  He said it was an 
interesting and enlightening experience.  He thanked the City staff and Board 
members, and specifically thanked Mr. Kovacs for his assistance. 
 
Roll Call Vote for the position of Chair 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Courtney Lambert 
Edmunds Bartnik 
Kempen Lambert 
Kovacs Bartnik 
Lambert Lambert 
Bartnik Bartnik 
Clark Lambert 

 
Mr. Lambert was announced as Chair. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING – FINAL  MAY 18, 2010 
 
 

15 
 

Chair Clark asked for nominations from the floor for Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Bartnik nominated Edward Kempen for Vice Chair.  Mr. Lambert supported the 
nomination. 
 
Mr. Courtney nominated Michael Bartnik for Vice Chair.  Mr. Edmunds supported the 
nomination. 
 
Hearing no further nominations, Chair Clark declared the nominations for the 
position of Vice Chair closed. 
 
Vice Chair Bartnik said it was an honor to serve the Board as Vice Chair and 
thanked everyone for the experience. 
 
Roll Call Vote on the position of Vice Chair 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Edmunds Bartnik 
Kempen Kempen 
Kovacs Bartnik 
Lambert Kempen 
Bartnik Bartnik 
Clark Kempen 
Courtney Bartnik 

 
Mr. Bartnik was announced as Vice Chair. 
 
Mr. Lambert thanked everyone for the vote of confidence.   
 
There was a brief discussion on: 
 Preparation of agenda packets. 
 Prepared statement to address audience at the beginning of meetings. 

 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:52 p.m.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING - FINAL MAY 18,2010 

Glenn Clark, Chair 

Kathy L. C ording Secretary 

G:\Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes\Final\05-18-1 aBZA Meeting_final.doc 

16 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on May 25, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-032 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-033 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 11, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds gave a report on the May 18, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the inconsistency in the Zoning Ordinance as relates to fire 
suppression systems in residential districts. 
 
Mr. Savidant said requirements relating to fire suppression systems should not be 
included in the Zoning Ordinance because they are building code and fire code issues, 
and the matter would be addressed with the re-write of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in May. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported the following two items are scheduled to go before City Council on 
June 7, 2010 (Announcement of Public Hearing) and June 21, 2010 (Public Hearings). 
 
 Troy Sports Center Properties (File Number Z 737) – Rezoning Application 
 Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating (File Number SU 379) – Special Use Request 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 375) – Proposed Pro Car Wash East, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles, 
Section 23, Currently Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the item went before the May 18, 2010 Board of Zoning 
Appeals (BZA) meeting and was granted a variance for the landscaping.   
 
Mr. Branigan gave an overview of the Planning Consultant report.  He addressed 
the building design layout, site circulation and parking.  Mr. Branigan recommended 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

that the Planning Commission approve the proposed project, conditioned on the 
applicant addressing some issues noted in the Planning Consultant report; i.e., 
elevation of the canopy (height and design), access from the adjacent parking lot to 
the north, and site design issues relating to parking, loading and site access and 
circulation.   
 
There was discussion on the following: 
 Validity of parking spaces shown on site plan.   
 Calculation of stacking spaces. 

 
Robert Waldron of 3688 Rochester Road, Troy, was present to represent Martha 
Waldron and the business, Pro Car Wash.  Mr. Waldron addressed speed of a 
carwash operation in determining the number of stacking spaces.  He said the 
property owner to the north is not comfortable with a cross access easement 
agreement.  Lastly, Mr. Waldron stated they are using the existing canopy at the 
new location. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would not recommend approval of the site plan with the 
access to the north, as noted on the site plan, without a cross access easement 
agreement.  Mr. Branigan said he is not comfortable with the proposed driveway 
because the next owner might not redevelop the site.  He said it is like a pressure 
valve on the circulation to the south, and he would prefer no ingress at that location. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Planning Commission can require a petitioner to have a cross 
access easement, but the petitioner has no control with other property owners.  He 
said it is unfair to put the burden on the petitioner to convince a neighbor to agree to 
a cross access easement.  Mr. Savidant said the Planning Consultant has brought 
up a good point, but it is City policy to get a cross access easement from the 
applicant.  
 
Mr. Waldron said he is in agreement with a cross access easement. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would not hold up the City standard procedure but noted he 
has serious reservations in going forward with approval of the site plan without a 
cross access easement agreement with both property owners. 
 
There were brief comments on the cross access easement as relates to: 
 Potential liability issues. 
 Location; impedes traffic circulation to some extent. 
 Legal agreement process.  

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-05-034 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Pro Car Wash East automobile wash/service station/convenience store, 
located on the east side of Rochester, south of Wattles, Section 23, within the H-S 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The applicant granting a cross access agreement to the property to the north. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. 54 E. SQUARE LAKE ROAD – Potential Café in Historic Structure, South Side of 
Square Lake, East of Livernois, Section 10, Currently Zoned B-1 (Local Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced Connie Kelemen who has an interest in utilizing the historic 
structure at 54 E. Square Lake Road as an old world European style café.  Mr. 
Savidant addressed the site as relates to the following: 
 Chapter 13, Historic Preservation. 
 Zoning Ordinance. 
 Existing and adjacent zoning districts. 
 Master Plan. 
 Outdoor seating. 
 Existing gravel parking lot. 
 Existing landscaping. 
 Historic District Commission review and support. 

 
Connie Kelemen of 1767 Three Lakes, Troy, addressed her vision to locate a 
German café in Troy.  Ms. Kelemen said the site is a perfect location for the café of 
her vision, where she would serve refreshments such as coffee and dessert.  She 
distributed photographs and a sample of the crushed gravel parking lot material.   
 
There was discussion on: 
 Walkability of the location. 
 Gravel parking lot; i.e., snow removal, relation to outdoor seating. 
 Existing landscaping. 

 
The Planning Commission expressed unanimous support of the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Savidant asked Ms. Kelemen to contact him and he would walk her through the 
site plan approval process.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. POTENTIAL REZONING – East side of Rochester, South Side of Shallowdale 
(4398 and 4518 Rochester Road), Section 14, Approximately 4 acres in size, 
presently zoned R-1C (One Family Residential), R-1T (One Family Attached 
Residential) and E-P (Environmental Protection) 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed a potential rezoning of the four-acre parcel as relates to: 
 Zoning classifications of parcel. 
 History of hodgepodge zoning. 
 Zoning of surrounding areas. 
 Master Plan. 
 Proposed use as credit union. 
 Building on two acres only; balance of property as open space, buffer for 

residential. 
 
Timothy Affolder of Kingsley Commercial Real Estate, 2100 Executive Hills, Auburn 
Hills, was present to represent the developer. 
 
Tom Alter, President of Genisys Credit Union of 363 W. Big Beaver, was also 
present.  
 
Mr. Affolder said Genisys Credit Union intends to build a 5,000 square foot building 
with one drive-up ATM and two drive-up teller lanes.  He indicated the portion zoned 
E-P would remain as E-P, with some proposed improvements.  Mr. Affolder said 
any landscaping that might have to be removed would be replaced.  Mr. Affolder 
said the two existing Genisys locations in Troy would be combined to this one 
location.  He distributed photographs of existing Genisys Credit Unions. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the relationship of the property to residential, which he 
noted could be challenging in the rezoning process.  He discussed the potential 
development of a showplace credit union with a low impact design and green 
features.  Mr. Savidant commented that the petitioner is cognizant of the City’s 
procedure for conditional rezonings. 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly addressed the site with respect to the Master Plan. 
 
Discussion followed on 
 Pedestrian access. 
 Neighborly environment. 
 Walkability. 
 Sustainability. 
 Stormwater management. 
 Low impact development techniques. 
 Potential liability issues relating to “shared” areas. 
 Visibility of parked cars. 

 
The consensus of the Planning Commission was favorable.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

11. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 
with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan presented an overview of Chapter 11 - Environmental Standards: 
Natural Features Preservation and Renewable Energy Facilities.  He addressed: 
 

 Regulatory Flexibility for Natural Features Preservation.  
 Stormwater Management. 
 Wind Energy Conversion Systems. 
 Solar Structures. 

 
Mr. Branigan noted comments by Planning Commission members on vegetative 
water features, wetlands regulations and preservation, stormwater management 
and green development incentives. 
 
It was the consensus of the Planning Commission to be more restrictive on Wind 
Energy Conversation Systems in residential areas. 
 
Mr. Branigan noted there are no proposed revisions to the Solar Structure section.   
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Savidant said he would provide updated materials on the Troy/Birmingham 
Transit Center soon. 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly addressed current construction going on in the City. 
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Draft\05-25-10 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on May 25, 2010 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Wanda Norman, Planning Department Intern 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-032 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2010-05-033 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 11, 2010 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Edmunds gave a report on the May 18, 2010 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Edmunds addressed the inconsistency in the Zoning Ordinance as relates to fire 
suppression systems in residential districts. 
 
Mr. Savidant said requirements relating to fire suppression systems should not be 
included in the Zoning Ordinance because they are building code and fire code issues, 
and the matter would be addressed with the re-write of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in May. 
 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported the following two items are scheduled to go before City Council on 
June 7, 2010 (Announcement of Public Hearing) and June 21, 2010 (Public Hearings). 
 
 Troy Sports Center Properties (File Number Z 737) – Rezoning Application 
 Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating (File Number SU 379) – Special Use Request 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number 

SU 375) – Proposed Pro Car Wash East, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles, 
Section 23, Currently Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the item went before the May 18, 2010 Board of Zoning 
Appeals (BZA) meeting and was granted a variance for the landscaping.   
 
Mr. Branigan gave an overview of the Planning Consultant report.  He addressed 
the building design layout, site circulation and parking.  Mr. Branigan recommended 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

that the Planning Commission approve the proposed project, conditioned on the 
applicant addressing some issues noted in the Planning Consultant report; i.e., 
elevation of the canopy (height and design), access from the adjacent parking lot to 
the north, and site design issues relating to parking, loading and site access and 
circulation.   
 
There was discussion on the following: 
 Validity of parking spaces shown on site plan.   
 Calculation of stacking spaces. 

 
Robert Waldron of 3688 Rochester Road, Troy, was present to represent Martha 
Waldron and the business, Pro Car Wash.  Mr. Waldron addressed speed of a 
carwash operation in determining the number of stacking spaces.  He said the 
property owner to the north is not comfortable with a cross access easement 
agreement.  Lastly, Mr. Waldron stated they are using the existing canopy at the 
new location. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would not recommend approval of the site plan with the 
access to the north, as noted on the site plan, without a cross access easement 
agreement.  Mr. Branigan said he is not comfortable with the proposed driveway 
because the next owner might not redevelop the site.  He said it is like a pressure 
valve on the circulation to the south, and he would prefer no ingress at that location. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Planning Commission can require a petitioner to have a cross 
access easement, but the petitioner has no control with other property owners.  He 
said it is unfair to put the burden on the petitioner to convince a neighbor to agree to 
a cross access easement.  Mr. Savidant said the Planning Consultant has brought 
up a good point, but it is City policy to get a cross access easement from the 
applicant.  
 
Mr. Waldron said he is in agreement with a cross access easement. 
 
Mr. Branigan said he would not hold up the City standard procedure but noted he 
has serious reservations in going forward with approval of the site plan without a 
cross access easement agreement with both property owners. 
 
There were brief comments on the cross access easement as relates to: 
 Potential liability issues. 
 Location; impedes traffic circulation to some extent. 
 Legal agreement process.  

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2010-05-034 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Pro Car Wash East automobile wash/service station/convenience store, 
located on the east side of Rochester, south of Wattles, Section 23, within the H-S 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. The applicant granting a cross access agreement to the property to the north. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

9. 54 E. SQUARE LAKE ROAD – Potential Café in Historic Structure, South Side of 
Square Lake, East of Livernois, Section 10, Currently Zoned B-1 (Local Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced Connie Kelemen who has an interest in utilizing the historic 
structure at 54 E. Square Lake Road as an old world European style café.  Mr. 
Savidant addressed the site as relates to the following: 
 Chapter 13, Historic Preservation. 
 Zoning Ordinance. 
 Existing and adjacent zoning districts. 
 Master Plan. 
 Outdoor seating. 
 Existing gravel parking lot. 
 Existing landscaping. 
 Historic District Commission review and support. 

 
Connie Kelemen of 1767 Three Lakes, Troy, addressed her vision to locate a 
German café in Troy.  Ms. Kelemen said the site is a perfect location for the café of 
her vision, where she would serve refreshments such as coffee and dessert.  She 
distributed photographs and a sample of the crushed gravel parking lot material.   
 
There was discussion on: 
 Walkability of the location. 
 Gravel parking lot; i.e., snow removal, relation to outdoor seating. 
 Existing landscaping. 

 
The Planning Commission expressed unanimous support of the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Savidant asked Ms. Kelemen to contact him and he would walk her through the 
site plan approval process.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. POTENTIAL REZONING – East side of Rochester, South Side of Shallowdale 
(4398 and 4518 Rochester Road), Section 14, Approximately 4 acres in size, 
presently zoned R-1C (One Family Residential), R-1T (One Family Attached 
Residential) and E-P (Environmental Protection) 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed a potential rezoning of the four-acre parcel as relates to: 
 Zoning classifications of parcel. 
 History of hodgepodge zoning. 
 Zoning of surrounding areas. 
 Master Plan. 
 Proposed use as credit union. 
 Building on two acres only; balance of property as open space, buffer for 

residential. 
 
Timothy Affolder of Kingsley Commercial Real Estate, 2100 Executive Hills, Auburn 
Hills, was present to represent the developer. 
 
Tom Alter, President of Genisys Credit Union of 363 W. Big Beaver, was also 
present.  
 
Mr. Affolder said Genisys Credit Union intends to build a 5,000 square foot building 
with one drive-up ATM and two drive-up teller lanes.  He indicated the portion zoned 
E-P would remain as E-P, with some proposed improvements.  Mr. Affolder said 
any landscaping that might have to be removed would be replaced.  Mr. Affolder 
said the two existing Genisys locations in Troy would be combined to this one 
location.  He distributed photographs of existing Genisys Credit Unions. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the relationship of the property to residential, which he 
noted could be challenging in the rezoning process.  He discussed the potential 
development of a showplace credit union with a low impact design and green 
features.  Mr. Savidant commented that the petitioner is cognizant of the City’s 
procedure for conditional rezonings. 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly addressed the site with respect to the Master Plan. 
 
Discussion followed on 
 Pedestrian access. 
 Neighborly environment. 
 Walkability. 
 Sustainability. 
 Stormwater management. 
 Low impact development techniques. 
 Potential liability issues relating to “shared” areas. 
 Visibility of parked cars. 

 
The consensus of the Planning Commission was favorable.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 25, 2010 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

11. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) – Discussion 
with Representatives from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Mr. Branigan presented an overview of Chapter 11 - Environmental Standards: 
Natural Features Preservation and Renewable Energy Facilities.  He addressed: 
 

 Regulatory Flexibility for Natural Features Preservation.  
 Stormwater Management. 
 Wind Energy Conversion Systems. 
 Solar Structures. 

 
Mr. Branigan noted comments by Planning Commission members on vegetative 
water features, wetlands regulations and preservation, stormwater management 
and green development incentives. 
 
It was the consensus of the Planning Commission to be more restrictive on Wind 
Energy Conversation Systems in residential areas. 
 
Mr. Branigan noted there are no proposed revisions to the Solar Structure section.   
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

13. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Savidant said he would provide updated materials on the Troy/Birmingham 
Transit Center soon. 
 
Mr. Branigan briefly addressed current construction going on in the City. 
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAUSTUDY MEETING FINAL MAY 25, 2010 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair 

, '-"' /". /i
'f{ulut, c{ ib~cf~~ 
Kathy L. tzamecki, Recording Secretary 

G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2010 PC Minutes\Final\05--25-10 Special Study Meeting_FinaLdoc 

- 7 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, June 2, 2010 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Carolan 
    Ted Dziurman 
    Michael Pylar 
    John Szerlag 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 5, 2010 
 
Motion by Carolan 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 5, 2010 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 4 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST. JEFF DRAKSLER, 6947 NORTHPOINT, for relief 
of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 6’ high privacy fence.  
Because of the location of this lot and the orientation of the other properties around it, 
this property is a double front thru-lot.  Therefore, it has front yard setback requirements 
along both Northpoint and South Boulevard.  The setback for the yard along South 
Boulevard is 50’.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front setbacks to not more 
than 30”.  The permit application indicates a 6’ high privacy fence setback 23’ from the 
property line along South Boulevard. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 5, 2010 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Draksler was present and gave each member of the Board a packet that indicated 
that he was changing his request.  Mr. Draksler is proposing to add “landscape panels” 
that would take up 42’ of the lot line.  Basically these would be 6’ to 8’ tall panels made 
from wooden slats. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for a clarification of the drawings submitted.   
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Draksler explained that there are two 12’ long panels and another 18’ long panel 
with openings in between. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked what the difference was between the two drawings and Mr. Draksler 
said that one of the pictures on page 14 depicts the dimensions and the other is the 
description of each panel. 
 
Mr. Dziurman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that in looking at the plans Mr. Draksler submitted today, this new 
proposal is equal to or less than what was originally proposed and therefore there is no 
need to re-advertise this request. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what materials were used for these panels and what color the 
panels would be. 
 
Mr. Draksler said that they are constructed of 1’ x 6’ slats and would be stained a cedar 
color. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the purpose of these panels would be. 
 
Mr. Draksler said that they would improve his quality of life as well as provide screening 
to both traffic and would help to create a noise reduction. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the 30” height restriction in a front yard was due to traffic visibility. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the intent of the Ordinance was to provide an open and 
unencumbered front yard.  Corner lots are limited to allow for visibility of traffic and 
pedestrians.  This lot is a double front lot because of the orientation of the property to 
the west.   
 
Mr. Draksler said that property has a split rail fence along South Boulevard and he does 
not believe that what he is proposing would create any more of an obstruction than the 
existing landscaping. 
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that the Ordinance mandates a clear vision area and it is possible 
that the Traffic Engineer may come out and make these panels come down. 
 
Mr. Carolan stated that at the last meeting the Emerald Lakes Homeowner Association 
indicated that they did not want Mr. Draksler to move forward regarding the construction 
of a fence. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Draksler said that is a private manner between him and the Homeowner’s 
Association and is the main reason he changed his proposal from a continuous fence 
line to “landscape panels”. 
 
Mr. Szerlag informed the Board that he lives in Emerald Lakes and will abstain from 
voting on this request as he is a member of the Homeowner’s Association and believes 
that may present a conflict of interest. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if fencing was allowed in this subdivision.  Mr. Draksler said that 
they do not allow continuous fencing and these panels would have spaces between 
them. 
 
Mr. Carolan expressed concern that in approving this request today, it could create a 
situation where the Homeowners Association would have to spend funds to take Mr. 
Draksler to court to take the fence down.   
 
Mr. Dziurman pointed out that the petitioner had altered his plan and also had received 
a number of written approvals. 
 
Mr. Stimac confirmed that Public Hearing notices were sent out to property owners 
based upon the original request, but these property owners were not notified of the 
revised plan submitted on the day of the meeting. 
 
Mr. Draksler stated that he had spoken to the treasurer of the Homeowners Association 
and he was aware of the meeting today. 
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that he has received a number of complaints from homeowners 
regarding deed restrictions and he has informed them that the City does not enforce 
deed restrictions but does enforce Code requirements.  Property owners cannot come 
to the City to enforce Homeowners Associations restrictions. 
 
Mr. Pylar asked if the proposed plan is still considered a fence.  Mr. Stimac stated that 
he does not have enough information from the revision submitted to state that this 
would not be considered a fence.  He therefore is taking the conservative stance that it 
still would meet the definition of a fence 
 
Mr. Draksler stated that the difference is that this proposal does not enclose an area. 
 
Mr. Stimac read the definition of a fence which is found in the Chapter 83, Section 1 of 
the Troy Fence Ordinance.  According to that definition, Mr. Stimac believes that this 
proposal is still considered to be a fence, but does not know how the Homeowners 
Association will rule. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Carolan 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jeff Draksler, 6947 Northpoint, for relief of Chapter 
83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Motion fails due to lack of a second. 
 
Motion by Pylar 
Supported by Dziurman 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Jeff Draksler, 6947 Northpoint, for relief of Chapter 83 
to install 42’ of landscape panels. 
 

 Installation as shown on page 14 of petitioner’s proposal submitted to the Board 
on this date. 

 Panels will be 23’ from property line. 
 
Yeas:  3 – Dziurman, Carolan, Pylar 
Abstain: 1 – Szerlag 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MICHAEL ROUSSEAU, INTRACO, 530 
STEPHENSON, for relief of Chapter 85 to install two 42 square foot wall signs on an 
existing office building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of 
May 5, 2010 and was postponed at the request of the petitioner.  Since that time they 
have withdrawn this request and replaced it with a new request that also appears on 
this agenda.  A motion to note and file the withdrawal would be in order. 
 
Motion by Pylar 
Supported by Carolan 
 
MOVED to note and file this request for withdrawal. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MICHAEL ROUSSEAU, INTRACO, 530 
STEPHENSON, for relief of Chapter 85 to install a second 76 square foot wall sign on 
an existing office building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
second 76 square foot wall signs on an existing office building.  This property is zoned 
R-C (Research Center) and Section 85.02.05 (C) of the Sign Ordinance allows one wall 
sign per building up to 200 square feet in area for a building of this size.  A permit has  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

5 
 

ITEM #4  - con’t. 
 
been issued for one 76 square foot wall sign on the west elevation and the petitioner is 
asking for approval to install a second wall sign also 76 square feet in area on the east 
elevation. 
 
Mr. Douglas Merritt of Burkhart Advertising and Mr. Michael Rousseau of Intraco were 
present.  Mr. Rousseau stated that they have made a number of changes to this 
building and want to increase the signage in order to increase visibility. 
 
Mr. Merritt stated that this building fronts on I-75 and the adjacent property has similar 
signage.  The additional sign would make this building easier to find from I-75 and 
Stephenson.   
 
Mr. Merritt went on to say the building is located between two off ramps in the Robbins 
Executive Park and it can be a bit of challenge to find the correct location.  The present 
ground signage in the development is older and is not illuminated.  The proposed 
signage would be illuminated. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that Valeo, North American Bancard and Kostal, Inc. have all 
obtained variances for the number of signs. 
 
The Public Hearing was opened.  No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Carolan 
Supported by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Michael Rousseau of Intraco, 530 Stephenson, for 
relief of Chapter 85 to install a second 76 square foot wall sign on an existing office 
building. 
 

 Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
 Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 Variance is in keeping with signage for other buildings in this area. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ALLIED SIGNS, INC. 4819 ROCHESTER ROAD – 
MCDONALD’S, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect two 44 square foot menu board signs. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

6 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect two 
44 square foot menu board signs.  Chapter 85.091.04 (A) (3) of the Sign Ordinance 
does not require sign permits for menu board signs that are not visible from any 
adjacent right-of-way and that do not exceed 36 square feet in area.  The proposed 
signs exceed the 36 square foot size limit. 
 
Mr. Patrick Stieber of Allied Signs, Inc. as present.  Mr. Stieber stated that this 
McDonald’s location went through a process to improve the property.  A double drive-
thru has been installed in order to process the traffic volume more efficiently and 
quickly.  These menu boards are not used for advertising, but only to inform the public 
of the items available for purchase.  The size of the menu boards is necessary to get 
the information to the public.   
 
Mr. Szerlag suggested changing the Ordinance to allow for larger menu boards, rather 
than have each restaurant require a variance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the current provisions went into effect around 1999 and at that time 
research was done resulting in the current 36 square foot size.  Since that time drive 
thru restaurants have increased the number of items that they offer and he believes this 
is the reason for the request for larger signs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman pointed out that they could have two signs in each drive thru as long as 
they were 36 square feet or under. 
 
Mr. Stieber stated that it makes more sense to have a single larger sign, then to add 
more signs. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the larger sign would cause a visual problem 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that based on the site plan provided these signs are at a location 
where the customers are already in the drive up lane and traveling at a reduced rate of 
speed.   
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that he would be in favor of this request based on approval from the 
Traffic Engineer. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was any information regarding the number of cars that use 
the drive thru lanes. 
 
Mr. Rich Jankowski of McDonald’s was present and stated that originally 125 cars used 
the drive thru for a single lane per hour.  The double drive thru will allow for 145 cars per 
hour. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

7 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the signs are located so that they will not create a visual 
obstruction.  Mr. Jankowski said that they will not obstruct traffic. 
 
The Public Hearing was opened.  There was no one that wished to speak and the 
Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Carolan 
Supported by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to grant Allied Signs, Inc., 4819 Rochester Road – McDonald’s, relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect two 44 square foot menu board signs. 
 

 Based on approval by the Traffic Engineer. 
 Signs will not create a visual obstruction. 
 Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ALLIED SIGNS, 3268 ROCHESTER ROAD – 
TACO BELL, for relief of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 1) 
erect six wall signs with a total combined area of 76 square feet where a total of 54 
square feet of wall signage is permitted by Section 85.02.05 (C) (4) of the Sign 
Ordinance; 2) install an 81 square foot menu board sign where menu board signs are 
permitted up to 36 square feet in area by Section 85.01.04 (A) (3) of the Sign 
Ordinance; 3) install a projecting sign that extends 54 inches out from the front wall 
where a maximum of a 12 inch projection is permitted by Section 85.01.05 (C). 
 
The Board determined that each item would be considered separately. 
 
Mr. Stieber said that this location is unique in that it has a double menu, Taco Bell and 
Pizza Hut.  Rather than have two separate menu boards the Corporate Office has 
developed this type of combined menu board.  The menu board will be located at the 
rear of the property and won’t be seen from the road at all.  There is a screen wall 
behind the menu board.  There is a large volume of traffic going through drive thru and 
Mr. Stieber does not believe the size he is requesting is excessive.  The property is 
large enough to support this sign.  Mr. Stieber also explained that the viewing area of 
the sign is 41.37 square feet. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

8 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
A discussion began regarding how each sign is measured and what these 
measurements include. 
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that he is concerned that this sign may create a visual obstruction.  
He would be in favor of this variance depending on approval by the Traffic Engineer. 
 
Mr. Pylar asked if the sign could be moved from its current location.  Mr. Stieber stated 
that there is a major remodel taking place at this location and they have re-configured 
the location of the sign. 
 
Mr. Pylar stated that there is a home right behind the wall and thinks it could create a 
problem for the homeowner.  The original location limits visibility to the existing homes 
and asked if the sign could be put in that location.  Mr. Stieber stated that the proposed 
location is the optimal viewing area for the customers. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked how far the house was from this location and Mr. Pylar stated he 
estimated it was about 70’ or 80’ from the proposed sign. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked how far it was to the property line and Mr. Stieber stated he thought it 
was about 50’.  The proposed menu boards will not give out a lot of light.   
 
Mr. Stieber stated that they also need to add six (6) wall signs because of the building 
design.  The proposed signage is installed on canopies. 
 
Mr. Evans informed the petitioner that the necessary documentation regarding these 
proposed canopies was not included in the packet submitted.  
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the front face of the building is approximately 540 square feet 
and the petitioner would be allowed to have 54 square feet of signage.  The proposed 
projection sign is “Pizza Hut Express”.  The petitioner is proposing new signage for the 
whole building. 
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that he is uncomfortable making a decision for the other signage 
without the proper documentation.  Mr. Stieber asked if a decision could be made 
regarding the menu boards.  Mr. Szerlag said that he would like the petitioner to supply 
the correct information to the City. 
 
The Public Hearing was opened.  No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Evans informed the Board members that glare and shielding are addressed in the 
Ordinance, as well as noise. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                    JUNE 2, 2010 

9 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Carolan 
 
MOVED, to grant Allied Signs, 3268 Rochester Road, Taco Bell, relief of Chapter 85 to  
install an 81 square foot menu board sign where menu board signs are permitted up to 
36 square feet in area by Section 85.01.04 (A) (3) of the Sign Ordinance. 
 

 Subject to approval of location by Traffic Engineer to determine that sign will not 
create a visual obstruction. 

 Sign will be in accordance with all other requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 
 Subject to verification that sign will not create a glare nuisance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE REQUEST FOR VARIANCE OF MENU BOARD CARRIED 
 
Motion by Carolan 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Allied Signs, 3268 Rochester Road, Taco Bell to 1) 
erect six wall signs with a total combined area of 76 square feet where a total of 54 
square feet of wall signage is permitted by Section 85.02.05 (C) (4) of the Sign 
Ordinance; 2) install a projecting sign that extends 54 inches out from the front wall 
where a maximum of a 12 inch projection is permitted by Section 85.01.05 (C) until the 
next scheduled meeting of July 7, 2010. 
 

 To allow the petitioner the opportunity to supply the Board with complete 
documentations supporting this request. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL JULY 7, 2010 CARRIED 
 
The Building Board Code of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:50 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                             June 3, 2010 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
June 3, 2010 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair David Ogg called the meeting to order at 1 
PM. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member     
 David Ogg, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauline Noce, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Absent: None 
 
Visitors:  None 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2010-06-001 
Moved by Berar 
Seconded by Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Feb. 4, 2010 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 5  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Golf Course:  Carla reported that the City Council tabled the item at their last meeting and it 
will probably be on the next agenda. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were no suggestions 
 
Election of Officers and Recommendation for Park Board Representative:   
 
Resolution # SC-2010-6-002 
Moved by  Ogg  
Seconded by Rhoads 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01h



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                             June 3, 2010 

2 

RESOLVED That JoAnn Thompson was elected Chair. 
Yes: 5       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # SC-2010-6-003 
Moved by  
Seconded by Noce 
 
RESOLVED That Pauine Noce was elected as Vice Chair 
 
Yes: 5       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # SC-2010-6-004 
Moved by Noce 
Seconded by Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED That JoAnn Thompson was recommended for reappointment to the Park Board 
 
Yes: 5      
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Senior Discount:  A discussion was held about whether or not the senior discount the City 
offers for various things should be based on age or income.  Committee members felt that the 
discount that many area business offer to seniors is not based on income and it is offered 
because it is good for business.  The same would apply to the City operations.  Another reason 
the City should keep the discount is that it shows appreciation for seniors.  
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that enrollment in computer classes for Winter 2010 was 
double what it was in Winter 2009.  A new captioned phone that uses the Internet instead of a 
second phone line has been donated to the Community Center and people can come in and 
try it out.  Approximately 300 people attended the Expo in March.  Troy’s 50+ pickleball 
program was one of five programs nationwide to receive a healthy aging award from the 
National Council on Aging.  Senior Week was very poorly attended and it looks like the Senior 
Council is going to fold.  A second dinner is planned in June – the popular Chef’s Choice buffet 
with entertainment by the Heritage Concert Band.  Fees are going up for all Parks and 
Recreation programs beginning with the summer session.  The newsletter will be reduced from 
ten to six issues beginning with the July/August issue. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                             June 3, 2010 

3 

 
Medi-Go:  No report. 
 
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that she is resigning from this committee.  JoAnn Thompson and 
Pauline Noce will cover the meeting until new members are appointed to the Advisory 
Committee.   At that time, the new members will be given the opportunity to get involved.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that she is also resigning from 
this committee.  JoAnn Thompson and Pauline Noce will cover the meeting until new members 
are appointed to the Advisory Committee.   At that time, the new members will be given the 
opportunity to get involved.  
 
 
Member Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:47 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Ogg, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



 

 
 
May 7, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – March 2010  
 
Background 
 
 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 

BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, thirty-

seven (37) Dell laptops, one (1) Panasonic toughbook, twenty-three (23) Dell desktop 
computers, three (3) Hewlett Packard printers, one (1) Trane refrigeration compressor, 
one (1) water pump with electric motor, one (1) clear informational rack, one (1) live fire 
video training system, one (1) Epson printer, one (1) 3COM super-stack switch, one (1) lot 
of three boxes of various keyboards, one (1) Toshiba Television, and one (1) box of 
various speaker sets were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement 
website, from March 15, 2010 and closed by, March 29, 2010.   

 
 Final reporting is also being presented for one (1) GMC crew-cab yard dump truck and 

one (1) Plymouth Breeze that was auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-
procurement website, from March 17, 2010 and closed by March 24, 2010.    

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02a



May 7, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services –March, 2010  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 

Dell laptops, Dell desktop computers, printers, etc   $        3,711.84               
One (1) GMC Truck and one (1) vehicle            8,121.00   
 5% Buyers’ premium – for Auction Fees               406.05    

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $12,238.89  
 FEES:   
5% (Dell laptops, Dell desktops, printers, etc) Fee        ($   185.60)     
5% on Vehicles (paid back thru buyer’s premium)        ($   406.05)   
$5.00 for each Feature Item (5 vehicles)        ($     25.00)   
                                                             SUB-TOTAL:       ($616.65)  

Sales Tax +6%,(Dell laptops, Dell desktops, printers):    $       222.70   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):                   0.00   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $       222.70  
 

   

      $ 11,844.94 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of March 2010 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line– March 2010  



Number Year Model Serial Number Dispoal Date Disposal 
Status

0172 1999 BREEZE 1P3EJ46X6XN657462 3/31/2010 A
0410 1998 2.5-YD.DUMP C-C 1GDKC34J2WJ504505 3/29/2010 A

Totals
Item fee (5 X 5.00) -  $25.00

Total income from sale of auction vehicles $8,096.00

GMC $208.50 $4,170.00
$406.05 $8,121.00

City of Troy
Vehicle Disposal Report - March

6/9/2010 05:31 PM

Make Auction Fee Auction Price

PLYMOUTH $197.55 $3,951.00

 Note: Auction fee paid by buyer. Featured item fee paid by City. 
Credited to 661.000.4693 
Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP - Superintendent of Fleet 

 Page  1 of  1 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu   

  HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 
Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: Samuel Lamerato   
Reported on 4/1/2010 From: 3/1/2010  To: 3/31/2010 

 

Item 
ID 

Date 

Sale 
Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of 

Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

7003 3/17/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  1996 Chevrolet Lumina - Veh. #156 Lamerato   
7004 3/17/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  1999 Plymouth Breeze - Veh. #172 Lamerato   
7005 3/17/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2002 Chevrolet Malibu - Veh. #182 Lamerato   
7006 3/17/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2002 Dodge Ram 2500 HD 4X4 W/Plow - Veh. #266 Lamerato   
7007 3/17/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2004 Ford - Crown Victoria - Veh. #980 Lamerato   
6024 3/25/2010 4,170.00 208.50 208.50 Sale  1998 GMC Crew-Cab W/2 1/2 Yard Dump Veh. #410 Lamerato   
7004 3/31/2010 3,951.00 197.55 197.55 Sale  1999 Plymouth Breeze - Veh. #172 Lamerato   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected date 
range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$8,121.00 $406.05 $431.05 $0.00 $431.05 $431.05 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7003�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7004�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7005�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7006�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7007�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6024�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7004�


 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu   

  HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 
Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: Linda Bockstanz   
Reported on 4/1/2010 From: 3/1/2010  To: 3/31/2010 

Item 
ID 

Date 

Sale 
Amount Tax Collected Charge 

Type 
of 

Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

6884 3/24/2010 24.50 1.47 1.23 Sale  B553 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6885 3/24/2010 30.50 1.83 1.53 Sale  B554 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6887 3/24/2010 25.50 1.53 1.28 Sale  B556 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6888 3/24/2010 25.50 1.53 1.28 Sale  B557 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6895 3/24/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B563 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6897 3/24/2010 30.50 1.83 1.53 Sale  B565 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6881 3/24/2010 16.49 0.99 0.82 Sale  B550 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6910 3/24/2010 96.00 5.76 4.80 Sale  B578 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6913 3/24/2010 76.00 4.56 3.80 Sale  B581 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6914 3/24/2010 76.00 4.56 3.80 Sale  B582 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6919 3/24/2010 76.00 4.56 3.80 Sale  B587 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6920 3/24/2010 76.00 4.56 3.80 Sale  B588 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6909 3/24/2010 98.04 5.88 4.90 Sale  B577 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6911 3/24/2010 66.00 3.96 3.30 Sale  B579 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6917 3/24/2010 76.00 4.56 3.80 Sale  B585 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6921 3/24/2010 111.00 6.66 5.55 Sale  B589 Dell Laptop with Case Bockstanz   
6915 3/24/2010 71.00 4.26 3.55 Sale  B583 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6906 3/24/2010 89.88 5.39 4.49 Sale  B574 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6918 3/24/2010 61.00 3.66 3.05 Sale  B586 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6894 3/24/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  B562 AST Laptop Bockstanz   
6905 3/24/2010 13.37 0.80 0.67 Sale  B573 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6903 3/24/2010 16.03 0.96 0.80 Sale  B571 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6899 3/24/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B567 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6901 3/24/2010 16.51 0.99 0.83 Sale  B569 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6902 3/24/2010 15.26 0.92 0.76 Sale  B570 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6880 3/24/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B549 Panasonic Toughbook Bockstanz   
6882 3/24/2010 16.49 0.99 0.82 Sale  B551 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6891 3/24/2010 15.50 0.93 0.78 Sale  B559 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6898 3/24/2010 13.50 0.81 0.68 Sale  B566 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6900 3/24/2010 16.01 0.96 0.80 Sale  B568 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6916 3/24/2010 81.00 4.86 4.05 Sale  B584 Dell Laptop with extras Bockstanz   
6890 3/24/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B558 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6896 3/24/2010 22.50 1.35 1.13 Sale  B564 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6907 3/24/2010 98.06 5.88 4.90 Sale  B575 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6886 3/24/2010 16.49 0.99 0.82 Sale  B555 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=3&beginyear=2010&endmonth=3&endyear=2010&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6884�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6885�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6887�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6888�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6895�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6897�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6881�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6910�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6913�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6914�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6919�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6920�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6909�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6911�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6917�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6921�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6915�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6906�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6918�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6894�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6905�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6903�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6899�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6901�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6902�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6880�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6882�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6891�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6898�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6900�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6916�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6890�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6896�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6907�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6886�


6893 3/24/2010 10.51 0.63 0.53 Sale  B561 AST Laptop Bockstanz   
6908 3/24/2010 56.00 3.36 2.80 Sale  B576 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6904 3/24/2010 16.51 0.99 0.83 Sale  B572 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
5599 3/29/2010 250.00 15.00 12.50 Sale  Trane Refrigeration Compressor Bockstanz   
6207 3/29/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  Water Pump with Electric motor Bockstanz   
6476 3/29/2010 6.00 0.36 0.30 Sale  Clear Informational Rack with base Bockstanz   
6949 3/29/2010 16.50 0.99 0.83 Sale  Live Fire Video Training System Bockstanz   
6956 3/29/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  B594 Hewlett Packard Printer Bockstanz   
6959 3/29/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  B591 Hewlett Parkard Printer Bockstanz   
6960 3/29/2010 12.50 0.75 0.63 Sale  B592 Epson Printer Bockstanz   
6961 3/29/2010 10.51 0.63 0.53 Sale  B548 3COM Superstack Switch Bockstanz   
6968 3/29/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  Lot of 3 Boxes of various Keyboards Bockstanz   
6950 3/29/2010 51.00 3.06 2.55 Sale  Toshiba TV/DVD/VCR Bockstanz   
6954 3/29/2010 22.72 1.36 1.14 Sale  B547 Hewlett Packard Printer Bockstanz   
6965 3/29/2010 25.50 1.53 1.28 Sale  Lot B598 Box of Speaker sets Bockstanz   
6923 3/29/2010 66.11 3.97 3.31 Sale  B521 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6925 3/29/2010 66.01 3.96 3.30 Sale  B523 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6927 3/29/2010 76.01 4.56 3.80 Sale  B525 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6932 3/29/2010 66.00 3.96 3.30 Sale  B529 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6938 3/29/2010 31.00 1.86 1.55 Sale  B535 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6941 3/29/2010 66.00 3.96 3.30 Sale  B538 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6943 3/29/2010 22.50 1.35 1.13 Sale  B540 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6946 3/29/2010 20.00 1.20 1.00 Sale  B543 Dell Computer with Monitor Bockstanz   
6922 3/29/2010 66.00 3.96 3.30 Sale  B520 Dell Computers Bockstanz   
6929 3/29/2010 67.66 4.06 3.38 Sale  B526 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6940 3/29/2010 36.01 2.16 1.80 Sale  B537 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6933 3/29/2010 67.00 4.02 3.35 Sale  B530 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6935 3/29/2010 67.66 4.06 3.38 Sale  B532 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6936 3/29/2010 66.00 3.96 3.30 Sale  B533 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6931 3/29/2010 30.50 1.83 1.53 Sale  B528 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6942 3/29/2010 102.00 6.12 5.10 Sale  B539 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6930 3/29/2010 100.00 6.00 5.00 Sale  B527 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6934 3/29/2010 100.00 6.00 5.00 Sale  B531 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6937 3/29/2010 101.00 6.06 5.05 Sale  B534 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6939 3/29/2010 100.00 6.00 5.00 Sale  B536 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6924 3/29/2010 103.00 6.18 5.15 Sale  B522 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6926 3/29/2010 102.00 6.12 5.10 Sale  B524 Dell Computer Bockstanz   
6944 3/29/2010 110.50 6.63 5.53 Sale  B541 Dell Computer Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$3,711.84 $222.70 $185.60 $0.00 $185.60 $185.60 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6893�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6908�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6904�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5599�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6207�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6476�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6949�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6956�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6959�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6960�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6961�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6968�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6950�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6954�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6965�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6923�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6925�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6927�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6932�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6938�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6941�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6943�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6946�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6922�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6929�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6940�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6933�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6935�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6936�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6931�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6942�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6930�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6934�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6937�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6939�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6924�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6926�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6944�


 

 
 
June 2, 2010 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – April 2010  
 
Background 
 
 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 

BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, one 

(1) Vizio plasma television, one (1) duffle bag, one (1) Dell laptop, one (1) Hewlett 
Packard fax machine, one (1) backpack, one (1) men’s wallet, one (1) lot of children 
shoes, one (1) lot of women’s boots, one (1) box of various keyboards, one (1) Lexmark 
printer, one (1) women’s wallet, one (1) lot of costume jewelry with one belt, two (2) 
Hewlett Packard computers with monitor, two (2) Hewlett Packard printers, two (2) boxes 
of CD component modules, three (3) home entertainment systems, six (6) purses, five (5) 
lots of baseball hats, and three (3) lots of men gym shoes were auctioned on-line through 
BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, from April 13, 2010 and closed by, April 26, 
2010.   

 
 Final reporting is also being presented for one (1) Dodge Ram truck with plow, one (1) 

Chevrolet Tahoe 4WD, one (1) Chevrolet Lumina, one (1) Chevrolet Malibu, and one (1) 
Ford Crown Victoria that was auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement 
website, from April 20, 2010 and closed by April 26, 2010.    

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02b



June 2, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services –April, 2010  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 

Purses, men’s shoes, printers, baseball hats, etc   $       2,310.50               
Vehicles         30,107.22    
 5% Buyers’ premium – for Auction Fees           1,505.36       

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $33,923.08  
 FEES:   
5% (Purses, shoes, printers, baseball hats, etc) Fee        ($   115.52)     
5% on Vehicles (paid back thru buyer’s premium)        ($1,505.36)   
$5.00 for each Feature Item (3 vehicles)        ($     15.00)   
                                                             SUB-TOTAL:     ($1,635.88)  

Sales Tax +6%,( Purses, shoes, printers, etc):    $       138.64   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicles):                   0.00   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $       138.64  
 

   

      $ 32,425.84 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of April 2010 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line– April 2010  



Number Year Model Serial Number Dispoal Date Disposal 
Status

0060 2002 TAHOE 1GNEK13V22J253483 4/26/2010 A
0156 1996 LUMINA 2G1WL52M1T1163840 4/26/2010 A
0182 2002 MALIBU 1G1ND52J02M723638 4/26/2010 A
0266 2002 3/4 TON PU 3B7KF26Z42M309169 4/26/2010 A
0906 2007 CROWN VICTORIA 2FAHP71W67X145538 4/26/2010 A

Totals

City of Troy
Vehicle Disposal Report - April

6/9/2010 05:20 PM

Make Auction Fee Auction Price

CHEVROLET $467.50 $9,350.00

$30,107.22

DODGE $305.00 $6,100.00

CHEVROLET $180.00 $3,600.00
CHEVROLET $227.50 $4,550.00

Item fee (3 X 5.00) -  $15.00
Total income from sale of auction vehicles $30,092.22

FORD $325.36 $6,507.22
$1,505.36

 Note: Auction fee paid by buyer. Featured item fee paid by City. 
Credited to 661.000.4693 
Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, CPFP - Superintendent of Fleet 

 Page  1 of  1 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 

Menu 

 
Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: 
Linda Bockstanz   
Reported on 5/1/2010 From: 4/1/2010  To: 4/30/2010 

Item 
ID 

Date 

Sale 
Amount 

Tax 
Collected Charge 

Type 
of 

Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

7099 4/26/2010 600.00 36.00 30.00 Sale  Vizio P4 47 inch Plasma TV Bockstanz   
7113 4/26/2010 11.50 0.69 0.58 Sale  Hand Bag Bockstanz   
7115 4/26/2010 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  Fashion Purse Bockstanz   
7121 4/26/2010 3.20 0.19 0.16 Sale  Fashion Purse Bockstanz   
7123 4/26/2010 15.75 0.95 0.79 Sale  Baseball Hats Bockstanz   
7124 4/26/2010 17.85 1.07 0.89 Sale  Baseball Hats Bockstanz   
7126 4/26/2010 10.25 0.62 0.51 Sale  Baseball Hats Bockstanz   
7131 4/26/2010 6.50 0.39 0.33 Sale  Men shoes Bockstanz   
7108 4/26/2010 101.00 6.06 5.05 Sale  Home Entertainment System Bockstanz   
7109 4/26/2010 112.50 6.75 5.63 Sale  Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
7107 4/26/2010 565.00 33.90 28.25 Sale  Home Entertainment System Bockstanz   
7118 4/26/2010 11.00 0.66 0.55 Sale  Men Wallet Bockstanz   
7127 4/26/2010 20.01 1.20 1.00 Sale  Kids shoes Bockstanz   
7130 4/26/2010 10.00 0.60 0.50 Sale  Womens boots Bockstanz   
7106 4/26/2010 505.00 30.30 25.25 Sale  Home Entertainment System Bockstanz   
7122 4/26/2010 10.55 0.63 0.53 Sale  Baseball Hats Bockstanz   
7128 4/26/2010 12.00 0.72 0.60 Sale  Men shoes Bockstanz   
7134 4/26/2010 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Box of Keyboards Bockstanz   
7112 4/26/2010 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Knit Bag Bockstanz   
7119 4/26/2010 25.50 1.53 1.28 Sale  Brown Purse Bockstanz   
6955 4/26/2010 3.50 0.21 0.18 Sale  B546 Hewlett Packard Printer Bockstanz   
6958 4/26/2010 12.50 0.75 0.63 Sale  B590 Hewlett Packard Printer Bockstanz   
6963 4/26/2010 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Lot B597 Box of CD Components Modules Bockstanz   
6957 4/26/2010 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  B593 Lexmark Printer Bockstanz   
6962 4/26/2010 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Lot B595 Box of CD Components Modules Bockstanz   
7116 4/26/2010 11.75 0.71 0.59 Sale  Womens Wallet Bockstanz   
7117 4/26/2010 8.75 0.53 0.44 Sale  Belt and Costume Jewelry Bockstanz   
7110 4/26/2010 15.00 0.90 0.75 Sale  HP Fax Machine Bockstanz   
7125 4/26/2010 16.00 0.96 0.80 Sale  Baseball Hats Bockstanz   
6947 4/26/2010 15.00 0.90 0.75 Sale  B544 Hewlett Packard Computer with Monitor Bockstanz   
6948 4/26/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  B545 Hewlett Packard Computer Bockstanz   
7111 4/26/2010 13.51 0.81 0.68 Sale  Duffle Bag Bockstanz   
7114 4/26/2010 69.00 4.14 3.45 Sale  Backpack Bockstanz   
7132 4/27/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  Men Shoes Bockstanz   
7120 4/27/2010 71.88 4.31 3.59 Sale  Hand Bag Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$2,310.50 $138.64 $115.52 $0.00 $115.52 $115.52 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7099�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7113�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7115�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7121�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7123�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7124�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7126�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7131�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7108�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7109�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7107�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7118�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7127�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7130�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7106�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7122�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7128�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7134�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7112�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7119�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6955�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6958�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6963�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6957�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6962�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7116�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7117�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7110�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7125�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6947�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6948�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7111�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7114�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7132�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7120�


 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 

Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: Samuel Lamerato   
Reported on 5/1/2010 From: 4/1/2010  To: 4/30/2010 

Item 
ID 

Date 

Sale 
Amount 

Tax 
Collected Charge Type of 

Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

7198 4/20/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2003 Pontiac Bonneville SE - Veh. # 833 Lamerato   
7199 4/20/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2002 Chevrolet Tahoe 4WD - Veh.# 60 Lamerato   
7202 4/20/2010 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2007 Ford - Crown Victoria Veh. # 906  Lamerato   
7006 4/26/2010 6,100.00 305.00 305.00 Sale  2002 Dodge Ram 2500 HD 4X4 W/Plow - Veh. 

#266 
Lamerato   

7199 4/26/2010 9,350.00 467.50 467.50 Sale  2002 Chevrolet Tahoe 4WD - Veh.# 60 Lamerato   
7003 4/26/2010 3,600.00 180.00 180.00 Sale  1996 Chevrolet Lumina - Veh. #156 Lamerato   
7005 4/26/2010 4,550.00 227.50 227.50 Sale  2002 Chevrolet Malibu - Veh. #182 Lamerato   
7202 4/27/2010 6,507.22 325.36 325.36 Sale  2007 Ford - Crown Victoria Veh. # 906  Lamerato   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$30,107.22 $1,505.36 $1,520.36 $0.00 $1,582.71 $1,520.36 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=4&beginyear=2010&endmonth=4&endyear=2010&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7198�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7199�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7202�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7006�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7199�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7003�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7005�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7202�


 

 
 
 
June 8, 2010 
 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – May 2010  
 
 
Background 
 
 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 

BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for, one 

(1) office chair, one (1) SMC EZ hub, two (2) Hewlett Packard Scanners, one (1) label 
printer, one (1) Hewlett Packard computer with monitor, one (1) lot of floppy modules, two 
(2) dog cages for a car, one (1) lot of men shoes, one (1) display case, four (4) Dell 
laptops, and five (5) laptops with cases were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s 
e-procurement website, from May 12, 2010 and closed by, May 25, 2010.   

 
 
 
 
 

1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02c



June 8, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services –May, 2010  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 

 Laptops, scanners, dog cages, display case, & etc   $          388.01               
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $388.01  
 FEES:   
5% (laptops, scanners, dog cages, & etc.)   Fee            ($19.40)     
                                                             SUB-TOTAL:       ($19.40)  

 Sales Tax +6%,(laptops, scanners, dog cages & etc.):    $          23.28   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $       23.28  
 

   

      $ 391.89 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of May 2010 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 

G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line– May 2010  



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu   

  HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 
Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: Linda Bockstanz   
Reported on 5/31/2010 From: 5/1/2010  To: 5/31/2010 

Item 
ID 

Date 

Sale 
Amount 

Tax 
Collected Charge Type of 

Fee 

Auction Description Seller 

7306 5/25/2010 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  Office Chair Bockstanz   
5499 5/25/2010 1.00 0.06 0.05 Sale  SMC EZ Hub Bockstanz   
6951 5/25/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  Hewlett Parkard Scanner Bockstanz   
6953 5/25/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B599 - Label Printer Bockstanz   
6945 5/25/2010 15.00 0.90 0.75 Sale  B542 Hewlett Packard Computer with 

Monitor 
Bockstanz   

6952 5/25/2010 8.00 0.48 0.40 Sale  Hewlett Packard Scanner Bockstanz   
6964 5/25/2010 2.00 0.12 0.10 Sale  Lot B596 Box of Floppy Modules Bockstanz   
7300 5/25/2010 25.00 1.50 1.25 Sale  Dog Cage for a Car Bockstanz   
7301 5/25/2010 25.00 1.50 1.25 Sale  Dog Cage for a Car Bockstanz   
7129 5/25/2010 15.99 0.96 0.80 Sale  Mens shoes Bockstanz   
7303 5/25/2010 31.02 1.86 1.55 Sale  Display Case Bockstanz   
6883 5/27/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B552 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6883 5/27/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B552 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6892 5/27/2010 36.00 2.16 1.80 Sale  B560 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
6892 5/27/2010 36.00 2.16 1.80 Sale  B560 Dell Laptop Bockstanz   
7304 5/27/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B600 Laptop with case Bockstanz   
7304 5/27/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B600 Laptop with case Bockstanz   
7305 5/27/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B601 Laptop with Case Bockstanz   
7305 5/27/2010 20.50 1.23 1.03 Sale  B601 Laptop with Case Bockstanz   
6912 5/27/2010 40.50 2.43 2.03 Sale  B580 Dell Laptop with Case Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$388.01 $23.28 $19.40 $0.00 $19.40 $19.40 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=5&beginyear=2010&endmonth=5&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=5&beginyear=2010&endmonth=5&endyear=2010&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=5&beginyear=2010&endmonth=5&endyear=2010&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=5&beginyear=2010&endmonth=5&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=5&beginyear=2010&endmonth=5&endyear=2010&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=142&beginmonth=5&beginyear=2010&endmonth=5&endyear=2010&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7306�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5499�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6951�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6953�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6945�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6952�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6964�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7300�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7301�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7129�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7303�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6883�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6883�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6892�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6892�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7304�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7304�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7305�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=7305�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6912�


From: Brent Savidant
To: Kathy Czarnecki
Subject: FW: Site Condo VS Subdivisions
Date: Wednesday, June 09, 2010 1:45:45 PM

 
 

From: Morgan L [mailto:mpeacel@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 11:36 AM
To: Brent Savidant
Subject: Re: Site Condo VS Subdivisions
 
Dear Brent,
 
Thank you so much for your information in the email. I also really appreciate your time and
patience over the phone to compare site condo and subdivisions for me. It was very
informative.

You are the type of Director we like the most in a government department.
 
Morgan Liu & Hongmei Zhao
1634 Kirts Blvd.
Troy, MI 48084
Cell: 248 709 6222

From: Brent Savidant <SavidantB@troymi.gov>
To: mpeacel@yahoo.com
Sent: Thu, June 3, 2010 9:55:04 AM
Subject: Site Condo VS Subdivisions

If you have further questions please call (248) 524-3364.
 
Brent Savidant
 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SAVIDANTB
mailto:CzarneckiK@troymi.gov
campbellld
Text Box
M-03a



campbellld
Text Box
M-03b



Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
May 20, 2010 – Draft Minutes 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Beltramini, Robin Lilly, George Zielinski, Nancy Piotrowski, Dane 
Lepola, Daniella Youhan, Jeanne Stine, Sandy Macknis, Cathy Fucinari, Mary Beth Halushka, Mike Kerr, 
Dale Zygnowicz, Ian Anderson, Bruce Baxter, Cheryl Davenport, Ann Comiskey, M’Liz Malven, Diane 
Julian, Kay Hankus, Larry Cranston, Debbie DeBacker, Karen Wonsowicz. 
 
Call to order: Leonette called the meeting to order at 6:25 p.m.  Leonette introduced everyone present. All 
rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Minutes:  Jeanne moved to approve the minutes of April 15, 2010. Ann seconded with corrections. 
 
Treasurer’s Report:   

 Mary Beth Halushka presented April Treasurer’s Report for George Zielinski. Robin B. moved to 
approve the report with correction. Ann seconded; so moved. 

 Mary Beth presented the 2010-2011 budget; Robin L. moved to approve. Dane seconded; so moved. 
Communications:  

 Leonette shared a TSD employee newsletter which included the TYA Secretary posting and 
circulated a picture of the Youth Recognition honorees from the Troy- Somerset Gazette.   

Caseworker’s Report:              
CASEWORK- Nine new referrals (7 boys/2 girls) came into TYA.  
Committee Reports: 
 A.   Camp/Skill Building:  

 Karen reported. Due to budget restrictions, TYA will not send campers to overnight camp. Instead, 
campers will attend Troy Villas Camp, sponsored by Troy Community Coalition, Adventure Camp: 
Oakland County Parks and Rec, and Boys & Girls Club Day Camp.  Parents of campers will be asked 
to contribute $50.00/per child to defer TYA costs. 

 Ann suggested that Cindy prepare a press release for local newspapers to encourage contributors to 
Adopt-a-Camper.  Leonette will follow up with Cindy. 

 Committee will meet on Wed., June 23 @ 10 am to brainstorm for 2010-11.   
B.   Family Education: Robin L 

 The 2010-2011calendar was sent to Troy schools for inclusion in their back-to-school newsletters. 
Next school year, budget cutbacks will dictate charging participants a nominal fee.  

C.  Fundraising:  Kay Hankus was welcomed to her no-pressure position.  
D. Mentors Plus: Bruce Baxter: 

 Met with Karen re: a new match. 
E. Membership- Nancy Piotrowski 

 Nancy presented final report from last the last recruiters’ meeting.  She distributed copies of the 
vacant B of D secretarial position and encouraged members to consider candidates for the position. 

 F. Publicity: Cindy Stewart:  
 Submitted Youth Recognition press release to local newspapers.  

G. Youth Involvement: Committee will meet on Wed., June 23 @ 10 am to brainstorm for 2010-11.    
H.  Youth Recognition: Committee will meet on June 9 @10:30 am to evaluate 2010 Youth Rec Program.          
School Reports:  

 Dane reported that activities at Troy HS are winding down. Student Congress for 2010-11 has been 
elected. Blood drive was held.  2010 THS Homecoming plans are already in the works.  

campbellld
Text Box
M-05



 Daniella reported that Athens HS also held their elections; she was voted to an executive position. 
Athens participated in a local John R Road clean up. 

Old Business:  
 Vote: 2010-2012 Slate of Officers: Ann motioned to support and accept Mary Beth Halushka for 

Treasurer by a show of hands, since hers was the only nomination. Deb seconded; so moved. 
 Paid Secretarial Position: Robin L. has agreed to stay on as the office secretary/administrative 

assistant next year. Due to budgetary constraints, her schedule will be reduced by half: 3 days x 5 
hours/day. 

Community Information From Organization/Agency Liaisons: 
 Ian Anderson invited everyone to attend Troy Rotary’s beer tasting fundraiser on June 9, 2010.   
 Robin B. reported Memorial Day commemoration on Mon., May 31 @ 11 am, Troy Veteran’s Plaza.  
 Jeanne invited members to attend the Friends of the Library general membership meeting on Wed., 

May 26. 
 Mike Kerr thanked the Board for the kindness they extended upon the recent death of his father.  

  
Adjourned:  7:30 p.m. 

 
NEXT MEETING: Thursday August 19, 2010 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Robin Lilly, Secretary   
 
                                      



campbellld
Text Box
M-06



i:\1 office coordinator\agenda\agenda items\2010 agendas\2010-06-21 agenda\2010 06-10 a & m council report.doc 

 

 

 
                             
June 10, 2010 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police    
 
SUBJECT:   Towing Contract, A & M Towing 
 
 
 
Background: A & M Towing was granted a 3-year contract to tow vehicles for the Troy Police 
Department and the City of Troy Department of Public Works in October 2009. City Council requested 
a review each quarter of A & M’s performance and compliance. 
 
Financial Considerations: It is in the City’s best interest to protect its citizens and the motoring public 
when there is a need for towing service within the City of Troy due to traffic crashes, breakdowns, or 
arrests, and to ensure that the City’s contractor is complying with the requirements specified in the 
towing contract.   
 
Legal Considerations: None 
 
Policy Considerations: A & M’s staff has been very cooperative and eager to work together with the 
Police Department.  We have had no complaints regarding their services from Police Department 
personnel.  A & M is still in full compliance with the contract pricing, and in some cases has charged 
less than contract price. 
 
There has been one complaint made regarding A & M Towing since the January Council Report.  A 
vehicle had been towed as a result of a vehicle crash on January 20, 2010.  Weeks later, while in the 
A & M storage facility, the vehicle caught on fire.  The Troy Fire Department determined that the 
vehicle fire was likely caused by the leakage of battery fluids as a result of the crash.  There was a 
disagreement between A & M and the vehicle owner’s father as to who was responsible.   This was 
resolved by an agreement to turn over the vehicle title for disposal and A & M agreed to waive the 
towing and storage fees.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-07



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
M-08





1 
 

 
 
DATE: June 16, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 Carol K. Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 Paul Evans, Inspector Supervisor 
 
SUBJECT: Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and Grass 
 
 
Adoption of Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code 
 
At the October 5, 2009 meeting, City Council adopted Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
as presented.  The amendment placed the responsibility for cutting the weeds and grass in the 
right-of-way between the public road and the home on the homeowner.  City Management 
provided City Council a report to accompany the proposed Property Maintenance Code 
amendment (see attached).  The report stated that “some of the highlights of the proposed 
changes include requiring for weed maintenance for right of way adjacent to County and City right 
of way”. 
 
 
History of Right of Way Mowing 
 
As a practical matter, this issue involves grass cutting along major thoroughfares only.  
Historically, people fronting residential streets cut the grass within the right of way between their 
home and the street.  An exception is vacant homes such as foreclosures, where lawn 
maintenance is a problem.  Out of 9,500 properties that abut County and City major road ROW, 
less than 100 are not mowed.  
 
The Parks and Recreation Department presently utilizes contractors to cut all medians within the 
City of Troy.  The Public Works department contracted out non-median right of way (ROW) 
mowing along major roads through 2009.  ROW mowing was performed 5 times per year with a 
reduction in the number of cuttings to 3 cuttings in 2009.  The portion of the ROW that was 
mowed by the contractor consisted of locations not mowed by the adjacent property owners.  We 
have 82 curb miles of County Roads and 40 curb miles of City Major Roads.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
N-01



2 
 

The City expended $55,000 in 2007 and $67,000 in 2008 for 5 cuttings each year.  In 2009 with 
the number of cuttings reduced to 3 the City expended $36,000.  Approximately 84% of the 
mowing was provided on County Roads and 16% on City Major Roads.  
 
Contract pricing for mowing in 2007, 2008 and 2009 was 6.5 cents per lineal foot of curb.  In 2010 
the new contract pricing for the next three year period is 3 cents per lineal foot.  Taking historical 
total lineal footages cut of 563,000 lineal feet of curb for 3 cuttings and using the current lineal 
foot price of 3 cent per foot, it is estimated that the annual cost for each of the next 3 years would 
be approximately $17,000 annually.  City Management has concern whether the contractor can 
continue operating at this lower rate.  Administrative costs for Department of Public Works ROW 
mowing have been approximately $3,000 annually.  
 
 
Next Steps 
 
The City has received complaints from residents about the requirement to cut weeds and grass in 
the ROW.  To address and provide clarification, the Planning Department prepared an 
informational bulletin to explain this requirement to property owners (see attached).  This 
informational bulletin will be distributed by the Community Affairs Department to residents with 
questions about this issue.  
 
A study session is scheduled for June 21, 2010.  City Council desires to discuss this matter and 
advise City Administration of the direction they wish to proceed.  City Management identified the 
following four options for City Council discussion.   
 

Option 1: Enforce Chapter 82 
 
Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code, adopted in 2009, places the responsibility for 
cutting weeds and grass within the right of way on the property owner. 
 
Estimated cost to City for contractor services: $0. 
 
Option 2: City cuts grass and weeds along City Major Roads 
 
Under Option 2, the City would pay a contractor to cut grass and weeds along City major 
roads only. 
 
Estimated cost to City for contractor services: $2,720. 
 
Option 3: City cuts grass and weeds along County Major Roads 
Under Option 3, the City would pay a contractor to cut grass and weeds along County 
major roads only. 
 
Estimated cost to City for contractor services: $14,280. 
 



3 
 

Option 4: City cuts grass and weeds along both City and County Major Roads 
City cuts grass and weeds along both City and County major roads. 
 
Estimated cost to City for contractor services: $17,000. 

 
 
City Management seeks direction from City Council on this matter. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Roadway Jurisdiction Map. 
2. Informational Bulletin. 
3. Minutes excerpt from October 5, 2009 City Council meeting. 
4. September 30, 2009 Council Action Report. 

 
Prepared by PE/RBS 
 
G:\Chapter 82\Chapter 82 CC memo 06 21 2010.doc 



 

 



BULLETIN 
 

New grass cutting requirements effective in 2010! 
 

Effective in 2010, the City has a new requirement regarding lawn and grass maintenance. 
Cutting tall lawns and grasses located between private property lines and roads is now the 
responsibility of the adjacent property owner. This includes areas between fences and roads. It 
also includes areas between sidewalks and roads.  

For example, if a fence in the back yard separates the property from the road, the property 
owner should maintain grass on both sides of the fence, up to the edge of the road. Lawn grass 
and weeds must not exceed 10 inches in height in these areas and also on occupied and 
unoccupied private property. Ornamental plants and grasses, and dedicated preservation areas 
are exempt from the cutting requirement. The full lawn and grass maintenance ordinance can 
be viewed at this website: http://www.troymi.gov/FAQ/BuildingInspection.asp 

Please call Inspector Supervisor Paul Evans at (248) 524 3359 if you have questions regarding 
this information. 

  

http://www.troymi.gov/FAQ/BuildingInspection.asp�


 

 
 
DATE:    September 30, 2009                             
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Update of Chapter 82 of the Troy City Code 
    Property Maintenance Code  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The current provisions of the Troy Property Maintenance Code adopts, by reference, the 1993 

Edition of the BOCA Property Maintenance Code. 
 This document is no longer in print and is not available to the public. 
 In August of 2008 the 2006 editions of the Michigan Building Codes went into effect. 
 We have prepared for adoption an updated Property Maintenance Code that is based upon the 

2006 edition of the ICC Property Maintenance Code. 
 We are also proposing changes to the base document to address and consolidate other 

provisions of the Troy Ordinances. 
 Because the length of the document is not too large, we are proposing to include the entire text of 

the ordinance rather than adopting by reference and just printing the amendments to the base 
document.  We believe that this will result in an Ordinance that is easier to read, more 
coordinated, and more user friendly. 

 Some of the highlights of the proposed changes include: 
o Updating to the latest versions of the referenced code documents. 
o Better coordination with Troy Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance. 
o Including Dangerous Building provisions allowing for the deletion of Chapter 82A. 
o Including Weed provisions allowing for the deletion of Chapter 89. 
o Requiring for weed maintenance for right of way adjacent to County and City right of way. 
o Including Litter provisions allowing for the deletion of portions of Chapter 48. 
o Include provisions for Junk Vehicles allowing deletion of portions of Chapter 88. 
o Including new language regarding providing containers for personal property for evictions 

(crafted after similar provisions of City of Detroit Ordinance Language). 
o Better language for requiring exterior painting and addressing graffiti. 

 The proposed text is identical to the text that was presented to Council at your meeting of 
September 28, 2009 and includes revisions that were presented at the Council meetings of July 6, 
2009 and September 14, 2009. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09a



 If this new code is adopted, then accompanying changes to other ordinances should be adopted 
at the same time. 

 We have included a copy of the existing text of Chapter 82 showing the text that will be deleted. 
 We have included a copy of the text of the 1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code that is 

currently referenced by the Troy Property Maintenance Code. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to adopt a Property Maintenance Code under the City Charter and 

the Home Rule Cities Act. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I). 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can adopt the new Property Maintenance Code 
 City Council can retain the existing Property Maintenance Code. 
 City Council can revise the provisions and adopt those provisions as the new Property 

Maintenance Code. 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mss/ Chapter 82 revision memo 10-5-09 



 1 

Existing Text of Chapter 82 that is proposed to be deleted 
 
1. Adoption of Code by Reference. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 3 (K) of Act 279 of 1909, 

State of Michigan as amended, the B.O.C.A. National Property Maintenance Code/1993 
and published by the Building Officials and Code Administrators International, Inc., is 
hereby adopted by reference by the City of Troy as in this Chapter modified for the purpose 
of establishing minimum standards governing the condition and maintenance of all 
structures and dwellings; establishing minimum standards governing supplied utilities and 
facilities and other physical things and conditions essential to insure that structures are 
safe, sanitary and fit for occupation and use; establishing minimum standards governing 
the condition of dwellings offered for rent; fixing certain responsibilities and duties of owners 
and occupants of structures, and the condemnation of dwellings unfit for human habitation 
and the demolition of such dwellings and structures; and fixing penalties for violation. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
 2. Code on File. Complete printed copies of the B.O.C.A. National Property Maintenance 

Code/1993, herein adopted, are available for public use and inspection at the office of the 
City Clerk. 

 
  (Rev. 1-29-96) 
 
 3. Change in Code. The following Sections and Subsections the B.O.C.A. National Property 

Maintenance Code/1993 are hereby amended or deleted and additional sections or 
subsections are added as indicated. Subsequent section numbers used in this Chapter 
shall refer to like numbered sections of the B.O.C.A. National Property Maintenance 
Code/1993. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
 4. Penalties for Violations: Except as otherwise provided by other sections of this Chapter, a 

violation of any section of Chapter 82 is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject to the provisions 
of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy. Each day that a violation continues is a 
separate Municipal Civil Infraction violation. Sanctions for each violation of Chapter 82 shall 
include a fine of not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized 
by Chapter 100. 

 
  (03-01-06) 
 
 
PM-100.1 Title: These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance Code of the City of 

Troy hereinafter referred to as the Property Maintenance Code or "this code". 
 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
PM-105.1 General: It shall be the duty and responsibility of the Building Department, through its 

Building Official, his authorized representative and employees, hereinafter referred to as 
the code official, to enforce the provisions of this code as herein provided. 

  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-105.7 Thru PM-105.10 - Sections deleted. 
 
  (01-29-96) 
 
PM-106.2 Section deleted. 



 2 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-107.4 Section deleted. 
 
  (01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.1.1 Emergency: The Fire Chief or Building Official shall have the power to abate any public 

nuisance from any dangerous structure or building if the public safety shall require 
immediate action due to a distinct hazard to life or property, without preliminary notice as 
otherwise required by this section. Thereafter the cost of abating such public nuisance shall 
be charged against the owner or occupant of the premises and payment hereof shall be 
enforced as a special assessment as provided in section PM-110.4. 

 
  (Rev. 7-13-92) 
 
PM-110.2 Order: The order shall specify a time in which the owner shall comply therewith and specify 

repairs, if any, and shall include notice of the rights and limitations as provided in Section 
PM-110.2.1. It shall be served on the owner of record or his agent where an agent is in 
charge of the building and upon the holder of any encumbrance of record in the manner 
provided for service of a summons by a court of record. If the owner or a holder of an 
encumbrance of record cannot be found, the order may be served by posting it on the main 
entrance of the building and by publishing it once each week for three (3) successive 
weeks in a newspaper authorized to provide service by publication. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.2.1 Right of Appeal: The owner of a building or structure may appeal any such order to the City 

Council. The appeal shall be filed within ten (10) days of the date the order is served and a 
hearing shall be scheduled within fifteen (15) days of the date the appeal is filed. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.2.2 Restraining Actions: Anyone aggrieved by a decision of the City Council shall within twenty 

(20) days after notification of such decision apply to a court of record for an order 
restraining the code official from razing and removing such structure or parts thereof. The 
court shall determine whether the order of the code official is reasonable, and if found 
reasonable, the court shall dissolve the restraining order, and if found not reasonable, the 
court shall continue the restraining order or modify it as the circumstances may require. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.3 Failure to Comply: Whenever the owner of a property fails to comply with a demolition order 

within the time prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure or part thereof to be 
razed and removed whether through an available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be 
charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 
such real estate. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-110.5 Unreasonable Repairs: Wherever the code official determines that the cost of such repairs 

would exceed one hundred (100) percent of the current value of such structure, such 
repairs shall be presumed unreasonable and it shall be presumed for the purpose of this 
section that such structure is a public nuisance which may be ordered razed without option 



 3 

on the part of the owner to repair. 
 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-111 Section deleted. 
 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
PM-202.0 Applied Meaning of Words and Terms: The following words and terms are amended to 

read: 
 
  (Dwellings) 
 
  Boarding House, Lodging House, Tourist Home: a building arranged or used for lodging 

with or without meals, for compensation, by more than two (2) and not more than twenty 
(20) individuals. 

 
  One Family Dwelling: a building designed exclusively for occupancy by one (1) family.  
 
  Two Family Dwelling: a building designed exclusively for occupancy by two (2) families, 

independent of each other such as a duplex dwelling unit. 
 
  Family: One or two persons or parents, with their direct lineal descendants and adopted 

children (and including the domestic employees thereof) together with not more than two 
persons not so related, living together in the whole or part of a dwelling comprising a single 
housekeeping unit. 

 
  Rooming House: any residence building, or any part thereof, containing one or more 

rooming units, in which space is let by the owner or operator to more than two (2) persons, 
who are not members of the family.  

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-301.2 Maintenance Responsibility: Owners of structures and land that remain vacant for a period 

of more than 60 days shall register with the City of Troy, Building Department the name, 
address and telephone number of a responsible person. This person shall be responsible 
for the maintenance of the structure and land in compliance with the provisions of this code. 
Failure to comply with a request for repair or maintenance of structures and land within a 
prescribed time shall be cause for the Building Official to arrange for the repair and 
maintenance thereof through a public agency or private contract. The cost of such repair or 
maintenance shall be charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located 
and shall be a lien upon such real estate. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-306.3.1 Garbage Storage Facilities: Every dwelling unit shall be supplied with an approved garbage 

disposal facility, which shall be any adequate mechanical garbage disposal unit 
(mechanical in-sink grinder). In existing dwelling units, an approved outside garbage 
container or containers, as required in Section PM-306.3.2 shall be sufficient to meet the 
needs of the occupants. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-306.3.2 Containers: The operator of every establishment producing garbage, vegetable wastes, or 

other putrescible materials shall provide and at all times cause to be used, leakproof 



 4 

approved containers, provided with close fitting covers for the storage of such materials 
until removed from the premises for disposal, or have garbage disposal unit, as required in 
Section PM-306.3.1. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-602.2 Residential buildings: Every owner of any structure who rents, leases, or lets one or more 

dwelling units or guest rooms on terms, either express of implied, to furnish heat to the 
occupants thereof shall supply sufficient heat during the period of September 1 to June 1 to 
maintain a room temperature of not less than 70 degrees F. (21 degrees C.), in all habitable 
spaces, bathrooms, and toilet rooms during the hours between 6:30 a.m. and 10:30 p.m. of 
each day and maintain a temperature of not less than 65 degrees F. (18 degrees C.) during 
other hours. The temperature shall be measured at a point 3 feet (914mm) above the floor 
and 3 feet (914mm) from exterior walls. 

 
  Exception: When the exterior temperature falls below 0 degrees F. (-18 degrees C.) and 

the heating system is operating at its full capacity, a minimum room temperature of 65 
degrees F. (18 degrees C.) shall be maintained at all times.  

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-603.2 Cooking and Heating Equipment: All cooking and heating equipment, components, and 

accessories in every heating, cooking, and water heating device shall be maintained free 
from leaks and obstructions and kept functioning properly so as to be free from fire, health, 
and accident hazards. All installations and repairs shall be made in accordance with the 
provisions of the building code, or other laws or ordinances applicable thereto. Portable 
cooking equipment employing flame is prohibited in any area other than an area designated 
as a cooking room. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-702.3 Number of exits: Every story used for human occupancy shall be provided not less than two 

independent exits. Every story used for human occupancy totally below grade greater than 
2,000 square feet (186m²) shall be provided not less than two independent exits. 

 
  EXCEPTIONS: A single exit is acceptable when: 
 
  1. The Building is provided an automatic fire suppression system and an automatic fire 

alarm system with smoke detectors located in all corridors, lobbies and common 
area, or: 

 
  2. The building is provided an automatic fire alarm system and the exit is a 

smokeproof enclosure or pressurized stairway, or;  
 
  3. An existing fire escape or slidescape conforming to the building code is provided in 

addition to the single exit, or; 
 
  4. Buildings permitted to have one exit as described in the B.O.C.A. Building Code. 
 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-702.10 Information signs: A sign shall be provided at each floor landing in all interior stairways 

more than three stories above grade, designating the floor level above the floor of 
discharge. All elevator lobby call stations on all floor levels in buildings shall be marked with 
approved signs reading as follows: Use Stairways in Case of Fire - Do Not Use Elevators. 



 5 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-705.3 Fire standpipes: All buildings having floors used for human occupancy located more than 

40 feet (12192mm) above the grade shall be provided with standpipes according to the 
building code, except that an automatic water supply, hose, and cabinets are not required. 
The standpipes shall have an approved fire department connection with hose connections 
at each floor level. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-705.5.4 Smoke and heat detection: Each recirculating air or exhaust system which serves more 

than one floor in buildings which exceed 40 feet (12192mm) in height shall be equipped 
with approved smoke and heat detection devices in accordance with the mechanical code. 
The devices shall stop the fan(s) automatically and shall be of the manual reset type. 
Automatic fan shutdown is not required when the system is part of an approved smoke 
removal or control system. 

 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
PM-705.8 Use Group R-1 Structures: All buildings of Use Group R-1 as defined by the B.O.C.A. 

National Building Code shall be equipped with an approved quick response automatic fire 
suppression system. This requirement applied to all Use Group R-1 buildings that received 
an occupancy certificate before July 1, 1987. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-705.9 Alarm and Communications Systems: All buildings of Use Group R-1; as defined by the 

B.O.C.A. National Building Code which have floors for human occupancy located more 
than 40 feet above the lowest level of fire department access shall be equipped with an 
approved alarm and communications system consisting of a voice alarm system, a public 
address system, and a fire department communications system. This requirement applies 
to all Use Group R-1 buildings that received an occupancy certificate before July 1, 1987. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 
PM-706.1 Required: All buildings having three or more separate floor levels served by elevators shall 

have at least one elevator equipped with emergency controls and all elevators shall be 
equipped with car recall activated by a smoke detector in each lobby in accordance with the 
building code. 

 
  (Rev. 07-13-92) 
 
 
SECTION PM-708.1. COMPLIANCE DATE 
 
PM-708.1 Effective Date: All structures described in Section PM-705.8 and PM-705.9 shall comply 

with their provisions by having the retrofitting under contract within one year and completed 
within two years of the date that this amendment takes effect. 

 
  (Rev. 01-29-96) 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 1 
 

CHAPTER 1 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

SECTION PM-101.0 GENERAL 
 
PM-101.1 Title:  These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance Code 
of [NAME OF JURISDICTION] herinafter referred to as “this code”. 
 
PM-101.2 Scope:  This code is to protect the public health, safety and welfare in all 
existing structures, residential and nonresidential, and on all existing premises by 
establishing minimum requirements and standards for premises, structures, equipment, 
and facilities, for light, ventilation, space, heating, sanitation, protection from the 
elements, life safety, safety from fire and other hazards, and for safe and sanitary 
maintenance; fixing the responsibility of owners, operators and occupants; regulating 
the occupancy of existing structures and premises, and providing for administration, 
enforcement and penalties. 
 
PM-101.3 Intent:  This code shall be construed to secure its expressed intent, which is 
to insure public health, safety and welfare insofar as they are affected by the continued 
occupancy and maintenance of structures and premises.  Existing structures and 
premises that do not comply with these provisions shall be altered or repaired to provide 
a minimum level of health and safety as required herein. 
 
PM-101.4 Referenced standards:  The standards referenced in this code and listed in 
Chapter 8 shall be considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed 
extent of each such reference.  Where differences occur between provisions of this 
code and referenced standards, the provisions of this code shall apply. 
 
PM-101.5 Existing remedies:  The provisions in this code shall not be construed to 
abolish or impair existing remedies of the jurisdiction or its officers or agencies relating 
to the removal or demolition of any structure which is dangerous, unsafe and 
unsanitary. 
 
PM-101.6 Workmanship:  All repairs, maintenance work, alterations or installations 
which are caused directly or indirectly by the enforcement of this code shall be executed 
and installed in a workmanlike manner. 
 
PM-101.7 Application of other codes:  Any repairs, additions or alterations to a 
structure, or changes of occupancy, shall be done in accordance with the procedures 
and provisions of the building, plumbing and mechanical codes and NFiPA 70 listed in 
Chapter 8. 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 2 
 

SECTION PM-102.0 VALIDITY 
 
PM-102.1 Validity:  If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
of this code shall be declared invalid for any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not 
affect the remaining portions of this code which shall continue in full force and effect, 
and to this end the provisions of this code are hereby declared to be severable. 
 
PM-102.2 Saving clause:  This code shall not affect violations of any other ordinance, 
code or regulation existing prior to the effective date hereof, and any such violation shall 
be governed and shall continue to be punishable to the full extent of the law under the 
provisions of those ordinances, codes or regulations in effect at the time the violation 
was committed. 
 

SECTION PM-103.0 MAINTENANCE 
 
PM-103.1 Required:  All equipment, systems, devices and safeguards required by this 
code or a previous statute or code for the structure or premises when erected or altered 
shall be maintained in good working order.  The requirements of this code are not 
intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of fire protection and safety 
systems and devices in existing structures. 
 

SECTION PM-104.0 APPROVAL 
 
PM-104.1 Approved materials and equipment:  All materials, equipment and devices 
approved by the code official shall be constructed and installed in accordance with such 
approval. 
 
PM-104.2 Modifications:  Where there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out 
structural or mechanical provisions of this code, the code official shall have the right to 
vary or modify such provisions upon application of the owner or the owner’s 
representative, provided that the spirit and intent of the law is observed and that the 
public health, safety and welfare is assured. 
 

PM-104.2.1 Records:  The application for modification and the final 
decision of the code official shall be in writing and shall be officially 
recorded in the permanent records of the department. 
 

PM-104.3  Material and equipment reuse:  Materials, equipment and devices shall not 
be reused unless such elements have been reconditioned, tested and placed in good 
and proper working condition and approved. 
 
PM-104.4 Alternative materials and equipment:  The provisions of this code are not 
intended to prevent the installation of any material or method of construction not 
specifically prescribed by this code, provided that any such alternative has been 
approved.  An alternative material or method of construction shall be approved when 
the code official finds that the proposed design is satisfactory and complies with the 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 3 
 

intent of the provisions of this code, and that the material, method or work offered is, for 
the purpose intended, at least the equivalent of that prescribed in this code in quality, 
strength, effectiveness, fireresistance, durability and safety. 
 
PM-104.5  Research and investigations:  Sufficient technical data shall be submitted 
to substantiate the proposed installation of any material or assembly.  If it is determined 
that the evidence submitted is satisfactory proof of performance for the proposed 
installation, the code official shall approve such alternative subject to the requirements 
of this code.  The cost of all tests, reports and investigations required under these 
provisions shall be paid by the attendant. 
 

SECTION PM-105.0 DUTIES AND POWERS OF CODE OFFICIAL 
 
PM-105.1 General:  The code official shall enforce all of the provisions of this code. 
 
PM-105.2 Notices and orders:  The code official shall issue all necessary notices or 
orders to ensure compliance with the code. 
 
PM-105.3 Right of entry:  The code official is authorized to enter the structure or 
premises at reasonable times to inspect.  Prior to entering into a space not otherwise 
open to the general public, the code official shall make a reasonable effort to locate the 
owner or other person having charge or control of the structure or premises, present 
proper identification and request entry.  If requested entry is refused or not obtained, the 
code official shall pursue recourse as provided by law. 
 
PM-105.4 Access by owner or operator:  Every occupant of a structure or premises 
shall give the owner or operator thereof, or agent or employee, access to any part of 
such structure or its premises at reasonable times for the purpose of making such 
inspection, maintenance, repairs or alterations as are necessary to comply with the 
provisions of this code. 
 
PM-105.5 Identification:  The code official shall carry proper identification when 
inspecting structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 
 
PM-105.6 Coordination of enforcement:  Inspection of premises, the issuance of 
notices and orders and enforcement thereof shall be the responsibility of the code 
official so charged by the jurisdiction.  Whenever inspections are necessary by any 
other department, the code official shall make reasonable effort to arrange for the 
coordination of such inspections so as to minimize the number of visits by inspectors, 
and to confer with the other departments for the purpose of eliminating conflicting orders 
before any are issued.  A department shall not, however, delay the issuance of any 
emergency orders. 
 
PM-105.7 Rule-making authority:  The code official shall have power as necessary in 
the interest of public health, safety and general welfare, to adopt and promulgate rules 
and regulations to interpret and implement the provisions of this code to secure the 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 4 
 

intent thereof and to designate requirements applicable because of local climatic or 
other conditions.  Such rules shall not have the effect of waiving structural or fire 
performance requirements specifically provided for in this code or of violating accepted 
engineering practice involving public safety. 
 
PM-105.8 Organization:  The code official shall appoint such number of officers, 
technical assistants, inspectors and other employees as shall be necessary for the 
administration of this code and as authorized by the appointing authority.  The code 
official is authorized to designate an employee as deputy who shall exercise all the 
powers of the code official during the temporary absence or disability of the code 
official. 
 
PM-105.9 Restriction of employees:  An official or employee connected with the 
enforcement of this code, except one whose only connection is that of a member of the 
board of appeals established under the provisions of Section PM-111.0, shall not be 
engaged in, or directly or indirectly connected with, the furnishing of labor, materials or 
appliances for the construction, alteration or maintenance of a building, or the 
preparation of construction documents thereof, unless that person is the owner of the 
building; nor shall such officer or employee engage in any work that conflicts with official 
duties or with the interests of the department. 
 
PM-105.10 Relief from personal responsibility:  The code official, officer or employee 
charged with the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction, shall not 
thereby be rendered liable personally, and is hereby relieved from all personal liability 
for any damage accruing to persons or property as a result of any act required or 
permitted in the discharge of official duties.  Any suit instituted against an officer or 
employee because of an act performed by that officer or employee in the lawful 
discharge of duties and under the provisions of this code shall be defended by the legal 
representative of the jurisdiction until the final termination of the proceedings.  The code 
official or any subordinate shall not be liable for costs in any action, suit or proceeding 
that is instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this code; and any officer of the 
department of building inspection, acting in good faith and without malice, shall be free 
from liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by reason of any act or 
omission in the performance of official duties in connection therewith. 
 
PM-105.11 Official records:  An official record shall be kept of all business and 
activities of the department specified in the provisions of this code, and all such records 
shall be open to public inspection at all appropriate times and according to reasonable 
rules to maintain the integrity and security of such record. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 5 
 

SECTION PM-106.0 VIOLATIONS 
 

PM-106.1 Unlawful acts:  It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to 
erect, construct, alter, extend, repair, remove, demolish, maintain, fail to maintain, 
provide, fail to provide, occupy, let to another or occupy or permit another person to 
occupy any structure or equipment regulated by this code, or cause same to be done, 
contrary to or in conflict with or in violation of any of the provisions of this code, or to fail 
to obey a lawful order of the code official, or to remove or deface a placard or notice 
posted under the provisions of this code. 
 
PM-106.2 Penalty:  Any person who shall violate a provision of this code shall, upon 
conviction thereof, be subject to a fine of not less than [AMOUNT] nor more than 
[AMOUNT] or imprisonment for a term not to exceed [NUMBER] days, or both, at the 
discretion of the court.  Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been 
serviced shall be deemed a separate offense. 
 
PM-106.3 Prosecution:  In case of any unlawful acts the code official shall institute an 
appropriate action or proceeding at law to exact the penalty provided in Section PM-
106.2.  Also, the code official shall ask the jurisdiction’s legal representative to proceed 
at law or in equity against the person responsible for the violation for the purpose of 
ordering that person: 
  
1. To restrain, correct or remove the violation or refrain from any further 

execution of work; 
2. To restrain or correct the erection, installation, maintenance, repair or 

alteration of such structure; 
3. To require the removal of work in violation; or 
4. To prevent the occupancy of the structure that is not in compliance with 

the provisions of this code. 
 

SECTION PM-107.0 NOTICES AND ORDERS 
 

PM-107.1 Notice to owner or to person or persons responsible:  Whenever the 
code official determines that there has been a violation of this code or has grounds to 
believe that a violation has occurred, notice shall be give to the owner or the person or 
persons responsible therefore in the manner prescribed in Sections PM-107.2 and PM-
107.3.  Notices for condemnation procedures shall also comply with Section PM-108.3 
 
PM-107.2 Form:  Such notice prescribed in Section PM-107.1 shall: 
 
1.  Be in writing. 
2.  Include a description of the real estate sufficient for identification. 
3. Include a statement of the reason or reasons why the notice is being 

issued; and 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 6 
 

4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable time for the repairs and 
improvements required to bring the dwelling unit or structure into 
compliance with the provisions of this code. 

 
PM-107.3 Method of service:  Such notice shall be deemed to be properly served if a 
copy thereof is (a) delivered to the owner personally; or (b) sent by certified or 
registered mail addressed to the owner at the last known address with return receipt 
requested.  If the certified or registered letter is returned showing that the letter was not 
delivered, a copy thereof shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the 
structure affected by such notice.  Service of such notice in the foregoing manner upon 
the owner’s agent or upon the person responsible for the structure shall constitute 
service of notice upon the owner. 
 
PM-107.4 Penalties:  Penalties for noncompliance with orders and notices shall be as 
set forth in Section PM-106.2. 
 
PM-107.5 Transfer of ownership:  It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling 
unit or structure who has received a compliance order or upon whom a notice of 
violation has been served to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of to 
another until the provisions of the compliance order or notice of violation have been 
complied with, or until such owner shall first furnish the grantee, transferee, mortgagee 
or lessee a true copy of any compliance order or notice of violation issued by the code 
official and shall furnish to the code official a signed and notarized statement from the 
grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of such 
compliance order or notice of violation and fully accepting the responsibility without 
condition for making the corrections or repairs required by such compliance order or 
notice of violation.  
 

SECTION PM-108.01 UNSAFE STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT 
 

PM-108.1 General:  When a structure or equipment is found by the code official to be 
unsafe, or when a structure is found unfit for human occupancy, or is found unlawful, 
such structure shall be condemned pursuant to the provisions of this code. 
 

PM-108.1.1. Unsafe structure:  An unsafe structure is one that is found to be 
dangerous to the life, health, property or safety of the public or the occupants of 
the structure by not providing minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants  
in the event of fire, or because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so 
damaged, decayed, dilapidated, structurally unsafe, or of such faulty construction 
or unstable foundation, that partial or complete collapse is likely. 
 
PM-108.1.2 Unsafe equipment:  Unsafe equipment includes any boiler, heating 
equipment, elevator, moving stairway, electrical wiring or device, flammable 
liquid containers or other equipment on the premises or within the structure which 
is in such disrepair or condition that such equipment is a hazard to life, health, 
property or safety of the public or occupants of the premises or structure. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 7 
 

PM-108.1.3 Structure unfit for human occupancy:  A structure is unfit for 
human occupancy whenever the code official finds that such structure is unsafe, 
unlawful or, because of the degree to which the structure is in disrepair or lacks 
maintenance, is unsanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and 
contamination, or lacks ventilation, illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or 
other essential equipment required by this code, or because the location of the 
structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public. 
 
PM-108.1.4 Unlawful structure:  An unlawful structure is one found in whole or 
in part to be occupied by more persons than permitted under this code, or was 
erected, altered or occupied contrary to law. 
 

  
PM-108.2 Closing of vacant structures:  If the structure is vacant and unfit for human 
habitation and occupancy, and is not in danger of structural collapse, the code official is 
authorized to post a placard of condemnation on the premises and order the structure 
closed up so as not be an attractive nuisance.  Upon failure of the owner to close up the 
premises within the time specified in the order, the code official shall cause the 
premises to be closed through any available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement by private persons and the cost thereof shall be charged against the real 
estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate. 
 
PM-108.3 Notice:  Whenever the code official has condemned a structure or equipment 
under the provisions of this section, notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or 
about the structure affected by such notice and served on the owner or the person or 
persons responsible for the structure or equipment in accordance with Section PM-
107.3.  The notice shall be in the form prescribed in Section PM-107.2. 
 
PM-108.4 Placarding:  Upon failure of the owner or person responsible to comply with 
the notice provisions within the time given, the code official shall post on the premises 
or on defective equipment, a placard bearing the word “Condemned” and a statement of 
the penalties provided for occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing 
the placard. 
 
PM-108.5 Prohibited occupancy:  Any person who shall occupy a placarded premises 
or shall operate placarded equipment, and any owner or any person responsible for the 
premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded premises or operate placarded 
equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this code. 
 
PM-108.6 Removal of placard:  The code official shall remove the condemnation 
placard whenever the defect or defects upon which the condemnation and placarding 
action were based have been eliminated.  Any person who defaces or removes a 
condemnation placard without the approval of the code official shall be subject to the 
penalties provided by this code. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 8 
 

SECTION PM-109.0 EMERGENCY MEASURES 
 

PM-109.1 Imminent danger:  When, in the opinion of the code official, there is 
imminent danger of failure or collapse of a building or structure which endangers life, or 
when any structure or part of a structure has fallen and life is endangered by the 
occupation of the structure, or when there is actual or potential danger to the building 
occupants or those in the proximity of any structure because of explosives, explosive 
fumes or vapors or the presence of toxic fumes, gases or materials, or operation of 
defective or dangerous equipment, the code official is hereby authorized and 
empowered to order and require the occupants to vacate the premises forthwith.  The 
code official shall cause to be posted at each entrance to such structure a notice 
reading as follows:  “This Structure is Unsafe and its Occupancy has been Prohibited by 
the Code Official.”  It shall be unlawful for any person to enter such structure except for 
the purpose of securing the structure, making the required repairs, removing the 
hazardous condition, or of demolishing the same. 
 
PM-109.2 Temporary safeguards:  Notwithstanding other provisions of this code, 
whenever, in the opinion of the code official, there is imminent danger due to an unsafe 
condition, the code official shall order the necessary work to be done, including the 
boarding-up of openings, to render such structure temporarily safe whether or not the 
legal procedure herein described has been instituted; and shall cause such other action 
to be taken as the code official deems necessary to meet such emergency. 
 
PM-109.3 Closing streets:  When necessary for the public safety, the code official shall 
temporarily close structures and close, or order the authority having jurisdiction to close, 
sidewalks, streets, public ways and places adjacent to unsafe structures, and prohibit 
the same from being utilized. 
 
PM-109.4 Emergency repairs:  For the purpose of this section, the code official shall 
employ the necessary labor and materials to perform the required work as expeditiously 
as possible. 
 
PM-109.5 Costs of emergency repairs:  Costs incurred in the performance of 
emergency work shall be paid from the treasury of the jurisdiction on approval of the 
code official.  The legal counsel of the jurisdiction shall institute appropriate action 
against the owner of the premises where the unsafe structure is or was located for the 
recovery of such costs. 
 
PM-109.6 Hearing:  Any person ordered to take emergency measures shall comply 
with such order forthwith.  Any affected person shall thereafter, upon petition directed to 
the appeals board, be afforded a hearing as described in this code. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 9 
 

SECTION PM-110.0 DEMOLITION 
 

PM-110.01 General:  The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon 
which is located any structure, which in the code official’s judgement is so old, 
dilapidated or has become so out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or 
otherwise unfit for human habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to 
repair the structure, to raze and remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of 
being made safe by repairs, to repair and make safe and sanitary or to raze and remove 
at the owner’s option; or where there has been a cessation of normal construction of 
any structure for a period of more than two years, to raze and remove such structure. 
 
PM-110.2 Order:  All notices and orders shall comply with Section PM-107.0. 
 
PM-110.3 Failure to comply:  If the owner of a premises fails to comply with a 
demolition order within the time prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure to 
be razed and removed, either through an available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be 
charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien 
upon such real estate. 
 
PM-110.4 Salvage materials:  When any structure has been ordered razed and 
removed, the governing body or other designated officer under said contract or 
arrangement aforesaid shall have the right to sell the salvage and valuable materials at 
the highest price obtainable.  The net proceeds of such sale, after deducting the 
expenses of such razing and removal, shall be promptly remitted with a report of such 
sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the amounts deducted, for the 
person who is entitled thereto, subject to any order of a court.  If such a surplus does 
not remain to be turned over, the report shall so state. 
 

SECTION PM-111.0 MEANS OF APPEAL 
 

PM-111.1 Application for appeal:  Any person affected by a decision of the code 
official or a notice or order issued under this code shall have the right to appeal to the 
board of appeals, provided that a written application for appeal is filed within 20 days 
after the day the decision, notice or order was served.  An application for appeal shall 
be based on a claim that the true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted 
thereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully 
apply, or the requirements of this code are adequately satisfied by other means. 
 
PM-111.2 Membership of the board:  The board of appeals shall consist of five 
members appointed by the chief appointing authority as follows:  one for five years, one 
for four years, one for three years, one for two years, and one for one year.  Thereafter, 
each new member shall service for five years or until a successor has been appointed. 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 10 
 

PM-111.2.1 Qualifications:  The board of appeals, shall consist of five 
individuals, one from each of the following professions or disciplines: 

 
1.  Registered design professional  that is a registered architect; or a 
builder or superintendent of building construction with at least ten-years 
experience, five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work. 
 
2.  Registered design professional with structural engineering or 
architectural experience. 
 
3.  Registered design professional with mechanical or plumbing 
engineering experience; or a mechanical or plumbing contractor with at 
least ten-years experience, five of which shall have been in responsible 
charge of work. 
 
4.  Registered design professional with electrical engineering experience; 
or an electrical contractor with at least ten-years experience, five of which 
shall have been in responsible charge of work. 
 
5.  Registered design professional with fire protection engineering 
experience; or a fire protection contractor with at least ten-years 
experience, five of which shall have been in responsible charge of work. 
 

PM-111.2.2  Alternate members:  The chief appointing authority shall appoint 
two alternate members who shall be called by the board chairman to hear 
appeals during the absence or disqualification of a member.  Alternate members 
shall possess the same qualifications required for board membership, and shall 
be appointed for five years or until a successor has been appointed. 

 
PM-111.2.3  Chairman:  The board shall annually select one of its members to 
serve as chairman. 

 
PM-111.2.4  Disqualification of member:  A member shall not hear an appeal 
in which that member has any personal, professional or financial interest. 

 
PM-111.2.5  Secretary:  The chief administrative officer shall designate a 
qualified clerk to service as secretary to the board.  The secretary shall file a 
detailed record of all proceedings in the office of the chief administrative officer. 
 
PM-111.2.6  Compensation of members:  Compensation of members shall be 
determined by law. 
 

PM-111.3  Notice of meeting:  The board shall meet upon notice from the chairman, 
within ten days of the filing of an appeal, or at stated periodic meetings. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 11 
 

PM-111.4  Open hearing:  All hearings before the board shall be open to the public.  
The appellant, the appellant’s representative, the code official, and any person whose 
interests are affected shall be given an opportunity to be heard. 
 

PM-111.4.1 Procedure:  The board shall adopt and make available to the public 
through the secretary, procedures under which a hearing will be conducted.  The 
procedures shall not require compliance with strict rules of evidence but shall 
mandate that only relevant information be received. 
 

PM-111.5  Postponed hearing:  When five members are not present to hear an 
appeal, either the appellant or the appellant’s representative shall have the right to 
request a postponement of the hearing. 
 
PM-111.6 Board decision:  The board shall modify or reverse the decision of the code 
official by a concurring vote of three members. 
 

PM-111.6.1  Resolution:  The decision of the board shall be by resolution.  
Certified copies shall be furnished to appellant and to the code official. 
 
PM-111.6.2  Administration:  The code official shall take immediate action in 
accordance with the decision of the board. 
 

PM-111.7 Court review:  Any person, whether or not a previous party of the appeal, 
shall have the right to apply to the appropriate court for a writ of certiorari to correct 
errors of law.  Application for review shall be made in the manner and time required by 
law following the filing of the decision in the office of the chief administrative officer. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 12 
 

CHAPTER 2 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

 
SECTION PM-201.0 GENERAL 

 
PM-201.1  Scope:  Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following terms shall, for the 
purposes of this code, have the meanings shown in this chapter. 
 
PM-201.2  Interchangeability:  Words stated in the present tense include the future; 
words stated in the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter; the singular 
number includes the plural and the plural the singular. 
 
PM-201.3  Terms defined in other codes:    Where terms are not defined in this code 
and are defined in the building, plumbing or mechanical codes listed in Chapter 8, such 
terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as in those codes. 
 
PM-201.4  Terms not defined:  Where terms are not defined, through the methods 
authorized by this section, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as 
the context implies. 
 
PM-201.5  Parts:  Whenever the words “dwelling unit,”  “dwelling,” premises”, “building”, 
“rooming house,”  “rooming unit,” story” or “structure” are stated in this code, they shall 
be construed as though they were followed by the words “or any part thereof.” 
 

SECTION PM-202.0 GENERAL DEFINITIONS 
 

Approved:  Approved by the code official. 
 
Basement:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Bathroom:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Building:  Any structure occupied or intended for supporting or sheltering any 
occupancy. 
 
Building code:  The building code officially adopted by the legislative body of this 
jurisdiction, or other such codes officially designated by the legislative body of the 
jurisdiction for the regulation of construction, alteration, addition, repair, removal, 
demolition, location, occupancy and maintenance of buildings and structures. 
 
Code official:  The official who is charged with the administration and enforcement of 
this code, or any duly authorized representative. 
 
Condemn:  To adjudge unfit for occupancy. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 13 
 

 
Construction documents:  All the written, graphic and pictorial documents prepared or 
assembled for describing the design, location and physical characteristics of the 
elements of the project necessary for obtaining a building permit.  The construction 
drawings shall be drawn to an appropriate scale. 
 
Dwellings:  (See Section PM-201.5) 
 

Dormitory:  A space in a building where group sleeping accommodations are 
provided in one room, or in a series of closely associate rooms, for persons not 
members of the same family group. 
Dwelling unit:  A single unit providing complete, independent living facilities for 
one or more persons, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 
cooking and sanitation. 
Hotel:  Any building containing six or more guestrooms, intended or designed to 
be occupied, for sleeping purposes by guests. 
One-family dwelling:  A building containing one dwelling unit with not more than 
five lodgers or boarders. 
Rooming house:  A building arranged or occupied for lodging, with or without 
meals, for compensation and not occupied as a one-family dwelling or a two-
family dwelling. 
Rooming unit:  Any room or group of rooms forming a single habitable unit 
occupied or intended to be occupied for sleeping or living, but not for cooking 
purposes. 
Two-family dwelling:  A building containing two dwelling units with not more 
than five lodgers or boarders per family. 
 

Exterior property:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Extermination:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Family:  An individual or married couple and the children thereof with not more than two 
other persons related directly to the individual or married couple by blood or marriage; 
or a group of not more than five unrelated persons, living together as a single 
housekeeping unit in a dwelling unit. 
 
Garbage:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Habitable space:  See Section PM-402.0. 
 
Infestation:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Let for occupancy or let:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Occupancy:  The purpose for which a building or portion thereof is utilized or occupied. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 14 
 

Occupant:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Openable area:  See Section PM-402.0. 
 
Operator:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Owner:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Person:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Plumbing:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Plumbing fixture:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Premises:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Public nuisance:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Registered design professional:  An architect or engineer, registered or licenses to 
practice professional architecture or engineering, as defined by the statutory 
requirements of the professional registration laws of the state in which the project is to 
be constructed. 
 
Rubbish:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
Structure:  That which is built or constructed or a portion thereof. 
 
Toilet room:  See Section PM-502.0. 
 
Ventilation:  See Section PM-402.0. 
 
Workmanlike:  Executed in a skilled manner; e.g., generally plumb, level, square, in 
line, undamaged, and without marring adjacent work. 
 
Yard:  See Section PM-302.0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 15 
 

CHAPTER 3 
 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION PM-301.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-301.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and the responsibilities of persons for maintenance of structures, equipment and 
exterior property. 
 
PM-301.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the premises shall maintain the structures and 
exterior property in compliance with these requirements, except as otherwise provided 
in Sections PM-306.0 and PM-307.0.  A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or 
permit another person to occupy premises which do not comply with the requirements of 
this chapter. 
 
PM-301.3  Vacant structures and land:  All vacant structures and premises  thereof or 
vacant land shall be maintained in a clean, safe, secure and sanitary condition as 
provided herein so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the public 
health or safety. 
 

SECTION PM-302.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

PM-301.1 General:  The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this 
chapter and as stated elsewhere in this code, have the meanings show herein. 
 
 Basement:  That portion of a structure which is partly or completely below grade. 
 

Exterior property:  The open space on the premises and on adjoining property 
under the control of owners or operators of such premises. 

 
Extermination:  The control and elimination of insects, rats or other pests by 
eliminating their harborage places; by removing or making inaccessible materials 
that serve as their food; by poison spraying, fumigating, trapping or by any other 
approved pest elimination methods. 

 
Garbage:  The animal and vegetable waste resulting from the handling, 
preparation, cooking and consumption of food. 
 
Infestation:  The presence, within or contiguous to, a structure or premises of 
insects, rats, vermin or other pests. 
 
Let for occupancy or let:  To permit possession or occupancy of a dwelling, 
dwelling unit, rooming unit, building or structure by a person who is or is not the 
legal owner of record thereof, pursuant to a written or unwritten lease, agreement 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 16 
 

or license, or pursuant to a recorded or unrecorded agreement of contract for the 
sale of land. 
 
Occupant:  Any person living or sleeping in a building; or having possession of a 
space within a building. 
 
Operator:  Any person who has charge, care or control of a structure or 
premises which is let or offered for occupancy. 
 
Owner:  Any person, agent, operator, firm or corporation having a legal or 
equitable interest in the property; or recorded in the official records of the state, 
county or municipality as holding title to the property; or otherwise having control 
of the property, including the guardian of the estate of any such person, and the 
executor or administrator of the estate of such person if ordered to take 
possession of real property by a court. 
 
Person:  An individual, corporation, partnership or any other group acting as a 
unit. 
 
Premises:  A lot, plot or parcel of land including any structures thereon. 
 
Public nuisance:  Includes the following: 
1.  The physical condition or occupancy of any premises regarded as a  
      public nuisance at common law; or 
2.  Any physical condition or occupancy of any premises or its appurtenances  

considered an attractive nuisance to children, including, but not limited to,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
abandoned wells, shafts, basements, excavations and unsafe fences or 
structures; or 

 3.  Any premises that has unsanitary sewerage or plumbing facilities; or 
 4.  Any premises designated as unsafe for human habitation; or 
 5.  Any premises that is manifestly capable of being a fire hazard, or is manifestly  

     unsafe or unsecure so as to endanger life, limb or property; or 
6.  Any premises  from which the plumbing, heating or facilities required by this       

code have been removed, or from which utilities have been disconnected,                     
destroyed, removed or rendered ineffective, or the required precautions 
against trespassers have not been provided; or 

7.  Any premises that is unsanitary, or that is littered with rubbish or garbage, or   
     that has an uncontrolled growth of weeds; or 
8.  Any structure that is in a state of dilapidation, deterioration or decay; faulty 

construction; overcrowded; open, vacant or abandoned; damaged by fire to 
the extent so as not to provide shelter; in danger of collapse or failure; and 
dangerous to anyone on or near the premises. 
 

Rubbish:  Combustible and noncombustible waste materials, except garbage; 
the term shall include the residue from the burning of wood, coal, coke and other 
combustible materials, paper, rags, cartons, boxes, wood, excelsior, rubber, 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 17 
 

leather, tree branches, yard trimmings, tin cans, metals mineral matter, glass, 
crockery and dust and other similar materials. 

 
 Yard:  An open space on the same lot with a structure. 
 

SECTION PM-303.0 EXTERIOR PROPERTY AREAS 
 

PM-303.1 Sanitation:  All exterior property and premises shall be maintained in a 
clean, safe and sanitary condition.  The occupant shall keep that part of the exterior 
property which such occupant occupies or controls in a clean and sanitary condition. 
 
PM-303.2 Grading and drainage:  All premises shall be graded and maintained to 
prevent the accumulation of stagnant water thereon, or within any structure located 
thereon. 
 
 Exception:  Water retention areas and reservoirs approved by the code official. 
 
PM-303.3 Sidewalks and driveways:  All sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, 
parking spaces and similar areas shall be kept in a proper state of repair, and 
maintained free from hazardous conditions.  Stairs shall comply with the requirements 
of Section PM-304.10 and PM-702.9. 
 
PM-303.4 Weeds:  All premises and exterior property shall be maintained free from 
weeds or plant growth in excess of 10 inches (254mm).  All noxious weeds shall be 
prohibited.  Weeds shall be defined as all grasses, annual plants and vegetation, other 
than trees or shrubs provided; however, this term shall not include cultivated flowers 
and gardens. 
 
PM-303.5 Rat harborage:  All structures and exterior property shall be kept free from 
rat infestation.  Where rats are found, they shall be promptly exterminated by approved 
processes which will not be injurious to human health.  After extermination, proper 
precautions shall be taken to prevent reinfestation. 
 
PM-303.6 Exhaust vents:  Pipes, ducts, conductors, fans or blowers shall not 
discharge gases, steam, vapor, hot air, grease, smoke, odors or other gaseous or 
particulate wastes directly upon abutting or adjacent public or private property or that of 
another tenant. 
 
PM-303.7 Accessory structures:  All accessory structures, including detached 
garages, fences and walls, shall be maintained structurally sound and in good repair. 
 
PM-303.8 Motor vehicles:  Except as provided for in other regulations, not more than 
one currently unregistered or uninspected motor vehicle shall be parked, kept or stored 
on any premises, and no vehicle shall at any time be in a state of major disassembly, 
disrepair, or in the process of being stripped or dismantled. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 18 
 

Exception:  A vehicle of any type is permitted to undergo major overhaul, 
including body work, provided that such work is performed inside a structure or 
similarly enclosed area designed and approved for such purposes. 
 

SECTION PM-304.0 EXTERIOR STRUCTURE 
 

PM-304.1 General:  The exterior of a structure shall be maintained in good repair, 
structurally sound and sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, safety or 
welfare. 
 
PM-304.2 Street numbers:  Each structure to which a street number has been 
assigned shall have such number displayed in a position easily observed and readable 
from the public right-of-way.  All numbers shall be in Arabic numerals at least 3 inches 
(76 mm) and ½ inch (13 mm) stroke. 
 
PM-304.3 Structural members:  All structural members shall be maintained free from 
deterioration, and shall be capable of safely supporting the imposed dead and live 
loads. 
 
PM-304.4 Foundation walls:  All foundation walls shall be maintained plumb and free 
from open cracks and breaks and shall be kept in such condition so as to prevent the 
entry of rats. 
 
PM-304.5 Exterior walls:  All exterior walls shall be free from holes, breaks, loose or 
rotting materials; and maintained weatherproof and properly surface coated where 
required to prevent deterioration. 
 
PM-304.6 Roofs and drainage:  The roof and flashing shall be sound, tight and not 
have defects that admit rain.  Roof drainage shall be adequate to prevent dampness or 
deterioration in the walls or interior portion of the structure.  Roof water shall not be 
discharged in a manner that creates a public nuisance. 
 
PM-304.7 Decorative features:  All cornices, belt courses, corbels, terra cotta trim, wall 
facings and similar decorative features shall be maintained in good repair with property 
anchorage and in a safe condition. 
 
PM-304.8 Overhang extensions:  All canopies, marquees, signs, metal awnings, 
stairways, fire escapes, standpipes, exhaust ducts and similar overhang extensions 
shall be maintained in good repair and be properly anchored so as to be kept in a safe 
and sound condition.  When required, all exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be 
protected from the elements and against decay or rust by periodic application of 
weather-coating materials, such as paint or similar surface treatment. 
 
PM-304.9 Chimneys and towers:  All chimneys, cooling towers, smoke stacks, and 
similar appurtenances shall be maintained structurally safe and sound, and in good 
repair.  All exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be protected from the elements and 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 19 
 

against decay or rust by periodic application of weather-coating materials, such as paint 
or similar surface treatment. 
 
PM-304.10 Handrails and guards:  Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in good 
condition. 
 
PM-304.11 Window and door frames:  Every window, door and frame shall be kept in 
sound condition, good repair and weather tight. 
 

PM-304.11.1 Glazing:  All glazing materials shall be maintained free from cracks 
and holes. 
 
PM-304.11.2 Openable windows:  Every window, other than a fixed window, 
shall be easily openable and capable of being held in position by window 
hardware. 
 

PM-304.12 Insect screens:  During the period from [DATE] to [DATE], every door, 
window and outside opening utilized or required for ventilation purposes serving any 
structure containing habitable rooms, food preparation areas, food service areas, or any 
areas where products to be included or utilized in food for human consumption are 
processed, manufactured, packaged or stored, shall be supplied with approved tightly 
fitting screens of not less than 16 mesh per inch and every swinging door shall have a 
self-closing device in good working condition. 
 

Exception:  Screen doors shall not be required for out-swinging doors or other 
types of openings which make screening impractical, provided other approved 
means, such as air curtains or insect repellent fans are employed. 
 

PM-304.13 Doors:  All exterior doors and hardware shall be maintained in good 
condition.  Locks at all entrances to dwelling units, rooming units and guestrooms shall 
tightly secure the door. 
 
PM-304.14 Basement hatchways:  Every basement hatchway shall be maintained to 
prevent the entrance of rats, rain and surface drainage water. 
 
PM-304.15 Guards for basement windows:  Every basement window that is openable 
shall be supplied with ratproof shields, storm windows or other approved protection 
against the entry of rats. 
 

SECTION PM-305.0 INTERIOR STRUCTURE 
 

PM-305.1 General:  The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be 
maintained in good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition.  Every 
occupant shall keep that part of the structure which such occupant occupies or controls 
in a clean and sanitary condition.  Every owner of a structure containing a rooming 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 20 
 

house, a hotel, a dormitory, two or more dwelling units or two or more nonresidential 
occupancies, shall maintain, in a clean and sanitary condition, the shared or public 
areas of the structure and exterior property. 
 
PM-305.2 Structural members:  The supporting structural members of every structure 
shall be maintained structurally sound, and be capable of supporting the imposed loads. 
 
PM-305.3 Interior surfaces:  All interior surfaces, including windows and doors, shall 
be maintained in good, clean and sanitary condition.  Peeling paint, cracked or loose 
plaster, decayed wood, and other defective surface conditions shall be corrected. 
 
PM-305.4 Lead-based paint:  Interior and exterior painted surfaces of dwellings and 
child and day care facilities, including fences and outbuildings, which contain in excess 
of 0.06 percent lead by weight shall be removed or covered in an approved manner.  
Any surface to be covered shall first be marked with warnings as to the lead content of 
such surface. 
 
PM-305.5 Stairs and railings:  All interior stairs and railings shall be maintained in 
sound condition and good repair. 
 
PM-305.5 Handrails and guards:  Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in good 
condition. 
 

SECTION PM-306.0 RUBBISH AND GARBAGE 
 
PM-306.1 Accumulation of rubbish or garbage:  All exterior property and premises, 
and the interior of every structure shall be free from any accumulation of rubbish or 
garbage. 
 
PM-306.2 Disposal of rubbish:  Every occupant of a structure shall dispose of all 
rubbish in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such rubbish in approved containers. 
 

PM-306.2.1 Rubbish storage facilities:  The owner of every occupied premises 
shall supply approved covered containers for rubbish, and the owner of the 
premises shall be responsible for the removal of rubbish. 
 

PM-306.3 Disposal of garbage:  Every occupant of a structure shall dispose of 
garbage in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such garbage in an approved 
garbage disposal facility or approved garbage containers. 
 

PM-306.3.1 Garbage facilities:  The owner of every dwelling shall supply one of 
the following:  an approved mechanical food waste grinder in each dwelling unit, 
an approved incinerator unit in the structure available to the occupants in each 
dwelling unit, or an approved leakproof, covered, outside garbage container. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 21 
 

PM-306.3.2 Containers:  The operator of every establishment producing 
garbage shall provide, and at all times cause to be utilized, leakproof approved 
containers provided with close-fitting covers for the storage of such materials 
until removed from the premises for disposal. 
 

SECTION PM-307.0 EXTERMINATION 
 

PM-307.1 Infestation:  All structures shall be kept free from insect and rat infestation.  
All structures in which insects or rats are found shall be promptly exterminated by 
approved processes that will not be injurious to human health.  After extermination, 
proper precautions shall be taken to prevent reinfestation. 
 
PM-307.2 Owner:  The owner of any structure shall be responsible for extermination 
within the structure prior to renting or leasing the structure. 
 
PM-307.3 Single occupancy:  The occupant of a structure containing a single dwelling 
unit or of a single nonresidential structure shall be responsible for extermination on the 
premises. 
 
PM-307.4 Multiple occupancy:  The owner of a structure containing two or more 
dwelling units, a multiple occupancy, a rooming house or a nonresidential structure shall 
be responsible for extermination in the public or shared areas of the structure and 
exterior property.  If infestation is caused by failure of an occupant to prevent such 
infestation in the area occupied, the occupants shall be responsible for extermination. 
 
PM-307.5 Occupant:  The occupant of any structure shall be responsible for the 
continued ratproof condition of the structure, and if the occupant fails to maintain the 
ratproof condition, the cost of extermination shall be the responsibility of the occupant. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 22 
 

CHAPTER 4 
 

LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS 
 
 

SECTION PM-401.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-401.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for light, ventilation and space for the occupancy of a structure. 
 
PM-401.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain light, 
ventilation and space conditions in compliance with these requirements.  A person shall 
not occupy as owner-occupant, or permit another person to occupy any premises that 
do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 
PM-401.3 Alternative devices:  In lieu of the means for natural light and ventilation  
herein prescribed, artificial light or mechanical ventilation complying with the building 
code listed in Chapter 8 shall be permitted. 
 

SECTION PM-402.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

PM-402.1 General:  The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this 
chapter and as stated elsewhere in this code, have the meanings shown herein. 
 

Habitable space:  Space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking.  
Bathrooms, toilet compartments, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces, and 
similar areas are not considered habitable spaces. 

 
Openable area:  That part of a window or door which is available for 
unobstructed ventilation and which opens directly to the outdoors. 

 
Ventilation:  The natural or mechanical process of supplying conditioned or 
unconditioned air to, or removing such air from, any space. 

 
SECTION PM-403.0 LIGHT 

 
PM-403.1 Habitable spaces:  Every habitable space shall have at least one window of 
approved size facing directly to the outdoors or to a court.  The minimum total window 
area, measured between stops, for every habitable space shall be 8 percent of the floor 
area of such room, except in kitchens where artificial light is provided in accordance 
with the provisions of the building code listed in Chapter 8.  Wherever walls or other 
portions of a structure face a window of any room and such obstructions are located 
less than 3 feet (914 mm) from the window and extend to a level above that of the 
ceiling of the room, such window shall not be deemed to face directly to the outdoors 
nor to a court and shall not be included as contributing to the required minimum total 
window area for the room. 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 23 
 

PM-403.2 Common halls and stairways:  Every common hall and stairway, other than 
in one- and two-family dwellings, shall be lighted at all times with at least a 60-watt 
standard incandescent light bulb or equivalent for each 200 square feet (19 m2) of floor 
area, provided that the spacing between lights shall not be greater than 30 feet (9144 
mm).  Every exterior stairway shall be illuminated with a minimum of 1 footcandle (11 
lux) at floors, landings and treads. 
 
PM-403.3 Other spaces:  All other spaces shall be provided with natural or artificial 
light sufficient to permit the maintenance of sanitary conditions, and the safe occupancy 
of the space and utilization of the appliances, equipment and fixtures. 
 

SECTION PM-404.0 VENTILATION 
 

PM-404.1 Habitable spaces:  Every habitable space shall have at least one openable 
window.  The total openable area of the window in every room shall be equal to at least 
45 percent of the minimum glazed area required in Section PM-403.1. 
 
PM-404.2 Bathrooms and toilet rooms:  Every bathroom and toilet room shall comply 
with the ventilation requirements for habitable spaces as required by Section PM-404.1, 
except that a window shall not be required in spaces equipped with a mechanical 
ventilation system that complies with the following: 
 

1. Air exhausted by a mechanical ventilation system from a bathroom within 
a dwelling unit shall be exhausted to the exterior and shall not be 
recirculated to any space, including the space from which such air is 
withdrawn. 

2. Air exhausted by a mechanical ventilation system from all other bathrooms 
or toilet rooms shall be exhausted to the exterior without recirculation to 
any space, or not more than 85 percent of the exhaust air shall be 
recirculated where the system is provided with effective absorption and 
filtering equipment. 

 
PM-404.3 Cooking facilities:  Unless approved through the certificate of  
occupancy, cooking shall not be permitted in any rooming unit or dormitory unit, and a 
cooking facility or appliance shall not be permitted to be present in a rooming unit or 
dormitory unit. 
 
 Exception:  Where specifically approved in writing by the code official. 
 
  PM-0404.4 Process ventilation:  Where injurious, toxic, irritating or noxious fumes, 
gases, dusts or mists are generated, a local exhaust ventilation system shall be 
provided to remove the contaminating agent at the source.  Air shall be exhausted to 
the exterior and not be recirculated to any space. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 24 
 

PM-404.5 Clothes dryer exhaust:  Clothes dryer venting systems shall be independent 
of all other systems and shall be vented in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
instructions. 
 

SECTION PM-405.0 OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS 
 

PM-405.1 Privacy:  Dwelling units, hotel units, rooming units and dormitory units shall 
be arranged to provide privacy and be separate from other adjoining spaces. 
 
PM-405.2 Access from sleeping rooms:  Sleeping rooms shall not constitute the only 
means of access to other sleeping rooms or habitable spaces. 
 
 Exception:  Dwelling units that contain fewer than two bedrooms. 
 
PM-405.3 Area for sleeping purposes:  Every room occupied for sleeping purposes 
by one occupant shall contain at least 70 square feet (7 m2) of floor area, and every 
room occupied for sleeping purposes by more than one person shall contain at least 50 
square feet (5 m2) of floor area for each occupant thereof. 
 
PM-405.4 Water closet accessibility:  Every bedroom shall have access to at least 
one water closet and one lavatory without passing through another bedroom. 
 
PM-405.5 Overcrowding:  Dwelling units shall not be occupied by more occupants 
than permitted by the minimum occupancy area requirements of Table PM-405.5. 
 

Table PM-405.5 
MINIMUM OCCUPANCY AREA REQUIREMENTS 

 
Minimum occupancy area in square feetb 

Space 1 – 2 occupants 3-5 occupants 6 or more 
    

Living rooma No requirements 120 150 
Dining rooma No requirements 80 100 
Kitchen 50 50 60 
Bedrooms  Shall comply with Section PM-405.3   

 
Note a.  See Section PM-405.6 for combined living room/dining room spaces. 
Note b.  1 square foot = 0.093 m2 
 
PM-405.6 Combined spaces:  Combined living room and dining room spaces shall 
comply with the requirements of Table PM-405.5 if the total area is equal to that 
required for separate rooms and if the space is located so as to function as a 
combination living room/dining room. 
 
PM-405.7 Prohibited occupancy:  Kitchens, nonhabitable spaces and interior public 
areas shall not be occupied for sleeping purposes. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 25 
 

PM-405.8 Minimum ceiling heights:  Habitable spaces, other than kitchens, shall have 
a clear ceiling height of not less than 7 feet 4 inches (2235 mm).  Hallways, corridors, 
laundry areas, bathrooms, toilet rooms and kitchens shall have a clear ceiling height of 
not less than 7 feet (2134 mm). 
 
 Exceptions 

1.  Beams or girders spaced not less that 4 feet (1219 mm) on center and 
projecting not more than 6 inches (152 mm) below the required ceiling 
height, provided that the minimum clear height is not less than 6 feet 8 
inches (2033 mm). 

2. Dropped or furred ceilings over not more than one-half of the minimum 
floor area required by this code, provided that no part of such dropped or 
furred ceiling is less than 7 feet (2134 mm) in height. 

3. Rooms occupied exclusively for sleeping, study or similar purposes and 
having a sloped ceiling over all or part of the room, with a clear ceiling 
height of at least 7 feet (2134 mm) over not less than one-third of the 
required minimum floor area.  In calculating the floor area of such rooms, 
only those portions of the floor area with a clear ceiling height of 5 feet 
(1524 mm) or more shall be included. 

4. Basement rooms in one- and two-family dwellings occupied exclusively 
for laundry, study or recreation purposes, having a ceiling height of not 
less than 6 feet 8 inches (2033 mm) with not less than 6 feet 4 inches 
(1932 mm) of clear height under beams, girders, ducts and similar 
obstructions. 

 
PM-405.9 Minimum room widths:  A habitable room, other than a kitchen, shall not be 
less than 7 feet (2133 mm) in any plan dimension.  Kitchens shall have a clear 
passageway of not less than 3 feet (914 mm) between counterfronts and appliances or 
counterfronts and walls. 
 
PM-405.10 Food preparation:  All spaces to be occupied for food preparation 
purposes shall contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare and serve foods 
in a sanitary manner.  There shall be adequate facilities and services for the sanitary 
disposal of food wastes and refuse, including facilities for temporary storage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 26 
 

CHAPTER 5 
 

PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 

SECTION PM-501.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-501.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum plumbing 
facilities and plumbing fixtures to be provided. 
 
PM-501.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain such 
plumbing facilities and plumbing fixtures in compliance with these requirements.  A 
person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to occupy any 
structure or premises which does not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 

SECTION PM-502.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

PM-502.1 General:  The following words and terms shall, for the purposes of this 
chapter and as stated elsewhere in this code, have the meanings shown herein. 
 
Bathroom:  A room containing plumbing fixtures including a bathtub or shower. 
 
Plumbing:  The practice, materials and fixtures utilized in the installation, maintenance, 
extension and alteration of all piping, fixtures, appliances and appurtenances within the 
scope of the plumbing code listed in Chapter 8. 
 
Plumbing fixture:  A receptacle or device which is either permanently or temporarily 
connected to the water distribution system of the premises, and demands a supply of 
water therefrom; or discharges waste water, liquid-borne waste materials, or sewage 
either directly or indirectly to the drainage system of the premises; or which requires 
both a water supply connection and a discharge to the drainage system of the premises. 
 
Toilet room: A room containing a water closet or urinal but not a bathtub or shower. 
 

SECTION PM-503.0 REQUIRED FACILITIES 
 

PM-503.1 Dwelling units:  Every dwelling unit shall contain its own bathtub or shower, 
lavatory, water closet and kitchen sink which shall be maintained in a sanitary, safe 
working condition.  The lavatory shall be placed in the same room as the water closet or 
located in close proximity to the door leading directly into the room in which such water 
closet is located. 
 
PM-503.2 Rooming houses:  At least one water closet, lavatory and bathtub or shower 
shall be supplied for each four rooming units. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 27 
 

PM-503.3 Hotels:  Where private water closets, lavatories, and baths are not provided, 
one water closet, one lavatory and one bathtub or shower having access from a public 
hallway shall be provided for each ten occupants. 
 
PM-503.4 Employee’s facilities:  A minimum of one water closet, one lavatory and one 
drinking facility shall be available to employees. 
 

PM-503.4.1 Drinking facilities:  Drinking facilities shall be a drinking fountain, 
water cooler, bottled water cooler, or disposable cups next to a sink or water 
dispenser.  Drinking facilities shall not be located in toilet room or bathrooms. 
 

SECTION PM-504.0 TOILET ROOMS 
 

PM-504.1 Privacy:  Toilet rooms and bathrooms shall provide privacy and shall not 
constitute the only passageway to a hall or other space, or to the exterior. 
 
PM-504.2 Location:  Toilet rooms and bathrooms serving hotel units, rooming units or 
dormitory units, shall have access by traversing not more than one flight of stairs and 
shall have access from a common hall or passageway. 
 
PM-504.3 Location of employee toilet facilities:  Toilet facilities shall have access 
from within the employees’ regular working area.  The required toilet facilities shall be 
located not more than one story above or below the employee’s regular working area 
and the path of travel to such facilities shall not exceed a distance of 500 feet (152 m).  
Employee facilities shall either be separate facilities or public customer facilities. 
 

Exception:  Facilities that are required for employees in storage structures or 
kiosks, and which are located in adjacent structures under the same ownership, 
lease or control, shall not exceed a travel distance of 500 feet (152 m) from the 
employees’ regular working area to the facilities. 
 

SECTION PM-505.0 PLUMBING FIXTURES 
 

PM-505.1 General:  All plumbing fixtures shall be properly installed and maintained in 
working order, and shall be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be 
capable of performing the function for which such plumbing fixtures are designed.  All 
plumbing fixtures shall be maintained in a safe, sanitary and functional condition. 
 
PM-505.2 Fixture clearances:  Plumbing fixtures shall have adequate clearances for 
usage and cleaning. 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 28 
 

SECTION PM-506.0 WATER SYSTEM 
 

PM-506.1 General:  Every sink, lavatory, bathtub or shower, drinking fountain, water 
closet or other plumbing fixture shall be property connected to either a public water 
system or to an approved private water system.  All kitchen sinks, lavatories, laundry 
facilities, bathtubs and showers shall be supplied with hot or tempered and cold running 
water. 
 
PM-506.2 Contamination:  The water supply shall be maintained free from 
contamination, and all water inlets for plumbing fixtures shall be located above the flood 
level rim of the fixture.  Shampoo basin faucets, janitor sink faucets, and other hose bibs 
or faucets to which hoses are attached and left in place, shall be protected by an 
approved atmospheric-type vacuum breaker or an approved permanently attached hose 
connection vacuum breaker. 
 
PM-506.3 Supply:  The water supply system shall be installed and maintained to 
provide a supply of water to plumbing fixtures, devices and appurtenances in sufficient 
volume and at pressures adequate to enable the fixtures to function properly, safely, 
and free from defects and leaks. 
 
PM-506.4 Water heating facilities:  Water heating facilities shall be properly installed, 
maintained and capable of providing an adequate amount of water to be drawn at every 
required sink, lavatory, bathtub, shower and laundry facility at a temperature of not less 
that 110 degrees F. (43 degrees C.).  A gas-burning water heater shall not be located in 
any bathroom, toilet room, bedroom or other occupied room normally kept closed, 
unless adequate combustion air is provided.  An approved combination temperature 
and pressure relief valve and relief valve discharge pipe shall be property installed and 
maintained on water heaters. 
 

SECTION PM-507.0 SANITARY DRAINAGE SYSTEM 
 

PM-507.1 General:  All plumbing fixtures shall be properly connected to either a public 
sewer system or to an approved private sewage disposal system. 
 
PM-507.2 Maintenance:  Every plumbing stack, vent, waste and sewer line shall 
function properly and be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects. 
 

SECTION PM-508.0 STORM DRAINAGE 
 
PM-508.1 General:  Drainage of roofs and paved areas, yards and courts, and other 
open areas on the premises shall not be discharged in a manner that creates a public 
nuisance. 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 29 
 

CHAPTER 6 
 

MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION PM-601.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-601.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum mechanical 
and electrical facilities and equipment to be provided. 
 
PM-601.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment in compliance with these 
requirements.  A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person 
to occupy any premises which does not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 

SECTION PM-602.0 HEATING FACILITIES 
 

PM-602.1 Facilities required:  Heating facilities shall be provided in structures as 
required by this section. 
 
PM-602.2 Residential buildings:  Every dwelling shall be provided with heating 
facilities capable of maintaining a room temperature of 65 degrees F. (18 degrees C.) in 
all habitable rooms, bathrooms and toilet rooms based on the outside design 
temperature required for the locality by the mechanical code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

PM-602.2.1 Heat supply:  Every owner and operator of any building who rents, 
leases or lets one or more dwelling unit, rooming unit, dormitory or guestroom on 
terms, either express or implied, to furnish heat to the occupants thereof shall 
supply sufficient heat during the period from [DATE] to [DATE] to maintain the 
room temperatures specified in Section PM-602.2 during the hours between 6:30 
a.m. and 10:30 p.m. of each day and not less than 60 degrees F. (16 degrees C.) 
during other hours. 
 
PM-602.2.2 Room temperature exception:  When the outdoor temperature is 
below the outdoor design temperature required for the locality by the mechanical 
code listed in Chapter 8, the owner or operator shall not be required to maintain 
the minimum room temperatures, provided that the heating system is operating 
at full capacity, with supply valves and dampers in a full open position. 
 

PM-602.3 Nonresidential structures:  Every enclosed occupied work space shall be 
supplied with sufficient heat during the period from [DATE] to [DATE] to maintain a 
temperature of not less than 65 degrees F. (18 degrees C.) during all working hours. 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 30 
 

 Exceptions 
1. Processing, storage and operation areas that require cooling or special 

temperature conditions. 
2. Areas in which persons are primarily engaged in vigorous physical 

activities. 
 
PM-602.4 Room temperature measurement:  The required room temperatures shall 
be measured at a point 3 feet (914 mm) above the floor and 3 feet (914 mm) from the 
exterior walls. 
 

SECTION PM-603.0 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 
 

PM-603.1 Mechanical equipment:  All mechanical equipment, fireplaces and solid fuel-
burning appliances shall be properly installed and maintained in a safe working 
condition, and shall be capable of performing the intended function. 
 
PM-603.2 Cooking and heating equipment:  All cooking and heating equipment, 
components and accessories in every heating, cooking and water-heating device shall 
be maintained free from leaks and obstructions. 
 
PM-603.3 Flue:  All fuel-burning equipment and appliances shall be connected to an 
approved chimney or vent. 
 

Exception:  Fuel-burning equipment and appliances which are labeled for 
unvented operation. 
 

PM-603.4 Clearances:  All required clearances to combustible materials shall be 
maintained. 
 
PM-603.5 Safety controls:  All safety controls for fuel-burning equipment shall be 
maintained in effective operation. 
 
PM-603.6 Combustion air:  A supply of air for complete combustion of the fuel and for 
ventilation of the space shall be provided for the fuel-burning equipment. 
 
PM-603.7 Energy conservation devices:  Devices purporting to reduce fuel 
consumption by attachment to a fuel-burning appliance, to the fuel supply line thereto, 
or to the vent outlet or vent piping therefrom, shall not be installed unless labeled for 
such purpose and the installation is specifically approved. 
 

SECTION PM-604.0 ELECTRICAL FACILITIES 
 

PM-604.1 Facilities required:  Every occupied building shall be provided with an 
electrical system in compliance with the requirements of this section and Section PM-
605.0. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 31 
 

PM-604.2 Service:  The size and usage of appliances and equipment shall serve as a 
basis for determining the need for additional facilities in accordance with NFiPA 70 
listed in Chapter 8.  Every dwelling shall be served by a main service that is not less 
than 60 amperes, three wires. 
 
PM-604.3 Electrical system hazards:  Where it is found that the electrical system in a 
structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants or the structure by reason of inadequate 
service, improper fusing, insufficient outlets, improper wiring or installation, deterioration 
or damage, or for similar reasons, the code official shall require the defects to be 
corrected to eliminate the hazard. 
 

SECTION PM-605.0 ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
 

PM-605.1 Installation:  All electrical equipment, wiring and appliances shall be properly 
installed and maintained in a safe and approved manner. 
 
PM-605.2 Receptacles:  Every habitable space in a dwelling shall contain at least two 
separate and remote receptacle outlets.  Every laundry area shall contain at least one 
grounded type receptacle.  Every bathroom shall contain at least one receptacle. 
 
PM-605.3 Lighting fixtures:  Every public hall, interior stairway, water closet 
compartment, bathroom, laundry room and furnace room shall contain at least one 
electric lighting fixture. 
 

SECTION PM-606.0 ELEVATORS, ESCALATORS AND DUMBWAITERS 
 

PM-606.1 General:  Elevators, dumbwaiters and escalators shall be maintained to 
sustain safely all imposed loads, to operate properly, and to be free from physical and 
fire hazards. 
 
PM-606.2 Elevators:  In buildings equipped with passenger elevators, at least one 
elevator shall be maintained in operation at all times when the building is occupied. 
 

Exception:  Buildings equipped with only one elevator shall be permitted to have 
the elevator temporarily out of service for testing or servicing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 32 
 

CHAPTER 7 
 

FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
 

SECTION PM-701.0 GENERAL 
 

PM-701.1 Scope:  The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for fire safety relating to structures and exterior premises, including fire 
safety facilities and equipment to be provided. 
 
PM-701.2 Responsibility:  The owner of the premises shall provide and maintain such 
fire safety facilities and equipment in compliance with these requirements.  A person 
shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to occupy any premises 
that do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 
 

SECTION PM-702.0 MEANS OF EGRESS 
 

PM-702.1 General:  A safe, continuous and unobstructed means of egress shall be 
provided from the interior of a structure to a public way. 
 
PM-702.2 Exit capacity:  The capacity of the exits serving a floor shall be sufficient for 
the occupant load thereof as determined by the building code listed in Chapter 8. 
 
PM-702.3 Number of exits:  In nonresidential buildings, every occupied story more 
than six stories above grade shall be provided with not less than two independent exits.  
In residential buildings, every story exceeding two stories above grade shall be provided 
with not less than two independent exits.  In stories where more than one exit is 
required, all occupants shall have access to at least two exits.  Every occupied story 
which is both totally below grade and greater than 2,000 square feet shall be provided 
with not less than two independent exits. 
 
 Exception:  A single exit is acceptable under any one of the following conditions: 

1. Where the building is equipped throughout with an automatic 
sprinkler system and an automatic fire detection system with smoke 
detectors located in all corridors, lobbies and common areas. 

2. Where the building is equipped throughout with an automatic fire 
detection system and the exit is an approved smokeproof enclosure 
or pressurized stairway. 

3. Where an existing fire escape conforming to the building code listed 
in Chapter 8 is provided in addition to the single exit. 

4. Where permitted by the building code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

PM-702.4 Arrangement:  Exits from dwelling units, rooming units, guestrooms and 
dormitory units shall not lead through other such units, or through toilet rooms or 
bathrooms. 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 33 
 

PM-702.5 Exit signs:  All means of egress shall be indicated with approved “Exit” signs 
where required by the building code listed in Chapter 8.  All “Exit” signs shall be 
maintained visible and all illuminated “Exit” signs shall be illuminated at all times that the 
building is occupied. 
 
PM-702.6 Corridor enclosure:  All corridors serving an occupant load greater than 30 
and the openings therein shall provide an effective barrier to resist the movement of 
smoke.  All transoms, louvers, doors and other openings shall be closed or shall be self-
closing. 
 
 Exceptions 

1. Corridors in occupancies in other than Use Group H which are 
equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system. 

2. Patient room doors in corridors in occupancies in Use Group I-2 
where smoke barriers are provided in accordance with the fire 
prevention code listed in Chapter 8, are not required to be self-
closing. 

3.   Corridors in occupancies in Use Group E where each room that is 
occupied for instruction or assembly purposes has at least one-half 
of the required means of egress doors opening directly to the 
exterior of the building at ground level. 

4. Corridors that are in compliance with the building code listed in 
Chapter 8. 

 
PM-702.7 Dead-end travel distance:  All corridors that serve more than one exit shall 
provide direct connection to such exits.  The length of a dead-end corridor shall not 
exceed 35 feet (10668 mm) where the building is not equipped throughout with an 
automatic sprinkler system.  The dead-end travel distance limitation shall be increased 
to 70 feet (21336 mm) where the building is equipped throughout with an automatic 
sprinkler system. 
 
PM-702.8 Aisles:  Arrangements of chairs or tables and chairs shall provide for ready 
access by aisle accessways and aisles to each egress door.  The minimum clear width 
of each aisle in occupancies in Use Groups A, E and I-2 shall be maintained in 
accordance with the requirements of the building code listed in Chapter 8.  In all other 
occupancies, aisles shall have a minimum required clear width of 44 inches (1118 mm) 
where serving an occupant load greater than 50, and 36 inches (914 mm) where 
serving an occupant load of 50 or less.  The clear width of aisles shall not be obstructed 
by chairs, tables or other objects. 
 
PM-702.9 Stairways, handrails and guards:  Every exterior and interior flight of stairs 
having more than four risers, and every open portion of a stair, landing or balcony which 
is more than 30 inches (762 mm) above the floor or grade below shall have guards.  
Handrails shall not be less than 30 inches (762 mm) nor more than 42 inches (1067 
mm) high, measured vertically above the nosing of the tread or above the finished floor 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 34 
 

of the landing or walking surfaces.  Guards shall not be less than 30 inches (762 mm) 
high above the floor of the landing or balcony. 
 
PM-702.10 Information signs:  A sign shall be provided at each floor landing in all 
interior stairways more than three stories above grade, designating the floor level above 
the floor of discharge.  All elevator lobby call stations on all floor levels shall be marked 
with approved signs in accordance with the requirements for new buildings in the 
building code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

Exception:  The emergency sign shall not be required for elevators that are part 
of an accessible means of egress complying with the building code listed in 
Chapter 8. 

 
PM-702.11 Locked doors:  All means of egress doors shall be readily openable from 
the side from which egress is to be made without the need for keys, special knowledge 
or effort, except as provided for in Section PM-702.11.1. 
 

PM-702.11.1 Locks permitted:  Locks or fasteners shall not be installed on 
egress doors except in accordance with the following conditions: 
1. In mental, penal or other institutions where the security of inmates is 

necessary, in which case properly trained supervisory personnel shall be 
continuously on duty and approved provisions are made to remove 
occupants safely in case of fire or other emergency. 

2. In problem security areas, special-purpose door alarms or locking devices 
shall be approved prior to installation.  Manually operated edge or surface-
molded flush bolts are prohibited. 

3. Where the door hardware conforms to that permitted by the building code 
listed in Chapter 8. 

 
PM-702.12 Emergency escape:  Every sleeping room located in a basement in an 
occupancy in Use Group I-1 or R shall have at least one openable window or exterior 
door approved for emergency egress or rescue; or shall have access to not less than 
two approved independent exits. 
 

Exception:  Buildings equipped throughout with an automatic fire suppression 
system. 
 

SECTION PM-703.0 ACCUMULATIONS AND STORAGE 
 

PM-703.1  Accumulations:  Rubbish, garbage or other materials shall not be stored or 
allowed to accumulate in stairways, passageways, doors, windows, fire escapes or 
other means of egress. 
 
PM-703.2 Hazardous material:  Combustible, flammable, explosive or other hazardous 
materials, such as paints, volatile oils and cleaning fluids, or combustible rubbish, such 
as wastepaper, boxes and rags, shall not be accumulated or stored unless such storage 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 35 
 

complies with the applicable requirements of the building code and the fire prevention 
code listed in Chapter 8. 
 

SECTION PM-704.0 FIRERESISTANCE RATINGS 
 

PM-704.1  General:  The fireresistance rating of floors, walls, ceilings, and other 
elements and components shall be maintained. 
 
PM-704.2  Maintenance:  All required fire doors and smoke barriers shall be 
maintained in good working order, including all hardware necessary for the proper 
operation thereof.  Fire doors shall not be held open by door stops, wedges and other 
unapproved hold-open devices. 
 

SECTION PM-705.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

PM-705.1  General:  All systems, devices and equipment to detect a fire, actuate an 
alarm, or suppress or control a fire or any combination thereof shall be properly 
maintained. 
 
PM-705.2  Fire suppression system:  Fire suppression systems shall be in proper 
operating condition at all times. 
 
 PM-705.2.1 Valves:  Control valves shall be in the fully open position. 
 

PM-705.2.2 Sprinklers:  Sprinklers shall be clean and free of corrosion, paint 
and damage.  Stock shall be at least 18 inches (457 mm) below sprinkler 
deflectors. 
 
PM-705.2.3  Piping:  Piping shall be properly supported and shall not support 
any other loads. 
 

PM-705.3 Standpipe systems:  Standpipe systems shall be in proper operating 
condition at all times. 
 

PM-705.3.1 Valves:  Water supply control valves shall be in the fully open 
position. 
 
PM-705.3.2 Hose connections:  Hose connections shall be identified and have 
ready access thereto. 
 
PM-705.3.3 Hose: Where provided, the hose shall be properly packed, dry and 
free from deterioration. 

 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 36 
 

PM-705.4  Fire extinguishers:  All portable fire extinguishers shall be visible, provided 
with ready access thereto, and maintained in an efficient and safe operating condition.  
Extinguishers shall be of an approved type. 
 
PM-705.5 Smoke detectors:  A minimum of one approved single-station or multiple-
station smoke detector shall be installed in each guestroom, suite or sleeping area in 
occupancies in Use Groups R-1 and I-1, and in dwelling units in the immediate vicinity 
of the bedrooms in occupancies in Use Groups R-2 and R-3.  In all residential 
occupancies, smoke detectors shall be required on every story of the dwelling unit, 
including basements. In dwelling units with split levels and without an intervening door 
between the adjacent levels, a smoke detector installed on the upper level shall suffice 
for the adjacent lower level provided that the lower level is less than one full story below 
the upper level. 
 

PM-705.5.1 Installation:  All detectors shall be installed in accordance with the 
building code listed in Chapter 8.  When actuated, the smoke detectors shall 
provide an alarm suitable to warn the occupants within the individual room or 
dwelling unit. 
 
PM-705.5.2 Power source:  The power source for smoke detectors shall be 
either an AC primary power source or a monitorized battery primary power 
source. 
 
PM-705.5.3 Tampering:  Anyone tampering or interfering with the effectiveness 
of a smoke detector shall be in violation of this code. 
 

PM-705.6 Fire protective signaling systems:  Fire protective signaling systems shall 
be in proper operating condition at all times. 
 

PM-705.6.1 Control panel:  The “power on” indicator shall be lit.  Alarm or 
trouble indicators shall not be illuminated. 
 
PM-705.6.2 Manual fire alarm boxes:  All manual fire alarm boxes shall be 
operational and unobstructed. 
 
PM-705.6.3 Automatic fire detectors:  All automatic fire detectors shall be 
operational and free from any obstructions that prevent proper operation, 
including smoke entry. 
 

PM-705.7 Records:  A complete written record of all tests and inspections of fire 
protection systems shall be maintained on the premises by the owner or occupant in 
charge of said premises. 
 
 
 
 



1993 BOCA Property Maintenance Code Page 37 
 

SECTION PM-706.0 ELEVATOR RECALL 
 

PM-706.1 Required:  All elevators having a travel distance of 25 feet (7620 mm) or 
more above or below the primary level of elevator access for emergency fire-fighting or 
rescue personnel shall conform to the requirements of Rule 211.3 of ASME A17.1 listed 
in Chapter 8. 

 
SECTION PM-707.0 MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT CONTROL 

 
PM-707.1 Smoke and heat detection:  Approved smoke or heat detectors shall be 
installed in return air ducts or plenums in each recirculating air system with a capacity of 
more than 2,000 cfm and serving more than one floor in buildings that exceed six 
stories in height in accordance with the mechanical code listed in Chapter 8.  Actuation 
of the detector shall stop the fan(s) automatically and shall be of the manual-reset type.  
Automatic fan shutdown is not required where the system is part of an approved smoke 
control system. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  



CITY OF TROY 

    AN ORDINANCE TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 82 OF 
THE CODE OF THE CITY 

OF TROY 

The City of Troy ordains: 

Section 1. Short Title 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 82, 
Property Maintenance Code, of the Code of the City of Troy. 

Section 2. Amendment 

Chapter 82, Property Maintenance Code, shall be amended to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 1  ADMINISTRATION 

101  GENERAL. 

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Property Maintenance Code 
of the City of Troy, hereinafter referred to as “this code.” 

101.2 Scope. The provisions of this code shall apply to all existing residential 
and nonresidential structures and all existing premises and constitute minimum 
requirements and standards for premises, structures, equipment and facilities for 
light, ventilation, space, heating, sanitation, protection from the elements, life 
safety, safety from fire and other hazards, and for safe and sanitary 
maintenance; the responsibility of owners, operators and occupants; the 
occupancy of existing structures and premises, and for administration, 
enforcement and penalties. 

101.3 Intent. This code shall be construed to secure its expressed intent, which 
is to ensure and promote public health, safety and welfare in so far as they are 
affected by the continued occupancy and maintenance of structures and 
premises. Existing structures and premises that do not comply with these 
provisions shall be altered or repaired to provide a minimum level of health and 
safety as required herein. 

101.4 Severability. If a section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
code is held to be unconstitutional for any reason, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this code. 

SECTION 102  APPLICABILITY 

102.1 General. The provisions of this code shall apply to all matters affecting or 
relating to structures and premises, as set forth in Section 101. Where, in a 
specific case, different sections of this code specify different requirements, the 
most restrictive shall govern. 



102.2 Maintenance. Equipment, systems, devices and safeguards required by 
this code or a previous regulation or code under which the structure or premises 
was constructed, altered or repaired shall be maintained in good working order. 
No owner, operator or occupant shall cause any service, facility, equipment or 
utility which is required under this section to be removed from or shut off from or 
discontinued for any occupied dwelling, except for such temporary interruption as 
necessary while repairs or alterations are in progress. The requirements of this 
code are not intended to provide the basis for removal or abrogation of fire 
protection and safety systems and devices in existing structures. Except as 
otherwise specified herein, the owner or the owner’s designated agent shall be 
responsible for the maintenance of buildings, structures and premises. 

102.3 Application of other codes. Repairs, additions or alterations to a 
structure, or changes of occupancy shall be done in accordance with the 
procedures and provisions of the Michigan Building Code, International Fuel Gas 
Code, Michigan Mechanical Code, Michigan Plumbing Code,  and the Michigan 
Electrical Code. Nothing in this code shall be construed to cancel, modify or set 
aside any zoning provisions of Chapter 39, Zoning Ordinance, of the Troy Code 
of Ordinances. 

102.4 Existing remedies. The provisions in this code shall not be construed to 
abolish or impair existing remedies of the jurisdiction or its officers or agencies 
relating to the removal or demolition of any structure which is dangerous, unsafe 
or unsanitary. 

102.5 Workmanship. Repairs, maintenance work, alterations or installations 
which are caused directly or indirectly by the enforcement of this code shall be 
executed and installed in a workmanlike manner and in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s installation instructions. 

102.6 Historic buildings. The provisions of this code shall not be mandatory for 
existing buildings or structures designated as historic buildings when such 
buildings or structures are judged by the code official to be safe and the 
perpetuation of such historical buildings is in the public interest. 

102.7 Referenced codes, ordinances, and standards. The codes, ordinances, 
and standards referenced in this code shall be those that are listed in Chapter 8 
of this Ordinance and considered part of the requirements of this code to the 
prescribed extent of each such reference. Where differences occur between 
provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the provisions of this code 
shall apply. 

102.8 Requirements not covered by code. Requirements necessary for the 
strength, stability or proper operation of an existing fixture, structure or 
equipment, or for the public safety, health and general welfare shall be 
determined by the code official if not specifically covered by this code.  The 
details of any such determination shall be recorded and entered in the 
department files. 



SECTION 103  BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

103.1 General. The Building Department is hereby designated as the City of 
Troy enforcement division of this code and shall be known as the Department 
and the Director of Building and Zoning shall be known as the code official. 

103.2 Deputies. In accordance with the prescribed procedures of the City of 
Troy, the City Manager shall have the authority to appoint or remove the code 
official, other related technical officers, inspectors and other employees. 

103.4 Liability. The code official and fire official, while acting for the City of Troy, 
shall not thereby be rendered liable personally, and are relieved from all personal 
liability for any damage accruing to persons or property as a result of an act 
required or permitted in the discharge of official duties. Any suit instituted against 
any code official or fire official because of an act performed by that official in the 
lawful discharge of duties and under the provisions of this code shall be 
defended by the City Attorney or his/her designee until the final termination of the 
proceedings. The code official or fire official shall not be liable for costs in an 
action, suit or proceeding that is instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this 
code.  Any official of the department, acting in good faith and without malice, 
shall be free from liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by 
reason of any act or omission in the performance of official duties, excluding acts 
which constitute gross negligence and/or intentional acts on the part of individual. 

103.5 Fees. The fees for activities and services performed by the department in 
carrying out its responsibilities under this code shall be set forth in Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the City of Troy Ordinances, or by resolution of the 
Troy City Council. 

SECTION 104 DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE CODE OFFICIAL 

104.1 General. The code official shall enforce the provisions of this code. 

104.2 Rule-making authority. The code official shall have authority as 
necessary and in the interest of public health, safety and general welfare to adopt 
and promulgate rules and procedures; to interpret and implement the provisions 
of this code; to secure the intent thereof; and to designate requirements 
applicable because of local climatic or other conditions. Such rules shall not have 
the effect of waiving structural or fire performance requirements specifically 
provided for in this code, or of violating accepted engineering methods involving 
public safety.  

104.3 Inspections. The code official shall make all of the required inspections, or 
shall accept reports of inspection by approved agencies or individuals. All reports 
of such inspections shall be in writing and be certified by a responsible officer of 
such approved agency or by the responsible individual. The code official is 
authorized to engage such expert opinion as deemed necessary to report upon 
unusual technical issues that arise. 

104.3.1 Multiple Family Dwellings. Structures with three or more dwelling units 



are subject to periodic inspections to insure compliance with this code as set 
forth in Chapter 82A, Rental and Dwelling Inspections and Enforcement, of the 
City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

104.4 Right of entry. Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the 
provisions of this code, or where the building official has reasonable cause to 
believe that there exists in a structure or upon a premises a condition which is 
contrary to or in violation of this code which makes the structure or premises 
unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the building official is authorized to enter the 
structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties 
imposed by this code, provided that if such structure or premises be occupied 
that credentials be presented to the occupant and entry requested.  If such 
structure or premises is unoccupied, the building official shall first make a 
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person having charge or control of 
the structure or premises and request entry.  If entry is refused, the building 
official shall have recourse to the remedies provided by law to secure entry. 

104.5 Identification. The code official shall carry proper identification when 
inspecting structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 

104.6 Notices and orders. The code official shall issue all necessary notices or 
orders to ensure compliance with this code. 

104.7 Department records. The code official shall keep official records of all 
business and activities of the department specified in the provisions of this code. 
Such records shall be retained for as long as the building or structure to which 
such records relate remains in existence, unless otherwise provided under law. 

SECTION 105 APPROVAL 

105.1 Modifications. Existing buildings or structures will not be required to 
comply with all or some of the Property Maintenance code requirements when 
the code officer determines that unique circumstances make the strict 
enforcement of this code impractical, provided that such modification does not 
lessen health, life and fire safety requirements. The details of any such 
modifications shall be recorded and entered in the department files. 

105.2 Alternative materials, methods and equipment. The provisions of this 
code are not intended to prevent the installation of any material or to prohibit any 
method of construction not specifically prescribed by this code, as long as any 
such alternative has been approved. An alternative material or method of 
construction shall be approved where the code official finds that the proposed 
design is satisfactory and complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, 
and that the material, method or work offered is, for the purpose intended, at 
least the equivalent of that prescribed in this code in quality, strength, 
effectiveness, fire resistance, durability and safety. 

105.3 Required testing. Whenever there is insufficient evidence of compliance 
with the provisions of this code, or evidence that a material or method does not 



conform to the requirements of this code, or when necessary to substantiate 
requests for alternative materials or methods, the code official shall have the 
authority to require tests in order to verify compliance. Any such required test 
shall be paid for by the person charged with demonstrating compliance, and shall 
not be charged to the City of Troy. 

105.3.1 Test methods. Test methods shall be as specified in this code or by 
other recognized test standards. In the absence of recognized and accepted test 
methods, the code official shall be permitted to approve appropriate testing 
procedures which shall be performed by an approved agency. 

105.3.2 Test reports. Reports of tests shall be retained by the code official for 
the period required for retention of public records. 

105.4 Material and equipment reuse. Materials, equipment and devices shall 
not be reused unless such elements are in good repair or have been 
reconditioned and tested when necessary, placed in good and proper working 
condition and approved. This section is not intended to limit the use of recycled 
materials. 

 

SECTION 106  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

106.1 Unlawful acts and prosecution of violations. It shall be unlawful for a 
person, firm or corporation to be in conflict with or in violation of any of the 
provisions of this code. A violation of this ordinance shall be prosecuted as a 
municipal civil infraction, pursuant to Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of 
the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

106.2 Separate offense and violation penalties. Any person who violates a 
provision of this code, or fails to comply with any of the requirements thereof, 
shall be prosecuted within the limits provided by state or local laws. Each day 
that a violation continues after a notice of violation has been issued can be 
deemed a separate offense.  Penalties shall be assessed as provided in Chapter 
100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

106.3 Abatement of violation The issuance of a Municipal Ordinance Violation 
Notice or a Municipal Ordinance citation or the imposition of penalties pursuant to 
Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances 
shall not preclude the Troy City Attorney or his/her designee from instituting 
appropriate action to restrain, correct or abate a violation or to prevent illegal 
occupancy of a building, structure or premises or to stop an illegal act, conduct, 
business or utilization of the building, structure or premises; or to take any other 
legal action or remedy as provided by law. 

SECTION 107  NOTICES AND CITATIONS 

107.1 Notice or Citation to person responsible. Whenever the code official 
determines that there has been a violation of this code or has grounds to believe 



that a violation has occurred, a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or a Municipal 
Civil Infraction Citation may be given to the person responsible for the violation in 
the manner prescribed in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of 
Troy Code of Ordinances. 

107.2 Form and Method of Service.  A Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or 
Municipal Civil Infraction Citation shall be in a form as prescribed in Chapter 100, 
Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances and shall be 
served in a method prescribed in Chapter 100. 

107.3 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling 
unit or structure who has received a notice of violation or an order from the court 
requiring compliance, to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of 
such dwelling unit or structure to another person until the code violations have 
been corrected or there is compliance with an applicable court order.  In the 
alternative, an owner can furnish the grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee 
with a true copy of any notice of violation issued by the code official or his/ her 
designee or a copy of any order of the court requiring compliance.  The owner 
shall then furnish to the code official a signed and notarized statement from the 
grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of such 
notice of violation or order requiring compliance where such grantee, transferee, 
mortgagee or lessee fully accepts the responsibility, without condition, for making 
the corrections or repairs required by such notice of violation, or court order 
requiring compliance. 

SECTION 108 DANGEROUS BUILDINGS, UNSAFE STRUCTURES, UNSAFE 
EQUIPMENT AND DEMOLITION 

108.1 General.  The procedures set forth in this Section are established to 
secure the health and safety of the occupants of dwellings and structures and the 
general public. The code official shall enforce the provisions of this Section, and 
shall have jurisdiction to establish the inspection and violation procedures to 
implement enforcement. This Section does not preclude enforcement by any 
other governmental agency with jurisdiction over dangerous buildings, unsafe 
structures or unsafe equipment.  This Section may be enforced by joint 
agreement between the City of Troy and any other governmental agency, if 
practical.  

108.1a Unlawful to maintain dangerous building, unsafe structure or unsafe 
equipment.  It is unlawful for any owner to keep or maintain any building, 
structure or equipment or part thereof in a dangerous or unsafe manner, as set 
forth in Section 108.1.1 or 108.1.2. 

108.1b  Owners subject to ordinance. All owners shall be subject to the 
provisions of this ordinance and shall be parties to all proceedings, actions, or 
prosecutions for dangerous buildings, unsafe structures and/or unsafe 
equipment. 

108.1.1 Dangerous or Unsafe Building or structure. A dangerous or unsafe 



building or structure is one that is found to be dangerous to the life, health, 
property or safety of the public or the occupants of the structure. It does not 
provide minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of fire, or 
because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so damaged, decayed, 
dilapidated, structurally unsafe or of such faulty construction or unstable 
foundation that partial or complete collapse is possible. A dangerous building or 
unsafe structure is a building or structure which has one or more of the following 
defects or satisfies one or more of the following conditions: 

a. A door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit is not in 
compliance with the approved Troy Fire Code. 

b. A portion of the building or structure is damaged by fire, wind, flood, or 
other cause in such a manner that the structural strength or stability of the 
building is appreciably less than it was before such catastrophe and does 
not meet the minimum requirements of the City of Troy Ordinances. 

c. A portion of the building or structure has settled to such an extent that 
walls or other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds 
than is required for new construction under the City of Troy Ordinances. 

d. The building or structure or part of the building or structure is likely to 
partially or completely collapse, or become detached, or some portion of 
the foundation or underpinning of the building or structure is likely to fall or 
give way because of dilapidation, deterioration, decay, faulty construction, 
or the removal or movement of some portion of the ground necessary for 
support or for other reason. 

e. The building, structure, or part of the building or structure is manifestly 
unsafe for the purpose for which it is intended to be used  

f. The building or structure is vacant, dilapidated and open at any door or 
window leaving the interior of the building exposed to the elements or 
accessible to entrance by trespassers; or otherwise becomes an attractive 
nuisance to children who might play in the building or structure to their 
danger; or becomes a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons or 
enables persons to use the building or structure in the commission of a 
nuisance or an unlawful or immoral act. 

g. A residence or the adjoining grounds of a building or structure which is 
used or intended to be used for dwelling purposes is unsanitary or unfit for 
human habitation, due to dilapidation, decay, damage, or faulty 
construction or arrangement or otherwise is in a condition that the code 
official determines is likely to cause sickness or disease or is likely to 
injure the health, continued safety or general welfare of people living in or 
near the residence. 

h.  An owner has been previously notified of existing code violation(s), 
according to the provisions of the Troy Code of Ordinances and after said 



notice has left the structure unattended or unoccupied, whether boarded 
up or in an open condition, for a period exceeding thirty (30) days. 

i.  A building or structure is unfit for human occupancy such that the 
building or structure is unsafe, unlawful or because of the degree to which 
the structure is in disrepair or lacks maintenance, it is unsanitary, vermin 
or rat infested, contains filth and contamination, or lacks ventilation, 
illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other essential equipment 
required by this code, or because the location of the structure constitutes a 
hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public. 

j. A building or structure found in whole or in part to be occupied by more 
persons than permitted under this code, or a building or structure that was 
erected, altered or occupied contrary to law. 

108.1.1.1 Notice of dangerous and unsafe building, structure or condition. 
When the whole or part of any building or structure is found to be a dangerous or 
unsafe building or structure, the code official shall issue a notice declaring that 
the building or structure is a dangerous or unsafe building or structure.  The 
notice shall itemize the current code violation(s) and dangerous condition(s) and 
specify a time to complete all necessary repairs or demolish of the building or 
structure. 

108.1.1.2 Service of Notice. The notice shall be served on the owner of record 
or the registered agent in the following manner: 

1. Delivered personally; and 

2. Sent by certified or first-class mail addressed to the owner’s or resident 
agent’s last known address. 

If the owner cannot be found, the notice may alternatively be served by 
posting it prominently and securely on the property and publishing it once 
a week for three (3) consecutive weeks in a newspaper authorized to 
provide service by publication. Service of notice under this provision shall 
supersede Chapter 100, Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy 
Code of Ordinances. 

108.1.1.3 Contents of Notice. The notice shall state that the owner or his/her 
authorized representative has the right to appeal the determination of the code 
official that the building or structure is dangerous or unsafe to the Troy City 
Council. The notice shall further state that any appeal under this Section shall be 
filed in writing to the code official within ten (10) days of service of the notice.  

108.1.1.4 Waiver of Hearing.  If a written appeal of the dangerous or unsafe 
building or structure determination is not received by the code official within ten 
(10) days of the date of service of the notice, then a hearing will not be 
necessary.  The matter shall be referred to the City Council for resolution. 

108.1.1.5 Hearing.  If the code official receives a written appeal of the dangerous 



or unsafe building or structure determination within the allocated ten (10) day 
period, then a hearing will be scheduled before the City Council as soon as 
administratively possible.  At the hearing, the City Council shall take the 
testimony from the code official and/or his/her authorized representatives and 
employees; testimony from the owner of the property and any other interested 
party to determine whether the building or structure constitutes a dangerous or 
unsafe building or structure, as defined by this section.  

108.1.1.6 City Council action.  If the City Council determines that the building or 
structure is a dangerous or unsafe building or structure, and that the building or 
structure should be demolished or made habitable, Council shall order either 
demolition within twenty-one (21) days or require that all necessary repairs be 
completed within sixty (60) days after the hearing and/or resolution, unless the 
City Council determines that the conditions justify a longer time period to 
complete the necessary repairs. 

108.1.1.7 Failure to demolish or repair. If the ordered demolition or repairs are 
not completed within the allocated time period, as set forth in the resolution, City 
Council can then authorize any and all necessary action to enforce their order. 
This includes, but is not limited to, causing the building or structure or any part of 
the building or structure to be razed and removed either through an available 
public agency or by contract or arrangement with private persons, and the cost of 
such razing and removal shall be charged against the real property upon which 
the building or structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real property.  
Such lien shall be enforced against the real property as a special assessment. 

108.1.1.8 Recovery of City’s cost. The owner or party in interest according to 
the last local tax assessment records, shall be notified of the cost of the 
necessary repairs or demolition by first class mail at the address shown on the 
local tax assessment records.  If the owner or party in interest fails to pay the 
same within thirty (30) days after mailing by the Assessor of the notice of the 
amount due, the Assessor shall add the same to the next tax roll of the City of 
Troy, and the same shall be collected in the same manner and in all respects as 
provided by law for the collection of taxes by the City of Troy.  The City Council 
shall also have the option of initiating a lawsuit to recover the City’s full cost of 
necessary repairs or demolition.  If the City receives a favorable judgment, then 
the City shall have all rights and remedies under law to collect the amount of the 
judgment from the property owner(s) and/or parties in interest. 

108.1.1.9 Salvage materials. When any building or structure has been ordered 
demolished and removed, the City of Troy shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price 
obtainable either through the City or through a contractor hired by the City. The 
net proceeds of such sale, after deducting the expenses of such demolition and 
removal, shall be promptly remitted to the property owner with a report of such 
sale or transaction, including the items of expense and the amounts deducted.  If 
there is no surplus, the report shall so state. 



108.1.1.10 Appeal to Circuit Court.  An owner aggrieved by any dangerous 
building final decision or order of the City Council may appeal the decision or 
order to the Circuit Court within twenty (20) days from the date of the decision. 

108.1.2 Unsafe equipment. Unsafe equipment includes any boiler, heating 
equipment, elevator, moving stairway, electrical wiring or device, flammable 
liquid containers or other equipment on the premises or within the structure which 
is in such disrepair or condition that such equipment is a hazard to life, health, 
property or safety of the public or occupants of the premises or structure. 

108.2 Closing of vacant buildings and structures. If a building or structure is 
vacant and unfit for human habitation and occupancy, and is not in danger of 
structural collapse, the code official is authorized to post a placard of 
condemnation on the premises and order the structure closed up so as not to be 
an attractive nuisance. Upon failure of the owner to close up the premises within 
the time specified in the order, the code official shall cause the premises to be 
closed and secured through any available public agency or by contract or 
arrangement by private persons and the cost thereof shall be charged against 
the real property upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 
such real property and may be collected by any other legal resource. 

108.3 Posting Notice. Whenever the code official has declared a building, 
structure or equipment dangerous or unsafe under the provisions of this section, 
notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the building or structure 
affected by such notice or placed on the unsafe equipment. 

108.4 Placarding. The code official shall post on the premises or on defective 
equipment a placard bearing the words “Dangerous Building” or “Unsafe 
Building” or “Dangerous Structure” or “Unsafe Structure” or “Dangerous 
Equipment” or “Unsafe Equipment” and a statement of the penalties provided for 
occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing the placard. 

108.4.1 Placard removal. The code official shall remove the placard whenever 
the defect or defects upon which the determination of dangerous or unsafe 
building, structure or equipment and placarding action were based have been 
eliminated. Any person who defaces or removes a placard without the approval 
of the code official shall be subject to the penalties provided by this code. 

108.5 Prohibited occupancy. Any occupied building or structure determined to 
be dangerous or unsafe and placarded by the code official shall be vacated as 
ordered by the code official. Any person who shall occupy a placarded premise 
or shall operate placarded equipment, and any owner or any person responsible 
for the premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded premise or operate 
placarded equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this code. 

SECTION 109  EMERGENCY MEASURES  

109.1  Imminent danger. When, in the opinion of the code official or fire official, 
there is imminent danger of failure or collapse of a building or structure which 



endangers life, or when any structure or part of a structure has fallen and life is 
endangered by the occupation of the structure, or when there is actual or 
potential danger to the building occupants or those in the proximity of any 
building or structure because of explosives, explosive fumes or vapors or the 
presence of toxic fumes, gases or materials, or operation of defective or 
dangerous equipment, the code official or fire official or designee are hereby 
authorized and empowered to order and require the occupants to vacate the 
premises immediately.  At each entrance to such a building or structure, the code 
official or his/her designee shall post a notice declaring the building or structure 
unsafe and prohibiting occupancy.  It shall be unlawful for any person to enter 
such building or structure except for the purpose of securing the building or 
structure, making the required repairs, removing the hazardous condition or of 
demolishing the building or structure. 

109.2  Temporary safeguards. Notwithstanding other provisions of this code, 
whenever the code official determines that there is imminent danger due to an 
unsafe condition, the code official shall order the necessary work to be done to 
render such structure temporarily safe, whether or not the legal procedure herein 
described has been instituted.  This necessary work could be to board up 
openings of the building or structure, or could be any other action that the code 
official deems necessary to address such emergency. 

109.2a  Abating a nuisance. The code official or fire official shall have the 
power to abate any public nuisance from any dangerous building or structure if 
immediate action is required to avoid a distinct hazard to life or property. Since 
this action is for public safety, the action can be taken without preliminary notice 
as is otherwise required in the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

109.3 Closing streets. When necessary for public safety, the code official shall 
temporarily close buildings and structures. The code official can also close or 
order the closure of sidewalks, streets, public ways and places adjacent to 
unsafe structures, and prohibit the same from being utilized. 

109.4 Emergency repairs. For the purposes of this section, the code official 
shall employ the necessary labor and materials to perform the required work as 
expeditiously as possible. 

109.5 Costs of emergency repairs. Costs incurred in the performance of 
emergency work shall initially be assumed by the City of Troy. The other costs of 
abating a public nuisance shall be charged against the owner(s) or occupant(s) 
of the premise.  The owner(s) or occupant(s) shall be sent an invoice for the cost 
of abatement by the City of Troy Building Department.  If payment is not made 
within thirty (30) days, the amount shall be collected in the same manner as set 
forth in Section 108.1.1.8. 

109.6 Hearing. Owners or occupants must comply with orders for emergency 
measures.  However, the owner or occupant can request relief from the order by 
filing a written petition with the Building Code Board of Appeals within twenty (20) 
days of the decision of the code official and in compliance with Section 111, as 



set forth below.  

SECTION 110  Reserved 

SECTION 111  APPEAL TO BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

111.1 Application for appeal. Except for individuals filing an appeal under 
Section 108.1.1.5 – Hearing (Dangerous or Unsafe Buildings, Structures or 
Conditions), any person directly affected by a decision of the code official or a 
notice of violation issued under this code shall have the right to appeal to the 
Building Code Board of Appeals, provided that a written application for appeal is 
filed within twenty (20) days after the day the decision or notice of violation was 
served. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the true intent of 
this code been incorrectly interpreted; the provisions of this code do not fully 
apply; or the requirements of this code have been adequately satisfied. 

111.2 Membership of Building Code Board of Appeals. The authority, 
membership, procedures, and compensation of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals is set out in Section 116 of Chapter 79, General Building Regulations, of 
the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

111.3 Commission or Court Review. Any interested person, whether or not a 
previous party of an appeal under this section, shall have the right to appeal the 
decision of the Building Code Board of Appeals. Appeals can be filed with the 
Michigan Construction Code Commission pursuant to MCL 125.1516, or with an 
appropriate court. Appeals shall be filed in the manner and time required by law. 

111.4 Stays of enforcement. For all but emergency cases, appeals of notices 
and orders of the code official shall stay the enforcement of the notice and order 
until the appeal is heard and a final decision rendered by the Building Code 
Board of Appeals, the Michigan Construction Code Commission or an 
appropriate court of law. 

CHAPTER 2  DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 201 GENERAL 

201.1 Scope. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following terms shall, for 
the purposes of this code, have the meanings as set forth in this chapter. 

201.2 Interchangeability. Words stated in the present tense include the future; 
words stated in the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter; the 
singular number includes the plural and the plural includes the singular. 

201.3 Terms defined in other codes. Where terms are not defined in this code 
and are defined in the Michigan Building Code, Troy Fire Code, Troy Zoning 
Ordinance, Michigan Plumbing Code, Michigan Mechanical Code or the Michigan 
Electrical Code, such terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them as stated 
in those codes. 

201.4  Terms not defined. Where terms are not defined through the methods 



authorized by this section, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings 
taken in light of the context. 

201.5 Parts. Whenever the words “dwelling unit,” “dwelling,” “premises,” 
“building,” “rooming house,” “rooming unit” “housekeeping unit” or “story” are 
stated in this code, they shall be construed as though they were followed by the 
words “or any part thereof.” 

SECTION 202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

APPROVED. Approved by the code official. 

BASEMENT. That portion of a building which is partly or completely below grade. 

BATHROOM. A room containing plumbing fixtures including a bathtub or shower. 

BEDROOM. Any room or space used or intended to be used for sleeping 
purposes in either a dwelling or sleeping unit. 

CITY COUNCIL. The Troy City Council. 

CODE OFFICIAL. The code official charged with the administration and 
enforcement of this code is the City of Troy Director of Building and Zoning or 
his/her designee. 

COMMON PROPERTY. Property commonly owned by a number of individuals in 
a condominium development (including site condominium), subdivision or other 
form of development with common areas, such as cul-de-sacs, traffic medians, 
boulevard, islands, parks, playgrounds, detention and retention areas, open 
space or other common areas. 

DEADBOLT. A locking mechanism consisting of a bolt that when moved into the 
locked position cannot be retracted by end pressure on the bolt. 

DWELLING UNIT. A residential structure, or portion thereof, permanently sited 
on a continuous frost-free masonry foundation, containing all required plumbing, 
heating and electrical systems attached to the available public utilities, designed 
for the occupancy of one (1) family with cooking facilities. 

EASEMENT. That portion of land or property reserved for present or future use 
by a person or agency other than the legal fee owner(s) of the property. The 
easement shall be permitted to be for use under, on, or above a said lot or lots. 

EXTERIOR PROPERTY. The open space on the premises and on adjoining 
property under the control of owners or operators of such premises. 

EXTERMINATION. The control and elimination of insects, rats or other pests by 
eliminating their harborage places; by removing or making inaccessible materials 
that serve as their food or water source; by poison, spraying, fumigating, trapping 
or by any other approved pest elimination methods. 

FIRE OFFICIAL. The fire official charged with the administration and 



enforcement of this code is the City of Troy Fire Chief or his/her designee. 

GARBAGE. The animal or vegetable waste resulting from the handling, 
preparation, cooking and consumption of food. 

GUARD. A building component or a system of building components located at or 
near the open sides of elevated walking surfaces that minimizes the possibility of 
a fall from the walking surface to a lower level. 

HABITABLE SPACE. Space in a structure for living, sleeping, eating or cooking. 
Bathrooms, toilet rooms, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces, and similar 
areas are not considered habitable spaces. 

HOUSEKEEPING UNIT. A room or group of rooms forming a single habitable 
space equipped and intended to be used for living, sleeping, cooking and eating 
which does not contain a toilet, lavatory and bathtub or shower within such a unit. 

IMMINENT DANGER. A condition which could cause serious or life-threatening 
injury or death at any time. 

INFESTATION. The presence, within or contiguous to, a structure or premises of 
rats, vermin or other pests. 

INOPERABLE MOTOR VEHICLE. A vehicle which cannot be driven upon the 
public streets. Inoperable vehicles include, but are not limited to those that are 
unlicensed, wrecked, abandoned, in a state of disrepair, or incapable of being 
moved under its own power. 

LABELED. Devices, equipment, appliances, or materials to which has been 
affixed a label, seal, symbol or other identifying mark of a nationally recognized 
testing laboratory, inspection agency or other organization concerned with 
product evaluation that maintains periodic inspection of the production of the 
above-labeled items and by whose label the manufacturer attests to compliance 
with applicable nationally recognized standards. 

LET FOR OCCUPANCY OR LET. To permit, provide or offer possession or 
occupancy of a dwelling, dwelling unit, rooming unit, building, premise or 
structure by a person who is or is not the legal owner of record thereof, pursuant 
to a written or unwritten lease, agreement or license, or pursuant to a recorded or 
unrecorded agreement of contract for the sale of land. 

OCCUPANCY. The purpose for which a building or portion thereof is utilized or 
occupied. 

OCCUPANT. Any individual living or sleeping in a building, or having possession 
of a space within a building. 

OPENABLE AREA. That part of a window, skylight or door which is available for 
unobstructed ventilation and which opens directly to the outdoors. 

OPERATOR. Any owner, occupant, tenant, lessee, landlord, agent or person 



who has charge, care, control or responsibility over a structure, premises or any 
private property which is let or offered for occupancy. 

OWNER. Any person, partnership, association, agent, operator, firm or 
corporation and/or their legal successors and assigns having a legal or equitable 
interest in the property; or recorded in the official records of the state, county or 
municipality as holding title to the property; or otherwise having control or 
responsibility over the property, including the guardian of the estate of any such 
person, and the executor or administrator of the estate of such person if ordered 
to take possession of real property by a court. 

PERSON. An individual, corporation, partnership or any other group acting as a 
unit. 

PREMISE. A lot, plot or parcel of land, easement or public way, including any 
structures thereon, also including such portions of any street dedicated for public 
use that would be attached to the owner’s property upon vacation of the public 
rights to the street that are not otherwise paved or improved.  Premise includes 
easements or rights-of-way owned by the City or the Road Commission of 
Oakland County. 

PRESERVATION OR RESTORATION AREA. All or a portion of a premise 
managed to preserve or restore native Michigan grasses, native trees, shrubs, 
wildflowers, and aquatic plants, including but not limited to: indian grass 
(Sorghastrum nutans), prairie cordgrass (Spartina pectinata), prairie dropseed 
(Sporobolus heterolepis), rice cut grass (Leersia oryzoides), panic grass ( 
Panicum implicatum), switch grass (Panicum virgatum), riverbank wild-rye 
(Elymus riparius), purple love grass or tumble grass (Eragrostis spectabilis), fowl 
manna grass (Glyceria striata), bottlebrush grass (Hystrix patula), big bluestem 
(Andropogon gerardii), long-awned wood grass (Brachyelytrum erectum) and 
blue-joint grass (Calamagrostis canadensis); an oldfield succession of native and 
non-native plants; or a combination of these. 

PUBLIC WAY. Any street, alley or similar parcel of land essentially unobstructed 
from the ground to the sky, which is deeded, dedicated or otherwise permanently 
appropriated to the public for public use. 

ROOMING HOUSE. A building arranged or occupied for residential lodging for 
compensation with or without meals and not occupied as a one- or two-family 
dwelling. 

ROOMING UNIT. Any room or group of rooms forming a single habitable unit 
occupied or intended to be occupied for sleeping or living, but not for cooking 
purposes. 

RUBBISH. Combustible and noncombustible waste materials, except garbage. 
The term includes burnt wood, burnt coal, burnt coke and other combustible 
materials; paper, rags, cartons, boxes, wood, excelsior, rubber, leather, tree 
branches, yard trimmings, tin cans, metals, mineral matter, glass, crockery, dust, 



residue and other similar materials. 

SLEEPING UNIT. A room or space in which people sleep, which can also include 
permanent provisions for living, eating and either sanitation or kitchen facilities, 
but not both. Such rooms and spaces that are part of a dwelling unit are not 
sleeping units. 

STORY. That part of a building, except a mezzanine, included between the 
surface of one floor and the surface of the next floor, or if there is not a floor 
above, then the ceiling next above.  A story thus defined shall not be counted as 
a story when more than fifty (50) percent by cubic content, is below the height 
level of the adjoining ground. 

STRICT LIABILITY OFFENSE. An offense in which the prosecution in a legal 
proceeding is not required to prove criminal intent as a part of its case. It is 
enough to prove that the defendant either did an act which was prohibited, or 
failed to do an act which the defendant was legally required to do. 

STRUCTURE. That which is built or constructed or a portion thereof. 

TENANT. A person, corporation, partnership or group, whether or not the legal 
owner of record, occupying a building or portion thereof as a unit. 

TOILET ROOM. A room containing a water closet or urinal but not a bathtub or 
shower. 

TURF GRASS. Grass commonly used in regularly-cut lawns or play areas, 
including but not limited to: bluegrass, fescue, and ryegrass blends. 

VENTILATION. The natural or mechanical process of supplying conditioned or 
unconditioned air to, or removing such air from, any space. 

WEEDS.  Noxious weeds as defined under Michigan law (MCL 247.62) including, 
but not limited to: 

Canada thistle (Circium arvense), dodders (any species of Cuscuta), 
mustards (charlock, black mustard and Indian mustard, species of 
Brassica or Sinapis), wild carrots (Daucus carota), bindweed (Convolvulus 
arvensis), perennial sowthistle (Sonchus arvensis), hoary alyssum 
(Berteroa incana), ragweed (ambrosia elatior 1.); and poison ivy 
(rhustoxicodendron), and poison sumac (toxicodondron vernix). 

Any other varieties, species or plant growth designated by the City as 
poisonous, injurious and/or regarded as a common nuisance in the 
opinion of the City of Troy Public Works Director or his/her designee. 

WORKMANLIKE. Executed in a skilled manner; e.g., generally plumb, level, 
square, in line, undamaged and without marring adjacent work. 

YARD. An open space on the same lot with a structure. 



CHAPTER 3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 301 GENERAL 

301.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and the responsibilities of persons for maintenance of structures, equipment and 
exterior property. 

301.2 Responsibility. The owner of a premise shall maintain the structures and 
exterior property in compliance with these requirements, except as otherwise 
provided in this code. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit 
another person to occupy a premise that is not in a sanitary and safe condition 
and which does not comply with the requirements of this chapter. Occupants of a 
dwelling unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit are responsible for keeping in a 
clean, sanitary and safe condition that part of the dwelling unit, rooming unit, 
housekeeping unit or premise which they occupy and control. 

301.3 Vacant structures and land. All vacant structures and premises thereof 
or vacant land shall be maintained in a clean, safe, secure and sanitary condition 
as provided herein so as not to cause a blighting problem or adversely affect the 
public health or safety. 

SECTION 302  EXTERIOR PROPERTY AREAS 

302.1 Sanitation. All exterior property and premises shall be maintained in a 
clean, safe and sanitary condition. The occupant shall keep that part of the 
exterior property that is occupied or controlled by that occupant in a clean and 
sanitary condition. 

302.2 Grading and drainage. All premises shall be graded and maintained to 
prevent the erosion of soil and to prevent the accumulation of stagnant water 
thereon, or within any structure located thereon, including but not limited to 
garden pools and swimming pools. 

Exception: Approved retention areas and reservoirs. 

302.3 Sidewalks and driveways. The occupant or property owner is responsible 
to keep all sidewalks, walkways, stairs, driveways, parking spaces and similar 
areas in reasonable repair, and maintained free from hazardous conditions. 

302.4  Turf Grass, Weeds and Plant Growth. 

302.4.1  Weeds and Grass.  The presence of turf grass and/or weeds exceeding 
ten (10) inches in height on any premises in the City is hereby declared to be a 
nuisance.  The owner, occupant or any person having control or management of 
any premises is required to cut turf grass and weeds on the premises to a height 
that is ten (10) inches or less. 

Exceptions: 



1) Preservation or Restoration Areas are allowed to exceed ten (10) 
inches in height if those areas do not contain any turf grass and/or 
weeds. 

2) Areas declared to be wetland or preservation areas by the Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources or the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality are allowed to exceed ten (10) inches in 
height. 

3) Cultivated flowers and gardens or fields devoted to growing any 
small grain crop such as wheat, corn, oats, barley or rye. 

302.4.2 Duty of Owner to abate.  It shall be the duty of the owner, occupant or 
any person having control or management of any premises within the City upon 
which weeds are found growing or standing, to cut and destroy or cause to be cut 
and destroyed all such weeds in such a manner as to prevent such weeds from 
perpetuating themselves or going to seed. 

302.4.3 Failure to abate.  Upon failure of the owner, occupant or any person 
having control or management of any premises to cut turf grass and/or weeds 
and to take action to prevent such weeds from perpetuating themselves; the 
owner, occupant or any person having control or management of the premises 
shall be subject to prosecution as set forth in Chapter 100, Municipal Civil 
Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. Additionally the City may 
enter onto said premises as many times as necessary between May 1st to 
November 1st to cut turf grass and/or weeds, treat weeds or otherwise abate the 
nuisance. 

302.4.4 Published Notice. It shall be the duty of the Public Works Director or 
his/her designee to give general notice to every owner, occupant, or person 
having control or management of any premises of the cutting and weed 
prevention requirements of this section.  Such duty shall be satisfied if publication 
is made of the cutting and weed prevention requirements in the newspaper of 
record in the City during the month of March notifying the owners, occupants or 
persons having control or management of any premises that failure to cut turf 
grass or weeds or failure to prevent the perpetuation of weeds as required under 
this section during the period of May 1 to November 1 of each year, may result in 
the issuance of a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or Citation under Chapter 100, 
Municipal Civil Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances and/or the 
entry on the premises by the City to cut said turf grass and/or weeds or to 
prevent the perpetuation of weeds.  The general notice shall also inform owners, 
occupants and persons having control or management of any premises that if the 
City is required to enter onto the premises to cut turf grass and/or weeds or to 
take an action to prevent the perpetuation of weeds, the property owner 
designated on the City assessment or tax rolls shall be assessed the cost, 
payable to the City, for each required abatement. The City may enter onto said 
premises as many times as necessary between May 1st to November 1st to cut 
turf grass and/or weeds or treat weeds and charge the cost to the property owner 



for each such cutting or treatment. The City has the discretion to send via first 
class mail a ten (10) day notice to the last property owner of record and/or to 
attach a notice to the premises stating that the City intends to cut said turf grass 
and/or weeds or treat weeds, and if the turf grass and/or weeds are not cut or the 
weeds are not treated within ten (10) days from the date of the notice, the City 
may proceed to cut the turf grasses and/or weeds or treat the weeds. Failure to 
send such a warning notice does not in any way prevent the City from entering 
on the premises to cut turf grass and/or weeds or to treat weeds, as long as a 
general notice has been published, as set out herein. 

302.4.5 Recovery of Cost by City. The Department of Public Works Director or 
his/her designee is hereby authorized and directed to keep accurate accounts of 
all reasonable expenses incurred by the City to abate a nuisance.  The Public 
Works Director and/or his designee, is hereby authorized to include in its cost of 
recovery the following: wages, overtime wages, fringe benefits, cost of 
equipment, supplies, materials, and a ten (10) percent administration charge to 
cover the expense of administering the abatement work that is performed. The 
Public Works Director or his/her designee shall prepare an invoice of total 
charges for each premise and forward those invoices to the City Treasurer. 
Within ten (10) days after receipt of an invoice, the City Treasurer shall forward to 
the owner on the last local assessment or tax roll an invoice of the total charges 
assessed against each premises.  Thirty (30) days from the date each statement 
was mailed, payment shall be made.  If the invoice is not paid within thirty (30) 
days, the total amount charged shall become an assessment against the land 
and a lien against the property. 

302.4.6 Common Property.  If property is held as common property, such as, 
but not limited to: common areas of a condominium development (including a site 
condominium), subdivision, cul-de-sac, traffic medians, boulevards, islands, 
parks, playgrounds, detention and retention areas, open space or any other 
common area or other form of development for which the City is unable to 
determine the occupant or person having control or management over a common 
area with assessment or tax records, the City may enter onto the common 
property to abate any nuisance of a type set out in this Chapter. The costs 
incurred by the City for the nuisance abatement shall be pro-rated among each 
individual property owner in the condominium development, subdivision or other 
individual owner in a development with common property. The City Treasurer 
shall send a statement to each owner for their specific pro-rated portion. If the 
invoice is not timely paid, the total amount charged shall become an assessment 
against that particular property for that pro-rated share. 

302.5 Rodent harborage. All structures and exterior property shall be kept free 
from rodent harborage and infestation. Where rodents are found, they shall be 
promptly exterminated by approved processes which will not be injurious to 
human health. After extermination, proper precautions shall be taken to eliminate 
rodent harborage and prevent re-infestation. 

 Exception: The presence of squirrels or chipmunks on the exterior of a 



structure shall not constitute a rodent infestation. 

302.6 Exhaust vents. Pipes, ducts, conductors, fans or blowers shall not 
discharge gases, steam, vapor, hot air, grease, smoke, odors or other gaseous 
or particulate wastes directly upon abutting or adjacent public or private property 
or that of another tenant. 

302.7 Accessory structures. All accessory structures, including detached 
garages, fences and walls, shall be maintained structurally sound and in good 
repair. 

302.8 Motor vehicles. No person shall permit the accumulation of one or more 
inoperable vehicles outside of a completely enclosed building for a period of 
more than fourteen (14) days. Inoperable vehicles are those that are not in 
operating condition and eligible for use in accordance with the requirements of 
the Michigan Vehicle Code, being MCL 257.1 through 257.925.  These minimum 
conditions include, but are not limited to: an engine that runs, four wheels and 
four pneumatic tires capable of holding air, working battery, and current license 
plates. This prohibition applies to owners, tenants, managers of private property, 
last registered owners of motor vehicles or transferees on a bill of sale covering a 
vehicle. 

Exception:  Any person enumerated in this section who, under special 
conditions of hardship, or for valid reasons such as the preservation of a 
historic or classic vehicle, may request an extension of the fourteen (14) 
day limitation above described by filing a timely request with Director of 
Building and Zoning. The Director of Building and Zoning may, after 
review of all of the circumstances, grant a reasonable extension of time for 
compliance. 

302.9 Defacement of property. No person shall willfully or wantonly damage, 
mutilate or deface any exterior surface of any structure or building on any private 
or public property by placing thereon any marking, carving or graffiti. Owners of 
property bear the responsibility to remove or obliterate markings, carvings or 
graffiti from their property. 

SECTION 303  SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS AND HOT TUBS  

303.1 Swimming pools. Swimming pools shall be maintained in a clean and 
sanitary condition, and in good repair. 

303.2 Enclosures. Private swimming pools, hot tubs and spas capable of 
holding water more than 24 inches in depth shall be completely surrounded by a 
fence or barrier at least 48 inches in height above the finished ground level 
measured on the side of the barrier away from the pool. Gates and doors in such 
barriers shall be self-closing and self-latching. Where the self-latching device is 
less than 54 inches above the bottom of the gate, the release mechanism shall 
be located on the pool side of the gate. Self-closing and self latching gates shall 
be maintained such that the gate will positively close and latch when released 



from an open position of 6 inches from the gatepost. No existing pool enclosure 
shall be removed, replaced or changed in a manner that reduces its 
effectiveness as a safety barrier. 

Exception: Spas or hot tubs with a safety cover that complies with ASTM 
F 1346 shall be exempt from the provisions of this section. 

SECTION 304  EXTERIOR STRUCTURE  

304.1 General. The exterior of a structure shall be maintained in good repair, 
structurally sound and sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, 
safety or welfare. 

304.2 Protective treatment. All exterior surfaces, including but not limited to, 
doors, door and window frames, cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks and 
fences shall be maintained in good condition. Exterior wood surfaces, other than 
decay resistant woods, shall be protected from the elements and decay by 
painting or other protective covering or treatment. Peeling, flaking and chipped 
paint shall be eliminated and surfaces repainted. All siding and masonry joints as 
well as those between the building envelope and the perimeter of windows, 
doors, and skylights shall be maintained weather resistant and water tight. All 
metal surfaces subject to rust or corrosion shall be coated to inhibit such rust and 
corrosion and all surfaces with rust or corrosion shall be stabilized and coated to 
inhibit future rust and corrosion. Oxidation stains shall be removed from exterior 
surfaces. Surfaces designed for stabilization by oxidation are exempt from this 
requirement. 

304.3 Premise identification. Buildings shall have approved address numbers 
as required by Chapter 2 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

304.4 Structural members. All structural members shall be maintained free from 
deterioration, and shall be capable of safely supporting the imposed dead and 
live loads. 

304.5 Foundation walls. All foundation walls shall be maintained plumb and free 
from open cracks and breaks and shall be kept in such condition so as to prevent 
the entry of rodents and other pests. 

304.6 Exterior walls. All exterior walls shall be free from holes, breaks, and 
loose or rotting materials; and maintained weatherproof and properly surface 
coated where required to prevent deterioration. 

304.7 Roofs and drainage. The roof and flashing shall be sound, tight and not 
have defects that admit rain. Roof drainage shall be adequate to prevent 
dampness or deterioration in the walls or interior portion of the structure. Roof 
drains, gutters and downspouts shall be maintained in good repair and free from 
obstructions. Roof water shall not be discharged in a manner that creates a 
public nuisance. 

304.8 Decorative features. All cornices, belt courses, corbels, terra cotta trim, 



wall facings and similar decorative features shall be maintained in good repair 
with proper anchorage and in a safe condition. 

304.9 Overhang extensions. All overhang extensions including, but not limited 
to canopies, marquees, signs, metal awnings, fire escapes, standpipes and 
exhaust ducts shall be maintained in good repair and be properly anchored so as 
to be kept in a sound condition. When required, all exposed surfaces of metal or 
wood shall be protected from the elements and against decay or rust by periodic 
application of weather-coating materials, such as paint or similar surface 
treatment. 

304.10 Stairways, decks, porches and balconies. Every exterior stairway, 
deck, porch and balcony, and all appurtenances attached thereto, shall be 
maintained structurally sound, in good repair, with proper anchorage and capable 
of supporting the imposed loads. 

304.11 Chimneys and towers. All chimneys, cooling towers, smoke stacks, and 
similar appurtenances shall be maintained structurally safe and sound, and in 
good repair. All exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be protected from the 
elements and against decay or rust by periodic application of weather coating 
materials, such as paint or similar surface treatment. 

304.12 Handrails and guards. Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in 
good condition. 

304.13 Window, skylight and door frames. Every window, skylight, door and 
frame shall be kept in sound condition, good repair and weather tight. 

304.13.1 Glazing. All glazing materials shall be maintained free from cracks and 
holes. 

304.13.2 Openable windows. Every window, other than a fixed window, shall be 
easily openable and capable of being held in position by window hardware. 

304.14 Insect screens. During the period from April 1 to November 1, every 
door, window and other outside opening required for ventilation of habitable 
rooms, food preparation areas, food service areas or any areas where products 
to be included or utilized in food for human consumption are processed, 
manufactured, packaged or stored shall be supplied with approved tightly fitting 
screens of not less than 16 mesh per inch, and every screen door used for insect 
control shall have a self-closing device in good working condition. 

Exception: Screens shall not be required where other approved means 
are employed, such as air curtains or insect repellent fans. 

304.15 Doors. All exterior doors, door assemblies and hardware shall be 
maintained in good condition. Locks at all entrances to dwelling units and 
sleeping units shall tightly secure the door. Locks on means of egress doors shall 
be in accordance with Section 702.3. 



304.16 Basement hatchways. Every basement hatchway shall be maintained to 
prevent the entrance of rodents, rain and surface drainage water. 

304.17 Guards for basement windows. Every basement window that is 
openable shall be supplied with rodent shields, storm windows or other approved 
protection against the entry of rodents. 

304.18 Building security. Doors, windows or hatchways for dwelling units, room 
units or housekeeping units shall be provided with devices designed to provide 
security for the occupants and property within. 

304.18.1 Doors. Doors providing access to a dwelling unit, rooming unit or 
housekeeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall be equipped with a deadbolt 
lock designed to be readily openable from the side from which egress is to be 
made without the need for keys, special knowledge or effort and shall have a lock 
throw of not less than 1 inch. Such deadbolt locks shall be installed according to 
the manufacturer’s specifications and maintained in good working order. For the 
purpose of this section, a sliding bolt shall not be considered an acceptable 
deadbolt lock. 

304.18.2 Windows. Operable windows located in whole or in part within 6 feet 
above ground level or a walking surface below that provide access to a dwelling 
unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall be 
equipped with a window sash locking device. 

304.18.3 Basement hatchways. Basement hatchways that provide access to a 
dwelling unit, rooming unit or housekeeping unit that is rented, leased or let shall 
be equipped with devices that secure the units from unauthorized entry. 

SECTION 305  INTERIOR STRUCTURE  

305.1 General. The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be 
maintained in good repair, structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. 
Occupants shall keep that part of the structure which they occupy or control in a 
clean and sanitary condition. Every owner of a structure containing a rooming 
house, housekeeping units, a hotel, a dormitory, two or more dwelling units or 
two or more nonresidential occupancies, shall maintain, in a clean and sanitary 
condition, the shared or public areas of the structure and exterior property. 

305.2 Structural members. All structural members shall be maintained 
structurally sound, and be capable of supporting the imposed loads. 

305.3 Interior surfaces. All interior surfaces, including windows and doors, shall 
be maintained in good, clean and sanitary condition. Peeling, chipping, flaking or 
abraded paint shall be repaired, removed or covered. Cracked or loose plaster, 
decayed wood and other defective surface conditions shall be corrected. 

305.4 Stairs and walking surfaces. Every stair, ramp, landing, balcony, porch, 
deck or other walking surface shall be maintained in sound condition and good 
repair. 



305.5 Handrails and guards. Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened 
and capable of supporting normally imposed loads and shall be maintained in 
good condition. 

305.6 Interior doors. Every interior door shall fit reasonably well within its frame 
and shall be capable of being opened and closed by being properly and securely 
attached to jambs, headers or tracks as intended by the manufacturer of the 
attachment hardware. 

SECTION 306  HANDRAILS AND GUARDRAILS 

306.1 General. Every exterior and interior flight of stairs having more than four 
risers shall have a handrail on one side of the stair and every open portion of a 
stair, landing, balcony, porch, deck, ramp or other walking surface which is more 
than 30 inches  above the floor or grade below shall have guards. Handrails shall 
not be less than 30 inches high or more than 42 inches high measured vertically 
above the nosing of the tread or above the finished floor of the landing or walking 
surfaces. Guards shall not be less than 30 inches high above the floor of the 
landing, balcony, porch, deck, or ramp or other walking surface. 

Exception: Guards shall not be required where exempted by the adopted 
building code. 

SECTION 307  RUBBISH AND GARBAGE 

307.1 Accumulation of rubbish or garbage. All exterior property and premises, 
and the interior of every structure shall be free from any accumulation of rubbish 
or garbage. 

Exception:  Fallen trees and branches from trees on the premise in a 
preservation or restoration area. 

307.2 Disposal of rubbish. Every occupant of a structure shall dispose of all 
rubbish in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such rubbish in approved 
containers. 

307.2.1 Rubbish storage facilities. The owner of every occupied premise shall 
supply approved covered containers for rubbish, and the owner of the premises 
shall be responsible for the removal of rubbish. 

307.2.2 Refrigerators. Refrigerators and similar equipment not in operation shall 
not be discarded, abandoned or stored on premises without first removing the 
doors. 

307.3 Disposal of garbage. Every occupant of a building shall dispose of 
garbage in a clean and sanitary manner by placing such garbage in an approved 
garbage disposal facility or approved garbage containers. 

307.3.1 Garbage facilities. The owner of every dwelling shall supply one of the 
following: an approved mechanical food waste grinder in each dwelling unit; or an 
approved, leak-proof, covered, outside garbage container. 



307.3.2 Containers. The operator of every establishment producing garbage 
shall provide, and at all times cause to be utilized, approved leak-proof 
containers with close-fitting covers for the storage of garbage until it is removed 
from the premise for disposal. 

307.4  Rubbish removal after eviction notice for landlord/tenant or 
foreclosure. If a tenant or occupant has personal property on the premises at 
the time of an eviction or involuntary removal the owner or operator shall place a 
large movable container or receptacle on the private property which holds at 
least 6 cubic yards and can be mechanically emptied for disposal purposes of the 
tenant or occupant’s personal property, such as but not limited to: household 
furniture, appliances, clothing, rugs, window treatments, books and paper 
products and personal goods. At no time shall any part of the container be placed 
on any public area adjacent to the private property. 

307.4.1 Type of container. Upon eviction or involuntary removal, the tenant’s or 
occupant’s personal property shall be legally removed from the property or 
placed and disposed of only in the large movable container as referenced above. 
The container shall be of the type which will allow access from its side as 
opposed to access solely through the top of the container. 

307.4.2 Removal of container. The movable container and its contents shall be 
removed from the real property within forty-eight (48) hours of placement. 

307.4.3  Blight violation. In the event that a moveable container is not used for 
disposal of the tenant’s or occupant’s personal property and that property is 
improperly placed elsewhere on the property, or the container is not properly 
removed, then the owner, operator or other person in violation of this Section is 
subject to immediate issuance of a Municipal Civil Infraction Notice or a 
Municipal Civil Infraction Citation pursuant to Chapter 100, Municipal Civil 
Infractions, of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

307.4.4 Cost Recovery. In addition to any other penalties set out in the Troy 
Code of Ordinances, if the City of Troy incurs any costs to remove solid waste 
from property resulting from an eviction or foreclosure proceeding, the owner and 
the operator shall be billed by invoice sent by first class mail for the cost of the 
removal, including but not limited to:  the cost of labor for removal of the solid 
waste and the cost of the use or rental of the container.  If the owner or operator 
fails to pay the same within thirty (30) days after the invoice is mailed, the City 
shall add the amount to the next tax roll of the City of Troy, and it shall be 
collected in the same manner as provided by law for the collection of taxes by the 
City of Troy.  The City Council shall also have the option of initiating a lawsuit to 
recover the City’s full cost of necessary expenses.  If the City receives a 
favorable judgment, then the judgment may be assessed against all of the assets 
of the owner of the property, both real and personal, not just the real property 
where the removal of solid waste occurred. 

SECTION 308 EXTERMINATION 



308.1 Infestation. All structures shall be kept free from rodent or pest infestation. 
All structures in which rodents or pests are found shall be promptly exterminated 
by approved processes that will not be injurious to human health. After 
extermination, proper precautions shall be taken to prevent re-infestation. 

308.2 Responsibility. The owner, occupant, or any person having control of any 
structure or premises shall be responsible for extermination. 

Exception: Where the infestations are caused by defects in the structure, 
the owner shall be responsible for extermination. 

CHAPTER 4  LIGHT, VENTILATION AND OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS 

SECTION 401  GENERAL 

401.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for light, ventilation and space for occupying a structure. 

401.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
light, ventilation and space conditions in compliance with these requirements. A 
person shall not occupy as owner-occupant, or permit another person to occupy, 
any premises that do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

401.3 Alternative devices. In lieu of the means for natural light and ventilation 
herein prescribed, artificial light or mechanical ventilation complying with the 
Michigan Building Code shall be permitted. 

SECTION 402  LIGHT 

402.1 Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have at least one window 
of approved size facing directly to the outdoors or to a court. The minimum total 
glazed area for every habitable space shall be 8 percent of the floor area of such 
room. Wherever walls or other portions of a structure face a window of any room 
and such obstructions are located less than 3 feet from the window and extend to 
a level above that of the ceiling of the room, such window shall not be deemed to 
face directly to the outdoors nor to a court and shall not be included as 
contributing to the required minimum total window area for the room. 

Exception: Where natural light for rooms or spaces without exterior 
glazing areas is provided through an adjoining room, the unobstructed 
opening to the adjoining room shall be at least 8 percent of the floor area 
of the interior room or space, but not less than 25 square feet. The exterior 
glazing area shall be based on the total floor area being served. 

402.2 Common halls and stairways. Every common hall and stairway in 
residential occupancies, other than in one and two family dwellings, shall be 
lighted at all times with at least a 60-watt standard incandescent light bulb for 
each 200 square feet of floor area or equivalent illumination, provided that the 
spacing between lights shall not be greater than 30 feet. In other than residential 
occupancies, means of egress, including exterior means of egress stairways, 



shall be illuminated at all times the building space served by the means of egress 
is occupied with a minimum of 1 foot-candle at floors, landings and treads. 

402.3 Other spaces. All other spaces shall be provided with natural or artificial 
light sufficient to permit the maintenance of sanitary conditions, and the safe 
occupancy of the space and utilization of the appliances, equipment and fixtures. 

SECTION 403  VENTILATION  

403.1 Habitable spaces. Every habitable space shall have at least one openable 
window. The total openable area of the window in every room shall be equal to at 
least 45 percent of the minimum glazed area required in Section 402.1. 

Exception: Where rooms and spaces without openings to the outdoors 
are ventilated through an adjoining room, the unobstructed opening to the 
adjoining room shall be at least 8 percent of the floor area of the interior 
room or space, but not less than 25 square feet. The ventilation openings 
to the outdoors shall be based on a total floor area being ventilated. 

403.2 Bathrooms and toilet rooms. Every bathroom and toilet room shall 
comply with the ventilation requirements for habitable spaces as required by 
Section 403.1, except that a window shall not be required in such spaces 
equipped with a mechanical ventilation system. Air exhausted by a mechanical 
ventilation system from a bathroom or toilet room shall discharge to the outdoors 
and shall not be re-circulated. 

403.3 Cooking facilities. Unless approved through the certificate of occupancy, 
cooking shall not be permitted in any rooming unit or dormitory unit, and a 
cooking facility or appliance shall not be permitted to be present in the rooming 
unit or dormitory unit. 

Exceptions: 

1. Where specifically approved in writing by the code official. 

2. Devices such as coffee pots, hot plates, toaster ovens and microwave 
ovens shall not be considered cooking appliances. 

403.4 Process ventilation. Where injurious, toxic, irritating or noxious fumes, 
gases, dusts or mists are generated, a local exhaust ventilation system shall be 
provided to remove the contaminating agent at the source. Air shall be exhausted 
to the exterior and not be re-circulated to any space. 

403.5 Clothes dryer exhaust. Clothes dryer exhaust systems shall be 
independent of all other systems and shall be exhausted in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. 

SECTION 404  OCCUPANCY LIMITATIONS  

404.1 Privacy. Dwelling units, hotel units, housekeeping units, rooming units and 
dormitory units shall be arranged to provide privacy and be separate from other 



adjoining spaces. 

404.2 Minimum room widths. A habitable room, other than a kitchen, shall not 
be less than 7 feet in any plan dimension. Kitchens shall have a clear 
passageway of not less than 3 feet between counter fronts and appliances or 
counter fronts and walls. 

404.3 Minimum ceiling heights. Habitable spaces, hallways, corridors, laundry 
areas, bathrooms, toilet rooms and habitable basement areas shall have a clear 
ceiling height of not less than 7 feet. 

Exceptions: 

1. In one and two family dwellings, beams or girders spaced not less than 
4 feet on center and projecting not more than 6 inches below the required 
ceiling height. 

2. Basement rooms in one and two-family dwellings occupied exclusively 
for laundry, study or recreation purposes, having a ceiling height of not 
less than 6 feet 8 inches with not less than 6 feet 4 inches of clear height 
under beams, girders, ducts and similar obstructions. 

3. Rooms occupied exclusively for sleeping, study or similar purposes and 
having a sloped ceiling over all or part of the room, with a clear ceiling 
height of at least 7 feet over not less than one-third of the required 
minimum floor area. In calculating the floor area of such rooms, only those 
portions of the floor area with a clear ceiling height of 5 feet or more shall 
be included. 

404.4 Bedroom and living room requirements. Every bedroom and living room 
shall comply with the requirements of Sections 404.4.1 through 404.4.5. 

404.4.1 Room area. Every living room shall contain at least 120 square feet and 
every bedroom shall contain at least 70 square feet. 

404.4.2 Access from bedrooms. Bedrooms shall not constitute the only means 
of access to other bedrooms or habitable spaces and shall not serve as the only 
means of egress from other habitable spaces. 

Exception: Units that contain fewer than two bedrooms. 

404.4.3 Water closet accessibility. Every bedroom shall have access to at least 
one water closet and one lavatory without passing through another bedroom. 
Every bedroom in a dwelling unit shall have access to at least one water closet 
and lavatory located in the same story as the bedroom or an adjacent story. 

404.4.4 Prohibited occupancy. Kitchens and non-habitable spaces shall not be 
used for sleeping purposes. 

404.4.5 Other requirements. Bedrooms shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of this code including, but not limited to, the light, ventilation, room 



area, ceiling height and room width requirements of this chapter; the plumbing 
facilities and water-heating facilities requirements of Chapter 5; the heating 
facilities and electrical receptacle requirements of Chapter 6; and the smoke 
detector and emergency escape requirements of Chapter 7. 

404.5 Overcrowding. The number of persons occupying a dwelling unit shall not 
create conditions that, in the opinion of the code official, endanger the life, health, 
safety or welfare of the occupants. 

404.6 Efficiency unit. Nothing in this section shall prohibit an efficiency living 
unit from meeting the following requirements: 

1. A unit occupied by not more than two occupants shall have a clear floor 
area of not less than 220 square feet. A unit occupied by three occupants 
shall have a clear floor area of not less than 320 square feet. These 
required areas shall be exclusive of the areas required by Items 2 and 3. 

2. The unit shall be provided with a kitchen sink, cooking appliance and 
refrigeration facilities, each having a clear working space of not less than 
30 inches in front. Light and ventilation conforming to this code shall be 
provided. 

3. The unit shall be provided with a separate bathroom containing a water 
closet, lavatory and bathtub or shower. 

4. The maximum number of occupants shall be three. 

404.7 Food preparation. All spaces to be occupied for food preparation 
purposes shall contain suitable space and equipment to store, prepare and serve 
foods in a sanitary manner. There shall be adequate facilities and services for the 
sanitary disposal of food wastes and refuse, including facilities for temporary 
storage. 

CHAPTER 5  PLUMBING FACILITIES AND FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 501  GENERAL 

501.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum plumbing 
systems, facilities and plumbing fixtures to be provided. 

501.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
such plumbing facilities and plumbing fixtures in compliance with these 
requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another 
person to occupy any structure or premises which does not comply with the 
requirements of this chapter. 

SECTION 502  REQUIRED FACILITIES 

502.1 Dwelling units. Every dwelling unit shall contain its own bathtub or 
shower, lavatory, water closet and kitchen sink which shall be maintained in a 
sanitary, safe working condition. The lavatory shall be placed in the same room 



as the water closet or located in close proximity to the door leading directly into 
the room in which such water closet is located. A kitchen sink shall not be used 
as a substitute for the required lavatory. 

502.2 Rooming houses. At least one water closet, lavatory and bathtub or 
shower shall be supplied for every four rooming units. 

502.3 Hotels. Where private water closets, lavatories and baths are not 
provided, one water closet, one lavatory and one bathtub or shower having 
access from a public hallway shall be provided for each ten occupants. 

502.4 Employees’ facilities. A minimum of one water closet, one lavatory and 
one drinking facility shall be available to employees. 

502.4.1 Drinking facilities. Drinking facilities shall be a drinking fountain, water 
cooler, bottled water cooler or clean cups next to a sink or water dispenser. 
Drinking facilities shall not be located in toilet rooms or bathrooms. 

SECTION 503  TOILET ROOMS 

503.1 Privacy. Toilet rooms and bathrooms shall provide privacy and shall not 
constitute the only passageway to a hall or other space, or to the exterior. In 
multiple dwellings, a door and interior locking device shall be provided for all 
common or shared bathrooms and toilet rooms. 

503.2 Location. Toilet rooms and bathrooms serving hotel units, rooming units 
or dormitory units or housekeeping units, shall have access by traversing not 
more than one flight of stairs and shall have access from a common hall or 
passageway. 

503.3 Location of employee toilet facilities. Toilet facilities shall have access 
from within the employees’ working area. The required toilet facilities shall be 
located not more than one story above or below the employees’ working area 
and the path of travel to such facilities shall not exceed a distance of 500 feet. 
Employee facilities shall either be separate facilities or combined employee and 
public facilities. 

Exception: Facilities that are required for employees in storage structures 
or kiosks, which are located in adjacent structures under the same 
ownership, lease or control, shall not exceed a travel distance of 500 feet 
from the employees’ regular working area to the facilities. 

503.4 Floor surface. In other than dwelling units, every toilet room floor shall be 
maintained to be a smooth, hard, nonabsorbent surface to permit such floor to be 
easily kept in a clean and sanitary condition. 

 

SECTION 504  PLUMBING SYSTEMS AND FIXTURES 

504.1 General. All plumbing fixtures shall be properly installed and maintained in 



working order, and shall be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be 
capable of performing the function for which such plumbing fixtures are designed. 
All plumbing fixtures shall be maintained in a safe, sanitary and functional 
condition. 

504.2 Fixture clearances. Plumbing fixtures shall have adequate clearances for 
usage and cleaning. 

504.3 Plumbing system hazards. Where it is found that a plumbing system in a 
structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants or the structure by reason of 
inadequate service, inadequate venting, cross connection, back siphonage, 
improper installation, deterioration or damage or for similar reasons, the code 
official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

SECTION 505  WATER SYSTEM 

505.1 General. Every sink, lavatory, bathtub or shower, drinking fountain, water 
closet or other plumbing fixture shall be properly connected to either a public 
water system or to an approved private water system. All kitchen sinks, 
lavatories, laundry facilities, bathtubs and showers shall be supplied with hot or 
tempered and cold running water in accordance with the Michigan Plumbing 
Code. 

505.2 Contamination. The water supply shall be maintained free from 
contamination, and all water inlets for plumbing fixtures shall be located above 
the flood-level rim of the fixture. Shampoo basin faucets, janitor sink faucets and 
other hose bibs or faucets to which hoses are attached and left in place shall be 
protected by an approved atmospheric-type vacuum breaker or an approved 
permanently attached hose connection vacuum breaker. 

505.3 Supply. The water supply system shall be installed and maintained to 
provide a supply of water to plumbing fixtures, devices and appurtenances in 
sufficient volume and at pressures adequate to enable the fixtures to function 
properly, safely, and free from defects and leaks. 

505.4 Water heating facilities. Water heating facilities shall be properly 
installed, maintained and capable of providing an adequate amount of water to 
be drawn at every required sink, lavatory, bathtub, shower and laundry facility at 
a temperature of not less than 110°F.  A gas-burning water heater shall not be 
located in any bathroom, toilet room, bedroom or other occupied room normally 
kept closed, unless adequate combustion air is provided. An approved 
combination temperature and pressure-relief valve and relief valve discharge 
pipe shall be properly installed and maintained on water heaters. 

SECTION 506  SANITARY DRAINAGE SYSTEM 

506.1 General. All plumbing fixtures shall be properly connected to either a 
public sewer system or to an approved private sewage disposal system. 

506.2 Maintenance. Every plumbing stack, vent, waste and sewer line shall 



function properly and be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects. 

SECTION 507  STORM DRAINAGE 

507.1 General. Drainage of roofs and paved areas, yards and courts, sub soil 
collection systems, and other open areas on the premises shall not be 
discharged in a manner that creates a public nuisance. 

CHAPTER 6  MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 601  GENERAL 

601.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum 
mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment to be provided. 

601.2 Responsibility. The owner of the structure shall provide and maintain 
mechanical and electrical facilities and equipment in compliance with these 
requirements. A person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another 
person to occupy any premises which does not comply with the requirements of 
this chapter. 

SECTION 602  HEATING FACILITIES 

602.1 Facilities required. Heating facilities shall be provided in structures as 
required by this section. 

602.2 Residential occupancies. Dwellings shall be provided with heating 
facilities capable of maintaining a room temperature of 68°F in all habitable 
rooms, bathrooms and toilet rooms based on the winter outdoor design 
temperature for the locality indicated in Appendix D of the Michigan Plumbing 
Code. Cooking appliances shall not be used to provide space heating to meet the 
requirements of this section. 

602.3 Heat supply. Every owner and operator of any building who rents, leases 
or lets one or more dwelling units or sleeping units on terms, either expressed or 
implied, to furnish heat to the occupants thereof shall supply heat during the 
period from September 1 to June 1 to maintain a temperature of not less than 
68°F in all habitable rooms, bathrooms, and toilet rooms. 

Exception: 

When the outdoor temperature is below the winter outdoor design 
temperature for the locality, maintenance of the minimum room 
temperature shall not be required provided that the heating system is 
operating at its full design capacity. The winter outdoor design 
temperature for the locality shall be as indicated in Appendix D of the 
Michigan Plumbing Code. 

602.4 Occupiable work spaces. Indoor occupiable work spaces shall be 
supplied with heat during the period from September 1 to June 1 to maintain a 
temperature of not less than 65°F during the period the spaces are occupied. 



Exceptions: 

1. Processing, storage and operation areas that require cooling or special 
temperature conditions. 

2. Areas in which persons are primarily engaged in vigorous physical 
activities. 

602.5 Room temperature measurement. The required room temperatures shall 
be measured 3 feet above the floor near the center of the room and 2 feet inward 
from the center of each exterior wall. 

SECTION 603  MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT 

603.1 Mechanical appliances. All mechanical appliances, fireplaces, solid fuel-
burning appliances, cooking appliances and water heating appliances shall be 
properly installed and maintained in a safe working condition, and shall be 
capable of performing the intended function. 

603.2 Removal of combustion products. All fuel-burning equipment and 
appliances shall be connected to an approved chimney or vent. 

Exception: Fuel-burning equipment and appliances which are labeled for 
unvented operation. 

603.3 Clearances. All required clearances to combustible materials shall be 
maintained. 

603.4 Safety controls. All safety controls for fuel-burning equipment shall be 
maintained in effective operation. 

603.5 Combustion air. A supply of air for complete combustion of the fuel and 
for ventilation of the space containing the fuel-burning equipment shall be 
provided for the fuel-burning equipment. 

603.6 Energy conservation devices. Devices intended to reduce fuel 
consumption by attachment to a fuel-burning appliance, to the fuel supply line 
thereto, or to the vent outlet or vent piping there from, shall not be installed 
unless labeled for such purpose and the installation is specifically approved. 

603.7 Portable cooking equipment Unless otherwise approved, portable 
cooking equipment shall not be used on the interior of a structure in any area 
other than an area designated as a cooking room. 

SECTION 604  ELECTRICAL FACILITIES 

604.1 Facilities required. Every occupied building shall be provided with an 
electrical system in compliance with the requirements of this section and Section 
605. 

604.2 Service. The size and usage of appliances and equipment shall serve as a 
basis for determining the need for additional facilities in accordance with the 



Michigan Electrical Code. Dwelling units shall be served by a three-wire, 120/240 
volt, single-phase electrical service having a rating of not less than 60 amperes. 

604.3 Electrical system hazards. Where it is found that the electrical system in 
a structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants or the structure by reason of 
inadequate service, improper fusing, insufficient receptacle and lighting outlets, 
improper wiring or installation, deterioration or damage, or for similar reasons, 
the code official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

SECTION 605  ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 

605.1 Installation. All electrical equipment, wiring and appliances shall be 
properly installed and maintained in a safe and approved manner. 

605.2 Receptacles. Every habitable space in a dwelling shall contain at least two 
separate and remote receptacle outlets. Every laundry area shall contain at least 
one grounded-type receptacle or a receptacle with a ground fault circuit 
interrupter. Every bathroom shall contain at least one receptacle. Any new 
bathroom receptacle outlet shall have ground fault circuit interrupter protection. 

605.3 Luminaires. Every public hall, interior stairway, toilet room, kitchen, 
bathroom, laundry room, boiler room and furnace room shall contain at least one 
electric luminaire. 

SECTION 606  ELEVATORS, ESCALATORS AND DUMBWAITERS 

606.1 General. Elevators, dumbwaiters and escalators shall be maintained in 
compliance with ASME A17.1. The most current certification of inspection shall 
be on display at all times within the elevator or attached to the escalator or 
dumbwaiter, or the certificate shall be available for public inspection in the office 
of the building operator. The inspection and tests shall be performed at not less 
than the periodical intervals listed in ASME A17.1, Appendix N, except where 
otherwise specified by the authority having jurisdiction. 

606.2 Elevators. In buildings equipped with passenger elevators, at least one 
elevator shall be maintained in operation at all times when the building is 
occupied. 

Exception: Buildings equipped with only one elevator shall be permitted 
to have the elevator temporarily out of service for testing or servicing. 

SECTION 607  DUCT SYSTEMS 

607.1 General. Duct systems shall be maintained free of obstructions and shall 
be capable of performing the required function. 

 

CHAPTER 7  FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION 701 GENERAL  



701.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall govern the minimum conditions 
and standards for fire safety relating to structures and exterior premises, 
including fire safety facilities and equipment to be provided. 

701.2 Responsibility. The owner of the premises shall provide and maintain 
such fire safety facilities and equipment in compliance with these requirements. A 
person shall not occupy as owner-occupant or permit another person to occupy 
any premises that do not comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

SECTION 702 MEANS OF EGRESS 

702.1 General. A safe, continuous and unobstructed path of travel shall be 
provided from any point in a building or structure to the public way. Means of 
egress shall comply with the Fire Prevention Code of the City of Troy, Chapter 93 
of the Troy Code of Ordinances, hereafter referred to as the Troy Fire Code. 

702.2 Aisles. The required width of aisles in accordance with the Troy Fire Code 
shall be unobstructed. 

702.3 Locked doors. All means of egress doors shall be readily openable from 
the side from which egress is to be made without the need for keys, special 
knowledge or effort, except where the door hardware conforms to that permitted 
by the Michigan Building Code. 

702.4 Emergency escape openings. Required emergency escape openings 
shall be maintained in accordance with the code in effect at the time of 
construction, and the following: required emergency escape and rescue openings 
shall be operational from the inside of the room without the use of keys or tools. 
Bars, grilles, grates or similar devices are permitted to be placed over emergency 
escape and rescue openings provided the minimum net clear opening size 
complies with the code that was in effect at the time of construction and such 
devices shall be releasable or removable from the inside without the use of a 
key, tool or force greater than that which is required for normal operation of the 
escape and rescue opening. 

SECTION 703  FIRE-RESISTANCE RATINGS 

703.1 Fire-resistance-rated assemblies. The required fire resistance rating of 
fire-resistance-rated walls, fire stops, shaft enclosures, partitions and floors shall 
be maintained. 

703.2 Opening protectives. Required opening protectives shall be maintained in 
an operative condition. All fire and smoke stop doors shall be maintained in 
operable condition. Fire doors and smoke barrier doors shall not be blocked or 
obstructed or otherwise made inoperable. 

SECTION 704  FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

704.1 General. All systems, devices and equipment to detect a fire, actuate an 
alarm, or suppress or control a fire or any combination thereof shall be 



maintained in an operable condition at all times in accordance with the Troy Fire 
Code. 

704.2 Smoke alarms. Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed 
and maintained in Groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and in dwellings not regulated in Group 
R occupancies, regardless of occupant load at all of the following locations: 

1. On the ceiling or wall outside of each separate sleeping area in the 
immediate vicinity of bedrooms. 

2. In each room used for sleeping purposes. 

3. In each story within a dwelling unit, including basements and cellars but 
not including crawl spaces and uninhabitable attics. In dwellings or 
dwelling units with split levels and without an intervening door between the 
adjacent levels, a smoke alarm installed on the upper level shall suffice for 
the adjacent lower level provided that the lower level is less than one full 
story below the upper level. Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall 
be installed in other groups in accordance with the Troy Fire Code. 

704.3 Power source. In Group R occupancies and in dwellings not regulated as 
Group R occupancies, single-station smoke alarms shall receive their primary 
power from the building wiring provided that such wiring is served from a 
commercial source and shall be equipped with a battery backup. Smoke alarms 
shall emit a signal when the batteries are low. Wiring shall be permanent and 
without a disconnecting switch other than as required for overcurrent protection. 

Exception: Smoke alarms are permitted to be solely battery operated in 
buildings where no construction is taking place, buildings that are not 
served from a commercial power source and in existing areas of buildings 
undergoing alterations or repairs that do not result in the removal of 
interior wall or ceiling finishes exposing the structure, unless there is an 
attic, crawl space or basement available which could provide access for 
building wiring without the removal of interior finishes. 

704.4 Interconnection. Where more than one smoke alarm is required to be 
installed within an individual dwelling unit in Group R-2, R-3, R-4 and in dwellings 
not regulated as Group R occupancies, the smoke alarms shall be 
interconnected in such a manner that the activation of one alarm will activate all 
of the alarms in the individual unit. Such interconnection shall be permitted to be 
through wired or approved wireless methods. The alarm shall be clearly audible 
in all bedrooms over background noise levels with all intervening doors closed. 

Exceptions: 

1. Interconnection is not required in buildings which are not undergoing 
alterations, repairs, or construction of any kind. 

2. Smoke alarms in existing areas are not required to be interconnected 
where alterations or repairs do not result in the removal of interior wall or 



ceiling finishes exposing the structure, unless there is an attic, crawl space 
or basement available which could provide access for interconnection 
without the removal of interior finishes. 



CHAPTER 8  REFERENCED STANDARDS 

This chapter lists the standards that are referenced in various sections of this 
document. The standards are listed herein by the promulgating agency of the 
standard, the standard identification, the effective date and title and the section 
or sections of this document that reference the standard. The application of the 
referenced standards shall be as specified in Section 102.7. 

ASME 

American Society of Mechanical Engineers 
Three Park Avenue 
 New York, NY 10016-5990 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code 
section number 

A17.1—2000 Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators 
with A17.1a 2002 Addenda 

606.1 

 
 

  

ASTM 

ASTM International 
100 Barr Harbor Drive West 
Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code 
section number 

F1346—91 
(2003) 

Performance Specifications for Safety 
Covers and Labeling Requirements for All 
Covers for Swimming Pools, Spas and Hot 
Tubs 

303.2 

 
 

  

DELEG 

Michigan Department of Energy Labor and 
Economic Growth 
Bureau of Construction Codes 
2501 Woodlake Circle 
Okemos, MI 48864 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code 
section number 

MEC—06 Michigan Electrical Code 102.3, 201.3, 604.2 
MBC—06 Michigan Building Code 102.3, 201.3, 401.3, 702.3 
IMC—06 Michigan Mechanical Code 102.3, 201.3 
IPC—06 Michigan Plumbing Code 102.3, 201.3, 505.1, 602.2, 602.3 



 

   

City of Troy 

City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code  
section number 

Charter Charter of the City of Troy 104.3 
Chapter 2 Address Numbering and Street Naming 304.3 
Chapter 39 Troy Zoning Ordinance 102.3, 201.3 

Chapter 60 Fees and Bonds Required 103.5 

Chapter 79 General Building Regulations 111.2 

Chapter 82A Rental and Dwelling Inspection and 
Enforcement 

104.3.1 

Chapter 88 Nuisances 302.8 
Chapter 93 Troy Fire Prevention Code 108.1, 201.3, 702.1, 702.2, 704.1 

704.2 
Chapter 100 Municipal Civil Infractions 106.1, 106.2, 106.3, 107.1, 107.2, 

108.1.1.2, 302.4.3, 302.4.4, 
307.4.3 

 

ICC 

International Code Council 
5203 Leesburg Pike, Suite 600 
Falls Church, VA 22041 

 

Standard 
reference 
number 

Title Referenced in code  
section number 

IFGC-06 International Fuel Gas Code 102.3 
   
 



 

Section 3. Savings 

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 

Section 4. Severability Clause 

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective on January 1, 2010. 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the    day of     2009. 

 

 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 

 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  October 5, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That upon the approval of all parties to the Consent Judgment, 
and the satisfaction of all terms and conditions of this or any other agreement between the 
parties, Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Attorney to present the Sixth Order 
Amending Consent Judgment to the Court for entry and also to record the document with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds.  
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: Howrylak, Schilling  
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-9 Troy City Code Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 82, Property Maintenance Code; 

Chapter 48, Litter Ordinance; Chapter 79 – General Building Regulations, Appeal 
Procedures; Chapter 82-B – Dangerous Buildings Ordinance; Chapter 88 – 
Nuisance Ordinance; and Chapter 89 – Weed Control Ordinance 

 
Marvin Reinhardt Opposed to the membership of the proposed Appeal Board 
 
a) Update of Chapter 82 - Property Maintenance Code 
 
Resolution #2009-10-296a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 82, 
Property Maintenance Code, of the Troy City Code, by deleting the existing text in its entirety 
and adopting new text in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Management, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That these revisions shall become EFFECTIVE on January 1, 
2010. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Amendment to Chapter 48 – Litter Ordinance 
  
Resolution #2009-10-296b 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 48, 
Litter, of the Troy City Code, by amending certain sections in accordance with the proposal 
prepared by City Management, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting; and 


	AGENDA: June 21, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	ROLL CALL:
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	C-1 Presentations:
	Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year
	On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the months of March and April 2010, Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in the amount of $1,062.00 to Kelsey Ruder, Community Representative for the Amer...
	Presentation by City Assessor Nino Licari on the 2010 City of Troy Assessment Roll & Board of Review Report


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Special Use Request (File Number SU 379) – Proposed Big Beaver Tavern Outdoor Seating, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester (645 East Big Beaver), Section 22, Currently Zoned O-M (Office Mid-Rise) District
	E-2 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-737) – Troy Sports Center Properties, Northwest Corner of John R and Big Beaver, Section 23 – O-1 (Low Rise Office District to B-2 (Community Business) District

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	G-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled
	City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals

	H-3 Approval of Amendment to MDOT Contract No. 07-7734 by MDOT Contract No. 10-4040 – Stephenson Highway, 14 Mile to I-75 – Project No. 02.201.5
	H-4 2009/10 Budget Amendment No. 2
	H-5 Dissolution of Historic District Study Committee
	H-6 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 3 – Administrative Service
	H-7 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	Proclamation to Honor Peter Hullinger – 2010 Firefighter of the Year

	I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Audio & Video Upgrades
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Sole Bidder – Pool Maintenance and Repair Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 10-02 – Coolidge Highway Pavement Rehabilitation
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of Rochester Hills – Fire Hose Testing
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fitness Equipment
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts

	I-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Michael Mandell, President of The Polish Century Club Orphans Fund, Inc.
	I-6 Request for Ratification of The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a New Club License, 2360 Rochester – MLCC Request #520848 Approval Resolution
	I-7 Interlocal Agreement for Participation in the Troy Police Department Special Investigations Unit
	I-8 City of Troy v RCU Independence, Inc. et al
	I-9 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2010-2011

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time):
	(a) June 28, 2010 Study Session


	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	K-1  Council Member Dane Slater Proposals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	L-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 4, 2010
	Library Advisory Board/Final – May 13, 2010
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 18, 2010
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 18, 2010
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 25, 2010
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 25, 2010
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 2, 2010
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 3, 2010

	M-2 Department Reports:
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – March 2010
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – April 2010
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – May 2010

	M-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Acting Planning Director from Morgan Liu and Hongmei Zhao Regarding Service Received Pertaining to Site Condos and Subdivisions
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sterling Heights Police Chief Michael Reese Regarding Assistance Received from Troy Police Department Special Investigative Unit with Serial Home Invasion Suspects

	M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	M-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – May 20, 2010
	M-6  Communication from Troy Police Department Regarding Police Records Section Public Counter Reduction in Hours
	M-7  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding A & M Towing Contract
	M-8  Communication from Fire Chief William Nelson Regarding Firefighters Incentive Program and Budget Comparison

	STUDY ITEMS
	N-1  Chapter 82 – Property Maintenance Code – Responsibility to Cut Weeds and Grass

	CLOSED SESSION:
	O-1 Closed Session

	ADJOURNMENT



